
 

 

City of Alvin, Texas  
 

Paul Horn, Mayor 
 

Keith Thompson, Mayor Pro-tem, District C Adam Arendell, District B 

Brad Richards, At Large Pos. 1 Glenn Starkey, District D 

Joel Castro, At Large Pos. 2 Gabe Adame, District E 

Scott Reed, District A  
 
 

ALVIN CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  

THURSDAY, MAY 2, 2019 

 7:00 P.M.  
 (Council Chambers) 

 

Alvin City Hall, 216 West Sealy, Alvin, Texas 77511 
Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting that will require special services please contact the City Secretary’s Office at 281-388-4255 
or droberts@cityofalvin.com 48 hours prior to the meeting time.  City Hall is wheel chair accessible and a sloped curb entry is available at the east 

and west entrances to City Hall.  
 

NOTICE is hereby given of a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, to be 

held on THURSDAY, MAY 2, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at: City Hall, 216 W. 

Sealy, Alvin, Texas. 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Proclamation:  Police Week. 
 

B. EMS/Emergency Management Departmental Update. 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA: CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: An item(s) may be 

removed from the Consent Agenda for full discussion by the request of a member of Council.  Item(s) removed will automatically 

become the first item up for discussion under Other Business. 
 

A. Consider approval of the April 4, 2019 City Council workshop minutes. 
 

B. Consider approval of the April 4, 2019 City Council meeting minutes. 
 

C. Acknowledge receipt of the Capital Improvement Plan Report and Comprehensive Plan 

Implementation Report. 
 

D. Consider Addendum No. 1 for a one (1) year renewal agreement with American Janitorial as 

the City’s janitorial services provider of City owned buildings and park restrooms in an amount 

not to exceed $106,344.00; and authorize the City Manager to sign. 
 

E. Consider Addendum No. 1 for a one (1) year renewal agreement with LTS Lawncare as the 

City’s manicured mowing services provider of select parkland, other City owned property and 

State right of way, in an amount not to exceed $33,075.00; and authorize the City Manager to 

sign. 

mailto:droberts@cityofalvin.com


AGENDA - 2 -                                                May 2, 2019 

 

 

 

F. Consider Addendum No. 2 for a one (1) year renewal Agreement with LTS Lawncare as the 

City’s manicured mowing services provider of select City owned and State Right of Way 

property including parkland, lift stations, water wells and various building grounds in an 

amount not to exceed $72,723.33; and authorize the City Manager to sign. 
 

G. Consider Resolution 19-R-19, suspending the May 10, 2019 effective date of CenterPoint 

Energy Houston Electric, LLC’s requested rate change to permit the City time to study the 

request and to establish reasonable rates; approving continued cooperation with the Gulf Coast 

Coalition of Cities; hiring Lloyd Gosselink Attorneys and Consulting Services to negotiate 

with the company and direct any necessary litigation and appeals; requiring reimbursement of 

cities’ rate case expenses; finding that the meeting at which this resolution is passed is open to 

the public as required by law; requiring notice of this resolution to the company and legal 

counsel. 
 

H. Consider Resolution 19-R-20, suspending the May 27, 2019 effective date of the proposal by 

CenterPoint Energy Resources Corp., d/b/a CenterPoint Energy Entex and CenterPoint Energy 

Texas Gas – Texas Coast Division to Implement interim Gas Reliability Infrastructure Program 

GRIP rate adjustments for gas utility investment in 2018 and requiring delivery of this 

resolution to the Company and legal counsel. 
 

6. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

A. Receive and acknowledge receipt of the Financial and Quarterly Investment Reports ending 

March 31, 2019. 
 

B. Consider Resolution 19-R-21, approving the Strategic Partnership Agreement between the 

City of Alvin and Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 48 for the Walton 

Development; and authorize the Mayor to sign, subject to legal review.  
 

C. Consider Resolution 19-R-22, approving the Strategic Partnership Agreement between the 

City of Alvin and Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 49 for the Walton 

Development; and authorize the Mayor to sign, subject to legal review. 
 

D. Consider Ordinance 19-J, terminating a contiguous geographic area within City of Alvin as 

Reinvestment Zone Number Three, City of Alvin, Texas, for tax increment financing purposes 

pursuant to Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code; containing findings and provisions related to 

the foregoing subject; providing a severability clause. 
 

E. Consider Ordinance 19-F(a), amending Chapter 5, Buildings, of the Code of Ordinances, City 

of Alvin, Texas, to adopt the 2018 International Building, Swimming Pool and Spa, 

Residential, Plumbing, Mechanical, Fuel Gas, Energy Conservation, Existing Building, and 

Property Maintenance Codes each as published, by the International Code Council, Inc.; 

providing certain amendments and deletions to said standard codes; providing a penalty of an 

amount not to exceed $2,000 for each violation of any provision hereof; and providing a 

repealer clause, a severability clause, a savings clause, and an effective date. 
 

F. Consider Ordinance 19-G, amending Chapter 8, Electricity, of the Code of Ordinances, City 

of Alvin, Texas, providing the adoption of the 2017 National Electrical Code as published by 

the National Fire Protection Association; deleting section regarding permits for part jobs; 

providing for a severability clause; providing for a penalty; providing for publication; 



AGENDA - 3 -                                                May 2, 2019 

 

 

providing for a savings clause; providing an effective date, and setting forth other provisions 

related thereto. 
 

G. Consider Ordinance 19-H, amending Chapter 9, Fire Prevention and Protection, of the Code 

of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, for the purpose of adopting the 2018 International Fire 

Code as published with certain amendments and deletions; by repealing sections 9-40 through 

9-158 regarding flammable or combustible liquids, as they are outdated; adding a new section 

9.202 – Fire Alarm Activation; amending Section 9.204 Fire Department Access; providing 

for a penalty and publication; and setting forth other provisions related thereto. 
 

H. Consider Ordinance 19-I, amending Chapter 17, Plumbing, of the Code of Ordinances, City of 

Alvin, Texas, providing the reference to the adoption of the 2018 International Plumbing Code 

as published with certain amendments and deletions; providing for a severability clause; 

providing for a penalty; providing for publication; providing for a savings clause; providing an 

effective date, and setting forth other provisions related thereto. 
 

I. Consider an Engineering Services Agreement with LJA Engineering in an amount not to 

exceed $80,650 for additional engineering design services for the Lift Station 30 Expansion 

and Highway 35 Bypass Gravity Mains Project. 
 

7. REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER  
 

A. Items of Community Interest and review preliminary list of items for next Council meeting. 
 

8. ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 
Pursuant to 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code reports or an announcement about items of community interest during a 

meeting of the governing body. No action will be taken or discussed. 

 

A. Hear announcements concerning items of community interest from the Mayor, Council 

members, and City staff, for which no action will be discussed or taken.   
 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
 

I hereby certify that a copy of this notice was posted on the City Hall bulletin board, a place convenient and readily 

accessible to the general public at all times, and to the City’s website: www.alvin-tx.gov, in compliance with Chapter 

551, Texas Government Code on MONDAY, APRIL 29, 2019 at 4:30 P.M.  
         

 (SEAL)       ___________________________________ 

       Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 

Removal Date: ______________________ 

** All meetings of the City Council are open to the public, except when there is a necessity to meet in Executive Session (closed to the public) under 
the provisions of Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. The Council reserves the right to convene into executive session on any of the above posted 
agenda items that qualify for an executive session by publicly announcing the applicable section of the Open Meetings Act, including but not limited 
to sections 551.071 (litigation and certain consultation with the attorney), 551.072 (acquisition of interest in real property), 551.073 (contract for gift to 
city), 551.074 (certain personnel deliberations), or 551.087 (qualifying economic development negotiations). 

http://www.alvin-tx.gov/


 
         

Office of the Mayor, City of Alvin, Texas 

      Proclamation  
 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS,  the Congress and President of the United States have designated May 

15th as Peace Officers Memorial Day and the week in which it falls as 

Police Week; and 

WHEREAS,  the members of the law enforcement agency of Alvin play an 

essential role in safeguarding the rights and freedoms of the citizens 

of Alvin; and 

WHEREAS, the police department of Alvin has grown to be a modern and 

scientific law enforcement agency, providing a vital public service.  

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Paul A. Horn, as Mayor of the City of Alvin, Texas, and 

on behalf of the City Council hereby declare the week of May 12 - May 18, 2019 as:  

Police Week 
and further recognize that Peace Officers Memorial Day was observed on Wednesday, 
May 15, 2019, in honor of those peace officers who, through their courageous deeds, 
have lost their lives or have become disabled in the performance of duty. 

 
WITNESS my hand and seal this 2nd day 
 of May 2019. 
 
 
___________________________________ 

 Paul A. Horn, Mayor     



Emergency Medical Services
City of Alvin – Departmental Update



E.M.S. Profile

• Employs 18 full time and 22 part time staff 
members 

• Staffs 2 Mobile Intensive Care Capable Units 
24/7 and 1 peak volume unit (10a-10p)

• Operates out of a central 4,700 sq. ft.
facility

• Provides community outreach/educational 
services

• Training site for EMS Education programs

• Active member of the Texas Emergency 
Medical Task Force



EMS Call Volume & Transports

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

FY 2013 -
14

FY 2014 -
15

FY 2015 -
16 YTD

FY 2016 -
17

FY 2017 -
18

FY 2018 -
19Annual Call Volume Projected

Clear Lake
57%

Southeast 
Memorial

18%

Pearland HCA
3%

Peraland Mem. 
Hermann

5%

St. Johns -
Methodist

2%

Mainland
2%

UTMB Angleton
4%

UTMB Victory 
Lakes

4%

Other
5%

Call Volume Transport Destinations



Response Times



E.M.S. Staff

• 7 Emergency Medical 
Technicians (EMT)

• 11 Paramedics

• 320+ hours of in house 
accredited Continuing 
Education (CE) training

• 420+ hours external CE 
training



Community Outreach

• EMS provides community education and 
injury prevention

• Alvin Police Academy – CPR/First Aid

• ACC Dental School – First Aid

• Community Emergency Response 
Team (CERT) – First Aid

• Alvin ISD – “Stop the Bleed” / 
Education Program in schools

• Car Seat Safety Program



Texas Emergency Medical Task Force (EMTF)

• Ambulance Strike Teams

• RN Strike Teams

• AMBUS Teams 

• Mobile Medical Unit

• High Consequence Infectious 
Disease / Infectious Disease 
Response Unit

• Mass Fatality Management 



Joint EMS/Fire Facility



Questions?



Emergency Management
City of Alvin – Departmental Update



Office of Emergency Management

• Sec. 6-1. - Organization.

• There exists the office of Emergency Management 
Director of the City of Alvin, Texas, which shall be 
held by the mayor in accordance with state law. 

• (1) An emergency management coordinator may 
be appointed by and serve at the pleasure of 
the director; 



Emergency Management Duties

• Conduct an on-going survey of actual or potential hazards to the
City

• Supervision of the development and approval of an emergency
management plan for the City

• Recommend to the Director declarations of local state of
disaster

• Coordinate training of staff

• Ensure all local, state and federal requirements are met



Hazard Analysis



Emergency Management Plan

• Basic Plan
• Authority
• Organization/Operation
• Command/Control
• Plan Development & 

Maintenance

• 22 Annexes
• Specific Response Plans & 

Assignments 

• Updated every 5 years

• City of Alvin – Advanced Level 
Plan 



Training

• National Incident Management System (NIMS)

• Incident Command System (ICS)
• All City Staff

• Exercises / Drills
• 2 Discussion Based

• 1 Operations Based

• Position / Function Specific
• Disaster Finance

• Shelter Operations

• Donation Management

• Public Information Officer

• Debris Removal Operations



Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG)

• Original Application – January 2015

• Program Requirements

• Maintain Emergency Management Plan at the Advanced 
Level

• Complete 3 Exercises / Year

• Attend Training

• Complete Quarterly and Semi-Annual Reports



www.alvin-tx.gov
1. 2. 3.

ALVIN ALERTS

http://www.alvin-tx.gov/


Questions?



MINUTES 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
216 W. SEALY STREET 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP 
THURSDAY APRIL 4, 2019 

6:00 P.M. 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
BE IT REMEMBERED that, on the above date, the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, met in 
a Workshop Session at 7:00 p.m. in the first floor Conference Room at City Hall, with the following 
members present: Paul A. Horn, Mayor; Councilmembers: Gabe Adame, Adam Arendell, Joel Castro, 
Brad Richards, Scott Reed and Glen Starkey.   
 
Staff members present:  Junru Roland, City Manager; Suzanne Hanneman, City Attorney; Dixie 
Roberts, City Secretary; Larry Buehler, Director of Economic Development; Dan Kelinske, Parks 
Director; and Robert E. Lee, Police Chief.  

 
WORKSHOP BUSINESS 
Discuss Tent Ordinance 
Chief Lee presented a draft tent encampment ordinance before City Council.  The purpose of this 
ordinance is to promote the safety and welfare of our homeless citizens, while maintaining community 
and quality of life standards.  This ordinance would allow for the creation of temporary outdoor 
encampments organized and managed by faith based or nonprofit organizations.  These temporary 
outdoor encampments do not represent a permanent solution to homelessness, but rather they are 
intended to ensure that health, safety and security standards are maintained while they are in use.  It 
is the hope of the City that such temporary encampments may be the first step toward more permanent 
housing for our homeless citizens.   
 
Chief Lee reviewed the ordinance in detail. 
 
Members of Council had the following response to the ordinance presented: 
The need for identification is a topic of concern, and the regulation of such.  Onsite portable restrooms 
should be serviced at least weekly; and the encampment site inspected monthly or bi-monthly by code 
enforcement.  The encampment should have active rosters of all those staying on the premises. The 
Planning Commission could review the application and City Council could serve as the appellate 
board.  
 
Staff will add the necessary language to address the concerns listed above and will bring this item 
back for further discussion.  Note that members of the Archangels of Texas attended this workshop. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor Horn adjourned the meeting at 6:52 p.m. 
 
PASSED and APPROVED the 2nd day of May 2019. 
 
_______________________________ 
Paul A. Horn, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: ____________________________ 
          Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 



 
MINUTES 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
216 W. SEALY STREET 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
AND EXECUTIVE SESSION 
THURSDAY APRIL 4, 2019 

7:00 P.M. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
BE IT REMEMBERED that, on the above date, the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, met in 
Regular Session at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at City Hall, with the following members 
present: Paul A. Horn, Mayor; Keith Thompson, Mayor Pro-Tem and Councilmembers: Gabe 
Adame, Adam Arendell, Joel Castro, Brad Richards, Scott Reed and Glen Starkey.   
 
Staff members present:  Junru Roland, City Manager; Suzanne Hanneman, City Attorney; Dixie 
Roberts, City Secretary; Michelle Segovia, City Engineer; Brian Smith, Public Services Director and 
Robert Lee, Police Chief.   

 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Wayne Barber with Crossover to Christ Church gave the invocation.   
 

Council member Castro led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and Council member Reed 
led the Pledge to the Texas Flag. 

  
PRESENTATIONS 
Proclamation: Crime Victims’ Rights Week – April 7-13. 
Mayor Horn presented a proclamation for Crime Victim’s Rights Week to Maribel Cooper, Crime 
Victims Assistance Liaison along with representatives of the Crime Victims Support Group.  
 
Proclamation: Telecommunications Week – April 14-20. 
Mayor Horn presented a proclamation for Telecommunication Week to Bobette McGilberry, Police 
Dispatch Supervisor and staff. 
 
Streets Departmental Presentation. 
Brian Smith, Public Services Director, gave an update on the Street Department.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
There were no public comments 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Consider approval of the March 21, 2019 City Council meeting minutes. 
 
Consider Amending Plat No. 1 of Pecan Bend Section 2 (located at 20202 Deer Run Road, Damon, 
Texas), being a subdivision of 10.4873 acres in the Edward Robertson League, A-80, also being a 
replat of tracts 228 and 227 of Pecan Bend Section 2, as recorded in vol. 22, pg.19, plat records of Fort 
Bend County, Texas. 
On February 28, 2019, the Engineering Department received Amending Plat No. 1 of Pecan Bend Section 2 for review. 
The property is located at 20202 Deer Run Road in the City of Alvin’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and is being 
platted to revise the lot lines for future conveyance. This plat complies with all requirements of the City’s Subdivision 
Ordinance. The City Planning Commission unanimously approved the plat at their meeting on March 19, 2019. Staff 
recommended approval. 
 



MINUTES - 2 -                                                April 4, 2019 
 
Consider a final plat of AEHL Corporation (located at 406 E. Highway 6), being a plat of 4.13 acres 
of land, the same land as described in document number 2008053855, official records of real property, 
situated in section 15, H.T. & B.R.R. Company Survey, Abstract 227, Brazoria County, Texas. 
On February 28, 2019, the Engineering Department received the final plat of AEHL Corporation for review. The property 
is located at 406 E. Highway 6 and is being platted for conveyance of lots 1 and 3. This plat complies with all requirements 
of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance.  The City Planning Commission unanimously approved the plat at their meeting on 
March 19, 2019. Staff recommended approval. 
 
Consider a final plat of Brooks Acres (located at 2310 County Road 179), being a subdivision of 10.0 
acres, lot 8 of the J.A. Labatt Subdivision, H.T. & B. R. R. Co. Survey, A-474 subdivision, Brazoria 
County, Texas. 
On February 28, 2019, the Engineering Department received the final Plat of Brooks Acres for review. The property is 
located at 2310 County Road 179 in the City of Alvin’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and is being platted for 
conveyance of lot 2. This plat complies with all requirements of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance.  The City Planning 
Commission unanimously approved the plat at their meeting on March 19, 2019. Staff recommended approval. 
 
Consider a final plat of Southern Colony Section 5 (located in the City of Alvin’s ETJ along the east 
side of FM 521 and north of Juliff-Manvel Road), being a planned unit development subdivision of 
2.598 acres of land situated in the William Hall League, Abstract 31, Fort Bend County, Texas. 
On February 28, 2019, the Engineering Department received the Final Plat of Southern Colony Sections 5 for review. This 
subdivision is in the City of Alvin’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) located along the east side of FM 521 and north of 
Juliff-Manvel Road. This Final Plat consists of 8 lots, 4 reserves, and 1 block. This plat complies with all requirements of 
the Planned Unit Development Section of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance. The Southern Colony Subdivision currently 
consists of four previously platted sections.  The City Planning Commission unanimously approved the plat at their meeting 
on March 19, 2019.  Staff recommended approval. 
 
Consider Resolution 19-R-14, authorizing certain officers of the City of Alvin to sign and endorse 
checks and drafts on the City of Alvin bank accounts. 
This resolution adds Michael Higgins, Chief Financial Officer, as an authorized City Official on the City of Alvin bank 
accounts, effective April 8, 2019.  Staff recommended approval of Resolution 19-R-14. 
 
Consider Resolution 19-R-15, updating the designation of persons authorized to act on behalf of the 
City of Alvin in connection with TexPool. 
This resolution adds Michael Higgins, Chief Financial Officer, as an authorized representative on all current TexPool 
accounts, effective 4/8/2019.   TexPool is the largest and oldest local government investment pool in the state of Texas. 
TexPool currently provides investment services to over 2,000 communities throughout Texas.  Staff recommended 
approval of Resolution 19-R-15. 
 
Consider Resolution 19-R-16, updating the designation of persons authorized to act on behalf of the 
City of Alvin in connection with TexSTAR. 
This resolution adds Michael Higgins, Chief Financial Officer, as an authorized representative on all current TexSTAR 
accounts, effective 4/8/2019.  TexSTAR is an investment service for Local Governments.  Staff recommended approval of 
Resolution 19-R-16. 
 
Consider Resolution 19-R-17, updating the designation of persons authorized to act on behalf of the 
City of Alvin in connection with Texas CLASS. 
This resolution adds Michael Higgins, Chief Financial Officer, and Paul A. Horn, Mayor, as authorized representatives 
on all current Texas Class accounts, effective 4/8/2019. In addition, the resolution removes Florence Chapa, Interim 
Finance Director, as an authorized representative, and approves read only access to Florence Chapa as the Controller.  
Texas Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System Trust (Texas Class) is a local government investment pool.  Staff 
recommended approval of Resolution 19-R-17. 
 
Council member Adame moved to approve the consent agenda as presented.  Seconded by Council 
member Starkey; motion carried on a vote of 6 Ayes.  
 



MINUTES - 3 -                                                April 4, 2019 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
Consider Resolution 19-R-13, authorizing publication of Notice of Intention to issue Certificates of 
Obligation; authorizing the preparation of the preliminary official statements and notices of sale; 
declaring intent to reimburse certain prior capital costs; and providing for other matters related 
thereto. 
The City is currently planning the issuance of Certificates of Obligation (“Certificates”) to finance the costs associated 
with the (i) design, construction, and equipment of a fire and emergency medical services station, (ii) the design, 
construction and equipment of street and drainage improvements, and (iii) the costs of professional services incurred in 
connection therewith. 
 
Under Section 271.049 of the Texas Local Government Code, the City is required to publish notice of its intention to issue 
the Certificates before city council may approve an ordinance authorizing the sale of the Certificates.  The public notice 
must state: 
 
1.) the time and place tentatively set for the passage of the order or ordinance authorizing the issuance of the certificates, 
2.) the purpose of the certificates to be authorized, 
3.) the maximum amount of certificates that can be authorized; and 
4.) the manner in which the certificates will be paid for, whether by taxes, revenues, or a combination of the two. 
 
Resolution 19-R-13 authorizes the publication of the statutorily required notice.   In addition, Resolution 19-R-13 
authorizes the City’s administrative staff, with the assistance of Bond Counsel (Bracewell LLP) and Financial Advisors 
(US Capital Advisors LLC), to proceed with the preparation of the preliminary official statements* and notices of sale 
for the proposed certificates, and a separate series of Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds that are currently planned 
to be issued (via Revenue Bonds) concurrently with the certificates.   
 
Contents of the Notice of Intention to Issue the Certificates 
The contents of the notice of intention to issue the Certificates are dictated by state law.  The maximum par amount listed 
in the notice of intention sets the maximum amount of certificate proceeds that may be used for the purposes outlined 
above.  To date, the City has not bid out the cost of the projects, as a result, the amount reflected in the Notice of Intent 
is the maximum estimated costs of the Fire/EMS station and Drainage Project as provided by Joiner Architects Inc. and 
Dannenbaum Engineering Inc., respectively.  If the final costs of the projects come in lower than the maximum 

estimated (noted on the Notice of Intent), the City will not issue the full par amount listed in the notice.   
 
Pledging of Resources for the Certificates 
The Certificates will be secured by a pledge of ad valorem taxes and a limited pledge of a subordinate lien of the net 
revenues of the City’s water and sanitary sewer system.  The pledge of water and sewer system revenues will be a de 
minimis limited pledge of net revenues in a total amount not to exceed $1,000.  The City does not intend to pay the debt 
service on the Certificates from the net revenues of the City’s water and sewer system and is not required to do so as a 
result of the limited pledge (beyond the $1,000 pledged).  However, state law requires the attachment of a valid pledge of 
revenues in order to issue certificates of obligation.   
 
The City is limited in the sources of revenue from which it may make a valid pledge of revenues for this purpose and has 
traditionally used a de minimis pledge of the net revenues of its water and sewer system.   For example, state law prohibits 
the City from pledging sales taxes to the payment of the Certificates.  As a result, the City cannot replace the limited pledge 
of water and sewer revenues with a pledge of sales tax revenues.  However, to the extent that the projects funded from with 
the Certificates are eligible for payment from sales tax revenues, the City could in the future use sales tax revenues to pay 
the portion of debt service on the Certificates allocable to the projects eligible to be funded from the sales taxes.   

 
* Preliminary Official Statement – prospectus on a pending new issue, circulated usually to gauge the level of interest 
among prospective investors by giving the broad information (but without indicating the price of the issue) 
 
Council member Starkey moved to approve Resolution 19-R-13, authorizing publication of Notice of 
Intention to issue Certificates of Obligation; authorizing the preparation of the preliminary official 
statements and notices of sale; declaring intent to reimburse certain prior capital costs; and providing 
for other matters related thereto.  Seconded by Council member Richards; motion carried on a vote of 
6 Ayes.  
  



MINUTES - 4 -                                                April 4, 2019 
 
Consider the adoption of the City of Alvin 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Program. 
The City of Alvin 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) includes anticipated drainage, street, water, 
wastewater, parks, and facilities projects planned for the next five years. Each year Staff will review / adjust the plan as 
necessary and present to the Planning Commission, Parks & Recreation Board and City Council as required by the City 
Charter prior to the start of the budget process for the upcoming fiscal year. Once the CIP is approved each year then 
the City Council / Staff will work to fund the projects through the budget for the upcoming fiscal year. Approval of the 
CIP does not guarantee that funds will be available in the respective fiscal years for implementation of the projects. 
 
The 2020-2024 CIP was presented previously to the City Council in a workshop meeting on February 12, 2019.  The City 
Planning Commission unanimously approved the 2020-2024 CIP at their meeting on March 19, 2019. Staff recommended 
approval. 
  
Council member Reed moved to approve the adoption of the City of Alvin 2020-2024 Capital 
Improvement Program.  Seconded by Council member Arendell; motion carried on a vote of 6 Ayes.  
 
Consider Resolution 19-R-18, authorizing the display of the national motto, “In God We Trust” on 
City of Alvin public safety vehicles; and discuss the potential display of said motto at various city 
facilities.   
Council member Joel Castro expressed an interest in displaying “In God We Trust” in the City Council Chambers, as well 
as on City of Alvin public safety vehicles.  The City currently has 53 public safety vehicles, in which it would cost the City 
roughly $75 per vehicle to display “In God We Trust” on the vehicles.  The costs associated with displaying “In God We 
Trust” in the City Council chambers is to be determined, as it will depend on the location of the display. 
 
Recent Ruling 
Attorney General Ken Paxton ruled in 2015 that displaying "In God We Trust" on patrol vehicles "is a passive use of a 
motto steeped in our nation's history that does not coerce citizen approval or participation."  The motto does not force 
people who disagree with it to participate in prayer or religion, he said, and is allowed under the U.S. Constitution.  
According to the Original Motto Project, a group that aims to replace "In God We Trust" with "E Pluribus Unum," or "out 
of many, one" as the national motto, more than 300 law enforcement departments nationwide have the "In God We Trust" 
stickers on their vehicles. More than 50 of those departments are in Texas, which have added the words since Paxton's 
2015 ruling. 
 
Council member Castro moved to approve Resolution 19-R-18, authorizing the display of the national 
motto, “In God We Trust” on City of Alvin public safety vehicles; and discuss the potential display of 
said motto at various city facilities.  Seconded by Council member Starkey; motion carried on a vote 
of 6 Ayes.  
 
Consider the cancellation of the April 18, 2019 City Council meeting. 
Thursday, April 18, 2019 city offices will be closed in observance of Good Friday.  As a result, staff proposes to cancel 
the April 18, 2019 regular city council meeting. 
 
Council member Starkey moved to approve the cancellation of the April 18, 2019 City Council 
meeting.  Seconded by Council member Arendell; motion carried on a vote of 6 Ayes.  
 
REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER  
Items of Community Interest and review preliminary list of items for next Council meeting. 
Mr. Roland presented items of community interest and reviewed the preliminary list of items for the 
next Council meeting.  

 
ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 
Hear announcements concerning items of community interest from the Mayor, Council members, and 
City staff, for which no action will be discussed or taken.   
Mrs. Roberts reviewed items of community interest.   
 
 



MINUTES - 5 -                                                April 4, 2019 
 
Council member Reed gave a positive feedback on the workshop on the homeless ordinance and 
tonight’s invocation. 
 
Council member Castro announced the reopening of the Alvin Opry and the candidate forum on April 
16th.  
 
Council member Adame announced the annual Alvin Noon Lions Club on April 12th.  
 
Council member Starkey inquired about the city employee who found a wallet and requested that 
they be publicly commended.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Mayor Horn called for an executive session at 7:40 p.m. in accordance to the following: 
 
A. Section 551.074 of the Local Government Code: Deliberation on the appointment, employment, 

evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee.  
 

1. City Manager Evaluation. 
 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
Mayor Horn reconvened the meeting into open session at 7:49 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor Horn adjourned the meeting at 7:49 p.m. 
 
 
PASSED and APPROVED the 2nd day of May 2019. 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Paul A. Horn, Mayor 
   
 

ATTEST: ____________________________ 
                            Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 



 
Capital Improvement Program 

Quarterly Report 
April 2019 

 

 



10/15/18 10/31/18 11/15/18 11/30/18 12/15/18 12/31/18 1/15/19 1/31/19 2/15/19 2/28/19 3/15/19 3/31/19 4/15/19 4/30/19 5/15/19 5/31/19 6/15/19 6/30/19 7/15/19 7/31/19 8/15/19 8/31/19 9/15/19 9/30/19

Construction Project Complete

Design Bid Construction

Construction

Design Bid Construction (150 Calendar Days)

Design Bid Construction

Design

7. South Park Drive Pavement and Drainage Project Bid Construction (75 Calendar Days)

8. FM 528 Extension (Design) Design

Construction Project Complete

Design Construction 

Construction

12. Fairway and South Water Line Improvements Design Bid Construction (270 Calendar Days)

13. Lift Stations 14 and 17 Rehabilitation Design Bid Construction (210 Calendar Days)

14. Lift Station 30 Expansion & Hwy. 35 Gravity Mains Design Bid Construction

15. 54" Eastside Interceptor Design Bid

16. Water Line Improvements Phase I Design Bid Construction

17.  Northwest/Northeast Basin Sewer Survey Design

18. Water Plant #6 Tank Replacement Design Bid Construction (300 Calendar Days)

19. Wayfinding Signs Project Design

20. Fire/EMS Station Design Bid Construction

21. Willis Street Downtown Parking Lot Design Bid Construction

22. Museum Expansion Construction Project Complete

23. Mustang Bayou Bank Repair Design Bid Construction

24. Pearson Park Sidewalk Design Construction Project Complete

25. Hike and Bike Trail Phase III (Design) Design

26. Disc Golf Course Design Bid Construction

27. City Hall Security Renovations Design Bid Construction

Design Bid Construction

FY 2019 Capital Improvement Program Project Schedule - April 2019

PROJECTS:

5. Moller Road Storm Sewer and Pavement Phase 1

3. Durant Detention Pond

4. Johnson Street Paving and Drainage Improvements

1. 2017 Sidewalk Project (includes Downtown Sidewalks)

2. 2019 Sidewalk Project

6. Moller Road Storm Sewer and Pavement Phase 2 

28. 2019 Pavement and Drainage Project

10. Briscoe Park Egress Road

11. Wastewater Treatment Plant Phase II

9. 2018 Concrete Pavement and Drainage Project



2

9

9

3

8

7
4

5
6

2

2

2

12

12

12

12

15

24

16

27

26

25

23
22

20

18

14

13

13

11

10

25- Trail

FM 1462

0

FM
 5

28

W HIGHWAY 6

BYPASS 35 N

E HIGHWAY 6

BY
PA

SS
 3

5 
S

N
 G

O
R

D
O

N
 S

T

S G
O

R
D

O
N

 S
T

C
LIFFO

R
D

 S
T

M
U

STAN
G

 R
D

KO
S

T R
D

W ADOUE ST

S JO
H

N
S

O
N

 S
T

W SEALY ST
C

R
 1

60

STEELE RD

W WILLIS ST

DAV
IS

 B
END R

D

S H
O

O
D

 S
T

WICKWILLOW LN

S 
H

IG
H

W
AY

 3
5

PA
RK

ER
 S

CH
O

O
L 

RD

OWEN ST

DICKINSON RD

VICTORY LN

UNNAMED

RO
SH

AR
O

N 
RD

CR 1
49

C
A

LLAW
AY

 D
R

BA
R

R
AS

 S
T

RYAN DR

SHANE ST

N
 H

IG
H

W
AY

 35 BARRELL RD

W LANG ST

N
 S

H
IR

LE
Y S

T

BO
O

TH
 LN

TO
V

R
E

A 
R

D

E HOUSE ST

JEPH
SO

N
 AVE

GATES RD

N
 S

E
C

O
N

D
 S

T

KO
S

TE
R

 R
D

FM
 2

40
3

W DUMBLE ST

OLD GALVESTON RD

NELSON RD

HICKLIN ST

W PHILLIPS ST

PR
IVATE

WESTFIELD ST

LAKE LINE DR

S H
ILL S

T

CR 161

STADIUM DR

DILLING
 ST

MUNSON RD

WWTP RD

E FOLEY ST

FAIR
W

AY D
R

PAUL ST

C
R

 142

SKYRANCH
 DR

M
O

LLE
R

 R
D

R
IC

E
 S

T

MAMIE FORD RD

LULAC ST

E DUMBLE ST

CLEVELAND ST

AL
LI

SO
N S

T

E COOMBS ST

M
E

S
Q

U
ITE

BR
ISC

O
E D

R

NEWMAN RD

WILDWINN DR

ALTA VISTA DR

S TAY
LO

R
 S

T

W SOUTH ST

JENNIFER ST

TROON DR
LASSO CT

KENDALL CREST DR

FITZ RD

BE
NNET

T 
RD

QUAIL RUN DR

W SNYDER ST

VAN NESS DR

BAY
O

U
 D

R

W BLUM ST

N
 LE

E
 S

T

PINE ST
DELTA DRS FIFTH

 S
T

W HOUSE ST

MIDAS LN

DECOSTER BLVD

SM
ITH

 D
R

S B
E

A
U

R
E

G
A

R
D

 S
T

CR 424

ADAMS ST
PERRY LN

TE
R

R
A

C
E

 D
R

PARKCREST ST

S H
A

R
D

IE
 S

T

PINTO PAS

WHEELER DR

WINDSOR SQ

S LE
E

 S
T

AVENUE E 1/2

OAK PARK DR

E SOUTH ST

W
ESTVIEW

 DR

C
O

LLE
G

E
 D

R

FOSHEE CT

KENTING
TO

N DR
FOX MEADOW DR

W COOMBS ST

FALLOW LN

DEER TRAIL DR

CHILDRESS

HEATHRO
W

 LN

STEVENWOOD LN

STALLION RDG

SH
AW

 ST

RIM WATER DR

ABINGDON RD

BATES
 S

T

E PARK ST

WESTGLEN DR

ALLUVIAL CIR

CAMBRIDGE DR

N
 H

ILL S
T

BR
AZ

OS S
T

FOSTER ST

CYPRESS ST

N
 FIR

S
T S

T

LE
G

IO
N

 S
T

FOX RUN DR

SLADE BEN LN

N
 N

IN
TH

 S
T

N
 JO

H
N

S
O

N
 S

T

HIGHLAND SQ

C
R

O
W

N
 D

R

COVENTRY LN

QUARTERHORSE DR

STAN
SEL D

R

BRENNEN LN

N
 D

U
R

A
N

T S
T

JE
FFE

R
S

O
N

 S
T

SHIRLEY AVE

SU
LLEY DR

W SIDNOR ST

PA
R

K
W

AY D
R

HOBBS R
D

HURSTGREEN LN

M
A

N
D

A
LE R

D

LAYNE ST

JO
N

E
S

 S
T

AL
YS

SA
 P

L
N

 JA
C

K
S

O
N

 S
T

0

0

E SOUTH ST

PR
IV

AT
E

U
N

N
A

M
E

D

PR
IV

AT
E

PR
IV

AT
E

0

UNNAM
ED

PR
IVATE

E HOUSE ST

0

UNNAMED

UNNAM
ED

S H
ILL S

T

STADIUM DR

0

0

M
U

STAN
G

 R
D

PR
IVATE

0

UNNAMED
M

U
STAN

G
 R

D

PRIVATE

U
N

N
A

M
E

D

0

W COOMBS ST

BYPASS 35 N

S H
ILL S

T

UNNAM
ED

U
N

N
A

M
E

D

0

U
N

N
A

M
E

D

0

PR
IVATE

U
N

N
A

M
E

D

0

0

0

S LE
E

 S
T

N
 G

O
R

D
O

N
 S

T

W DUMBLE ST

PR
IV

AT
E

0

W BLUM ST

PR
IV

AT
E

S 
JO

H
N

S
O

N
 S

T

0

0

0

UNNAMED

W LANG ST

BY
PA

SS 3
5 

S

35

190

17
2

144

6

155

18
0

16
3

24
03

181

168

166

145

14
6

28
4

17
9

15
9

1462

529

541

16
9

424

281

99

326

143

517

133

719

16
0

283

761

282

158

15
2

833

351

23
7

54
0

185

14
7

531

18
6

92
8

156

422

142

296

962

369

191C

266

949

14
9

367

812

737

M
AIN

267

136

291

944

55
8

545

370

436

183

53
8

98

170

796

WICKWILLOW

191

296A

13
8

294

AM
O

C
O

280

153

296D

695A

66
8

138E

870

947

536

15
0

PA
RK

ER
 S

CH
O

O
L

537

378

396

187

906

157

357

480

94
9A

85
7

93
7

411

936

870A

368

139

305B

378B

499
138A

378A

23
5

960

890

424B
424A

424D

949B

930

855

85
0

712

536A

63
4

962A

96
2D

148

R
IVER

SID
E

43
1

949K

53
9

937A

962B

937B

96
5

13
8B

96
2C

191B

291A

92
8B

576

13
8C

392
864

550B

855B

W
E

B
B

855C

138D

755

855A

712B

94
9J

712C

695B

143A

LOST RANCH

873

681

133A
143B

FULTON

SMITH

424C

864G

95
3

357A

249

795

FAIR
W

AY

14
1

LARKSPUR

936A

BA
RRAS

BRITT OAKS

936C

378C

305

850A

159A

305A

TIMBERLANE

DORIS

W
HITE

925A

H
AS

TI
N

G
S

925B

813

191A

550C

864A
ESQUIVEL

156A

500

SERENITY

87
0B

ROBIN

291B

87
0H

96
6

HERRIN
G

FC
R 2

35

37
8D

87
3A

16
5

936B

94
9C

296B

52
9A

296C

HILLCREST

950

RIDGEMONT

136A

892

FLORA

57
7

MUSTANG

HOLLIER

WALING

O
W

ENS S/D

CRESTMONT

73
7A

PARKER-STR
ING

TO
W

N

KE
TT

LE
R

73
7B

925

FO
U

N
TA

IN

KAR
LIS

930A

WICKLINE

SA
N

D
 P

IT

930B

6

28
4

145

16
0

FULTON

145

181

191

185

14
9

185

35

185

·

227

23
22

21

13

0

E SIDNOR ST
N

 G
O

R
D

O
N

 S
T

S H
O

O
D

 S
T E PARK ST

W BLUM ST

OLD GALVESTON RD

W SEALY ST

S G
O

R
D

O
N

 S
T

W WILLIS ST

W SIDNOR ST

SHAW ST

E BELL ST

S H
A

R
D

IE
 S

T

M
A

G
N

O
LIA S

T

N
 H

A
R

D
IE

 S
T

MCLEMORE DR

E SEALY ST

E BELL ST

E SEALY ST

See Inset

FY 2019 CIP Project Location Map
Rev. Date 1/10/2019
Engineering Dept.

Map Legend
CIP Project Locations

CIP Utilities

CIP Sidewalks

CIP Streets



Revised 4/1/2019

$325,000 $316,097 $325,000 2017

$325,000 $316,097 $325,000

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact to Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

2017 Sidewalk Project

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund

City Engineer

1

This project is intended to provide adequate pedestrian access throughout downtown 
Alvin where pedestrians are frequently observed. Concrete and brick paver sidewalks 
will be installed in compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements.

To provide adequate pedestrian access, and add sidewalks to the downtown area as 
proposed in the Comprehensive Plan.

Project complete November 2018.

Sidewalks

Project locations include Willis St. (south side, between Second St. and Hood St.), Second St. (west 
side, between Sealy St. and the Mustang Bayou Bridge), E. House St. (north side, between Legion 
Road and Tovrea Road), Gordon St. (west side, in front of Kibbe Realty), Sealy St. (north and south 
sides, between Gordon and Hardie), and Hardie St. (east side, mid block to Sealy).

Project Location:



Revised 4/1/2019

$250,000 $250,000 2019

$250,000 $250,000

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact to Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

2019 Sidewalk Project

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund 

City Engineer

2

This project is intended to provide adequate pedestrian access throughout areas of 
Alvin where pedestrians are frequently observed. Concrete sidewalks will be installed in 
compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements.

To provide adequate pedestrian access, and add sidewalks as proposed in the 
Comprehensive Plan.

Project under design by Staff.

Sidewalks

Project locations identified as number 2 on the CIP project location map. Pearson Rd. (east side 
between Johnson St. and FM 1462), Durant St. (west side between Adoue St. and Sealy St.), Willis 
St. (north side between Gordon St. and Hardie St.), Dumble Street (south side between College 
Street and Clark Street), and Clark Street (west side between Dumble St. and Fairview Dr.).

Project Location:



Revised 4/1/2019

$107,000 $122,593 $122,593 2016
$677,000 $351,473 $315,000 2018

$784,000 $474,066 $437,593TOTAL:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Current Status:

DESIGN

OTHER

Project Location:

Project Type:

CONSTRUCTION

Drainage

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

FISCAL YEAR

Construction of this 60 day project has been severely delayed due to wet site 
conditions, the Contractor plans to remobilize to the site in late April. 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL

Durant Detention Pond

PROJECT COST

Yes

30+  years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund

City Engineer

3

This project includes the design and construction of a storm water detention pond on 
City owned property along Durant Street (5 acres). This is the second of several drainage 
improvement projects that were recommended in the M-1 Ditch Watershed Study that 
was completed in January 2011 by Dannenbaum Engineering.

Five acre City owned property at the northwest corner of the W. South Street and 
Durant Street intersection. Project location identified as number 3 on the CIP project 
location map.

To improve drainage in the M-1 Ditch Watershed by providing detention storage for 
future storm sewer improvement projects along Durant Street, Moller Road, and 
Stadium Drive.

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:



Revised 4/1/2019

$200,000 $264,650 $200,000 2018
$1,718,754 $1,257,666 $2,039,650 2019

$30,000 $28,700 $30,000 2017
$1,948,754 $1,551,016 $2,269,650

This project involves the improvement of paving along Johnson Street from South Street 
to FM 1462. The project includes the construction of a concrete sidewalk from South 
Street to Pearson Road along the east side of Johnson Street.

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Type:

TOTAL:

DESIGN

City Council approved a bid award to Mar-Con Services, LLC. on January 3, 2019 and the 
Notice to Proceed was issued on March 4, 2019 for this 150 calendar day project.Current Status:

GEO. STUDY

ESTIMATED ACTUAL

CONSTRUCTION

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

FISCAL YEAR

Johnson Street Paving and Drainage Improvements Project

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund

City Engineer

4

South Johnson Street from South Street to FM 1462. Project location identified as 
number 4 on the CIP project location map.

Project Description:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Justification: This project will make improvements and upgrades to Johnson Street.

Streets



Revised 4/1/2019

$250,000 $249,932 $250,000 2018
$1,803,659

$2,053,659 $250,000

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Type:

FISCAL YEAR

Current Status:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

TOTAL:

DESIGN

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

GEO. STUDY

ESTIMATED ACTUAL

CONSTRUCTION

Dannenbaum Engineering submitted the 95% plans on 2/6/2019 for Staff review. A complete bid 
package is expected in April 2019.

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

Moller Road Storm Sewer and Pavement Improvements Phase 1 

PROJECT COST

No

30+ years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund

City Engineer

5

This project includes the design of the first of a three phase project to add a storm 
sewer system, concrete curb and gutter pavement, and sidewalk along Moller Road. 
This is the third of several drainage improvement projects that were recommended in 
the M-1 Ditch Watershed Study that was completed in January 2011 by Dannenbaum 
Engineering.

Moller Road near South Street. Project location identified as number 5 on the CIP 
project location map.

To improve drainage in the M-1 Ditch Watershed by adding a storm sewer system along 
Moller Road.

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Streets

Project Number:



Revised 4/1/2019

$250,000 $250,000 2019
$2,400,000

$2,650,000 $250,000

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Type:

FISCAL YEAR

Current Status:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

TOTAL:

DESIGN

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

GEO. STUDY

ESTIMATED ACTUAL

CONSTRUCTION

Project design expected to start in June 2019.

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

Moller Road Storm Sewer and Pavement Improvements Phase 2

PROJECT COST

No

30+ years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund

City Engineer

6

This project includes the design of the second of a three phase project to add a storm 
sewer system, concrete curb and gutter pavement, and sidewalk along Moller Road. 
This is the fourth of several drainage improvement projects that were recommended in 
the M-1 Ditch Watershed Study that was completed in January 2011 by Dannenbaum 
Engineering.

Moller Road near South Street. Project location identified as number 6 on the CIP 
project location map.

To improve drainage in the M-1 Ditch Watershed by adding a storm sewer system along 
Moller Road.

Project Description:

Project Justification:

(Design)

Streets

Project Number:



Revised 4/1/2019

$800,000 $691,569 $800,000 2018

$800,000 $691,569 $800,000

South Park Drive Pavement and Drainage Project

PROJECT COST

No

25-30 years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund

City Engineer

7

This project includes the removal and replacement of concrete pavement / curbs and 
the installation of storm pipes, inlets, and manholes.

South Park Drive (off of South St. near Hood St.). Project location identified as number 7 
on the CIP project location map.

This project will replace the broken and uneven pavement and includes the installation 
of an underground storm sewer system to allow for proper drainage.

CONSTRUCTION

Streets

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

ACTUALESTIMATED

OTHER

The Notice to Proceed was issued on 1/7/2019 for this 75 calendar day project. Project 
to be complete in April 2019.

FISCAL YEAR

TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

DESIGN



Revised 4/1/2019

$1,000,000 $1,186,353.11 $1,000,000 2018
$13,626,779

$14,626,779 $1,000,000TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

ACTUALESTIMATED

This project involves the construction of the extension of FM 528 from Gordon Street to 
Highway 6 along right-of-way that has been acquired in the last ten plus years.

OTHER

FISCAL YEAR

FM 528 Extension (Design)

PROJECT COST

No

30-35 years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund

City Engineer

8

Extension of FM 528 from Gordon Street to Highway 6. Project location identified as 
number 8 on the CIP project location map.

Completion of this project will help to relieve traffic congestion at the Gordon Street 
and Highway 6 intersection, as well as, provide a secondary evacuation route over the 
railroad tracks in the event that the railroad underpass along Highway 6 floods.

The Texas Department of Transportation submitted this project in HGAC's "Call for Projects" on 
October 31, 2018 in an attempt to obtain federal funding for construction through the TIP.  This 
project was not selected for federal funding through the TIP. Staff / HDR are currently working 
with TXDOT to seek funding alternatives.

Current Status:

Streets



Revised 4/1/2019

$797,000 $696,357 $797,000 2018

$797,000 $696,357 $797,000

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

2018 Concrete Pavement and Drainage Project

PROJECT COST

No

30-35 years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund

City Engineer

9

This project includes the removal and replacement of concrete pavement /curbs and the 
installation of storm pipes, manholes, inlets, and sidewalks.

Heisse St. (S. Johnson St. to the east end), Richards St. (S. Johnson St. to the east end), 
and Kings Ln. (Westfield St. to W. South St.). Project locations identified as number 9 on 
the CIP project location map.

This project will replace the broken and uneven pavement and upgrade the storm 
system to allow for proper drainage.

Construction complete March 2019.

Streets



Revised 4/1/2019

$240,000 $240,000 2018

$240,000 $240,000
OTHER

Construction to be complete in late April 2019.

FISCAL YEAR

TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

Streets

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

ACTUALESTIMATED

Briscoe Park Egress Road

PROJECT COST

No

25-30 years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund

City Engineer 

10

This project includes the installation of concrete pavement from Briscoe Drive to the 
ACC Facilities Building yard to provide emergency ingress and egress for Briscoe Park.

Briscoe Park Drive to ACC. Project location identified as number 10 on the CIP project 
location map.

To create an emergency access/egress road to serve Briscoe Park.



Revised 4/1/2019

$766,500 2016
$4,730,985

$7,540,000 $5,497,485 $7,540,000

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact to Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

Wastewater Treatment Plant Optimization Improvements Phase II

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

Maintain Infrastructure

2015 Certificate of Obligation Bond Funds

City Engineer/Public Services Director

11

Phase II of this project includes installation of a non-potable water system, belt press, 
rehabilitation of the aeration system, and rehabilitation of the digester tank as well as 
upgrades to the laboratory.

Wastewater Treatment Plant. Project location identified as number 11 on the CIP 
project location map.

Upgrade the WWTP to meet state and federal regulations.

The Contractor,  JTR Constructors, Inc, is currently completing the slab in the clarifier.

Sewer



Revised 4/1/2019

$670,400 $528,111 2018
$3,352,000 $1,228,796 2019

$4,022,400 $1,756,907

Project Justification:

City Council awarded a contract to McKinney Construction, Inc. in the amount of 
$1,228,796 on 1/3/2019 for this 270 calendar day project. The Notice to Proceed was 
issued on February 25, 2019.

Fairway and South Street Water Line Improvements 

12

Water

2015 Utility Master Plan - Water CIP Projects - 2020

2018 Certificate of Obligation Bond Funds

City Engineer / Public Services Director

Project location identified as number 12 on the CIP project location map.

New 12-inch water transmission line along South Street, Bowman Drive, Jephson Lane, 
Nelson Road, Mustang Road, and Verhalen Road to connect the Dyche Water Tower and 
the Verhalen Water Tower.  New 10-inch water line along Fm 1462 and new 6-inch 
water line along Koster Road to replace existing 2.25-inch water lines.

Identified in the 2015 Utility Master Plan by Freese and Nichols, Inc. that was approved 
by the City Council on March 3, 2016. 

CONSTRUCTION
OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Impact to Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

Current Status:

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN



Revised 4/1/2019

$260,000 $225,645 $260,000 2018
$1,300,000 $867,673 $1,300,000 2018

$1,560,000 $1,093,318 $1,560,000

ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Impact to Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

ESTIMATED

City Council awarded a contract to T & C Construction, Ltd. in the amount of $867,672.75 on 
1/17/2019 for this 210 calendar day project. The Notice to Proceed was issued on April 1, 2019.Current Status:

Lift Stations 14 and 17 Rehabilitation

13

Sewer

Identified in the 2015 Utility Master Plan by Freese and Nichols, Inc. that was approved by the City 
Council on March 3, 2016.Project Justification:

2015 Utility Master Plan - Wastewater CIP Projects - 2020

2018 Certificate of Obligation Bond Funds

City Engineer / Public Services Director

Identified as project number 13 on the CIP project location map.

This project includes the rehabilitation of lift stations 14 and 17. The condition 
assessment results showed these lift stations to be in very poor condition.



Revised 4/1/2019

$1,495,900 $679,865 $670,000 2018
$5,900,400 2019

$7,396,300

This project includes the expansion of lift station 30 from a firm capacity of 4.61 MGD to a firm 
pumping capacity of 9.0 MGD. This project includes a new 24 inch force main, and the upsizing of 
the gravity lines to 36 inches immediately upstream and downstream of lift station 30.

Lift Station 30 Expansion & HWY 35 Bypass Gravity Mains 

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

2015 Utility Master Plan - Wastewater CIP Projects - 2020

2018 Certificate of Obligation Bond Funds

City Engineer / Public Services Director

14

Lift Station 30 Expansion and HWY 35 Bypass gravity mains. Project location identified as 
number 14 on the CIP project location map.

Sewer

LJA Engineering completed the 90% design in February 2019. Staff has requested a proposal for 
additional design services to increase the capacity of the proposed lift station to 11.5 MGD to 
accommodate additional development.

Identified in the 2015 Utility Master Plan by Freese and Nichols, Inc. that was approved by the City 
Council on March 3, 2016.

CONSTRUCTION
OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Impact to Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

Current Status:

Project Justification:

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN



Revised 4/1/2019

$2,165,300 $2,076,000 $2,076,000 2018
$11,797,759 2019

$13,963,059

54" Eastside Interceptor

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

2015 Utility Master Plan - Wastewater CIP Projects - 2020

2018 Certificate of Obligation Bond Funds

City Engineer / Public Services Director

15

Replacement 54" Eastside Interceptor. Project location identified as number 15 on the 
CIP project location map.

Identified in the 2015 Utility Master Plan by Freese and Nichols, Inc. that was approved 
by the City Council on March 3, 2016.

Sewer

This project includes the construction of a 54 inch wastewater line from the 35 Bypass to the 
WWTP. The model showed the existing 27 inch and 33 inch wastewater lines do not have enough 
capacity to convey existing peak flows to the plant.

Freese and Nichols submited the 60% plans on 3/4/2019 for Staff review.Current Status:

CONSTRUCTION
OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Impact to Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN



Revised 4/1/2019

$510,800 $433,300 $510,800 2018
$2,553,800 2019

$3,064,600 $510,800

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Impact to Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

Current Status:

Water Line Improvements Phase I 

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

2015 Utility Master Plan - Water CIP Projects - 2020

2018 Certificate of Obligation Bond Funds

City Engineer / Public Services Director

16

General project location identified as project 16 on the CIP project location map.

Identified in the 2015 Utility Master Plan by Freese and Nichols, Inc. that was approved 
by the City Council on March 3, 2016.

Water

New 10-inch, 8-inch, and 6-inch water lines to connect and replace existing small water 
lines in the area bounded by Adoue Street, Gordon Street, South Park Drive, and 
Johnson Street.

LJA Engineering submitted the 100% plans and complete bid package for the project on 3/4/2019 
for City Staff to review.



Revised 4/1/2019

$95,300 $95,200 $95,300 2018

$95,300 $95,300

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Impact to Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

Current Status:

Northwest and Northeast Sanitary Sewer Basin Evaluation Survey

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

2015 Utility Master Plan - Wastewater CIP Projects - 2020

2018 Certificate of Obligation Bond Funds

City Engineer / Public Services Director

17

Northwest and Northeast Sanitary Sewer Basins in the northern portion of the City.

Identified in the 2015 Utility Master Plan by Freese and Nichols, Inc. that was approved 
by the City Council on March 3, 2016.

Sewer

Manhole evaluation data was submitted to Staff for review in March 2019. Smoke testing of the 
system will be conducted once we receive three weeks of dry weather. 

Utilities Master Plan recommended that a Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Survey be conducted 
throughout the Northeast and Northwest Basins to identify sources of Inflow and Infiltration. 
Once sources of I/I are found, the City should address them as required to reduce excess water 
from entering the wastewater system.



Revised 4/1/2019

$526,500 $319,400 $526,500 2018
$2,632,500 $2,446,526 $2,632,500 2018

$3,159,000 $2,765,926 $3,159,000

 Water Plant #6 Tank Replacement

PROJECT COST

No

20-25 years

2015 Utility Master Plan - Water CIP Projects - 2020

2018 Certificate of Obligation Bond Funds

City Engineer / Public Services Director

18

Water Plant No. 6 Ground Storage Tank Replacement identified as project number 18 on 
the CIP project location map.

Identified in the 2015 Utility Master Plan by Freese and Nichols, Inc. that was approved 
by the City Council on March 3, 2016.

Water

Bids were opened on 12/4/2018 and T & C Construction, Ltd. was the qualified low bidder. City 
Council awarded a contract to T & C Construction, Ltd. in the amount of $2,446,526.20 on 
1/3/2019 for this 300 calendar day project. Construction to start May 1, 2019.

Decommission three existing 0.43 MG ground storage tanks and add new 1.5 MG 
ground storage tank at Water Plant No. 6

CONSTRUCTION
OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Impact to Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

Current Status:

Project Justification:

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN



Revised 4/1/2019

$20,500 $20,500 $30,000 2018
$50,000 $50,000 2019

$70,500 $20,500 $80,000

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN 
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:
Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

PROJECT COST

No

N/A

Ongoing (03/25/19):  Staff  refined the list of entities to be considered on signage, sent to NSP 
representatives who are developing draft mapping of sign locations. NSP to send draft to staff the 
first week of April toward a planned April 17th stakeholders meeting. NSP will then develop a 
"packet" that contains renderings of each sign, mapping of sign locations and will be submitted to 
TxDOT for approval prior to signage installations.

Current Status:

Wayfinding Signs Project

19

Wayfinding

Planning for directional movement in the City to key locations.

General Fund

Economic Development Director

By implementing wayfinding signage, visitors will be easily directed to key locations creating a 
more positive experience and it will encourage others to see what the City of Alvin has to offer 
beyond the visible elements on the main roadways.

To develop a wayfinding signage system that will create a uniquesness about Alvin while also 
improving the economic vitality of lesser known parts of the City that tourists and visitors may not 
be aware of.

Corporate City Limits



Revised 4/1/2019

$986,540 $900,743 2018
$12,834,750

$310,000 $310,000 2018
$14,131,290 $1,210,743

Facilities

OTHER

ESTIMATED ACTUAL

Fire/EMS Station 

PROJECT COST

Once the construction of the facility is complete, there will be utility operational and 
maintenance costs associated with the new facility.

50+ Years

Planning for the replacement of aged facilities.

General Projects Fund and Certificates of Obligations.

Rex W. Klesel 

20

This project is to design and construct a new Fire and Emergency Medical Services (EMS) 
Station on the 4.36 acre property at the corner of Bellaire Boulevard and South Street 
that was purchased in December 2017.

City owned 4.38 Acres at the corner of Bellaire Boulevard and South Street. Identified as 
project number 20 on the CIP project location map.

Compelling reasons to construct a new station include, but are not limited to expanding 
service coverage to the south and east quarters of the Fire Department response 
territory. Also, the two existing stations lack sufficient windstorm ratings and have 
inadequate sleeping quarters for staff.

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Type:

CONSTRUCTION

The Architect has completed the 60% design plans and cost estimate for review.

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

FISCAL YEAR

TOTAL:

DESIGN



Revised 4/1/2019

$120,000 2019

$120,000
OTHER

Staff met with Alvin Chamber of Commerce representatives and their building designer 
on March 13, 2019 to discuss a proposal for a shared parking area.

FISCAL YEAR

TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

Public Parking

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

ACTUALESTIMATED

Willis Street Downtown Parking Lot

PROJECT COST

No

30-40 years

Maintain Infrastructure

General Projects Fund

City Engineer

21

This project includes the installation of a concrete public parking lot on the City owned 
property at the southeast corner of the Willis and Hardie intersection.

Project location identified as number 21 on the CIP project location map.

To create additional public parking in the downtown area.



Revised 4/1/2019

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED FISCAL YEAR

$150,903 $130,000 2018

$150,903 $130,000

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

Museum Expansion

PROJECT COST

Yes

30-40 years

HOT Tax 

Parks Director / CVB Director

22

Interior build-out of the loading dock area of the Alvin Museum to accommodate 
additional exhibit space for a future Nolan Ryan permanent exhibit.

Project location identified as number 22 on the CIP project location map.

Provide additional exhibit space, as requested by the Alvin Museum Society, whom acquired items 
from the recently closed Nolan Ryan Museum located inside the Nolan Ryan Center at Alvin 
Community College. This exhibit will continue to honor Nolan Ryan as a local sports icon and 
continue to provide an oppotunity for tourism to the City of Alvin. 

Project complete.

Facilities



Revised 4/1/2019

$156,408 2018

$156,408
OTHER

GC Engineering submitted the 30% design plans with three options for repair of each of the two areas of bank 
failure along with cost estimates. Staff / GC Engineering met with FEMA representatives on February 21, 2019 
and discussed the repair options and costs. FEMA stated that CORPS. permitting is required.  90% design is 
scheduled to be submitted in June 2019.

FISCAL YEAR

TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

Park / Drainage

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

ACTUALESTIMATED

Mustang Bayou Bank Repair

PROJECT COST

No

20 years

Maintain Infrastructure

General Fund

City Engineer / Parks Director

23

This project includes the design and repair of two locations along Mustang Bayou where 
the bayou side slope failed due to flood waters from Hurricane Harvey.

Two areas along the bank of Mustang Bayou that washed out during Hurricane Harvey. 
Project location identified as number 23 on the CIP project location map.

This project is needed to restore the portion of the Hike and Bike Trail that was 
destroyed due to the side slope failure and to restore the bayou.



Revised 4/1/2019

$150,000 $150,000 2019

$150,000 $150,000

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN 
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

Pearson Park Sidewalk Replacement Project

PROJECT COST

No

20+ years

Provide ADA compliant pedestrian access within Pearson Park

General Fund

Parks and Recreation Director

24

Remove, redesign and replace approximately 6,300 linear feet of sidewalk within 
Pearson Park.

Pearson Park 2200 Westpark Dr. within the Corporate City Limits. Identified as number 
24 on the CIP project location map.

Current condition of sidewalk is poor with many areas non-conforming to ADA 
specifications.  Also the configuration does not allow ease of access to many park 
amenities. 

Project complete.

Sidewalk replacement 



Revised 4/1/2019

$100,000 $100,000 2019

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN 
CONSTRUCTION

OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

Hike and Bike Trail Phase III Design

PROJECT COST

Yes

20+ years

Extending the existing hike and bike trail as a key addition to the Alvin trail system for 
non-motorized transportation 

General Fund

Parks and Recreation Director

25

Design third phase of the existing Hike and Bike Trail adding approximately 1.6 miles of 
trail to the existing 1.7 miles.

Identified on the CIP project location map as project number 25. South Street to 
Mustang Road within the Corporate City Limits.

Provide non-motorized transportation from downtown Alvin to Alvin Community 
College.

Kimley-Horn Associates, Inc. to present results of feasibility study in April 2019.

Parks



Revised 4/1/2019

$30,600 2018
$275,000 $787,531 $300,000 2019

$275,000 $818,131 $300,000

Disc Golf Course

PROJECT COST

Yes

20+ years

Promote Alvin's future Disc Golf Course as a regional amenity. (Parks Master Plan 4.2.2)

Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund

Parks and Recreation Director

26

Develop a lighted eighteen hole disc golf course with pedestrian walking path.

Approximately 38.45 acres south of Briscoe Park within the Corporate City Limits. 
Identified as number 26 on the CIP project location map.

Activate undeveloped city owned property and integrate into parks system to provide a 
regional attraction which promotes recreational tourism.

City Council approved contract with Lucas Construction February 21, 2019. C & R #3 to finish 
grading and installation of culverts April 2019. Lucas Construction expected to begin shortly 
thereafter.

Disc Golf

CONSTRUCTION
OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN 



Revised 4/1/2019

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED FISCAL YEAR

$100,000 $100,000 2019
DESIGN

CONSTRUCTION
OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

City Hall Security Renovations

PROJECT COST

No

30-40 years

General Fund

Parks Director 

27

Provide secondary exit for both Utility Billing and Court office suites. Control access into 
City Hall by establishing two employee only entrances and one general public entrance. 
Consolidate and re-locate four existing handicapped parking spaces closer to the public 
entrance.

Project location identified as number 27 on the CIP project location map.

Currently the office suites of Court and Utility Billing have only one ingress/egress which is located 
in the main foyer of City Hall. Providing a secondary means of access will provide employees a 
safer and more discrete option. Controlled access into City Hall will provide improved direction for 
citizens and employees.

New sidewalk and relocation of the four ADA parking spaces complete. Secondary exits installed 
for Utility Billing and Court offices. Change order to add additional interior door to Finance 
Hallway complete. Awaiting final painting and trim work along with electric door opener / closer 
on public entrance and key fob access install.

Facilities



Revised 4/1/2019

$1,000,000 2019

$1,000,000

2019 Concrete Pavement and Drainage Project

PROJECT COST

No

25-30 years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund

City Engineer

28

This project includes the removal and replacement of concrete pavement / curbs, the 
installation of storm pipe, manholes, inlets, and sidewalks.

To be determined.

This project will replace the broken and uneven pavement and upgrade the storm 
system to allow for proper drainage.

Currently being designed by Staff.

Streets

CONSTRUCTION
OTHER
TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
FUNDS 

BUDGETED
FISCAL YEAR

DESIGN



FY19 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN PROJECT WORKSHEET OVERVIEW 

April 2019 
    

PARKS ANNUAL OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN 

Project Scope  Develop an annual operation and maintenance plan for Alvin’s parks system, including 

provisions for regular physical condition assessments of grounds and facilities, 

equipment safety inspections, maintenance scheduling and personal tracking and 

funding and resource assessment.  

 

Background/Community 

Value  

Items 9 and 14 from the 2035 Comp Plan help create standardized criteria of 

maintenance and improvements of parks to enhance neighborhood viability. To 

illustrate, “item 9” encourages staff to focus on park and recreation improvements as a 

means for elevating neighborhood viability.  Also, “item 14” directs staff to develop a 

park standards manual that outlines equipment standards (types and finishes), 

branding guidelines, and design requirements so that the Alvin park system maintains a 

consistent level of quality, maintenance and aesthetic appeal. By developing a park 

standards manual that outlines equipment standards (types and finishes), branding 

guidelines, and design requirements, the Alvin park system will maintain a consistent 

level of quality, maintenance, and desirable aesthetic appeal. This will help sustain and 

improve the quality, condition and attractive appearance of public areas and facilities 

within our community. 

 

 

 

Team Leader and 

Members  

Dan Kelinske, Parks & Rec. Dir., Team Leader; Carlos Tavira, Park Operations Manager; 

Michelle Nesrsta, Recreation Manager; Dwight Rhodes, Chairperson Parks and 

Recreation board.  

Quarterly 

 Updates  

Due by 9/29/2016 Due by 12/29/2016 Due by 03/30/2017 Due by 06/29/2017 

Host team meeting 

in December, once 

Park Standards 

Manual is 

completed to 

begin information 

gathering, establish 

processes and 

overall plan outline. 

Awaiting initial draft 

of standards 

manual. Will host 

initial meeting by 

January 25th utilizing 

draft Park 

Standards Manual 

as a guide. 

Now that final draft 

of Parks Standard 

Manual is 

complete, will now 

host initial meeting 

June 2017 

Parks Standard 

Manual adopted 

by Council on 6-

15-17. Host initial 

meeting utilizing 

Park Standards 

Manual as a guide 

by August 2017 

Quarterly 

Updates 

Due by 09/28/2017 Due by 12/28/2017 Due by 03/29/2018 Due by 06/28/2018 

Conference call 

scheduled for 11-29 

to explore 

outsourcing draft 

plan. 

Received proposal 

from KKC.  Currently 

identifying funding 

source.  If 

approved, this 

would be a 4-

month process. 

Project on hold, 

pending funding. 

New Operations 

Manager hired on 

6-25-18 to move 

plan forward. Next 

task is to organize 

contents of plan 

Quarterly Updates Due by 09/27/2018 Due by 12/27/2018 Due by 03/27/2019 Due by 06/27/2019 

Parks Director 

moved the team 

meeting to 

organize contents 

of plan to October 

2018 

Due to the 

specificity and 

comprehensive 

nature, staff 

recommends 

outsourcing plan, 

Requesting funding 

in next fiscal year 

budget 

 

 

 
  



2 

WALKABILITY 

Project Scope  Improve the walkability of neighborhoods with the installation of sidewalks concurrent 

with all new development and rehabilitation or construction of construction of new 

sidewalks in the older neighborhoods, particularly adjacent to schools and parks.  

Sidewalks at the following locations are currently being designed:  Willis St. (north side 

between Gordon and Hardie), Gordon St. (west side in front of Kibbe Realty), Sealy St. 

(south side between Gordon and Hardie), Hardie St. (east side mid-block to Sealy), 

Willis St. (south side between Second and Hood), Second St. (west side between Sealy 

and the Mustang Bayou Bridge), and E. House St. (south side between Hassen 

Elementary and La Quinta Inn). 

 

Background/Community 

Value  

Provide safe areas to walk in and around the older sections of town where 

pedestrians are frequently observed. 

Team Leader and 

Members  

Michelle Segovia, City Engineer, Team Leader; Brian Smith, Public Services Director 

 

 

 

Quarterly 

 Updates 

Due by 9/29/2016 Due by 12/29/2016 Due by 03/30/2017 Due by 06/29/2017 

Project Areas 

currently being 

surveyed to identify 

right-of-way. 

 

 

Survey work  Survey work to 

continue through 

mid-April and begin 

design. 

4-15-17 Project 

areas have been 

surveyed to identify 

right-of-way. Now 

finishing design and 

preparing bid 

package 

Quarterly  

Updates 

Due by 09/28/2017 Due by 12/28/2017   

Bid package sent 

out and bids were 

opened on 9-12-17. 

Going to Council 

on 10-19-17 for 

approval. On 10-19-

17, Council 

approved the 

project in the 

amount of 

$299,038.59  

This project will 

continue from year 

to year, was moved 

to the CIP, and will 

be tracked there 

  

 
  



3 

MAJOR THOROUGHFARE PLAN PHASE II 

Project Scope  Klotz Associates in conjunction with City Staff is currently working on Phase II of this two 

phase Thoroughfare Plan Update which includes the preparation of an Implementation 

Plan with cost estimates, a Capital Improvements Program (CIP), and the development 

of funding options including Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) submittals to the 

Houston Galveston Area Council (HGAC) and is scheduled to be complete March 15, 

2018. 

 

Background/Community 

Value  

The Thoroughfare Plan Update was identified as a near term (less than two years) 

project in the 2035 Comprehensive Plan. The Thoroughfare Plan benefits the 

community by establishing a plan for future roadway projects that will increase mobility 

and ease traffic congestion as the City continues to grow 

 

Team Leader and 

Members  

Michelle Segovia, City Engineer, Team Leader; David Balmos, Project Manager Klotz 

Associates; Brian Smith, Public Services Director 

Quarterly 

 Updates  

Due by 9/29/2016 Due by 12/29/2016 Due by 03/30/2017 Due by 06/29/2017 

David Balmos to 

submit draft of the 

Implementation 

Plan by 12/31/2016. 

 

 

 

 

Draft 

Implementation 

Plan submitted. 

Now working on 

cost estimates and 

prioritization to be 

submitted as part 

of a manageable 

Capital 

Improvements 

Program (CIP) 

A prioritized list of 

projects is to be 

submitted by the 

end of April 2017. 

6-15-17 Completed 

draft project list 

with preliminary 

project cost 

estimates. 

Quarterly 

Updates 

Due by 09/28/2017 Due by 12/28/2017   

Beth Shelton with 

RPS Klotz presented 

plan to Council on 

8-3-17. Next goal is 

to Submit project 

applications for 

Transportation 

Improvement 

Program (TIP) 

funding through the 

Houston Galveston 

Area Council 

(HGAC) by 3-15-18 

This project was 

moved to the CIP, 

and will be tracked 

there 

  

  
  



4 

DOWNTOWN IMPROVEMENTS  

Project Scope  Create a distinct identity of Downtown, including forming an identifiable edge to the 

district with monuments and gateway treatments at the entries from each direction 

(particularly along Business 35 at the northern and southern entries and Sealy street 

from the west and House street for the east), along with unifying design elements, such 

as unique signage and banners, landscaping decorative lighting, street and 

sidewalk/crosswalk patterns and other unique urban design treatments.  

 

Background/Community 

Value  

Through citizen’s input and initial analysis of downtown Alvin, a framework from which 

to envision a revitalization has been established. The analysis provided an objective 

view of the study area from varying scales. Both strength and weaknesses were 

revealed. The Downtown Improvement Task Force’s feedback helped bring us closer to 

discovering Downtown Alvin’s full potential.  

Team Leader and 

Members  

Larry Buehler, Economic Development Dir, Team Leader; Priya Bhakta, Convention 

Visitor Bureau  

 

 

Quarterly 

 Updates  

Due by 9/29/2016 Due by 12/29/2016 Due by 03/30/2017 Due by 06/29/2017 

Vision and Next 

Steps were 

presented to City 

Council. Currently 

reviewing current 

task force and 

seeking potential 

new members and 

identifying projects. 

 

Henry Dillmann, 

Kathy Hermann, 

Paul Stanton on 

board, seeking 

other new 

members. New 

EDC Employee 

started January 3rd, 

brought up to 

speed. Staff 

reviewing the Texas 

Main Street 

Program, the Texas 

Downtown 

Association, and H-

GAC resources to 

discuss with the 

group. 

LED lights on top of 

buildings in design 

and 

implementation. 

Engineering 

designing 5 new 

decorative street 

lights. 

2nd Annual Art Walk 

on May 6th  

2 locations selected 

for temporary 

bump-outs. 

Downtown grant 

program launched. 

1. LED lighting not 

moving forward 

due to owner of 

private buildings 

not participating, 

looking at 

alternative options. 

2. Bump-outs will 

not be done due to 

traffic pattern 

concerns relating 

to TxDOT Business 

35 highway. 

3. Parking solutions 

presentation given 

to Council on 6-15-

17 for FY 18 budget 

consideration. 

4. Engineering hired 

consultant who is 

designing initial 9 

decorative street 

lights and up to 13 

with phasing 

option. 

5. Sidewalk on Willis 

from city hall to 

Stanton’s Center 

under design for 

bidding. 

6. 47 businesses 

mailed grant 

information. Three 

have verbally 

expressed interest 

in applying. 

Quarterly 

Updates 

Due by 09/28/2017 Due by 12/28/2017 Due by 03/29/2018 Due by 06/28/2018 

Dumpsters at the 

library moved to 

New meter and 

LED lights installed 

Repairs completed 

to globe and 

Contract let for 9 

new decorative 



5 

grass between 

parking lot and 

Depot Centre Blvd. 

to open up 3 

parking spaces. 

Public parking signs 

installed at City Hall 

parking lots and in 

parking lot at 

southeast 

intersection of 

Gordon St. and 

Sealy St. 

New concrete pole 

and street light 

installed on Sealy 

St. across from City 

Hall. 

Electrical engineer 

has been hired to 

design all 13 

decorative street 

lights – will go out 

for bid following 

review. 

Sidewalk project to 

begin construction 

in upcoming 

quarter 

Yarn-bombing 

installation 

removed. 

Meeting with the 

Stanton’s to discuss 

building 

improvement and 

marketing 

opportunities. 

to light interior of 

city-owned parking 

lot at the southeast 

corner of the 

Gordon St. and 

Sealy St. 

intersection. 

Downtown Business 

Improvement 

Grant application 

received, 

reviewed, and 

approved for a 

new covered patio 

at the Gordon 

Street Tavern.  

Engineered plans 

received on 

12/04/17. 

Original National 

Oak Park parking 

lot located at E. 

Sidnor St. and 

Depot Centre Blvd. 

intersection re-

paved and re-

striped. 

Decorative street 

lighting meeting 

held between city 

staff, electrical 

engineer, and 

LESCO 

representative to 

determine full 

scope of project.  

Revisions to 

engineered 

drawings are 

ongoing, and will 

be reviewed upon 

completion.  

Bidding for the 

project is expected 

in the next quarter 

with construction 

soon to follow.   

Sidewalk project 

bid awarded to 

McCrory-CTI 

Services.  Contract 

will be initiated on 

01/03/18. 

parking lot lights at 

the Alvin Public 

Library. 

Staff reviewed 

modified 

specifications from 

LESCO on 02-07-18 

and are sending to 

electrical engineer 

for minor 

adjustments.  

Anticipated return 

time from electrical 

engineer is 2-3 

weeks.  Staff will 

review updated 

lighting 

specifications, 

taking 

approximately 2 

more weeks.  Upon 

approval, staff will 

solicit bids for the 

project, which will 

take between 6-8 

weeks.  Once a 

contractor is 

selected, a pre-

construction 

meeting will be held 

to determine 

contractor 

availability and start 

date.  The bid will 

be for 9 new 

decorative street 

lights along Willis 

Street between 

Gordon Street and 

Taylor Street.  An 

alternate bid for 4 

additional street 

lights around city 

hall along Hood 

Street (2 lights) and 

Hardie Street (2 

lights) will also be 

solicited. 

Renovations 

completed and 

certificate of 

occupancy issued 

to Gordon Street 

Tavern on 03-14-18.  

All necessary 

paperwork 

submitted, 

reviewed, and 

approved.  

Reimbursement 

payment was issued 

to H&S Dillmann, 

street lights along 

Willis Street 

between Gordon 

Street and Taylor 

Street, early 

October 

completion date. 

 

FY18 Downtown 

Grant awarded to 

Corey’s Kitchen 

(new food 

establishment) at 

319 West Willis 

Street for projects 

totaling $36,000 

($18,000 match). 

Project complete. 

 

New sidewalks 

continue down 

Willis Street to 

Second Street. 

 

Stanton’s Retail 

Center painted the 

front of their center 

to help in 

downtown 

renovations. 

 



6 

Inc. on 03-28-18.  

Local businesses 

used for the project 

include:  McCoy’s 

Building Supply, 

Helpenstihl 

Construction, TDEC, 

Inc., Home Depot, 

Wendel’s Tool 

Repair, and Patco 

Hardware and 

Lumber. 

Downtown 

Incentive Grant 

review committee 

met on 03-05-18 to 

review an 

application 

received by Corey’s 

Kitchen to 319 West 

Willis Street.  

Application was 

approved for 

projects totaling 

$36,000 ($18,000 

match from the City 

of Alvin) and 

acceptance letter 

issued to Corey 

Scopel for 

improvements to 

include new 

plumbing for water 

and wastewater, 

new electrical for 

property lighting, 

construction and 

installation of 

restrooms, new 

perimeter fencing, 

new business 

signage, 

landscaping, and a 

new driveway. 

New sidewalk being 

installed on Depot 

Centre Boulevard 

on 03-08-18.  

Contractors are 

expected to begin 

the remaining 

downtown sidewalk 

portions following 

the completion of 

the sidewalk on 

Depot Centre 

Boulevard. 

Quarterly Updates Due by 09/27/2018 Due by 12/27/2018 Due by 03/27/2019 Due by 06/27/2019 

Brick paver 

sidewalks 

completed along 

FY19 Downtown 

Grant to Fade Stop 

Barber Shop for 

TotalChem opened 

at 118 West Sealy 

Street. 

 



7 

Willis Street, Hardie 

Street, Sealy Street 

and Gordon Street. 

 

Nine (9) new 

decorative street 

lights installed 

along Willis Street 

between Gordon 

Street and Taylor 

Street.  TNMP 

contacted to 

activate lights. 

 

FY18 Downtown 

Grant awarded to 

Stanton’s Shopping 

Center at 219 North 

Taylor Street for 

projects totaling 

$3,775.93 ($1,887.97 

match). The grant 

approved the 

installation of nine 

(9) new LED lights 

atop Stanton’s 

Shopping Center to 

illuminate the 

parking lot.  Project 

complete. 

 

FY18 Downtown 

Grant awarded to 

Fade Stop Barber 

Shop at 221 West 

Sealy Street for 

projects totaling 

$4,200 ($2,100 

match). The grant 

approved the 

installation of a 

new LED lit wall sign 

on the front of 

Fade Stop Barber 

Shop.  Project 

complete. 

 

FY18 Downtown 

Grant awarded to 

Tommaso’s Italian 

Restaurant at 507 

North Gordon 

Street for projects 

totaling $2,679.18 

($1,339.59 match). 

The grant 

approved the 

installation of five 

(5) new LED lights 

mounted atop 

Tommaso’s Italian 

expansion of store-

front window 

completed on 11-

06-18 and 

reimbursement 

check issued.  

Project complete. 

 

FY19 Downtown 

Grant to Jodie’s 

Hair Center for 

installation of a 

new front door 

completed on 10-

24-18 and 

reimbursement 

check issued.  

Project complete. 

 

Rocket Boom 

Coffee opened at 

419 West Sealy 

Street. 

 

FY19 Downtown 

Grant awarded to 

Rocket Boom 

Coffee at 419 West 

Sealy Street for 

projects totaling 

$4,704.98 ($2,352.49 

match).  The grant 

approved painting 

of the exterior of 

the building and 

installation of a 

new wall sign.  

Project complete. 

 

G & G Kustom 

Designing opened 

at 219 West Sealy 

Street. 

 

Direct mail out of 

grant guidelines, 

application, past 

projects and 

boundary map to 

49 downtown 

businesses. 

Ugly corner well 

plugging 

completed and the 

City can now move 

forward to secure 

the Marton 

property. 



8 

Restaurant and 

their pole sign to 

illuminate the 

parking lot.  Project 

complete. 

 

FY19 Downtown 

Grant awarded to 

Fade Stop Barber 

Shop at 221 West 

Sealy Street for 

projects totaling 

$6,100.00 ($3,050.00 

match).  The grant 

approved the 

expansion of a 

window on the 

front of the building 

to allow for passing 

vehicles and 

pedestrians to see 

inside of the barber 

shop.  Project 

ongoing. 

 

FY19 Downtown 

Grant awarded to 

Jodie’s Hair Center 

at 104 South Hood 

Street for projects 

totaling $1,880.00 

($940.00 match.  

The grant 

approved the 

replacement of the 

front door to 

Jodie’s Hair Center, 

and is the first 

phase of 

renovations that 

are to include new 

fencing, a new 

awning, parking lot 

resurfacing and an 

exterior paint job of 

the building. 

Project ongoing. 

 

  



9 

 

DEVELOPMENT OF BLUE TRAILS  

Project Scope  Develop a “Blue Trails” concept plan and trail network that establishes the Mustang 

Bayou waterways as a key addition to the larger Alvin Trails Network and capitalizes on 

local resources as a means of tourism, education, research and recreation 

 

Background/Community 

Value  

This goal was adopted into the City’s comprehensive plan.  The City Council 

provided funding in the FY2018 budget to conduct a study. 

Team Leader and 

Members  

Dan Kelinske, Parks and Recreation 

Quarterly 

 Updates 

Due by 12/29/2017 Due by 3/29/2018   

Initial call with 

consultant to 

discuss scope of 

services 11-29-2017. 

 

 

 

This project was 

moved to the CIP, 

and will be tracked 

there 

  

 

 

REVISION TO PARKLAND DEDICATION FEES IN LIEU 

Project Scope  Revise parkland dedication fees in lieu and development ordinance to establish a fund 

to allow for community park dedication and subsequent fund allocation so that the City 

might have more opportunities to acquire larger parcels of land. This will benefit a larger 

service area rather than solely requiring dedication within dedication “zones”.  

Background/Community 

Value  

This goal was adopted into the City’s comprehensive plan.  By completing this 

goal, the current quadrants which were established to limit the area where 

parkland dedication funds could be spent based on area of fee collection 

would be eliminated.  By eliminating the quadrants, future parkland dedication 

funds would be available for use throughout the City.  

Team Leader and 

Members  

Dan Kelinske, Parks and Recreation 

Florence Chappa - Finance 

Diane Harper - Legal 

Quarterly 

 Updates 

Due by 12/29/2017 Due by 3/29/2018   

Hold team meeting 

to review draft of 

changes to Ord. 06-

U and establish 

mechanism to 

“freeze” existing 

funds within 

quadrants 1-4 

 

 

1/3/2018 - Park 

Board discussed 

and recommended 

approval of 

Ordinance 18-C 

revision of parkland 

dedication fees in 

lieu. 2/15 -City 

Council approved 

Ordinance 18-C. 

Project Completed 

 

 

 

 

  



10 

 

REGIONAL DETENTION 

Project Scope  Form a target-area capital investment program focused on infrastructure 

improvements within at-risk neighborhoods.  

Background/Community 

Value  

This goal was adopted into the City’s comprehensive plan.  By completing this 

goal,  

Team Leader and 

Members  

Michelle Segovia – City Engineer 

Quarterly 

 Updates 

Due by 12/29/2017 Due by 3/29/2018   

 

 

This project is 

addressing 

drainage for at risk 

neighborhoods, 

was moved to the 

CIP, and will be 

tracked there 

  

 

TREES WITHIN CITY RIGHT OF WAY 

Project Scope  Address trees in all new residential developments in relationship to street and utility 

placement to avoid problems 

Background/Community 

Value  

This goal was adopted into the City’s comprehensive plan.  By completing this 

goal, it will avoid problems within utility placement as the street trees grow. 

Team Leader and 

Members  

Michelle Segovia – City Engineer 

Quarterly 

 Updates 

Due by 09/29/2016 Due by 12/29/2016   

Team to approve 

final draft of tree 

ordinance. 

Recommend 

removal of 

residential new 

construction from 

ordinance following 

CPC review. 

Team approval of 

final draft of 

ordinance. 

CPC review 

completed and 

City Council 

approval 

completed. 

Project Completed 

  

 

PRO-ACTIVE CODE ENFORCEMENT 

Project Scope  Employ a pro-active code enforcement strategy that first offers helpful assistance to 

property owners in complying with municipal codes rather than a punitive approach, 

so that enforcement resources may be targeted to the worst areas and offenders. 

Background/Community 

Value  

This goal was adopted into the City’s comprehensive plan.  By completing this 

goal, Code Compliance will provide assistances and education before a 

punitive approach.  

Team Leader and 

Members  

Brian Smith – Public Works Director 



11 

Quarterly 

 Updates 

 Due by 3/29/2018 Due by 6/28/2018 Due by 9/27/2018 

 

 

Management 

Assistant (MA) is 

researching the 

process and 

procedures of 

Code Compliance.  

MA spent time 

inside the 

department and 

out in the field, now 

exploring new 

options  

 

Project was 

delayed during this 

quarter while Code 

Compliance was 

down to one staff 

member. Project is 

continuing now 

that staffing level is 

back to normal.  

 

 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   5/2/2019 

Department:  Parks and Recreation  Contact:  Dan Kelinske, Director  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Addendum No. 1 for a one (1) year renewal agreement with American Janitorial 

as the City’s janitorial services provider of City owned buildings and park restrooms in an 
amount not to exceed $106,344.00; and authorize the City Manager to sign. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☒Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   The agreement was originally approved in the amount of $106,344.00 with American Janitorial by 
City Council on May 3, 2018, utilizing the public bid process, Bid # B-18-10.  The following locations would 
continue under this agreement: City Hall, Public Service Facility, Public Service Facility #2 (Dyche Lane), 
Library, Senior Citizen Center, Museum, Train Depot, Police Department, Animal Adoption Center and National 
Oak Park Restrooms.  Additional sites include: Portable Restroom Trailer, Bob Briscoe Park Restrooms, Lions 
Park Restrooms, Pearson Park Restrooms, Morgan Park Restrooms, Bob S.  Owen Pool Restrooms and the Girl 
Scout House.  These additional sites are scheduled and billed separately as requested by the City of Alvin. 
 
Janitorial Services Bid # B-18-10 opened on April 24, 2018 and advertised on April 8, 2018 and April 15, 2018.  
The agreement began May 3, 2018 thru September 30, 2018 in an amount of $41,224.17.  The first complete 
year of service under this agreement began October 1, 2018 thru September 30, 2019 in the amount of 
$106,344.00.  This addendum is the first of up to three, one-year renewals allowed per the agreement, having an 
effective date October 1, 2019 thru September 30, 2020. 
 
Staff is recommending a one (1) year renewal of the current janitorial services agreement in the amount of 
$106,344 with American Janitorial as their performance continues to provide a good value to the City of Alvin. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☒ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☒ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account: Various accounts Amount: $106,344                 1295 Form Required? Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 4/23/2019 SLH 
 
Supporting documents attached: 
• Addendum No. 1 - 2020 
• Original approved agreement - 2018-19 
• Renewal Request Letter from American Janitorial 
• American Janitorial Bid Submittal 
 

Recommendation:   Move to approve Addendum No. 1 for a one (1) year renewal agreement with 
American Janitorial as the City’s janitorial services provider of City owned buildings 
and park restrooms in an amount not to exceed $106,344.00 and authorize the City 
Manager to sign. 



 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 
 



ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

TO THE  
CITY OF ALVIN 

JANITORIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
 

 
 THIS Addendum No. 1 to the City of Alvin Janitorial Agreement (“Addendum No. 1”) is made 
on this the 2nd day of May 2019, by and between the City of Alvin, Texas, a home-rule city of the State 
of Texas (the “City”), and American Janitorial Services, Inc. (the “Contractor”). 
 
 WHEREAS, on May 3, 2018, the City approved and entered into a Janitorial Services 
Agreement for janitorial services to the City of Alvin facilities (the “Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Agreement provided for a term ending on September 30, 2019; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Section III of the Agreement states that renewal shall be upon mutual consent of 
the parties and requires approval of the governing body.  (See American Janitorial Services letter 
attached as Exhibit “A”).  The initial Agreement shall be for one (1) year, with three (3) additional one 
(1) year renewable options; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and American Janitorial Services desire to extend the term of the 
Agreement for an additional year ending September 30, 2020. 
 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained 
herein, the City and American Janitorial Services, Inc. hereby agree as follows: 

 
I. 

This renewal term is subject to all the provisions contained within the original Agreement, 
including the provisions in Section 2.02 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms of the 
original Agreement. 

 
II. 

 
 Except as amended herein, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement, as amended, shall 
remain in full force and effect.  To the extent of a conflict or inconsistency between or among the 
provisions of the Agreement, and Addendum No. 1, the provisions of Addendum No. 1 shall control.  
Addendum No. 1 may only be amended, modified or supplemented by written agreement and signed by 
all parties. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed Addendum No. 1 to the 
Janitorial Services Contract in multiple copies, each of which shall be an original, as of the date set forth 
in the preamble hereof. 



Addendum No. 1 - 2017 Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
 
AMERICAN JANITORIAL SERVICES    CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
 
 
 
By:       By:      
Name: ________________________ Junru Roland, City Manager 
Title: _________________________ 
 
ATTEST/SEAL     ATTEST/SEAL 
 
 
 
By:       By:      
 Name: Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 Title:  
 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       By:      
              Suzanne L. Hanneman 

       City Attorney 



AGREEMENT FOR JANITORIAL SERVICES

THE STATE OF TEXAS

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA

THIS AGREEMENT FOR JANITORIAL SERVICES ( the " Agreement") is made and

entered into on this 3 y3 day of M 2018, by and between the

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS ( the" City"), a mun>Ict al corporation of the State of Texas, situated in

Brazoria County, Texas, and cf r i Cri n ict.o - o r I.a I ( the " Contractor").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, on or about April 8, 2018, and April 15, 2018, the City advertised for bids

for janitorial services for City owned buildings and park restrooms for the remaining months of
the Fiscal Year 2017- 2018 and Fiscal Year 2018- 2019;

WHEREAS, the Contractor submitted the lowest bid or the bid that will provide the best

value for the City;

WHEREAS, on or about May 3, 2018, the City Council awarded a Janitorial Services bid
to the Contractor; and

WHEREAS, this Agreement defines the rights and obligations of the parties:

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises

contained herein the City and the Contractor hereby agree as follows:

I.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Contractor agrees to perform the services and comply with the provisions specified in the

Request for Bid Proposal ( the " RFP"), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit " A"
respectively, and incorporated herein by reference for all purposes. The RFP consists of the Notice
to Bidders, Instructions to Bidders, Specifications for Janitorial Services and Bid Cost Submittal

Form. The RFP and Bid Proposal comprise a part of this contract as if fully set forth herein and

such provisions form a part of this contract.  To the extent of a conflict or inconsistency between
or among the provisions of this Contract document, the RFP and/or the Bid, the documents shall
control in the following order of precedence:

2018 Janitorial Services Agreement- 1



1)      this Janitorial Services Agreement;

2)      the RFP;

3)      the Bid.

Contractors are responsible for inspecting each City facility prior to submitting bids. The square
footage measurements of each facility given are approximate.

II.

COMPENSATION

2. 01 — Payment Terms.

Subject to the terms of this Agreement and in consideration for the services to be performed

hereunder, the City agrees to pay and the Contractor agrees to accept during the term of the

remaining months of Fiscal Year 2017- 2018 the amount ofi hary} r oIikr;

c

and  ( x) / 100 ($      - 3j O.      xw ) Dollars for janitorial services.

In Fiscal Year 2018- 2019, this Agreement is funded by the City Council, the annual amount

of One hlln( 1rpd6o` Kibu5and- three huidrPd- ehrti & Lr doi66 and 001100 ($ 10 le 1 ' 34   .       )
Dollars, may be renewed by mutual agreement between Contractor and the City at the same rate.

To receive payment the Contractor shall submit monthly invoices to the City on or before

the tenth( 10th) day of each month for the services rendered in the preceding month, specifying the
services rendered, dates of service, and the amount( s) owed pursuant to this Agreement.

Payments shall be made in equal monthly installments or for exact moneys on or about

thirty ( 30) days after receipt and approval of the invoice( s).  The City shall be entitled to any

reimbursement from the Contractor for overpayments due to election of equal monthly
installments based upon time of contract termination.

2. 02— Allocated Funds.

a)      The City' s duties to pay money to the Contractor for any purposes under this

Agreement are limited in their entirety by the provisions of this Section 2. 02.

b)      The Contractor recognizes and understands that the City has appropriated and
allocated the sum of$  to

be used to discharge its duties to pay money under this Agreement ( the " Original

Allocation") during the remaining months of fiscal year 2017-2018. The parties
recognize that the executive and legislative officers of the City, in the exercise of

their sound discretion, may allocate supplemental sums of money for the purpose

2018 Janitorial Services Agreement- 2

ro



of this Agreement for succeeding fiscal years. Because the City' s officers are not

obligated to make any such supplemental allocations, the parties have agreed to
certain procedures and remedies to be followed with respect thereto.

c)      A supplemental allocation will only be deemed to be made when the City sends a

written notice to the Contractor indicating that supplemental sums have been
allocated for the purpose of this Agreement.

d)      The aggregate of the Original Allocation and all supplemental allocations effected

by notice to the Contractor, if any, shall be the Allocated Funds. The City shall
never be obligated to pay any money by, through or under this Agreement in an
aggregate amount which exceeds the Allocated Funds.

e)      Suspension of performance and receipt of payment of sums owed by the City for
services rendered shall be the Contractor' s exclusive remedies in the event that the

City fails or refuses to make supplemental allocations. No such failure or refusal
shall constitute a default or breach of this Agreement by the City, and the Contractor

waives any claim ( other than its claim for payment of sums owed for services
rendered) it may have now or in the future for financial losses or other damages

which may be occasioned by any such failure or refusal.

III.

TERM AND RENEWAL OPTION

This Agreement shall commence on May Irr&, 2018, and shall end on September 30,
2018, which is for the remaining months of Fiscal Year 2017- 2018.

The first year of service is for Fiscal Year 2018- 2019 and shall commence on October 1,

2018 and shall end on September 30, 2019.  However, upon mutual consent of the parties and

approval of the governing body, this agreement may be extended for three ( 3) one ( 1) year

extensions, for a total of four( 4) consecutive years. Each extension must be evidenced in writing
and approved by the appropriate authorities of each party. Such renewal shall be for the same
compensation provided in Section 2. 02 of this Agreement, unless terminated earlier in accordance

with the terms of this Agreement.

IV.

TERMINATION

4. 01 — With Cause.

2018 Janitorial Services Agreement- 3



The City may terminate this Agreement upon default of the Contractor. A default shall be
deemed to have occurred if the Contractor fails to perform or observe any of the terms or conditions

of this Agreement required to be performed or observed by it. Should such a default occur, the

City shall have the right to terminate the Contractor' s duties under this Agreement as of the ( 10th)
day following the receipt of a written notice to the Contractor from the City describing such default
and intended termination, provided that:

i)       such termination shall be ineffective if within the ten( 10) day period the Contractor
cures the default; and

ii)      such termination may be stayed, at the sole option of the City pending cure of the

default if action to cure begins during the ten ( 10) day period and is successfully

complete writing a reasonable time thereafter.

4. 02— Without Cause.

This Agreement may be terminated by the City without cause upon thirty( 30) days advance
written notice to the Contractor.

V.

INSURANCE

5.01 — Coverage and Amounts.

The Contractor shall provide and maintain insurance in full force and effect at all times

during the term of this Agreement. Such insurance is described as follows:

1) Risk and Limits of Liability.  The insurance at a minimum must include the following
coverages and limits of liability:

COVERAGE LIMITS OF LIABILITY

Worker' s Compensation Statutory

Employer' s Liability 1, 000, 000 per occurrence

Commercial General Liability Bodily Injury and Property Damage

Including Blanket Contractual Limits of$ 1, 000,000 each Occurrence

Liability and $ 2,000, 000 Aggregate

Automobile Liability Bodily Injury and Property Damage

2018 Janitorial Services Agreement- 4



Combined Single Limit$ 1, 000, 000

Each Occurrence

2) Form of Policies. The insurance may be in one or more policies of insurance, the form
of which must be approved by the Parks and Recreation Director.

3) Issuers of Policies. The issuer of any policy must have the certificate of authority to
transact insurance business in the State of Texas.  Each issuer must be responsible and

reputable and must have financial capability consistent with the risks covered. Each issuer

shall be subject to approval by the Parks and Recreation Director as to conformance with
these requirements.

4) Insured Parties.  Each policy must name the Contractor and the City ( and the officers,
agents, and employees of the City) as insured parties.

5) Deductibles. A policy may contain deductible amounts. Notwithstanding the deductible
amounts, the Contractor shall assume and bear any claims or losses to the extent of such

deductible amounts and waives any claim it may ever have for the same against the City,
its officers, agents, or employees.

6) Cancellation.  Each policy must expressly state that it may not be canceled unless thirty
30) days' advance notice of cancellation is given in writing to the Parks and Recreation

Director.

7) Subrogation. Each policy must contain an endorsement to the effect that the issuer waives
any claim or right in the nature of subrogation to recover against the City, its officers,
agents is employees.

8) Liability for Premium.   If any of the policies referred to above does not have a flat
premium rate and such premium has not been paid in full, such policy must have a rider or
other appropriate certificate or waiver sufficient to establish that the issuer is entitled to

look only to the Contractor for any further premium payment and has right to recover any
premiums from the City.

5. 02— Delivery of Policies.

The original of all polices referred to above, or copies thereof certified by the agent or

attorney- in- fact issuing them, together with written proof that the premiums have been paid, shall
be deposited by the Contractor with the Parks and Recreation Director prior to the beginning of
the term of this Agreement.

2018 Janitorial Services Agreement- 5

i



Failure on the part of the Contractor to furnish a new policy or certified copy thereof before

the expiration date of any such policy, or failure to obtain a new policy before the date fixed for
the cancellation of an existing date of any existing policy, so that the insurance referred to shall be

continuously in effect, shall constitute a default on the part of the Contractor entailing the City, at
its option, to terminate its duties and the Contractor rights under this Agreement upon at least three

3) days' notice in writing to the Contractor.

VI.

MISCELLANEOUS

6.01 — Independent Contractor.

The relationship of the Contractor to the City shall be that of an independent contractor.
Nothing herein contained shall be constructed as constituting the Contractor an employee, agent,
servant, or department of the City.  The City shall not be liable for the acts or omissions of the

Contractor, its officers, members, agents or employees.  All persons employed by the contractor

must be legally approved to work in the United States.

6.02— Subcontractors.

The Contractor shall not subcontract any part of its performance under this Agreement

without approval of the Parks and Recreation Director, which approval shall not be unreasonably

withheld. If such approval is given, any subcontractor and all employees of the subcontractor shall

be treated by the City, in connection with this Agreement only, as if they were employees of the

Contractor.  All persons employed by the Contractor must be legally approved to work in the
United States.

6. 03— Administration of Agreement.

Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shall be administered by the Parks
and Recreation Director or his designee and all correspondence and questions from the Contractor

shall be directed to the Parks and Recreation Director or his designee, as applicable.

6. 04— Parties in Interest.

This Agreement shall not bestow any rights upon any third party, but rather, shall bind and
benefit the City and the Contractor only.

6.05— Non- waiver.

2018 Janitorial Services Agreement- 6



Failure of either party hereto to insist on the strict performance of any of the agreements

herein or to exercise any rights of remedies accruing hereunder upon default or failure of
performance shall not be considered a waiver of the rights to insist on and to enforce by any
appropriate remedy, strict compliance with any other obligation hereunder or to exercise any right
or remedy occurring as a result of any future default or failure or performance.

6. 06— Applicable Laws.

This Agreement is subject to and shall be constructed in accordance with the laws of the

State of Texas, the City Charter and Ordinances of the City of Alvin, the laws of the federal
government of the United States of America and all rules and regulations of any regulatory body

or officer having jurisdiction over the Contractor' s services required by this Agreement.  This
Agreement is performable in Brazoria County, Texas.

6. 07— Licenses and Permits.

The Contractor shall obtain and pay for all licenses, permits and certificates required by
any statue, ordinance, rule, or regulation of any regulatory body having jurisdiction over the
performance of the Contractor' s services required hereunder.

6. 08— Notices.

All notices required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed

received when actually received or if earlier, on the third (3rd) day following deposit in the United
States Postal Services post office or receptacle with proper postage affixed ( certified mail, return

receipt requested) addressed to the other party at the address set forth below or at such other

addresses as the receiving party may have therefore prescribed by the notice to the sending party:

Parks and Recreation Director A-Mee-O.a/4 JArN DRiAL, Lees art.

City of Alvin P I Ht02 1 nca 4.0,  Dr. S L C30
216 W. Sealy Street address]     

J

Alvin, Texas 77511 LOO&     ".        • ` 15'Th

Phone No: ( 281) 388- 4290 Phone NO:   ? Si —1      — QOS S

6.09— Captions.

The captions at the beginning of the articles, sections, and subsections of this Agreement
are guides and labels to assist in locating and reading such articles, sections, and subsections and,

therefore, will be given no effect in construing this Agreement and shall not be restricted of or be
used to interpret the subject matter of any article, section subsection or part of this Agreement.

2018 Janitorial Services Agreement- 7

I



6. 10— Acceptance and Approvals.

Any acceptance or approval by the City, or its agents or employees shall not constitute, nor
be deemed to be a release of the responsibility and liability of the contractor, its employees, agents,
subcontractors or suppliers for the accuracy, competency and completeness of any documents
prepared or services performed pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, not shall

acceptance or approval be deemed to be an assumption of such responsibility or liability by the

City, or its agents and employees for any defect, error or omissions in any documents prepared or
services performed by the Contractor, its employees, agents, subcontractors or suppliers pursuant
to this Agreement.

6. 11 — Inspections and Audits.

At mutually agreeable times, the City shall have the right to examine, review, copy and
audit all books, records and billing documents which are directly related to performance to
payment under this Agreement provided, however that records and documents that reflect

Contractor' s profits shall not be available for inspection.  The Contractor shall maintain such

books, records, and billing documents for one ( 1) year after cessation of its other duties under this
Agreement.

6. 12— Remedies.

The rights and remedies contained in this Agreement shall not be exclusive, but shall be

cumulative of all rights and remedies now or hereafter existing, whether statutory, at law, or in

equity; provided however, that none of the parties shall terminate this Agreement except in
accordance with the provisions hereof.

I
6. 13— Ambiguities.

In the event of any ambiguity in any of the terms of this Agreement, it shall not be
constructed for or against any party hereto on the basis that such party did or did not author the
same.

6. 14— Survival.

The provisions set forth in Section 6. 11 herein shall survive the termination, cancellation,

or expiration of this Agreement.

2018 Janitorial Services Agreement- 8



6. 15- Entire Agreement.

This Agreement contains all the agreement of the parties relating to the subject matter

hereto and is the full and final expression of the agreement between parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed this Agreement in

multiple copies,  each of which shall be an original,  as of this day of

ALT 2018.

CONTRACTOR:    CITY:

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXA

BY:  (

411.
4414

BY:  

C,

Name:    N t4 I  (( LlLY)    Sereniah Breland

Title:   t4 Q..  City Manager

ATTEST/ SEAL ATTEST/    -

BY:      (-    )
r-O J BY I a- I

Name: Cr G c e 1.     Dixie Roberts

Title:   l P s

i (;
1 l ciao}- t;K-     City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

BY: 4A-41l
Suzanne L. Hanneman

City Attorney

2018 Janitorial Services Agreement- 9



ITEM # I

CITY HALL

16, 277+/- SQUARE FOOT

WORK SPECIFICATIONS

The contractor will provide and supervise a regular staff of qualified employees to perform

janitorial services at the City of Alvin' s City Hall building located at 216 West Sealy, Alvin, Texas
77511.   The contractor will compensate the City of Alvin for any damages incurred by their
employees during the process of cleaning the building.  The contractor shall be responsible for
maintaining offices, glassed areas, hallways, kitchen and dining areas, restrooms, lobby, vending
areas, conference rooms, and the council chambers.   The contractor shall provide sufficient

personnel to meet all the provisions of cleaning during the time required in these specifications.

SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

A. DAILY SERVICES/ ( 4) DAYS PER WEEK

1.       Clean all floor mats.

2.       Sweep all tile and brick floors with chemically treated dust mops.

3.       Damp mop all tile and brick floors.

4.       Vacuum all carpeted areas.

5.       Clean all baseboards of splash marks.

6.       Clean, sweep, and mop stairwells.

7.       Clean glass entry doors and interior windows.

8.       Spot clean metal and wood doors, doorframes and wall switches.

9.       Remove fingerprints from woodwork, walls and partitions.

10.      Clean and polish brass plates on all bathroom doors with brass cleaner.

11.      Clean and polish drinking fountains.

12.      Dust chairs and other office furniture.  Desktops are not to be dusted if not cleared.

13.      Dust desk accessories( i. e. keyboards, mouse, penholders, etc.)

14.      Clean and sanitize telephones.

15.      Empty wastebaskets, replace liners and carry trash to designated area.

16.      Empty paper recycle bins and dispose in recycling bin at Public Services Facility,

1100 W. Highway 6.

17.      Clean and disinfect entire toilet, toilet seats and urinals.

18.      Clean and disinfect washbasins and counters.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid Na B- I8- 10



19.      Spot clean walls, toilet partitions, and shower walls in restrooms.

20.      Clean restroom floors and drains with germicidal solution.

21.      Clean, polish and refill towel, tissue, and sanitary napkin dispensers.

22.      Clean and polish all minors and metal surfaces.

23.      Sweep outside entrances, pick up litter, and empty trash receptacles.
24.      Leave on only designated lights.

25.      Secure and lock doors upon completion of work.

26.      Dust ledges, bookcases and windowsills.

27.      Wash tile walls and toilet compartment partitions.

28.      Dust door sashes, chairs and banisters

29.      Vacuum all fabric type furniture

30.      Clean plastic and leather furniture

31.      Brush ceiling tile vents

32.      Dust picture frames, artifacts and window blinds

C. MONTHLY SERVICES

I.       Mop and burnish all tile flooring

D. SEMI- ANNUAL SERVICES

1.       Strip and wax all VCT flooring.  ( includes all supplies.)

E. ADDITIONAL SERVICES

I.       Shampoo carpeted areas( upon request) at an additional cost.

2.       Clean exterior windows at an additional cost.

3.       Strip and wax travertine flooring in downstairs area.

These costs shall be provided in the bid proposal as an add- alternative.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No. B- I R- 10



ITEM # 2

PUBLIC SERVICES FACILITY
8, 671+/- SQUARE FOOT

WORK SPECIFICATIONS

The contractor will provide and supervise a regular staff of qualified employees to perform

janitorial services at the City of Alvin' s Public Services Facility building located at 1100 West
Highway 6. Alvin, Texas 77511.   The contractor will compensate the City of Alvin for any
damages incurred by their employees during the process of cleaning the building.  The contractor
shall be responsible for maintaining offices, glassed areas, hallways, kitchen and dining areas,
restrooms, vending areas, conference rooms, and locker rooms. The contractor shall provide
sufficient personnel to meet all the provisions of cleaning during the time required in these
specifications.

SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

A. DAILY SERVICES/( 4) DAYS PER WEEK

1.  Clean all floor mats.

2.  Sweep all tile and brick floors with chemically treated dust mops.

3.  Damp mop all tile and brick floors.

4.  Vacuum all carpeted areas.

5.  Clean all baseboards of splash marks.

6.  Clean, sweep, and mop stairwells.

7.  Clean glass entry doors and interior windows.

8.  Spot clean metal and wood doors, doorframes and wall switches.

9.  Remove fingerprints from woodwork, walls and partitions.

10. Clean and polish brass plates on all bathroom doors with brass cleaner.

11. Clean and polish drinking fountains.

12. Dust chairs and other office furniture.  Desktops are not to be dusted if not cleared.

13. Dust desk accessories ( i. e. keyboards, mouse, penholders, etc.)

14. Clean and sanitize telephones.

15. Empty wastebaskets, replace liners and carry trash to designated area.

16. Empty paper recycle bins and dispose in recycling bin at Public Services Facility, 1100 W.

Highway 6.

17. Clean and disinfect entire toilet, toilet seats and urinals.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No. B- IS- IB



18. Clean and disinfect washbasins and counters.

19. Spot clean walls, toilet partitions, and shower walls in restrooms.
20. Clean restroom floors and drains with germicidal solution.
2L Clean, polish and refill towel, tissue, and sanitary napkin dispensers.
22. Clean and polish all mirrors and metal surfaces.

23. Sweep outside entrances, pick up litter, and empty trash receptacles.
24. Leave on only designated lights.

25. Secure and lock doors upon completion of work.
26. Dust ledges, bookcases and windowsills.

27. Wash tile walls and toilet compa, talent partitions,
28. Dust door sashes, chairs and banisters

29. Vacuum all fabric type furniture

30. Clean plastic and leather furniture

31. Brush ceiling tile vents

32. Dust picture frames, artifacts and window blinds

B. MONTHLY

I. Mop and burnish all tile flooring

C. ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Shampoo carpeted areas( upon request) at an additional cost.
2.       Clean exterior windows at an additional cost.

These costs shall be provided in the bid proposal as an add- alternative.

Janitorial Services Contract did No. B- 18- 10



ITEM # 3

LIBRARY

18, 164+ 1- SQUARE FOOT

WORK SPECIFICATIONS

The contractor will provide and supervise a regular staff of qualified employees to perform
janitorial services at the City of Alvin' s Library building located at 105 South Gordon Street
Alvin, Texas 77511.  The contractor will compensate the City of Alvin for any damages incurred
by their employees during the process ofcleaning the building. The contractor shall be responsible
for maintaining offices, glassed areas, hallways, kitchen and dining areas, restrooms, lobby,
vending areas and conference rooms. The contractor shall provide sufficient personnel to meet all

the provisions of cleaning during the time required in these specifications.

SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

A. DAILY SERVICES/( 6) DAYS PER WEEK
1.       Clean all floor mats.

2.       Sweep all tile and brick floors with chemically treated dust mops.
3.       Damp mop all tile and brick floors.

4.       Vacuum all carpeted areas.

5.       Clean all baseboards of splash marks.

6.       Clean, sweep, and mop stairwells.

7.       Clean glass entry doors and interior windows.

8.       Spot clean metal and wood doors, doorframes and wall switches.

9.       Remove fingerprints from woodwork, walls and partitions.

10.      Clean and polish brass plates on all bathroom doors with brass cleaner.

11.      Clean and polish drinking fountains.

12.      Dust chairs and other office furniture.  Desktops are not to be dusted ifnot cleared.

13.      Dust desk accessories( i. e. keyboards, mouse, penholders, etc.)

14.      Clean and sanitize telephones.

15.      Empty wastebaskets, replace liners andcarry trash to designated area.

16.      Empty paper recycle bins and dispose in Abitibi receptacles located at the Alvin

Public Library, 105 South Gordon St. parking area.
17.      Clean and disinfect entire toilet, toilet seats and urinals.

18.      Clean and disinfect washbasins and counters.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No.& 38- 10



19.      Spot clean walls, toilet partitions, and shower walls in restrooms.

20.      Clean restroom floors and drains with germicidal solution.

21.      Clean, polish and refill towel, tissue, and sanitary napkin dispensers.

22.      Clean and polish all mirrors and metal surfaces.

23.      Sweep outside entrances, pick up litter, and empty trash receptacles.

24.      Leave on only designated lights.

33.      Secure and lock doors upon completion of work.

C. MONTHLY SERVICES
1.       Mop and burnish all tile flooring

D. SEMI- ANNUAL SERVICES

L Strip and wax VCT tile flooring( includes all supplies.)

E. ADDITIONAL SERVICES

1.       Shampoo carpeted areas( upon request) at an additional cost.

2.       Clean exterior windows at an additional cost.

These costs shall be provided in the bid proposal as an add- alternative.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No. B- 18- 10



ITEM # 4

SENIOR CITIZEN CENTER

10, 000+ 1- SQUARE FOOT

WORK SPECIFICATIONS

The contractor will provide and supervise a regular staff of qualified employees to perform

janitorial services at the City of Alvin' s Senior Citizen' s building located at 309 West Sealy, Alvin
Texas 77511. The contractor will compensate the City of Alvin for any damages incurred by their
employees during the process of cleaning the building.  The contractor shall be responsible for
maintaining offices, glassed areas, hallways, kitchen and dining areas, restrooms, lobby, vending
areas, and conference rooms. The contractor shall provide sufficient personnel to meet all the

provisions of cleaning during the time required in these specifications.

SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

A. DAILY SERVICES/( 5) DAYS PER WEEK

1.  Clean all floor mats.

2.       Sweep all tile and brick floors with chemically treated dust mops.

3.       Damp mop all tile and brick floors.

4.       Vacuum all carpeted areas.

5.       Clean all baseboards of splash marks.

6.       Clean, sweep, and mop stairwells.

7.       Clean glass entry doors and interior windows.

8.       Spot clean metal and wood doors, doorframes and wall switches.

9.       Remove fingerprints from woodwork, walls and partitions.

10.      Clean and polish brass plates on all bathroom doors with brass cleaner.

11.      Clean and polish drinking fountains.

12.      Dust chairs and other office furniture. Desktops are not to be dusted if not cleared.

13.      Dust desk accessories ( i. e. keyboards, mouse, penholders, etc.)

14.      Clean and sanitize telephones.

15.      Empty wastebaskets, replace liners and carry trash to designated area.

16.      Empty paper recycle bins and dispose in recycling bin at Public Services Facility,

1100 W. Highway 6.

17.      Clean and disinfect entire toilet, toilet seats and urinals.

18.      Clean and disinfect washbasins and counters.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No. B- 18- 10



19.      Spot clean walls, toilet partitions, and shower walls in restrooms.

20.      Clean restroom floors and drains with germicidal solution.

21.      Clean, polish and refill towel, tissue, and sanitary napkin dispensers.

22.      Clean and polish all mirrors and metal surfaces.

23.      Sweep outside entrances, pick up litter, and empty trash receptacles.
24.      Leave on only designated lights.

25.      Secure and lock doors upon completion of work.

26.      Dust ledges, bookcases and windowsills.

27.      Wash the walls and toilet compartment partitions.

28.      Dust door sashes, chairs and banisters

29.      Vacuum all fabric type furniture

30.      Clean plastic and leather furniture

31.      Brush ceiling tile vents

32.      Dust picture frames, artifacts and window blinds

C. MONTHLY SERVICES
I.       Mop and burnish all tile flooring

D. SEMI- ANNUAL SERVICES

1.       Strip and wax VCT flooring ( includes all supplies.)

E. ADDITIONAL SERVICES

I.       Shampoo carpeted areas ( upon request) at an additional cost.

2.       Clean exterior windows at an additional cost.

These costs shall be provided in the bid proposal as an add- alternative.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No. B- 18- IO



ITEM # 5

MUSEUM

7, 500+/- SQUARE FOOT

WORK SPECIFICATIONS

The contractor will provide and supervise a regular staff of qualified employees to perform

janitorial services at the City' s Historical Museum located at 302 West Sealy Alvin, Texas 77511.
The contractor will compensate the City of Alvin for any damages incurred by their employees
during the process of cleaning the building.  The contractor shall be responsible for maintaining
glassed doors, enclosed glass displays, offices, hallways, kitchen and dining areas, restrooms,
lobby, vending areas,  and conference room.   ( Excluded:  archives, work area,  and open
displays). The contractor shall provide sufficient personnel to meet all the provisions of cleaning

during the time required in these specifications.

SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

A. DAILY SERVICES/( 1) DAY PER WEEK

I.  Clean all floor mats.

2.       Sweep all tile and brick floors with chemically treated dust mops.

3.       Damp mop all tile and brick floors.

4.       Vacuum all carpeted areas.

5.       Clean all baseboards of splash marks.

6.       Clean, sweep, and mop stairwells.

7.       Clean glass entry doors and interior windows.

8.       Spot clean metal and wood doors, doorframes and wall switches.

9.       Remove fingerprints from woodwork, walls and partitions.

10.      Clean and polish brass plates on all bathroom doors with brass cleaner.

II.      Clean and polish drinking fountains.

12.      Dust chairs and other office furniture. Desktops are not to be dusted if not cleared.

13.      Dust desk accessories( i. e. keyboards, mouse, penholders, etc.)

14.      Clean and sanitize telephones.

15.      Empty wastebaskets, replace liners and carry trash to designated area.

16.      Empty paper recycle bins and dispose in recycling bin at Public Services Facility,

1100 W. Highway 6.

17.      Clean and disinfect entire toilet, toilet seats and urinals.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No. B- 18- 10



18.      Clean and disinfect washbasins and counters.

19.      Spot clean walls, toilet partitions, and shower walls in restrooms.

20.      Clean restroom floors and drains with germicidal solution.

21.      Clean, polish and refill towel, tissue, and sanitary napkin dispensers.

22.      Clean and polish all minors and metal surfaces.

23.      Sweep outside entrances, pick up litter, and empty trash receptacles.

24.      Leave on only designated lights.

25.      Secure and lock doors upon completion of work.

26.      Dust ledges, bookcases and windowsills.

27.      Wash tile walls and toilet compartment partitions.

28.      Dust door sashes, chairs and banisters

29.      Vacuum all fabric type furniture

30.      Clean plastic and leather furniture

31.      Brush ceiling tile vents

32.      Dust picture frames, artifacts and window blinds

C. MONTHLY SERVICES

1.       Mop and burnish all tile flooring

D. SEMI- ANNUAL SERVICES

1.       Strip and wax VCT flooring( includes all supplies.)

E. ADDITIONAL SERVICES

1.       Shampoo carpeted areas( upon request) at an additional cost.

2.       Clean exterior windows at an additional cost.

These costs shall be provided in the bid proposal as an add- alternative.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid Na B- I8- 10



ITEM # 6

CONVENTION AND VISITOR' S BUREAU / TRAIN DEPOT
1, 482+/- SQUARE FOOT

WORK SPECIFICATIONS

The contractor will provide and supervise a regular staff of qualified employees to perform
janitorial services at the City of Alvin, Convention and Visitor' s Bureau building located at 200
Depot Centre Blvd, Alvin, Texas 77511. The contractor will compensate the City of Alvin for any
damages incurred by their employees during the process of cleaning the building. The contractor
shall be responsible for maintaining all areas and restrooms. The contractor shall provide sufficient
personnel to meet all the provisions of cleaning during the time required in these specifications.

CONFIGUARATION OF BUILDING

The building consists of three main functional areas:
800 square feet meeting room
598 square feet of general office space

82 square feet for two (2) single- toilet restrooms

SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

A. DAILY SERVICES/( 2) DAYS PER WEEK
1.       Clean all floor mats.

2.       Sweep all tile and brick floors with chemically treated dust mops.
3.       Damp mop all tile and brick floors.

4.       Vacuum all carpeted areas.

5.       Clean all baseboards of splash marks.

6.       Clean, sweep, and mop stairwells.

7.       Clean glass entry doors and interior windows.

8.       Spot clean metal and wood doors, doorframes and wall switches.

9.       Remove fingerprints from woodwork, walls and partitions.

10.      Clean and polish brass plates on all bathroom doors with brass cleaner.

I I.      Clean and polish drinking fountains.

12.      Dust chairs and other office furniture.  Desktops are not to be dusted if not cleared.

13.      Dust desk accessories( i. e. keyboards, mouse, penholders, etc.)

14.      Clean and sanitize telephones.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No. B- I 8- 10



15.      Empty wastebaskets, replace liners and carry trash to designated area.

16.      Empty paper recycle bins and dispose in recycling bin at Public Services Facility,

1100 W. Highway 6.

17.      Clean and disinfect entire toilet, toilet seats and urinals.

18.      Clean and disinfect washbasins and counters.

19.      Spot clean walls, toilet partitions, and shower walls in restrooms.

20.      Clean restroom floors and drains with germicidal solution.

21.      Clean, polish and refill towel, tissue, and sanitary napkin dispensers.

22.      Clean and polish all mirrors and metal surfaces.

23.      Sweep outside entrances, pick up litter, and empty trash receptacles.

24.      Leave on only designated lights.

25.      Secure and lock doors upon completion of work.

26.      Dust ledges, bookcases and windowsills.

27.      Wash tile walls and toilet compartment partitions.

28.      Dust door sashes, chairs and banisters

29.      Vacuum all fabric type furniture

30.      Clean plastic and leather furniture

31.      Brush ceiling tile vents

32.      Dust picture frames, artifacts and window blinds

33.      Clean all interior windows

C. MONTHLY SERVICES

1.       Mop and burnish ail tile flooring

D. SEMI- ANNUAL SERVICES

1.       Strip and wax VCT flooring ( includes all supplies.)

E. ADDITIONAL SERVICES
1.       Clean exterior windows at an additional cost.

2.       Perform post event clean up at an additional cost.

These costs shall be provided in the bid proposal as an add-alternative.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No. B- I8- 10



ITEM # 7

PARKS AND RECREATION PORTABLE RESTROOM TRAILER

WORK SPECIFICATIONS

The contractor will provide and supervise a regular staff of qualified employees to perform
janitorial services at the City' s Mobile Restroom.  This vehicle, while stored at 800 Dyche Lane
is periodically transported to parks for daily and/ or weekend use for public events. The awarded
contractor will be provided event dates and times for scheduling purposes.  The contractor shall
provide cleaning of the mobile restroom prior to and upon completion of event. When an attendant
is required, typically 8 hours of constant monitoring and replenishment of soap, paper towels, toilet
paper and restroom cleaning is expected. The contractor shall provide sufficient personnel to meet
all the provisions of cleaning during the time required in these specifications.

SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

I.  Clean and disinfect tops and underside of toilet bowls and seats.

2.  Clean and disinfect all areas of urinal basin.

3.  Clean and disinfect countertops and sinks.

4.  Clean and disinfect walls, doors and floors with a germicidal solution.

5.  Remove all paper, trash and debris from restroom.

6.  Clean and disinfect all stainless steel areas with stainless steel cleaner/ polish.

7.  Re- stock restroom with toilet paper, hand soap and paper towels.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No. B- 18- 10



ITEM # 8

BOB BRISCOE PARK RESTROOM FACILITIES

WORK SPECIFICATIONS

The contractor will provide and supervise a regular staff of qualified employees to perform

janitorial services at the City of Alvin, Bob Briscoe Park restroom facilities located at 3201 South
Highway 35, Alvin, Texas 77511.  The contractor will compensate the City of Alvin for any
damages incurred by their employees during the process of cleaning the building. The contractor
shall be responsible for cleaning restrooms as requested by a City of Alvin, Parks and Recreation
Department staff member. The contractor shall provide sufficient personnel to meet all the

provisions of cleaning during the time required in these specifications.

SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

1.  Clean and disinfect tops and underside of toilet bowls and seats.

2.  Clean and disinfect all areas of urinal basin.

3.  Clean and disinfect countertops and sinks.

4.  Clean and disinfect walls, doors and floors with a germicidal solution.

5.  Remove all paper, trash and debris from restroom.

6.  Clean and disinfect all stainless steel areas with stainless steel cleaner/ polish.

7.  Re- stock restroom with toilet paper, hand soap and paper towels.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No. B- I6- 10



ITEM # 9

LIONS PARK RESTROOM FACILITIES

WORK SPECIFICATIONS

The contractor will provide and supervise a regular staff of qualified employees to perform
janitorial services at the City of Alvin, Lions Park restroom facilities located at 1060 College Drive
Alvin. Texas 77511.  The contractor will compensate the City of Alvin for any damages incurred
by their employees during the process of cleaning the building. The contractor shall be responsible
for cleaning restrooms as requested by a City of Alvin, Parks and Recreation Department staff
member. The contractor shall provide sufficient personnel to meet all the provisions of cleaning
during the time required in these specifications.

SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

1.       Clean and disinfect tops and underside of toilet bowls and seats.

2.       Clean and disinfect all areas of urinal basin.

3.       Clean and disinfect countertops and sinks.

4.       Clean and disinfect walls, doors and floors with a germicidal solution.

5.       Remove all paper, trash and debris from restroom.

6.       Clean and disinfect all stainless steel areas with stainless steel cleaner/ polish.

7.       Re- stock restroom with toilet paper, hand soap and paper towels.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No. B- I8- 10



ITEM # 10

PEARSON PARK RESTROOM FACILITIES

WORK SPECIFICATIONS

The contractor will provide and supervise a regular staff of qualified employees to perform
janitorial services at the City of Alvin, Pearson Park restroom facilities located at 2200 West Park
Drive Alvin, Texas 77511.  The contractor will compensate the City of Alvin for any damages
incurred by their employees during the process of cleaning the building.  The contractor shall be
responsible for cleaning restrooms as requested by a City of Alvin, Parks and Recreation
Department staff member. The contractor shall provide sufficient personnel to meet all the
provisions of cleaning during the time required in these specifications.

SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

I.  Clean and disinfect tops and underside of toilet bowls and seats.

2.  Clean and disinfect all areas of urinal basin.

3.  Clean and disinfect countertops and sinks.

4.  Clean and disinfect walls, doors and floors with a germicidal solution.

5.  Remove all paper, trash and debris from restroom.

6.  Clean and disinfect all stainless steel areas with stainless steel cleaner/polish.

7.  Re- stock restroom with toilet paper, hand soap and paper towels.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No. 13- 1S- 10



ITEM # 11

MORGAN PARK RESTROOM FACILITIES

WORK SPECIFICATIONS

The contractor will provide and supervise a regular staff of qualified employees to perform
janitorial services at the City of Alvin, Morgan Park restroom facilities located at 1500 West South
Street Alvin, Texas 77511 The contractor will compensate the City of Alvin for any damages
incurred by their employees during the process of cleaning the building.  The contractor shall be
responsible for cleaning restrooms as requested by a City of Alvin,  Parks and Recreation
Department staff member. The contractor shall provide sufficient personnel to meet all the
provisions of cleaning during the time required in these specifications.

SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

I.  Clean and disinfect tops and underside of toilet bowls and seats.

2.  Clean and disinfect all areas of urinal basin.

3.  Clean and disinfect countertops and sinks.

4.  Clean and disinfect walls, doors and floors with a germicidal solution.

5.  Remove all paper, trash and debris from restroom.

6.  Clean and disinfect alt stainless steel areas with stainless steel cleaner/ polish.

7.  Re- stock restroom with toilet paper, hand soap and paper towels.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No. 8- 18- 10



ITEM # 12

BOB S. OWEN POOL RESTROOM FACILITIES

WORK SPECIFICATIONS

The contractor will provide and supervise a regular staff of qualified employees to perform

janitorial services at the City of Alvin, Bob S. Owen restroom facilities located at 919 Bayou Drive
Alvin, Texas 77511.  The contractor will compensate the City of Alvin for any damages incurred
by their employees during the process of cleaning the building. The contractor shall be responsible
for cleaning restrooms as requested by a City of Alvin, Parks and Recreation Department staff
member. The contractor shall provide sufficient personnel to meet all the provisions of cleaning

during the time required in these specifications.

SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

1.  Clean and disinfect tops and underside of toilet bowls and seats.

2.  Clean and disinfect all areas of urinal basin.

3.  Clean and disinfect countertops and sinks.

4.  Clean and disinfect walls, doors and floors with a germicidal solution.

5.  Remove all paper, trash and debris from restroom.

6.  Clean and disinfect all stainless steel areas with stainless steel cleaner/ polish.

7.  Re- stock restroom with toilet paper, hand soap and paper towels.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No. B- 18- 10



ITEM # 13

NATIONAL OAK PARK RESTROOM FACILITIES

WORK SPECIFICATIONS

The contractor will provide and supervise a regular staff of qualified employees to perform

janitorial services at the City of Alvin, National Oak Park restroom facilities located at 118 S.
Magnolia St. Alvin, TX 77511. The contractor will compensate the City of Alvin for any damages

incurred by their employees during the process of cleaning the building.  The contractor shall be
responsible for cleaning restrooms as requested by a City of Alvin,  Parks and Recreation
Department staff member. The contractor shall provide sufficient personnel to meet all the

provisions of cleaning during the time required in these specifications.

SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

A. DAILY SERVICES/( 6) DAYS PER WEEK( Mon.- Sat.)

1.  Clean and disinfect tops and underside of toilet bowls and seats.

2.  Clean and disinfect all areas of urinal basin.

3.  Clean and disinfect countertops and sinks.

4.  Clean and disinfect walls, doors and floors with a germicidal solution.

5.  Remove all paper, trash and debris from restroom.

6.  Clean and disinfect all stainless steel areas with stainless steel cleaner/polish.

7.  Re- stock restroom with toilet paper, hand soap and paper towels.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No. 13- 18- 10



ITEM # 14

ALVIN GIRL SCOUT HOUSE

WORK SPECIFICATIONS

The contractor will provide and supervise a regular staff of qualified employees to perform

janitorial services at the City of Alvin, National Oak Park restroom facilities located at 1006 W.
Adoue St. Alvin, TX 77511. The contractor will compensate the City of Alvin for any damages
incurred by their employees during the process of cleaning the building.  The contractor shall be
responsible for cleaning restrooms as requested up to 8 times per month, scheduled monthly, by a
City of Alvin, Parks and Recreation Department staff member. The contractor shall provide
sufficient personnel to meet all the provisions of cleaning during the time required in these
specifications.

SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

I.  Clean all floor mats.

2.  Sweep or vacuum all floors.

3.  Damp mop all tile.

4.  Vacuum all carpeted areas.

5.  Clean all baseboards of splash marks.

6.  Spot clean metal and wood doors, doorframes and wall switches.

7.  Dust chairs and other office furniture.

8.  Dust desk accessories( i. e. keyboards, mouse, penholders, etc.)

9.  Clean and sanitize telephones.

10. Empty wastebaskets, replace liners and carry trash to designated area.

11. Empty paper recycle bins( if any) and dispose in recycling bin at Public Services

Facility, 1100 W. Highway 6.

12. Clean and disinfect entire toilet, toilet seats and urinals.

13. Clean and disinfect washbasins and counters.

14. Spot clean walls, toilet partitions, and shower walls in restrooms.

15. Clean restroom floors and drains with germicidal solution.

16. Clean, polish and refill towel, tissue, and sanitary napkin dispensers.

17. Clean and polish all mirrors and metal surfaces.

18. Sweep outside entrances, pick up litter, and empty trash receptacles.

19. Leave on only designated lights.

20. Secure and lock doors upon completion of work.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No. B- 18- 10



21. Dust ledges, bookcases and windowsills.

22. Wash tile walls and toilet compartment partitions.

23. Dust door sashes, chairs and banisters

24. Vacuum all fabric type furniture

25. Clean plastic and leather furniture

26. Brush ceiling tile vents

27. Dust picture frames, artifacts and window blinds

28. Clean all interior windows

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No. B- 18- 10



ITEM # 15

POLICE DEPARTMENT BUILDING

22, 000+/- SQUARE FOOT

WORK SPECIFICATIONS

The contractor will provide and supervise a regular staff of qualified employees to perform

janitorial services at the Alvin Police Department building located at 1500 N. Gordon St, Alvin
Texas 77511. The contractor will compensate the City of Alvin for any damages incurred by their
employees during the process of cleaning the building.  The contractor shall be responsible for
maintaining offices, glassed areas, hallways, kitchen and dining areas, restrooms, lobby, vending
areas, and conference rooms.  The contractor shall provide sufficient personnel to meet all the

provisions of cleaning during the time required in these specifications. Janitorial staff assigned to
clean this facility may be subject to clearance protocol, including but not limited to a background
investigation.

SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

A. DAILY SERVICES/( 4) DAYS PER WEEK DURING REGULAR BUSINESS HOURS
1.       Clean all floor mats.

2.       Sweep all tile and brick floors with chemically treated dust mops.

3.       Damp mop all tile and brick floors.

4.       Vacuum all carpeted areas.

5.       Clean all baseboards of splash marks.

6.       Clean, sweep, and mop stairwells.

7.       Clean glass entry doors and interior windows.

8.       Spot clean metal and wood doors, doorframes and wall switches.

9.       Remove fingerprints from woodwork, walls and partitions.

10.      Clean and polish brass plates on all bathroom doors with brass cleaner.

I I.      Clean and polish drinking fountains.

12.      Dust chairs and other office furniture.  Desktops are not to be dusted if not cleared.

13.      Dust desk accessories ( i. e. keyboards, mouse, penholders, etc.)

14.      Clean and sanitize telephones.

15.      Empty wastebaskets, replace liners and carry trash to designated area.

16.      Empty paper recycle bins and dispose in recycling bin at Public Services Facility,

1100 W. Highway 6.

17.      Clean and disinfect entire toilet, toilet seats and urinals.

18.      Clean and disinfect washbasins and counters.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid Na B- 18- 10



19.      Spot clean walls, toilet partitions, and shower walls in restrooms.

20.      Clean restroom floors and drains with germicidal solution.

21.      Clean, polish and refill towel, tissue, and sanitary napkin dispensers.

22.      Clean and polish all mirrors and metal surfaces.

23.      Sweep outside entrances, pick up litter, and empty trash receptacles.

24.      Leave on only designated lights.

25.      Secure and lock doors upon completion of work.

26.      Dust ledges, bookcases and windowsills.

27.      Wash tile walls and toilet compartment partitions.

28.      Dust door sashes, chairs and banisters

29.      Vacuum all fabric type furniture

30.      Clean plastic and leather furniture

31.      Brush ceiling tile vents

32.      Dust picture frames, artifacts and window blinds

C. MONTHLY SERVICES
I. Mop and burnish all tile flooring

D. SEMI-ANNUAL SERVICES

I.  Strip and wax all tile flooring ( includes all supplies.)

E. ADDITIONAL SERVICES

1.   Shampoo carpeted areas( upon request) at an additional cost.

2.  Clean exterior windows at an additional cost.

These costs shall be provided in the bid proposal as an add- altcmative.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No. B- I8- 10



ITEM # 16

ALVIN ANIMAL ADOPTION CENTER

5,000+/- SQUARE FOOT

WORK SPECIFICATIONS

The contractor will provide and supervise a regular staff of qualified employees to perform
janitorial services at the Alvin Animal Adoption Center located at 550 W. Highway 6, Alvin, Texas
77511.   The contractor will compensate the City of Alvin for any damages incurred by their
employees during the process of cleaning the building.  The contractor shall be responsible for
maintaining offices, glassed areas, hallways, kitchen and dining areas, restrooms, lobby, vending
areas, and conference rooms.  The contractor shall provide sufficient personnel to meet all the
provisions of cleaning during the time required in these specifications.  Kennel areas are exempt
from janitorial service, except semi- annual cleaning of the flooring.

SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

A. DAILY SERVICES/( 4) DAYS PER WEEK DURING REGULAR BUSINESS HOURS
I.      Clean all floor mats.

2.       Sweep all tile and brick floors with chemically treated dust mops.

3.       Damp mop all tile and brick floors.

4.       Vacuum all carpeted areas.

5.       Clean all baseboards of splash marks.

6.       Clean, sweep, and mop stairwells.

7.       Clean glass entry doors and interior windows.

8.       Spot clean metal and wood doors, doorframes and wall switches.

9.       Remove fingerprints from woodwork, walls and partitions.

10.      Clean and polish plates on all bathroom doors with cleaner.

I I.      Clean and polish drinking fountains.

12.      Dust chairs and other office furniture. Desktops are not to be dusted if not cleared.

13.      Dust desk accessories ( i. e. keyboards, mouse, penholders, etc.)

14.      Clean and sanitize telephones.

15.      Empty wastebaskets, replace liners and carry trash to designated area.
16.      Empty paper recycle bins and dispose in recycling bin at Public Services Facility,

1100 W. Highway 6.

17.      Clean and disinfect entire toilet, toilet seats and urinals.

18.      Clean and disinfect washbasins and counters.

Janitorial Services Contact Bid No. B- 18- 1e



19.      Spot clean walls, toilet partitions, and shower walls in restrooms.
20.      Clean restroom floors and drains with germicidal solution.
21.      

Clean, polish and refill towel, tissue, and sanitary napkin dispensers.
22.      Clean and polish all mirrors and metal surfaces.
23.      

Sweep outside entrances, pick up litter, and empty trash receptacles.
24.      Leave on only designated lights.
25.      Secure and lock doors upon completion of work.
26.      Dust ledges, bookcases and windowsills.
27.      Wash tile walls and toilet compartment partitions.
28.      Dust door sashes, chairs and banisters
29.      Vacuum all fabric type furniture

30.      Clean plastic and leather furniture
31.      Brush ceiling the vents
32.      Dust picture frames, artifacts and window blinds

C. MONTHLY SERVICES
1.  Mop and burnish all flooring( onsite machine provided)

D. ADDITIONAL SERVICES
1.  Shampoo carpeted area at an additional cost.

2.  Clean exterior windows at an additional cost.

These costs shall be provided in the bid proposal as an add- alternative.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No_ B- IB- le



ITEM # 17

PUBLIC SERVICE FACILITY #2

16,277+/- SQUARE FOOT

WORK SPECIFICATIONS

The contractor will provide and supervise a regular staff of qualified employees to perform

janitorial services at the City of Alvin' s PSF# 2 building located at 800 Dyche Lane, Alvin, Texas
77511.   The contractor will compensate the City of Alvin for any damages incurred by their
employees during the process of cleaning the building.  The contractor shall be responsible for
maintaining offices, glassed areas, hallways, kitchen and dining areas, restrooms, lobby, vending
areas, conference rooms.   The contractor shall provide sufficient personnel to meet all the

provisions of cleaning during the time required in these specifications.

SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

A. DAILY SERVICES/( 4) DAYS PER WEEK

1.       Clean all floor mats.

2.       Sweep all tile floors with chemically treated dust mops.

3.       Damp mop all tile floors.

4.       Vacuum all carpeted areas.

5.       Clean all baseboards of splash marks.

6.       Clean glass entry doors and interior windows.

7.       Spot clean metal and wood doors, doorframes and wall switches.

8.       Remove fingerprints from woodwork, walls and partitions.

9.       Clean and polish drinking fountains.

10.      Dust chairs and other office furniture.  Desktops are not to be dusted if not cleared.

I I.      Dust desk accessories ( i. e. keyboards, mouse, penholders, etc.)

12.      Clean and sanitize telephones.

13.      Empty wastebaskets, replace liners and carry trash to designated area.

14.      Empty paper recycle bins and dispose in recycling bin at Public Services Facility,

1100 W. Highway 6.

15.      Clean and disinfect entire toilet, toilet seats and urinals.

16.      Clean and disinfect washbasins and counters.

17.      Spot clean walls, toilet partitions, and shower walls in restrooms.

18.      Clean restroom floors and drains with germicidal solution.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No. B- I S- 10



19.      Clean, polish and refill towel, tissue, and sanitary napkin dispensers.
20.      Clean and polish all minors and metal surfaces.
21.     Sweep outside entrances, pick up litter, and empty trash receptacles.
22.      Leave on only designated lights.

23.      Secure and lock doors upon completion of work.
24.      Dust ledges, bookcases and windowsills.
25.      Wash tile walls and toilet compartment partitions.
26.      Dust door sashes, chairs and banisters

27.      Vacuum all fabric type furniture
28.      Clean plastic and leather furniture
29.      Brush ceiling tile vents
30.      Dust picture frames, artifacts and window blinds

C. MONTHLY SERVICES

Mop and burnish all tile flooring

D. SEMI-ANNUAL SERVICES
1.  Strip and wax all VCT flooring.  ( includes all supplies.)

E. ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Shampoo carpeted areas( upon request) at an additional cost.
2.       Clean exterior windows at an additional cost.

These costs shall be provided in the bid proposal as an add- alternative.

Janitorial Services Contract Bid No. B. I8- 10



JANITORIAL SERVICE BID SUBMITTAL FORM

ITEM#

City Hall 216 West Sealy 16. 277 square feet

4 Days Per Week( Monday- Thursday)

Janitorial Services Per Month S 900.00

As specified in the Daily. Mondily and
Semi- Annual services)

Supply Cost Per Month
S 250. 00 -

Total Cost Per Month s 1, 150. 00

Additional Services:

Shampoo carpeted area ( as requested)      3 0. 07 per squarefoot

Clean exterior wiudonrs
S 170. 00

Strip and wax travertine flooring in downstairs area 5 0. 17 per squarefoot

ITEM # 2

Public Services
Facility 1100 W Hi° hwaa 6 8, 671 square feet

4 Days Per Week ( Monday- Thursday)

Janitorial Sen ices 1' cr Month 5 878. 00

As specified in the Daily. Monthly and

Semi- Annual services)

Supply Cost Per Month S 142. 00

Total Cost Per Month S 1, 020. 00

Additional Services:

Shampoo carpeted area ( as requested)      
S 0. 07 per squarefoot

Clean exterior windov.s
S170.00

Page 1
Ianitorial Services Contract Bid Nn, 0. 18- 10



JANITORIAL SERVICE BID SUBMITTAL. FORM

ITEM # 3

Library 105 South Gordon 18, 164 square feet

6 Days Per Week ( Monday- Saturday)

Janitorial Services Per Month S 1, 114. 00

As specified in the Daily. Monthly and

Semi- Annual services)

Supply Cast Per Month S 240.00

Total Cost Per Month S 1, 354. 00

Additional Services:

Shampoo carpeted area ( as requested)      
s 0. 07 per squarefoot

Clean exterior windows
S 175.00

ITEM # 4

Senior Citizen Facility 309 W. Sealy 10. 000 square feet

5 Days Per Week ( Monday-Friday)

janitorial Services Per Month
776. 00

As specified in the Daily, Monthly and
Semi- Annual sen- ices I

Supply Cost Per Month S 75. 00

Fatal Cost Per Month g 851. 00

Additional Services:

Shampoo carpeted area ( as requested)      
S 0. 07 per squarefoot

Clean exterior windows
s 142. 00

Page 2

lan[ toriat Ser vices Con tract Bid No. B- I8- 10



JANITORIAL SERVICE BID SUBMITTAL FORM

ITEM# 5

91useum 309 W. Sealy 7. 500 square feet

I Day Per Week

Janitorial Services Per Month s 524.00
As specified in the Daily. Monthly and

Semi- Annual . services)

Supply Cost Per Month s 104.00

Totai Cost Per Month s 624. 00

Additional Services:

Shampoo carpeted area ( as requested)      S 0.07 per squarefoot

Clean exterior windows 5 20.00

ITEM# 6

Convention & Visitors Bureau 200 Depot Centre Blvd.       1. 482 square feet

2 Days Per Week( Tuesday/ Friday)

Janitorial Services Per Month S 105.00

As specified in the Dailv. Monthly and
Semi- Annual services)

Supply Cost Per Month S 50_00

Total Cost Per Month s 755. 00

Additional Services:

Clean exterior windows S 50. 00

Additional cleaning per request S 25. 00       _...

tammrtat services ConCract Hid No.      to Page 3



JANITORIAL SERVICE BID SUBMITTAL FORM

ITEM # 7

Portable Restroom Site Location As Specified By Parks & Recreation Dept.

As Requested

Janitorial Services Per Request S 115. 00

Before and After cleaning)

Supply Cost Per Request 5 20. 00

Before and After stocking)

Total Cost Per Request S 135. 00

Attendant ( X hours)      S 135. 00

Per Request

ITEM # 8

Bob Briscoe Park Restrooms 3201 South Highway 35

As Requested

Janitorial Services Per Request S 65. 00

Supply Cost Per Request S 10. 00

Total Cost Per Request S 75.00

ITEM # 9

Lions Park Restrooms 1060 College Drive

As Requested

Janitorial Sen ices Per Request S 75. 00

Supply Cost Per Request g 10. 00

Total Cost Per Request S 85. 00

Page 4
Ianitorial Senices Contract Bid No. B- 10- 10



JANITORIAL SERVICE BID SUBMITTAL FORM

ITEM # 10

Pearson Park Restrooms 2200 West Park Drive

As Requested

Janitorial Services Per Request s 65.00,,,

Supply Cost Per Request S 10.00

Total Cost Per Request S 75.00 ,..

ITEM # II

Morgan Park Restrooms 1500 West South Street

As Requested

Janitorial Services Per Request S 65.00

Supply Cost Per Request S 10.00

Total Cost Per Request s 75.00

ITEM # 12

Bob S. Owen Pool Restrooms 919 Bavou Drive

As Requested

Janitorial Services Per Request S65. 00

Supply Cost Per Request S 10. 00

Total Cost Per Request S 75. 00

ITEM # 13

National Oak Park Restrooms 118 S. Magnolia St.

6 days per week( Monday— Saturday)

Janitorial Services Per Month C 625. 0

Supply Cost S 150. 00

Total Cost S 77500

it nttertal Services Contract Bid. No. B- 18- 10
Page 5



JANITORIAL SERVICE BID SUBMITTAL FORM

ITEM # 13

Alvin Girl Scout House 1006 W. Adoue St.

8 times per month scheduled monthly

Janitorial Services S 110. 00

Supply Cost s 65. 00

Total Cost( monthly)    
S 175.00

ITEM 15

Police Department 1500 N. Gordon St 22. 000 square feet

4 Days Per Week ( Monday- Thursday)

Janitorial Services Per Month s 1, 528. 00

As specified in the Daily, Weekly,
Monthly and Quarterly detail)

Supply Cost Per Month S 130. 00

Total Cost Per Month S 1, 658. 00      -_

Additional Services:

Shampoo carpeted area ( as requested)      S 0. 07 per squarefoot

Clean exterior windows
S 225. 00

Page 6
Janitorial Services Conrract Bid No. 8- 19- 10



JANITORIAL SERVICE BID SUBMITTAL FORM

ITEM# 16
Alvin Animal Adoption Center 1500 N. Gordon St 5, 000 square feet

5 Days Per Week ( Monday- Friday)

janitorial Services Per Month s 660. 00

As specifed in the Daily. Weekly.       
Monthly and Quarterly detail)

Supply Cost Per Month S 90. 00

rota' Cost Per Month s 750. 00

Additional Services:

Shampoo carpeted area ( as requested)      S 0. 07 per squarefoot

Clean exterior windows S 50. 00

tTEM1 # 17

Public Service Facility #2 800 Dyche Lane 3, 500 square feet

2 Days Per Week( Tuesday & Thursday)

janitorial Services PerMonth s 325. 00

As specified in the Daily. Weekly.
Monthly and Quarterly detail)

Supply Cost Per Month S 25.00

Total Cost Per Month S 350. 00

Additional Services:

Shampoo carpeted area ( as requested)      5 0.07 per squarefoot

Clean exterior windows S 15. 00

lanitorial Services Contract Bid No. 2- 1S- 10 Page 7



CERTIFICATEOFINTERESTEDPARTIES
FORM1295

It1

CompleteNos. 1-4and6ifthereareinterestedparties.  
OFFICEUSEONLY

CompleteNos. 1,2,3,5,and6iftherearenointerestedparties.     CERTIFICATIONOFFILING

1Nameofbusinessentityfilingform,andthecity,stateandcountryofthebusinessentity'splaceCertificateNumber:

ofbusiness.       2018-349743

Americanjanitorialservices

LeagueCity, TXUnitedStatesDateFiled:

2Nameofgovernmentalentityorstateagencythatisapartytothecontractforwhichtheformis05/07/2018

beingfiled.

CityofAlvinDateAcknowledged:

3Providetheidentificationnumberusedbythegovernmentalentityorstateagencytotrackoridentifythecontract,andprovidea

descriptionoftheservices,goods,orotherpropertytobeprovidedunderthecontract.

B-18-10

JanitorialServices

Natureofinterest
4

NameofInterestedPartyCity,State,Country(placeofbusiness) checkapplicable)

ControllingIntermediary

Licona, SergioLeagueCity, TXUnitedStatesX

greene, AnniLeagueCity,TXUnitedStatesX

Zucker. 1oddHouston,TXUnitedStatesX

5CheckonlyifthereisNOInterestedParty.El

6UNSWORNDECLARATION

MynameisAP4toAelil1_1ACieeet./6
andmydateofbirthis12.- VS-(,(

Myaddressis
512•   I)

tL+K-,n'NP'ienut_di41    . 
t   '

11513   ,   05Pt .

street)  ity)       
VV       (

state)       (zipcode)       (country)

Ideclareunderpenaltyofperjurythattheforegoingistrueandcorrect.     

O
Executedin

G.`VtSnCounty, StateofL.       
n,

onthe-`

qday
of

f--(01/4.1   ,20i8  .

month)year)

YPrPGe'

StateofTexas

KASSANDRARIVERA

1  ,
NotaryPubliI

u "  

0
ID# 1307637

41fco`c# Myrom  . 1pir•  
1.-.03-20Sig(

44-
11.)•—

zeaentofcontractingbusinessentity

C--3-Gu-Gj    
t

Declarant)

FrmsprovidedbyTexasrhicsCommissionwww.ethics.state.tx.usVersionV1.0.5523







 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   5/2/2019 

Department:  Parks and Recreation  Contact:  Dan Kelinske, Director  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Addendum No. 1 for a one (1) year renewal agreement with LTS Lawncare as the 

City’s manicured mowing services provider of select parkland, other City owned property 
and State right of way, in an amount not to exceed $33,075.00; and authorize the City 
Manager to sign. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☒Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   This is the second of two different manicured mowing agreements.  This scope of service has 
supplemented the lawn maintenance efforts of City staff for over five years and continues to provide a cost-
effective solution. 
 
The agreement was originally approved in the amount of $33,075.00 with LTS Lawncare by City Council on 
May 3, 2018, utilizing the public bid process, Bid #B-18-06.  The following locations would continue under this 
agreement: Hike and Bike Trail (Adoue Street to South Street), Hugh Adams Park, Marina Park, Morgan Park, 
Pearson Park and Talmadge Park, two lots located at 3404 Hummingbird and 1409 Talmadge and the four corner 
areas of the Gordon Street Bridge. 
 
Manicured Mowing Bid # B-18-06 opened on April 17, 2018 and advertised on April 1, 2018 and April 8, 2018.   
The first year of service under this agreement began October 1, 2018 thru September 30, 2019, in the amount of 
$33,075.00.  This addendum is the first of up to three, one-year renewals allowed per the agreement, having an 
effective date October 1, 2019 thru September 30, 2020. 
 
Staff is recommending a one (1) year renewal of the current manicured mowing agreement in the amount of 
$33,075.00with LTS Lawncare as their performance continues to provide a good value to the City of Alvin. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☒ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☒ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account: 111-7001-00-3270 Amount: $33,075              1295 Form Required? Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 4/23/2019 SLH 
 
Supporting documents attached: 
• Addendum No. 1 - 2020 
• Original approved agreement - 2018-19 
• Renewal Request Letter from LTS Lawncare 
• LTS Bid Submittal 
 

Recommendation:   Move to approve Addendum No. 1 for a one (1) year renewal agreement with LTS 
Lawncare as the City’s manicured mowing services provider of select parkland, other 



 

City owned property and State right of way, in an amount not to exceed $33,075.00; 
and authorize the City Manager to sign. 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 
 



ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

TO THE  
CITY OF ALVIN 

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE  
SERVICES AGREEMENT  

 
 
 THIS Addendum No. 1 to the City of Alvin Landscape Maintenance Services Agreement 
(“Addendum No. 1”) is made on this the 2nd day of May 2019, by and between the City of Alvin, Texas, 
a home-rule city of the State of Texas (the “City”), and LTS Lawncare (“LTS”). 
 
 WHEREAS, on May 3, 2018, the City approved and entered into a Landscape Maintenance 
Services Agreement with LTS Lawncare for lawn services of selected City parks (the “Agreement”); 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agreement provided for a term ending on September 30, 2019; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section III of the Agreement states that upon mutual consent of the parties and 
approval of the governing body, this Agreement may be renewed for one (1) year additional terms, for a 
total of four (4) years, and each renewal term shall be attached to the Agreement as an Addendum (See 
LTS Lawncare’s letter attached as Exhibit “A”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and LTS Lawncare desire to extend the term of the Agreement for an 
additional year ending September 30, 2020. 
 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained 
herein, the City and LTS Lawncare hereby agree as follows: 

 
I. 

 
 This renewal term is subject to all the provisions contained within the original Agreement, 
including the provisions in Section 2.02 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms of the 
original Agreement. 
 

II. 
 
 Except as amended herein, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement, as amended, shall 
remain in full force and effect.  To the extent of a conflict or inconsistency between or among the 
provisions of the Agreement and Addendum No. 1, the provisions of Addendum No. 1 shall control.  
Addendum No. 1 may only be amended, modified or supplemented by written agreement and signed by 
all parties. 
 



Addendum No. 1 - 2019 Page 2 of 2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed Addendum No. 1 to the 
Landscape Maintenance Lawn Services Agreement in multiple copies, each of which shall be an 
original, as of the date set forth in the preamble hereof. 
 
 
LTS LAWNCARE     CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
 
 
 
By:       By:      
 Larry Dietrich, President Junru Roland, City Manager 
 
ATTEST/SEAL     ATTEST/SEAL 
 
 
 
By:       By:      
 Name: Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 Title:  
 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       By:      
              Suzanne L. Hanneman 

       City Attorney 



AGREEMENT FOR MANICURED MOWING SERVICES

THE STATE OF TEXAS

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA

THIS AGREEMENT FOR MANICURED MOWING SERVICES ( the " Agreement") is

made and entered into on this    ' 3cO'    day of ma, 2018, by and

between the CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS( the" City"), a muni ipal corporation of the State of Texas,
situated in Brazoria County, Texas, and LTS LAWN CARE ( the" Contractor").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, on or about April 1, 2018, and April 8, 2018, the City advertised for bids for
manicured mowing services for select City parkland and other City owned property and State Right
of Way for Fiscal Year 2018-2019; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor submitted the lowest bid or the bid that will provide the best

value for the City; and

WHEREAS, on or about May 3, 2018, the City Council awarded a Manicured Mowing
Services bid to the Contractor; and

WHEREAS, this Agreement defines the rights and obligations of the parties.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises

contained herein the City and the Contractor hereby agree as follows:

I.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contractor shall perform services necessary to provide a well-maintained and groomed

area in those locations identified in the bid entitled City of Alvin, Texas Manicured Mowing

Services, attached hereto as Exhibit " A" and incorporated herein by reference ( the " Bid"). Such
services shall include, but not be limited to, the services specified in the Bid and shall be performed

according to the schedule set forth in Exhibit" A." Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City reserves
the right to delete locations from the scope of services at any time during this Agreement and

reduce the payment to the Contractor in the amount of the per trip price for such location( s),
multiplied by the number of trips remaining in the fiscal year. During the term of this Agreement,
the City may issue a change order and add or delete to the mowing locations.

2018 Manicured Mowing Services Agreement- 1



Contractor shall use professionally accepted mowers as determined by location.  All curb
lines, edges, etc., shall be edged with every mowing.   Weed- eating shall be done around all
buildings, trees, shrubs, posts, tire stops, etc., with every mowing.   Contractor shall take all

necessary precautions to minimize and avoid damage to trees, glass windows, doors, vehicles, etc.
The contractor shall be held accountable for any damages.

II.

COMPENSATION

2. 01 — Payment Terms.

Subject to the terms of this Agreement and in consideration for the services to be performed

hereunder, the City agrees to pay and the Contractor agrees to accept during the term hereof the
amount of Thirty- Three Thousand Seventy- Five and No/ 100 ($ 33, 075. 00) Dollars for manicured
mowing services required hereunder for the fiscal year 2018- 2019.

In each fiscal year hereafter in which this Agreement is funded by the City Council, the

annual amount of Thirty- Three Thousand Seventy- Five and No/ 100($ 33, 075. 00) Dollars, may be
renewed by mutual agreement between Contractor and the City at the same rate.   If the City
requests more than the stated number of mowing and trimming cycles at the locations listed in
Exhibit " A," the City shall pay the per trip charges shown in Exhibit " A," attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference.

To receive payment the Contractor shall submit monthly invoices to the City on or before

the tenth( 10th) day of each month for the services rendered in the preceding month, specifying the
services rendered, dates of service, and the amount( s) owed pursuant to this Agreement.

Payments shall be made in equal monthly installments or for exact moneys on or about

thirty ( 30) days after receipt and approval of the invoice( s).  The City shall be entitled to any
reimbursement from the Contractor for overpayments due to election of equal monthly

installments based upon time of contract termination.

2. 02— Allocated Funds.

a)      The City' s duties to pay money to the Contractor for any purposes under this
Agreement are limited in their entirety by the provisions of this Section 2.02.

b)      The Contractor recognizes and understands that the City has appropriated and

allocated the sum of Thirty- Three Thousand Seventy- Five and No/ 100
33, 075. 00) Dollars, to be used to discharge its duties to pay money under this

2018 Manicured Mowing Services Agreement- 2



Agreement ( the " Original Allocation") during the fiscal year 2018- 2019. The
parties recognize that the executive and legislative officers of the City, in the

exercise of their sound discretion, may allocate supplemental sums of money for
the purpose of this Agreement for succeeding fiscal years. Because the City' s
officers are not obligated to make any such supplemental allocations, the parties
have agreed to certain procedures and remedies to be followed with respect thereto.

c)      A supplemental allocation will only be deemed to be made when the City sends a
written notice to the Contractor indicating that supplemental sums have been
allocated for the purpose of this Agreement.

d)      The aggregate of the Original Allocation and all supplemental allocations effected

by notice to the Contractor, if any, shall be the Allocated Funds. The City shall
never be obligated to pay any money by, through or under this Agreement in an
aggregate amount which exceeds the Allocated Funds.

e)      Suspension of performance and receipt of payment of sums owed by the City for
services rendered shall be the Contractor' s exclusive remedies in the event that the

City fails or refuses to make supplemental allocations. No such failure or refusal
shall constitute a default or breach of this Agreement by the City, and the Contractor

waives any claim ( other than its claim for payment of sums owed for services
rendered) it may have now or in the future for financial losses or other damages
which may be occasioned by any such failure or refusal.

III.

TERM AND RENEWAL OPTION

This Agreement shall commence on October 1, 2018 and shall end on September 30,
2019.  However, upon mutual consent of the parties and approval of the governing body, this

Agreement may be extended for three( 3) one( 1) year extensions, for a total of four( 4) consecutive
years.  Each extension must be evidenced in writing and approved by the appropriate authorities

of each party. Such renewal shall be for the same compensation provided in Section 2. 02 of this
Agreement, unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

IV.

TERMINATION

4. 01 — With Cause.

The City may terminate this Agreement upon default of the Contractor. A default shall be
deemed to have occurred if the Contractor fails to perform or observe any of the terms or conditions

2018 Manicured Mowing Services Agreement- 3



of this Agreement required to be performed or observed by it. Should such a default occur, the

City shall have the right to terminate the Contractor' s duties under this Agreement as of the ( 10th)
day following the receipt of a written notice to the Contractor from the City describing such default
and intended termination, provided that:

i)      such termination shall be ineffective if within the ten( 10) day period the Contractor

cures the default; and

ii)      such termination may be stayed, at the sole option of the City pending cure of the
default if action to cure begins during the ten ( 10) day period and is successfully
complete writing a reasonable time thereafter.

4. 02— Without Cause.

This Agreement may be terminated by the City without cause upon thirty( 30) days advance
written notice to the Contractor.

V.

INSURANCE

5.01 — Coverage and Amounts.

The Contractor shall provide and maintain insurance in full force and effect at all times

during the term of this Agreement. Such insurance is described as follows:

1) Risk and Limits of Liability.  The insurance at a minimum must include the following

coverages and limits of liability:

COVERAGE LIMITS OF LIABILITY

Worker' s Compensation Statutory

Employer' s Liability 1, 000, 000 per occurrence

Commercial General Liability Bodily Injury and Property Damage

Including Blanket Contractual Limits of$ 1, 000, 000 each Occurrence

Liability and $ 2, 000, 000 Aggregate

Automobile Liability Bodily Injury and Property Damage
Combined Single Limit$ 1, 000, 000

Each Occurrence

2018 Manicured Mowing Services Agreement- 4



2) Form of Policies. The insurance may be in one or more policies of insurance, the form
of which must be approved by the Parks and Recreation Director.

3) Issuers of Policies. The issuer of any policy must have the certificate of authority to
transact insurance business in the State of Texas.  Each issuer must be responsible and

reputable and must have financial capability consistent with the risks covered. Each issuer
shall be subject to approval by the Parks and Recreation Director as to conformance with
these requirements.

4) Insured Parties.  Each policy must name the Contractor and the City ( and the officers,
agents, and employees of the City) as insured parties.

5) Deductibles. A policy may contain deductible amounts. Notwithstanding the deductible
amounts, the Contractor shall assume and bear any claims or losses to the extent of such
deductible amounts and waives any claim it may ever have for the same against the City,
its officers, agents, or employees.

6) Cancellation.  Each policy must expressly state that it may not be canceled unless thirty
30) days' advance notice of cancellation is given in writing to the Parks and Recreation

Director.

7) Subrogation., Each policy must contain an endorsement to the effect that the issuer waives
any claim or right in the nature of subrogation to recover against the City, its officers,
agents is employees.

8) Liability for Premium.   If any of the policies referred to above does not have a flat
premium rate and such premium has not been paid in full, such policy must have a rider or

other appropriate certificate or waiver sufficient to establish that the issuer is entitled to

look only to the Contractor for any further premium payment and has right to recover any
premiums from the City.

5. 02— Delivery of Policies.

The original of all polices referred to above, or copies thereof certified by the agent or

attorney- in- fact issuing them, together with written proof that the premiums have been paid, shall
be deposited by the Contractor with the Parks and Recreation Director prior to the beginning of
the term of this Agreement.

Failure on the part of the Contractor to furnish a new policy or certified copy thereof before

the expiration date of any such policy, or failure to obtain a new policy before the date fixed for

2018 Manicured Mowing Services Agreement- 5



the cancellation of an existing date of any existing policy, so that the insurance referred to shall be
continuously in effect, shall constitute a default on the part of the Contractor entailing the City, at
its option, to terminate its duties and the Contractor rights under this Agreement upon at least three

3) days' notice in writing to the Contractor.

VI.

MISCELLANEOUS

6. 01 — Independent Contractor.

The relationship of the Contractor to the City shall be that of an independent contractor.

Nothing herein contained shall be constructed as constituting the Contractor an employee, agent,
servant, or department of the City.  The City shall not be liable for the acts or omissions of the

Contractor, its officers, members, agents or employees.  All persons employed by the contractor
must be legally approved to work in the United States.

6. 02— Subcontractors.

The Contractor shall not subcontract any part of its performance under this Agreement

without approval of the Parks and Recreation Director, which approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld. If such approval is given, any subcontractor and all employees of the subcontractor shall

be treated by the City, in connection with this Agreement only, as if they were employees of the
Contractor.  All persons employed by the Contractor must be legally approved to work in the
United States.

6.03— Administration of Agreement.

Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shall be administered by the Parks
and Recreation Director or his designee and all correspondence and questions from the Contractor

shall be directed to the Parks and Recreation Director or his designee, as applicable.

6. 04— Parties in Interest.

This Agreement shall not bestow any rights upon any third party, but rather, shall bind and
benefit the City and the Contractor only.

6. 05— Non- waiver.

Failure of either party hereto to insist on the strict performance of any of the agreements
herein or to exercise any rights of remedies accruing hereunder upon default or failure of
performance shall not be considered a waiver of the rights to insist on and to enforce by any

2018 Manicured Mowing Services Agreement- 6



appropriate remedy, strict compliance with any other obligation hereunder or to exercise any right
or remedy occurring as a result of any future default or failure or performance.

6.06— Applicable Laws.

This Agreement is subject to and shall be constructed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, the City Charter and Ordinances of the City of Alvin, the laws of the federal

government of the United States of America and all rules and regulations of any regulatory body
or officer having jurisdiction over the Contractor' s services required by this Agreement.  This
Agreement is performable in Brazoria County, Texas.

6. 07— Licenses and Permits.

The Contractor shall obtain and pay for all licenses, permits and certificates required by
any statue, ordinance, rule, or regulation of any regulatory body having jurisdiction over the
performance of the Contractor' s services required hereunder.

6. 08— Notices.

All notices required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed
received when actually received or if earlier, on the third ( 3rd) day following deposit in the United
States Postal Services post office or receptacle with proper postage affixed ( certified mail, return
receipt requested) addressed to the other party at the address set forth below or at such other

addresses as the receiving party may have therefore prescribed by the notice to the sending party:

Parks and Recreation Director Larry Dietrich
City of Alvin LTS Lawncare
216 W. Sealy Street P. O. Box 314

Alvin, Texas 77511 Alvin, Texas 77512

Phone No: ( 281) 388- 4290 Phone No: ( 281) 433- 2590

6. 09— Captions.

The captions at the beginning of the articles, sections, and subsections of this Agreement
are guides and labels to assist in locating and reading such articles, sections, and subsections and,
therefore, will be given no effect in construing this Agreement and shall not be restricted of or be
used to interpret the subject matter of any article, section subsection or part of this Agreement.

2018 Manicured Mowing Services Agreement- 7



6. 10— Acceptance and Approvals.

Any acceptance or approval by the City, or its agents or employees shall not constitute, nor
be deemed to be a release of the responsibility and liability of the contractor, its employees, agents,
subcontractors or suppliers for the accuracy, competency and completeness of any documents
prepared or services performed pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, not shall

acceptance or approval be deemed to be an assumption of such responsibility or liability by the
City, or its agents and employees for any defect, error or omissions in any documents prepared or
services performed by the Contractor, its employees, agents, subcontractors or suppliers pursuant
to this Agreement.

6. 11 — Inspections and Audits.

At mutually agreeable times, the City shall have the right to examine, review, copy and
audit all books, records and billing documents which are directly related to performance to
payment under this Agreement provided, however that records and documents that reflect
Contractor' s profits shall not be available for inspection.  The Contractor shall maintain such
books, records, and billing documents for one ( 1) year after cessation of its other duties under this
Agreement.

6. 12— Remedies.

The rights and remedies contained in this Agreement shall not be exclusive, but shall be
cumulative of all rights and remedies now or hereafter existing, whether statutory, at law, or in
equity; provided however, that none of the parties shall terminate this Agreement except in
accordance with the provisions hereof.

6. 13— Ambiguities.

In the event of any ambiguity in any of the terms of this Agreement, it shall not be
constructed for or against any party hereto on the basis that such party did or did not author the
same.

6. 14— Survival.

The provisions set forth in Section 6. 11 herein shall survive the termination, cancellation,
or expiration of this Agreement.

2018 Manicured Mowing Services Agreement- 8



6. 15— Entire Agreement.

This Agreement contains all the agreement of the parties relating to the subject matter
hereto and is the full and final expression of the agreement between parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed this Agreement in

multiple copies,  each of which shall be an original,  as of this 31.-a_    day of
JV\/
lr

2018.

CONTRACTOR:    CITY:

LTS LAWNCARE       CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS

BY:  BY:  
C I1

Name:    , 4e       Sereniah Breland
Title: City Manager

ATTEST/ SEAL ATTEST/ SEAL

BY:  (      ra Co BY c Q_ M—     —i)
a—

Name: Co rac e Dixie Roberts
Title: Ot( 1, 4_. 4) rdr 2 cAp       / w 4a,       City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

BY:   ,} d/C-4"—A----9
Suzanne L. Hanneman

City Attorney

2018 Manicured Mowing Services Agreement- 9



Bidder Must Fill In& Sign

tCP3AgentsName I

Ley
Agent' s Title

Mailing Address
pa 60i- 514-

T E X_  0 City State Zip
115( Z

Telephone
2-St-- 433- 2590

Fax No.

BID TITLE: MANICURED MOWING SERVICES

BID NUMBER: B- 18- 06 Email address:  
L

BID SUBMITTAL DATE: April 17, 2018 @ 2: 00 P. M.  j  i, lf i' tCA. (? j(3@gtre I coat
LATE BIDS WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED.

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE  '

BIDDER.AGREES TO COMPLY WITH ALL CONDITIONS BELOW, ATTACHED SPECIFICATIONS, AND NOTES. BIDDER HAS READ AND
AGREES TO COMPLY WITH ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF INVITATION TO BID. SERVICES PERFORMED FOR CITY USE ARE

EXEMPT FROM THE STATE SALES TAX AND FEDERAL EXCISE TAX.   DO NOT INCLUDE TAXES IN YOUR BID.   BIDDER

GUARANTEES SERVICES OFFERED SHALL MEET OR EXCEED MINIMUM SPECIFICATION IDENTIFIED IN THIS INVITATION TO BID.

ITEM ITEM AND DESCRIPTION TOTAL

MANICURED MOWING CONTRACT, per attached

Specifications.

1 SECTION A: Parks and Right of Way Z 275.00

2 SECTION B: Trust Properties 52-40. 00

GRAND. TOTAL 51, 515. w

By the signature hereon affixed, the bidder hereby certifies that neither the bidder nor the finn, corporation, partnership, or institution represented by
the bidder, or anyone acting for such firm, corporation, or institution has violated the antitrust laws of the State, codified in Section 15. 01, et seq., Texas
Business and Commerce Code, or the Federal antitrust laws, nor communicated directly or indirectly the bid made to any competitor or any other
person engaged in such line of business."



ADDENDUM No. 1

FREQUENCY SCHEDULE:

October 1 through March 31: SECTION A, growth will be cut when height reaches four     •

4) inches or every fourteen ( 14). days, whichever comes first, or as directed by the City
Representative. SECTION B, growth will be cut twice per month but no sooner than every
two weeks, or as directed by the City Representative.

IR

April 1 through September 30:  SECTION A, growth will be cut when height reaches

1 four( 4) inches or every fourteen seven.( 11)  ( 7) days, whichever comes first, or as directed

by the City Representative. SECTIONS, growth will be cut twice per month but no sooner
than every two weeks, or as directed by the City Representative.

Less or more frequent mowing may be required for periods of extreme heat, wet conditions,
or unexpected growth cycles or as directed by the City' s Representative.

FACILITIES: The areas to be mowed at'e.Categorized; names, addresses and exhibits( if any), are
listed.

SECTION A

Public Parks and ROW

Item Name Address Site Bid Amount Estimated No.    Estimated

No.      for Single of Annual Subtotal,

Mowing Mowings/ Year this item

1 Pearson Park 2200 Westpark Dr      $  S(0O. 00 39 14040. 00
2 Morgan Park 1300 W. South St.       $  - l     . 00 2539       $  5265. 0o
3 Hugh Adams Park 3502 Mustang Rd.      $      45.00 2539       $   l 5G0.O0
4 Bellied-be

4
5 Talmadge Park Talmadge St@6th St.   $     4500 1155 oa
6 Hike and Bike Trail Adoue St: to south st.   $   1 SS. 00 2539       $  4021S 00
7 Right ofWay Gordon Sireet iiidge  _$      45. 04 2539     - $   1— 1 55. o0

Section A TOTAL: 2.$
1
2-1,5.00

SECTION B

Trust Properties

item Name Address Site Bid Amount for Estimated No.    Estimated

No.    Single Mowing of Annual Subtotal,  

Mowings/ Year this item

4 Marina Park Behind Bowling Alley   $    45,00 24 l LOO-

STrust Property# 1 3404 Hummingbird    $    4,5 G    24 iega, 00
9 Trust Property# 12 1409 W. Talmadge     $     . 45, 00 24 Grp go. 00

Section B TOTAL:$    3 z,40, 00

PnEFITI SZ of 11.



ATTACHMENT A

REFERENCES

Each Bidder is to provide a minimum of three( 3) verifiable references in which the offeror has sold, maintained
or provided this or similar product or service.

Company Name: TORR )   VkAA      - Q

Address:    252 1 jt       -)C 7751

Contact Person:    rE2.2'  q I& c-r 4

Telephone:     (  201 )    35 1 -' 04-(63

Email: VaLt,Sb \ r0+Vr /5, cohlos\

Product Purchased by Reference: L- AAAP.L Cke4

Company Name:  f77ATA.S Su.o...'Ij

Address: 2-oo4 Zi b PV 11- 4( IX  -777 6 I

Contact Person:     jj'   fkiv- 5

Telephone:     (  20(  )       313 l-

Email: poM  4Zlrr\ 9masik . corn

Product Purchased by Reference: L-      614 CP 12- e l l Cg

Company Name:       lT\ 1 c7F 1-N-\ 1 114      ( P s Sl"-fPPs2r M£ 1- S)

Address:     t 1OO J(,       Pa-\/ 11- 1,- TeK FSS 7-7511

Contact Person: KCL 1 N,514E--

Telephone:

1

ETelephone:     (   Z     ) 4l°i

Email:  4I keiluske a Gi SAV t i .corr. .

Product Purchased by Reference:      LfcVJ M CPcZ, 6"

Page 11 of 11



BIDDER' S CERTIFICATION

The 1985 Texas Legislature passed HB620 relating to bids by nonresident contractors ( now
codified at Sections 2252. 001 through 2252. 004, Texas- Government Code).   The pertinent

portion of the Act has been extracted and is as follows:

3)      " Non-resident bidder" refers to a person who is not a resident.

4)      " Resident bidder' s refers to a person whose principal place of business is in

this state,  including a contractor whose ultimate parent company or
majority owner has its principal place ofbusiness in this state.

A governmental entity may not award a governmental contract to a nonresident bidder unless the
nonresident underbids the lowest bid submitted by a responsible resident bidder by an amount
that is not less than the amount by which a resident bidder would be required to underbid the
nonresident bidder to obtain a comparable contract in the state in which the nonresident' s

principal place of business is located.

I certify that LTS Nk CRE is a resident bidder Of Texas

Company Name)

as defined in Section 2252. 001( 4), Texas Government Code.

Signature

Print Name 4L ( 24-edLy)   1"  - i9772-1C-1-1

I certify that is a non- resident bidder as

Company Name)

bidder is defined in Section 2252. 001( 3), Texas Government Code.

and our principal place of business is

City and State)

Signature

Print Name

Page 9 of 11



Texas Liability Insurance Card PRO6REJJIV
3

Progressive County Mutual Ins Co Effective Date: ) an 24, 2018-Jul 24, 2018

1- 800- 876- 5581 Policy Number.    46998193

se habla espanol)      Your Agent:       MIKE BLANCHARD INS

1- 281- 585- 1001
Named Insured( s) 

Excluded driver( s): Ashli Dunn
Albert Dietrich

Karen Dietrich

4835 Powers Ln

Alvin, TX 77511

Year Make Model Vehicle Identification No.
2000 CHEVROLET C2500/ K2500 1GCGK23R7YF482280

2002 DODGE RAM 3500 3B7MC33C82M304161
2013 GMC YUKON/ DENALI 1GKS1EEFODR254541

This policy provides at least the minimum amountsof liability insurance required by the Texas Motor Vehicle Safety Responsibility
Act for the specified vehicles and named insureds and may provide coverage for other persons and other vehicles as provided by
the insurance policy.  Form 64s5 TX( 07101)

Yt `' F
4

a, r  +'

l

cr   >   -  .

f  ,
1• ;   

y   .. 
v    ". i'   "" 

t' r    _, X, z E~ 4. rig k . r
9K'g v,      

r r.     
t 8 1

r"''

y+•, a a yE .- g     ,.   '# 'h ` c•   £    :. ,`   .•
x:: ' rf L,       •.. -:     12Syy^   -'..-' 

t a.''      key   -'
t r''-

4 xt  »` S tom,. ,
z -.

r      ..      #-       
et

tY

a  =:-: x ry,ua•'. r .; l . fir'"`  ' S4 ' cR

a` ` 3.'' Ft„

fie- 
dw a'; G   .*.- `       „  y      -. a r i',''      -

9-'.•    •„
r

n  ,. 4

gax    "'
r2

r

v-

sem'€- i`    ..a.       5 y     , s     ,.'

t 

a    - -  ' t•:'`  3       ^.' a r 4`
a., e• .. —*     ,:.

t  

ses    "     ,
4sm.      `'      -   h.• .. s._ v    .. y  •       c,*.: t.. a



1

ACCPRICV OF LIABILITY' INSURANCE
DATE6iNdemYY

04a'16I2014
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE: HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY• AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY' THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE. OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE. A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER( S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If"the Certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy( ies) must be endorsed if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
theterms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on this certificate does not confer rights.to the
certificates: holder in lieu Of such endorsement( s).

PRODUCER

does

noJeffArnoldE:

Magnolia Independent Insurance
PaaNo,   . 281881- 909.9 J No):

P.O. Box 9858 AEoRgs . Jeffarnoid68@yahoo. eom
The' Woodlands, TX 77387.    INSURER( S) AFFORDING COVERAGE I SAKE

INSURER A: Maxum Indemnity Company I

INSURED itisoRERa; Zurich American Ins. Co.
Larry Dietrich dba LTS Lawncare INSURER. C:•

P.A. Box 3!j4 INSURER“:

Alvin, TX 77512 INSURERS:

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:    REVISION NUMBER:

THIS' I5' TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES: OF'INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY' CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH. RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN. IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH' POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY: PAID; CLAIMS.

INTI TYPEOFINSURANGE
AODL SUBR POLICY EFF I POLICY EXP
INSD WVO POLICY NUMBER MMIDDJYYYV)'( MMIDDIYYYY) I LIMO' S

A I' X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY Y Y BDG- 0:091695- 03 0313112018:0313112049 EACH OCCURRENCE 1. S' 1, 000, 000
CLAIMS- MADE i

DAMAGE TO RENTED'   0I OCCUR PREMISES( Ea ow, rreiue)   $.
10 , 4!)“

MED ET.( MY aria p"eisisri)    $ 5,000

PERSONAL& ADV INJURY V 100, 000

nerL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:      GENERAL AGGREGATE S Z;000>Oa0

PZ? LiG'     
P f WC PRODUCTS COMPJOPAGG S 2;000,000

OTHER: I S.
AUTOMOBILE LABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT    $

Ea acddadq

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY( Perparsan)  ' S

ALL OWNED   ` T-- SCHEDULED
AUTOS'   AUTOS.

AWBOD)
Ll TNIURY( PaPacddent) S'

f1IREDAUTOS
NONNEU PROPERTYDAMAGE       $-
AUTOS Pa acrldent)

UMERELLA LJ•AB
OCCUR

1 EACH.OCCURRENCE S

EXCESS: UAB CLAIMS- MADE AGGREGATE S

DED i. RETENTION S
El, 4NORIERS COMPENSATION V WC. 959138- 04 102/ 03120/ 7 02/ 0312018 xj WATUTE. 1 I FR

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR, PARTNERJEXEC( JTIVE
YIN

E L EACH ACCIDENT       ' y 1, 000,000
OFFICER/ MEMBER EXCLUDED? V I N/ A
Mend story in NH) E . DISEASE- BA EMPLOYEE, s- 1-, 006; 000

I DESCRIP OF OPERATIONS' bSISI E.L DISEASE- POLICY L* 41 js. 1, 000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES( ACORD701, Additional Remarks SchsdI,ic, may beattached.if Mate Space Is tequired)

The City' of Alvin is named as an Additional Insured on the General. L.iability. policy. A waiver of subrogation will be issued on the
general liability-and the workers. cotnpertsation policy:.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

City of Alvin
218 West Sealy

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

Alvin, TX 77511 ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS:.

Attn: Daniel Kelinske1Directorof Parks& Recreation

dikelinske@cityofalvin. com AUTHORIZED REP SENTATIUE

Jeff AlROId

ICI

1   - 20 4 ACORD CO ORATION. All rights. reserved.

ACORD 25( 2044101)     The ACORD name' and logo are registeredmarks of ACORD



CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES FORM 1295

1 0` 1

Complete Nos. 1- 4 and 6 if there are interested parties.
OFFICE USE ONLY

Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties.    CERTIFICATION OF FILING

1 Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity' s place Certificate Number:

of business.   2018- 353555

Larrys Tractor Service

Alvin, TX United States Date Filed:

2 Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is 05/ 15/ 2018

being filed.

City of Alvin
Date Acknowledged:

3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

B- 18- 06

Manicured Services

Nature of interest

4
Name of Interested Party City, State, Country( place of business) check applicable)

Controlling Intermediary

5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party.
X

6 UNSWORN DECLARATION

My name is 4,4,6,,     its and my date of birth is 40-41/-915- 2--

My address is f S ^"' 
r"Ld// rJ 72C ,     771' 7/ ,   . i-9R i

street)       city)       state)       ( zip code)       ( country)

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.    

1

Executed in      ' rct JY' 1 0.-   County, S ate of Te,6_4S     , on the t day of 201a.

G y,,
i„/ 1Jp

month)       ( year)

ESMEPITA MACIAS SANCHEZ

c4_     ci

I Ar
kms. i Notary Public, State of Texas

c, r My Commission Expires
January 18, 2020 Sign ire of authorized agent of contracting business entity

Declarant)



   
 

 

LTS Lawncare 
P.O. BOX 314 

Alvin, Texas 77512 

281.433.2590  

 DATE:  3/25/2019 

 
 

 

DAN KELINSKE 

City of Alvin 

Dept. of Parks and Recreation 

   

 This Letter of Intent is to notify you of my intent to continue the current cont racts (2) between 

LTS Lawncare and the City of Alvin for the 2018-2019 physical year.  The pricing will not change from current  

Contracts. I hope that our service meets and exceeds your expectations. 

1 contract for Department of Parks and Recreation 

1 contract for Manicured Services 

 

Thank You, 

 

Larry Dietrich 





 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   5/2/2019 

Department:  Parks and Recreation  Contact:  Dan Kelinske, Director  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Addendum No. 2 for a one (1) year renewal Agreement with LTS Lawncare as 

the City’s manicured mowing services provider of select City owned and State Right of 
Way property including parkland, lift stations, water wells and various building grounds in 
an amount not to exceed $72,723.33; and authorize the City Manager to sign. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☒Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   This is the first of two different manicured mowing agreements.  This scope of service has 
supplemented the lawn maintenance efforts of City staff for over sixteen years. 
 
The North and South Areas of Highway 35 were originally included because those are two of the major entrances 
into the City limits and the desire to maintain the areas remained in the scope of work. 
 
The agreement was originally approved in the amount of $72,723.33 with LTS Lawncare by City Council on 
May 4, 2017 utilizing the public bid process, Bid #B-17-05.  The following locations would continue under this 
agreement: Lift Stations 23B, 14, 29, 30, 31 and 33, Water Wells 3, 4, 6, 7 and 8, Water Towers 3 of 3, City 
Hall, Lot at W. Willis St. & Hardie St., Library, Senior Citizen Center, Museum, Public Service Facility, Public 
Service Facility #2, Animal Adoption Center, Alvin Police Department, Bob Owen Pool, Girl Scout House Lot, 
American Legion Lot, Fire Stations 1, 2, 3, EMS, Park and Ride, Fire Training Field, Lot at Gordon St. & Willis 
St., Train Depot, Welcome to Alvin sign areas 2 of 2, North and South Bypass areas, Ruben Adame Park, 
Newman Park, Citizens Park, Sealy Park, Prairie Dog Park and Oak Park Cemetery. 
 
Manicured Mowing Bid # B-17-05 opened on April 19, 2017 and advertised on March 27, 2017 and April 3, 
2017.  The agreement began May 8, 2017 thru September 30, 2017 in an amount of $41,224.17.  The first 
complete year of service began October 1, 2017 thru September 30, 2018 in the amount of $72,723.33. This 
addendum is the second of up to three, one-year renewals allowed per the agreement, having an effective date 
October 1, 2019 thru September 30, 2020. 
 
Staff is recommending a one (1) year renewal of the current manicured mowing agreement in the amount of 
$72,723.33 with LTS Lawncare as their performance continues to provide a good value to the City of Alvin. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account: 

Departmental   
Building/Ground 
Maintenance Account Amount: $72,723.33           1295 Form Required? Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 4/23/2019 SLH 
 
Supporting documents attached: 
• Addendum No. 2 - 2020 



 

• Original approval agreement - 2017-18 
• Addendum No. 1 - 2019 
• Renewal Request Letter from LTS Lawncare 
• LTS Bid Submittal - 2017 
 

Recommendation:   Move to approve Addendum No. 2 for a one (1) year renewal agreement with LTS 
Lawncare as the City’s manicured mowing services provider of select City owned 
property including parkland, lift stations, water wells and various building grounds, 
in an amount not to exceed $72,723.33; and authorize the City Manager to sign. 

 
Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 
 



ADDENDUM NO. 2 
 

TO THE  
CITY OF ALVIN 

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE  
SERVICES AGREEMENT  

 
 
 THIS Addendum No. 2 to the City of Alvin Landscape Maintenance Services Agreement 
(“Addendum No. 2”) is made on this the 2nd day of May 2019, by and between the City of Alvin, 
Texas, a home-rule city of the State of Texas (the “City”), and LTS Lawncare (“LTS”). 
 
 WHEREAS, on May 4, 2017, the City approved and entered into a Landscape Maintenance 
Services Agreement with LTS Lawncare for lawn services of selected City facilities, Lift Stations, 
Water Wells and Towers, City parks and Right of Ways (the “Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agreement provided for a term ending on September 30, 2019; and[SH1] 
  
 WHEREAS, the City and LTS Lawncare entered into Addendum No. 1 on or about May 3, 
2018, agreeing to extend the term of the Agreement for an additional year ending September 30, 2019; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section III of the Agreement states that upon mutual consent of the parties and 
approval of the governing body, this Agreement may be renewed for one (1) year additional terms, for a 
total of four (4) years, and each renewal term shall be attached to the Agreement as an Addendum (See 
LTS Lawncare’s letter attached as Exhibit “A”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and LTS Lawncare desire to extend the term of the Agreement for an 
additional year ending September 30, 2020. 
 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained 
herein, the City and LTS Lawncare hereby agree as follows: 

 
I. 

 
 This renewal term is subject to all the provisions contained within the original Agreement, 
including the provisions in Section 2.02 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms of the 
original Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 

II. 



Addendum No. 2 - 2019 Page 2 of 2 

 
 Except as amended herein, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement, as amended, shall 
remain in full force and effect.  To the extent of a conflict or inconsistency between or among the 
provisions of the Agreement and Addendum No. 2, the provisions of Addendum No. 2 shall control.  
Addendum No. 2 may only be amended, modified or supplemented by written agreement and signed by 
all parties. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed Addendum No. 2 to the 
Landscape Maintenance Lawn Services Agreement in multiple copies, each of which shall be an 
original, as of the date set forth in the preamble hereof. 
 
 
LTS LAWNCARE     CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
 
 
 
By:       By:      
 Larry Dietrich, President Junru Roland, City Manager 
 
ATTEST/SEAL     ATTEST/SEAL 
 
 
 
By:       By:      
 Name: Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 Title:  
 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       By:      
              Suzanne L. Hanneman 

       City Attorney 



AGREEMENT FOR MANICURED MOWING SERVICES

THE STATE OF TEXAS

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA

THIS AGREEMENT FOR MANICURED MOWING SERVICES ( the " Agreement") is

made and entered into on this q day of 2017, by and
between the CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS( the" City"), a munic al corporation of the State of Texas,

situated in Brazoria County, Texas, and LTS Lawncare ( the" Contractor").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, on or about March 9, 2017, the manicured mowing services contract covering
the remaining portion of Fiscal Year 2017 was terminated;

WHEREAS, on or about March 27, 2017, and April 3, 2017, the City advertised for bids
for manicured mowing services for the remaining portion of Fiscal Year 2016- 2017 and for Fiscal
Year 2017- 2018;

WHEREAS, the Contractor submitted the lowest bid or the bid that will provide the best

value for the City;

WHEREAS, on or about May 4, 2017, the City Council awarded a Manicured Mowing
Services bid to the Contractor; and

WHEREAS, this Agreement defines the rights and obligations of the parties:

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises

contained herein the City and the Contractor hereby agree as follows:

I.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contractor shall perform services necessary to provide a well-maintained and groomed

area in those locations identified in the bid entitled City of Alvin, Texas Manicured Mowing
Services, attached hereto as Exhibit " A" and incorporated herein by reference ( the " Bid"). Such

services shall include, but not be limited to, the services specified in the Bid and shall be performed

according to the schedule set forth in Exhibit" A." Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City reserves
the right to delete locations from the scope of services at any time during this Agreement and

2017 Manicured Mowing Services Agreement- 1



reduce the payment to the Contractor in the amount of the per trip price for such location( s),
multiplied by the number of trips remaining in the fiscal year. During the term of this Agreement,
the City may issue a change order and add or delete to the mowing locations.

Contractor shall use professionally accepted mowers as determined by location.  All curb
lines, edges, etc., shall be edged with every mowing.   Weed- eating shall be done around all
buildings, trees, shrubs, posts, tire stops, etc., with every mowing.   Contractor shall take all

necessary precautions to minimize and avoid damage to trees, glass windows, doors, vehicles, etc.

The contractor shall be held accountable for any damages.

II.

COMPENSATION

2. 01 —Payment Terms.

Subject to the terms of this Agreement and in consideration for the services to be performed

hereunder, the City agrees to pay and the Contractor agrees to accept during the term hereof the
amount of Forty- One Thousand Two Hundred Twenty- Four and 17/ 100 ($ 41, 224. 17) Dollars for

manicured mowing services required hereunder for the remaining fiscal year 2016-2017.

In each fiscal year hereafter in which this Agreement is funded by the City Council, the
annual amount of Seventy-Two Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty- Three and 33/ 100($ 72, 723. 33)

Dollars, which may be renewed by mutual agreement between Contractor and the City at the same
rate. If the City requests more than stated number of mowing and trimming cycles at the locations
listed in Exhibit" A," the City shall pay the per trip charges shown in Exhibit" A," attached hereto

and incorporated herein by reference.

To receive payment the Contractor shall submit monthly invoices to the City on or before
the tenth(

10th) 

day of each month for the services rendered in the preceding month, specifying the
services rendered, dates of service, and the amount( s) owed pursuant to this Agreement.

Payments shall be made in equal monthly installments or for exact moneys on or about

thirty ( 30) days after receipt and approval of the invoice( s).  The City shall be entitled to any

reimbursement from the Contractor for overpayments due to election of equal monthly
installments based upon time of contract termination.

2017 Manicured Mowing Services Agreement- 2



2. 02— Allocated Funds.

a)      The City' s duties to pay money to the Contractor for any purposes under this
Agreement are limited in their entirety by the provisions of this Section 2. 02.

b)      The Contractor recognizes and understands that the City has appropriated and
allocated the sum of Forty- One Thousand Two Hundred Twenty- Four and 17/ 100

41, 224. 17) Dollars, to be used to discharge its duties to pay money under this
Agreement ( the " Original Allocation") during the remaining months of fiscal year
2016- 2017. The parties recognize that the executive and legislative officers of the

City, in the exercise of their sound discretion, may allocate supplemental sums of
money for the purpose of this Agreement for succeeding fiscal years. Because the
City' s officers are not obligated to make any such supplemental allocations, the
parties have agreed to certain procedures and remedies to be followed with respect

thereto.

c)      A supplemental allocation will only be deemed to be made when the City sends a
written notice to the Contractor indicating that supplemental sums have been
allocated for the purpose of this Agreement.

d)      The aggregate of the Original Allocation and all supplemental allocations effected

by notice to the Contractor, if any, shall be the Allocated Funds. The City shall
never be obligated to pay any money by, through or under this Agreement in an
aggregate amount which exceeds the Allocated Funds.

e)      Suspension of performance and receipt of payment of sums owed by the City for
services rendered shall be the Contractor' s exclusive remedies in the event that the

City fails or refuses to make supplemental allocations. No such failure or refusal

shall constitute a default or breach of this Agreement by the City, and the Contractor
waives any claim ( other than its claim for payment of sums owed for services

rendered) it may have now or in the future for financial losses or other damages

which may be occasioned by any such failure or refusal.

III.

TERM AND RENEWAL OPTION

This Agreement shall include the remaining portion of Fiscal Year 2016- 2017, from May
8, 2017 through September 30, 2017, and thereafter, the terms of this Agreement shall commence

on October 1, 2017 and shall end on September 30, 2018.  However, upon mutual consent of the

parties and approval of the governing body, this agreement may be extended for three ( 3) one ( 1)

2017 Manicured Mowing Services Agreement- 3



year extensions, for a total of four ( 4) consecutive years.  Each extension must be evidenced in

writing and approved by the appropriate authorities of each party. Such renewal shall be for the
same compensation provided in Section 2. 02 of this Agreement, unless terminated earlier in

accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

IV.

TERMINATION

4. 01— With Cause.

The City may terminate this Agreement upon default of the Contractor. A default shall be

deemed to have occurred if the Contractor fails to perform or observe any of the terms or conditions
of this Agreement required to be performed or observed by it. Should such a default occur, the
City shall have the right to terminate the Contractor' s duties under this Agreement as of the ( 10th)

day following the receipt of a written notice to the Contractor from the City describing such default
and intended termination, provided that:

i)       such termination shall be ineffective ifwithin the ten( 10) day period the Contractor
cures the default; and

ii)      such termination may be stayed, at the sole option of the City pending cure of the

default if action to cure begins during the ten ( 10) day period and is successfully
complete writing a reasonable time thereafter.

4. 02— Without Cause.

This Agreement maybe terminated by the City without cause upon thirty( 3 0) days advance
written notice to the Contractor.

V.

INSURANCE

5. 01— Coverage and Amounts.

The Contractor shall provide and maintain insurance in full force and effect at all times

during the term of this Agreement. Such insurance is described as follows:

1) Risk and Limits of Liability.  The insurance at a minimum must include the following

coverages and limits of liability:

2017 Manicured Mowing Services Agreement- 4



COVERAGE LIMITS OF LIABILITY

Worker' s Compensation Statutory

Employer' s Liability 1, 000, 000 per occurrence

Commercial General Liability Bodily Injury and Property Damage

Including Blanket Contractual Limits of$ 1, 000, 000 each Occurrence

Liability and$ 2, 000, 000 Aggregate

Automobile Liability Bodily Injury and Property Damage
Combined Single Limit$ 1, 000, 000

Each Occurrence

2) Form of Policies. The insurance may be in one or more policies of insurance, the form
of which must be approved by the Parks and Recreation Director.

3) Issuers of Policies. The issuer of any policy must have the certificate of authority to
transact insurance business in the State of Texas.  Each issuer must be responsible and

reputable and must have financial capability consistent with the risks covered. Each issuer
shall be subject to approval by the Parks and Recreation Director as to conformance with
these requirements.

4) Insured parties.  Each policy must name the Contractor and the City ( and the officers,

agents, and employees of the City) as insured parties.

5) Deductibles. A policy may contain deductible amounts. Notwithstanding the deductible
amounts, the Contractor shall assume and bear any claims or losses to the extent of such

deductible amounts and waives any claim it may ever have for the same against the City,
its officers, agents, or employees.

6) Cancellation.  Each policy must expressly state that it may not be canceled unless thirty
30) days advance notice of cancellation is given in writing to the Parks and Recreation

Director.

7) Subrogation. Each policy must contain an endorsement to the effect that the issuer waives

any claim or right in the nature of subrogation to recover against the City, its officers,
agents is employees.

8) Liability for Premium.  If any of the policies referred to above does not have a flat
premium rate and such premium has not been paid in full, such policy must have a rider or

2017 Manicured Mowing Services Agreement- 5



other appropriatero riate certificate or waiver sufficient to establish that the issuer is entitled to

look only to the Contractor for any further premium payment and has right to recover any
premiums from the City.

5. 02— Delivery of Policies.

The original of all polices referred to above, or copies thereof certified by the agent or
attorney- in-fact issuing them, together with written proof that the premiums have been paid, shall

be deposited by the Contractor with the Parks and Recreation Director prior to the beginning of
theterm of this Agreement.

Failure on the part of the Contractor to furnish a new policy or certified copy thereof before
the expiration date of any such policy, or failure to obtain a new policy before the date fixed for
the cancellation of an existing date of any existing policy, so that the insurance referred to shall be

continuously in effect, shall constitute a default on the part of the Contractor entailing the City, at
its option, to terminate its duties and the Contractor rights under this Agreement upon at least three

3) days notice in writing to the Contractor.

VI.

MISCELLANEOUS

6. 01— Independent Contractor.

The relationship of the Contractor to the City shall be that of an independent contractor.

Nothing herein contained shall be constructed as constituting the Contractor an employee, agent,
servant, or department of the City.  The City shall not be liable for the acts or omissions of the
Contractor, its officers, members, agents or employees.  All persons employed by the contractor
must be legally approved to work in the United States.

6. 02— Subcontractors.

The Contractor shall not subcontract any part of its performance under this Agreement

without approval of the Parks and Recreation Director, which approval shall not be unreasonably

withheld. If such approval is given, any subcontractor and all employees of the subcontractor shall

be treated by the City, in connection with this Agreement only, as if they were employees of the
Contractor.  All persons employed by the Contractor must be legally approved to work in the
United States.

2017 Manicured Mowing Services Agreement- 6



6.03— Administration of Agreement.

Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shall be administered by the Parks
and Recreation Director or his designee and all correspondence and questions from the Contractor

shall be directed to the Parks and Recreation Director or his designee, as applicable.

6. 04— Parties in Interest.

This Agreement shall not bestow any rights upon any third party, but rather, shall bind and
benefit the City and the Contractor only.

6. 05— Non- waiver.

Failure of either party hereto to insist on the strict performance of any of the agreements
herein or to exercise any rights of remedies accruing hereunder upon default or failure of
performance shall not be considered a waiver of the rights to insist on and to enforce by any
appropriate remedy, strict compliance with any other obligation hereunder or to exercise any right
or remedy occurring as a result of any future default or failure or performance.

6. 06— Applicable Laws.

This Agreement is togr subjectand shall be constructed in accordance with the laws of the

State of Texas, the City Charter and Ordinances of the City of Alvin, the laws of the federal

government of the United States of America and all rules and regulations of any regulatory body
or officer having jurisdiction over the Contractor' s services required by this Agreement.  This

Agreement is performable in Brazoria County, Texas.

6. 07— Licenses and Permits.

The Contractor shall obtain and pay for all licenses, permits and certificates required by
any statue, ordinance, rule, or regulation of any regulatory body having jurisdiction over the
performance of the Contractor' s services required hereunder.

6. 08— Notices.

All notices required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed
received when actually received or if earlier, on the third(

3rd) 

day following deposit in the United
States Postal Services post office or receptacle with proper postage affixed ( certified mail, return

receipt requested) addressed to the other party at the address set forth below or at such other

addresses as the receiving party may have therefore prescribed by the notice to the sending party:

2017 Manicured Mowing Services Agreement- 7



Parks and Recreation Director Larry Dietrich

City of Alvin LTS Lawncare

216 W. Sealy Street P. O. Box 314

Alvin, Texas 77511 Alvin, Texas 77512

Phone No: ( 281) 388- 4290 Phone No: ( 281) 433- 2590

6. 09— Captions.

The captions at the beginning of the articles, sections, and subsections of this Agreement

are guides and labels to assist in locating and reading such articles, sections, and subsections and,
therefore, will be given no effect in construing this Agreement and shall not be restricted of or be

used to interpret the subject matter of any article, section subsection or part of this Agreement.

6. 10— Acceptance and Approvals.

Any acceptance or approval by the City, or its agents or employees shall not constitute nor

be deemed to be a release of the responsibility and liability of the contractor, its employees, agents,

subcontractors or suppliers for the accuracy, competency and completeness of any documents
prepared or services performed pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, not shall

acceptance or approval be deemed to be an assumption of such responsibility or liability by the
City, or its agents and employees for any defect, error or omissions in any documents prepared or
services performed by the Contractor, its employees, agents, subcontractors or suppliers pursuant
to this Agreement.

6. 11— Inspections and Audits.

At mutually agreeable times, the City shall have the right to examine, review, copy and
audit all books, records and billing documents which are directly related to performance to
payment under this Agreement provided, however that records and documents that reflect

Contractor' s profits shall not be available for inspection.  The Contractor shall maintain such

books, records, and billing documents for one( 1) year after cessation of its other duties under this
Agreement.

6. 12— Remedies.

The rights and remedies contained in this Agreement shall not be exclusive, but shall be

cumulative of all rights and remedies now or hereafter existing, whether statutory, at law, or in
equity; provided however, that none of the parties shall terminate this Agreement except in
accordance with the provisions hereof.

2017 Manicured Mowing Services Agreement- 8



6. 13— Ambiguities.

In the event of any ambiguity in any of the terms of this Agreement, it shall not be

constructed for or against any party hereto on the basis that such party did or did not author the
same.

6. 14— Suri ival.

The provisions set forth in Section 7. 11 herein shall survive the termination, cancellation,

or expiration of this Agreement.

6. 15— Entire Agreement.

This Agreement contains all the agreement of the parties relating to the subject matter
hereto and is the full and final expression of the agreement between parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed this Agreement in

multiple copies,  each of which shall be an original,  as of this q day of

MD Vf
2017.

CONTRACTOR:      CITY:

LTS LAWNC 2 CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS

BY:  BY:

Name:    4/i zi L( 4ziCI /) ,    G
XIC11

Sereniah Breland

Title:     City Manager

ATTEST/ SEAL ATTEST/ SE

BY:  i/    BY:  t
OA°

Name:    kkfz,i---2/   i). ) j t 7 rd-!.      Dixie Roberts

Title:     City Clerk

APPROVE AS TO FORM:

BY:

Suzanne L. Hanneman

Deputy City Attorney

2017 Manicured Mowing Services Agreement- 9

1



CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES
FORM 1295

1 of 1

Complete Nos. 1- 4 and 6 if there are interested parties. OFFICE USE ONLY

Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties.   CERTIFICATION OF FILING

1 Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity' s place Certificate Number.

of business.   2017- 205871

LTS Lawncare

Alvin, TX United States Date Filed:

2 Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is 05/ 11/2017

being filed.

City of Alvin Date Acknowledged:

5 ) /G / 
3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a

description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

B- 17- 05

Manicured lawn care

4
Nature of interest

Name of Interested Party City, State, Country( place of business) check applicable)

Controlling I Intermediary

5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party.
X

6 AFFIDAVIT
I swear, or affirm, underenp airy of perjury, that the above disclosure is true and correct.

H " os,  ESMERITA MACIAS SANCHEZ
Nofory Public. State of Texas

F,    My Commission Expires

January 18, 2020 I
ature of authorized agent of contracting business entity

AFFIX NOTARY STAMP/ SEAL ABOVE

I_     t A
Sworn to and subscribed before me, by the said La r rt/      1) 1 q t̀' r f Giv 1     , this the    )  day of Jv\. Q1.(
20 t A   , to certify which, witness my hand and seal of office.

Ylrr     kl2GIAs Sande 2 ri ruiricra l srv. 2ri0
Sign of officer administering oath Printed name of officer administering oath Title of officer administering oath



ADDENDUM NO. 1

TO THE

CITY OF ALVIN

MANICURED MOWING SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS Addendum No.  1 to the City of Alvin Manicured Mowing Services Agreement
Addendum No. 1") is made on this the A day of 2018, by and between

the City of Alvin, Texas, a home- rule city of the State of Texal4 ( the " City") and LTS Lawncare
Contractor").

WHEREAS, on May 4, 2017, the City approved and entered into a Manicured Mowing Services
Agreement with LTS Lawncare for manicured mowing services of City properties ( the " Agreement"):
and

WHEREAS, the Agreement provided for a term ending on September 30, 2018; and

WHEREAS, Section 111 of the Agreement states that upon mutual consent of the parties and

approval of the governing body, this Agreement may be renewed for one ( 1) year additional terms, for a
total of four ( 4) consecutive years, and each renewal term shall be attached to the Agreement as an

Addendum; and

WHEREAS, the City and Contractor desire to extend the term of the Agreement for an
additional year ending September 30, 2018.

WITNESSETH:

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained

herein, the City and Contractor hereby agree as follows:

I.

This renewal term is subject to all the provisions contained within the original Agreement,

including the provisions in Section 2. 02 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms of the
original Agreement.

II.

Except as amended herein, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement, as amended, shall

remain in full force and effect.  To the extent of a conflict or inconsistency between or among the
provisions of the Agreement, and Addendum No. I, the provisions of Addendum No. 1 shall control.

Addendum No. 1 may only be amended, modified or supplemented by written agreement and signed by
all parties.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed Addendum No.  1 to the

Manicured Mowing Services Agreement in multiple copies, each of which shall be an original, as of the
date set forth in the preamble hereof.

CONTRACTOR:    CITY:

LTS LAW ARE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS

BY:    
OF

BY:

Name:    1.40.47, c4      /     Sereniah Breland

Title: City Manager

ATTEST/ SEAL ATTEST

1
BY:    - N   , Q

CP       ? BY: 7 C.,M
Name: G r 4 r e C rl-t'. o Dixie Roberts

Title:  04,          Q ge. CA- 4- 4- 2; 101-c-
y City Secretary

APPROVED S TO FORM:

BY:

Suzanne L. Hanneman

City Attorney

Addendum No. 1- 2018 Page 2 of 2



CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES
FORM 1295

1 ,, :

Complete Nos. 1- 4 and 6 if there are interested parties.
OFFICE USE ONLY

Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties.    CERTIFICATION OF FILING

1 Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity' s place Certificate Number:

of business.   2018- 354998

Larry' s Tractor Service
4835 Powers Lane, TX United States Date Filed:

2 Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is 05/ 11/ 2018

being filed.

City of Alvin Date Acknowledged:

3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

B- 18- 06 Addenum •'

Lawn Care

Nature of interest

4
Name of Interested Party City, State, Country( place of business) check applicable)

Controlling Intermediary

5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party.      
X

6 UNSWORN DECLARATION

My name is J   // tai  /( v and my date of birth is 5 3/,JL

My address is TO 5 Pr!?? Joits NA. 77.     -17 S // ,  fife/

street)       city)       state)       ( zip code)       ( courtr'

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed in    ' b(  ,7_0.r County,  tate of 1-Plo. on the 11 day ofk     ,20 9).
oy i rc

S
mont)       ( year)

ESMERITA MACIAS SANCHEZ
Notary Public, State of Texas

My Commission Expires
January 18, 2020 Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity

Declarant)



   
 

 

LTS Lawncare 
P.O. BOX 314 

Alvin, Texas 77512 

281.433.2590  

 DATE:  3/25/2019 

 
 

 

DAN KELINSKE 

City of Alvin 

Dept. of Parks and Recreation 

   

 This Letter of Intent is to notify you of my intent to continue the current cont racts (2) between 

LTS Lawncare and the City of Alvin for the 2018-2019 physical year.  The pricing will not change from current  

Contracts. I hope that our service meets and exceeds your expectations. 

1 contract for Department of Parks and Recreation 

1 contract for Manicured Services 

 

Thank You, 

 

Larry Dietrich 









 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   5/2/2019 

Department: City Attorney Contact: Suzanne L. Hanneman, City Attorney 
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Resolution 19-R-19, suspending the May 10, 2019 effective date of CenterPoint 

Energy Houston Electric, LLC’s requested rate change to permit the City time to study the 
request and to establish reasonable rates; approving continued cooperation with the Gulf 
Coast Coalition of Cities; hiring Lloyd Gosselink Attorneys and Consulting Services to 
negotiate with the company and direct any necessary litigation and appeals; requiring 
reimbursement of cities’ rate case expenses; finding that the meeting at which this 
resolution is passed is open to the public as required by law; requiring notice of this 
resolution to the company and legal counsel. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☒Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:  CenterPoint Energy Houston Electric, LLC (“CenterPoint” or “Company”) filed an application 
on April 5, 2019 with cities retaining original jurisdiction seeking to increase system-wide transmission and 
distribution rates by $161 million per year. The Company asks the City to approve an increase in $154 million 
in retail transmission and distribution rates (an increase of about 7.4%) and $6.8 million in wholesale 
transmission rates (an increase of about 1.8%). According to CenterPoint, the impact on an average residential 
customer would be an increase of about $2.38 per month.  

The resolution suspends the May 10, 2019 effective date of the Company’s rate increase for the maximum 
period permitted by law to allow the City, working in conjunction with other members of GCCC served by 
CenterPoint to evaluate the filing, determine whether the filing complies with law, and if lawful, to determine 
what further strategy, including settlement, to pursue.  

 
The law provides that a rate request made by an electric utility cannot become effective until at least 35 days 
following the filing of the application to change rates.  The law permits the City to suspend the rate change for 
90 days after the date the rate change would otherwise be effective.  If the City fails to take some action 
regarding the filing before the effective date, CenterPoint’s rate request is deemed approved. 

 
The City of Alvin is a member of a coalition of political subdivisions in the Greater Houston area known as 
the Gulf Coast Coalition of Cities (“GCCC”). The Coalition has been in existence since the early 1990s.  The 
GCCC represents the interests of its members on gas and electric utility matters before the Public Utility 
Commission, the Railroad Commission, the Electric Reliability Council of Texas and the courts.  For the past 
20 years, GCCC has protected the authority of municipalities over monopoly electric and natural gas 
providers and has defended the interests of the residential and small commercial customers within the cities.  
Cities are often the only consumer advocates that work to keep utility rates reasonable.  The work undertaken 
by GCCC has saved ratepayers millions of dollars in unreasonable charges.  The GCCC has previously 
approved the hiring of Thomas Brocato and Chris Brewster of the Lloyd Gosselink law firm and consultants 
to intervene in matters related to the electric utility rate case filings, representing GCCC members’ interests. 

  



 

Current members include the following 39 cities: Alvin, Brazos Country, Brookshire, Bunker Hill Village, 
Clear Lake Shores, Deer Park, Dickinson, Friendswood, Fulshear, Galveston, Hedwig Village, Hilshire 
Village, Hunters Creek, Iowa Colony, Jersey Village, Kemah, Lake Jackson, La Marque, Manvel, Missouri 
City, Mont Belvieu, Morgan’s Point, Nassau Bay, Oyster Creek, Piney Point Village, Pleak, Rosenberg, Santa 
Fe, Seabrook, Sealy, Simonton, South Houston, Spring Valley Village, Sugar Land, Taylor Lake Village, 
Texas City, Tiki Island, Webster, and Weston Lakes. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 4/21/2019 SLH 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Res. 19-R-19 
 
Recommendation:   Move to approve Resolution 19-R-19, suspending the May 10, 2019 effective date 

of CenterPoint Energy Houston Electric, LLC’s requested rate change to permit the 
City time to study the request and to establish reasonable rates; approving continued 
cooperation with the Gulf Coast Coalition of Cities; hiring Lloyd Gosselink 
Attorneys and Consulting Services to negotiate with the company and direct any 
necessary litigation and appeals; requiring reimbursement of cities’ rate case 
expenses; finding that the meeting at which this resolution is passed is open to the 
public as required by law; requiring notice of this resolution to the company and 
legal counsel. 

 
Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 
Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



 1 

RESOLUTION 19-R-19 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, 
TEXAS, SUSPENDING THE MAY 10, 2019 EFFECTIVE DATE OF 
CENTERPOINT ENERGY HOUSTON ELECTRIC, LLC’S REQUESTED 
RATE CHANGE TO PERMIT THE CITY TIME TO STUDY THE 
REQUEST AND TO ESTABLISH REASONABLE RATES; APPROVING 
CONTINUED COOPERATION WITH THE GULF COAST COALITION 
OF CITIES; HIRING LLOYD GOSSELINK ATTORNEYS AND 
CONSULTING SERVICES TO NEGOTIATE WITH THE COMPANY AND 
DIRECT ANY NECESSARY LITIGATION AND APPEALS; REQUIRING 
REIMBURSEMENT OF CITIES’ RATE CASE EXPENSES; FINDING 
THAT THE MEETING AT WHICH THIS RESOLUTION IS PASSED IS 
OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS REQUIRED BY LAW; REQUIRING NOTICE 
OF THIS RESOLUTION TO THE COMPANY AND LEGAL COUNSEL 

 
 

 WHEREAS, on or about April 5, 2019, CenterPoint Energy Houston Electric, LLC 
(“CenterPoint” or “Company”), pursuant to the Public Utilities Regulatory Authority (PURA) 
§§33.001 and 36.001 filed with the City of Alvin, Texas (“City”), a Statement of Intent to change 
electric delivery rates in all municipalities exercising original jurisdiction within its service area, 
effective May 10, 2019; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is a member of the Gulf Coast Coalition of Cities (“GCCC”) and 
will cooperate with the other similarly situated city members and other city participants in 
conducting a review of the Company’s application and to hire and direct legal counsel and 
consultants to prepare a common response and to negotiate with the Company and direct any 
necessary litigation; and 
 

WHEREAS, GCCC’s member cities have previously authorized intervention in electric 
utility rate case proceedings before the Public Utility Commission of Texas; and  

 
WHEREAS, GCCC has previously authorized the hiring of Thomas Brocato and Chris 

Brewster of the law firm of Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend, P.C., to negotiate with the 
Company, make recommendations regarding reasonable rates, and to direct any necessary 
administrative proceedings or court litigation associated with an appeal of a rate ordinance and the 
rate case filed with the City or Public Utility Commission; and 
 
 WHEREAS, PURA §36.108 grants local regulatory authorities the right to suspend the 
effective date of proposed rate changes for ninety (90) days after the date the rate change would 
otherwise be effective; and 
 
 WHEREAS, PURA §33.023 provides that costs incurred by Cities in ratemaking activities 
are to be reimbursed by the regulated utility.  
 
  



 2 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF ALVIN, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 1. That the May 10, 2019, effective date of the rate request submitted by CenterPoint 
on or about April 5, 2019, be suspended for the maximum period allowed by law to permit 
adequate time to review the proposed changes and to establish reasonable rates. 

 
2. That the City is authorized to cooperate with GCCC to coordinate efforts to protect 

the interests of the City and protect the interests of CenterPoint’s end-use customers residing and 
conducting business within municipal limits.  
 
 3. That the City’s reasonable rate case expenses shall be reimbursed by CenterPoint 
on a timely basis.  
 

4. That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed is open to the public as required by law and the public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required. 

 
5. A copy of this Resolution shall be sent to CenterPoint, care of Patrick Peters, 

CenterPoint Energy, Inc., 1005 Congress Avenue, Suite 650, Austin, Texas 78701 
(patrick.peters@centerpointenergy.com), and to Chris Brewster at Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle & 
Townsend, P.C., 816 Congress Avenue, Suite 1900, Austin, Texas 78701 
(cbrewster@lglawfirm.com). 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 2nd day of May 2019. 

 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS    ATTEST 
 
 
By: _____________________________  By: ____________________________ 
 Paul A. Horn, Mayor     Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Suzanne L. Hanneman, City Attorney 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   5/2/2019 

Department: City Attorney Contact: Suzanne L. Hanneman, City Attorney 

 
Agenda Item:   Consider Resolution 19-R-20, suspending the May 27, 2019 effective date of the proposal 

by CenterPoint Energy Resources Corp., d/b/a CenterPoint Energy Entex and CenterPoint 

Energy Texas Gas – Texas Coast Division to Implement interim Gas Reliability 

Infrastructure Program (GRIP) rate adjustments for gas utility investment in 2018 and 

requiring delivery of this resolution to the Company and legal counsel. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☒Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:  The City is a gas utility customer of CenterPoint and a regulatory authority with an interest in 

the rates and charges of CenterPoint. The City is authorized to protect the interests of the City and CenterPoint 

customers residing in the City. 

For cities in the Houston Division, the Company is seeking recovery of $99,461,495 in invested capital.  This 

will increase rates to residential customers by $.58 per month.  For cities in the Texas Coast Division – the 

Division the City of Alvin is in, the Company is seeking recovery of $46,935,293 in invested capital.  This 

will increase rates to residential customers by $1.15 per month.  Increases in both divisions are currently 

scheduled to go into effect on May 27.   

Under the Gas Reliability Infrastructure Program (“GRIP”) statute, cities may not challenge the Company’s 

request.  The only action a City may take is to suspend the effective date of the rate increase by 45 days.  

The annual gas reliability infrastructure program (“GRIP”) is designed for the utility to recover its incremental 

costs related to the capital investments it made during the previous year.  The courts have ruled all that cities 

can do in a GRIP case is administratively determine whether the filing complies with the statutory explanation 

of how a GRIP filing is to be prepared.  A city cannot challenge the reasonableness of any investment, or 

consider whether increasing revenues and declining expenses would offset the rate implication from increased 

capital investment.  Cities also cannot recover any rate case expenses from the utility.  The legislature and the 

courts have reasoned that GRIP rate increases are temporary rates and subject to refund when the Company 

files a traditional rate case after five years of rate increases.    
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 4/21/2019 SLH 

 
 

Supporting documents attached: 

• Res. 19-R-20 

 



 

Recommendation:   Move to approve Resolution 19-R-20, suspending the May 27, 2019 effective date 

of CenterPoint’s proposed GRIP rate adjustments. 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



Res. 19-R-20 1 

RESOLUTION 19-R-20 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, 
TEXAS SUSPENDING THE MAY 27, 2019 EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE 
PROPOSAL BY CENTERPOINT ENERGY RESOURCES CORP., D/B/A 
CENTERPOINT ENERGY ENTEX AND CENTERPOINT ENERGY 
TEXAS GAS – TEXAS COAST DIVISION TO IMPLEMENT INTERIM 
GAS RELIABILITY INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM “GRIP” RATE 
ADJUSTMENTS FOR GAS UTILITY INVESTMENT IN 2018 AND 
REQUIRING DELIVERY OF THIS RESOLUTION TO THE COMPANY 
AND LEGAL COUNSEL. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Alvin, Texas (“City”) is a gas utility customer of CenterPoint 

Energy Resources Corp., d/b/a CenterPoint Energy Entex and CenterPoint Energy Texas Gas–

Texas Coast Division (“CenterPoint” or “the Company”), and a regulatory authority with an 

interest in the rates and charges of CenterPoint; and 

 WHEREAS, CenterPoint made filings with the City and the Railroad Commission of 

Texas (“Railroad Commission”) in March 2019, proposing to implement interim rate 

adjustments (“GRIP Rate Increases”) pursuant to Texas Utilities Code §104.301 on all customers 

served by CenterPoint, effective May 27, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it is incumbent upon the City, as a regulatory authority, to examine the 

GRIP Rate Increases to determine its compliance with the Texas Utilities Code.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 1. The May 27, 2019, effective date of the GRIP Rate Increases proposed by 

CenterPoint is hereby suspended for the maximum period allowed by Texas Utilities Code 

§104.301(a) to permit adequate time to review the proposed increases, analyze all necessary 

information, and take appropriate action related to the proposed increases. 



Res. 19-R-20 2 

 2. A copy of this Resolution shall be sent to CenterPoint, care of Keith L. Wall, at 

CenterPoint–Texas Coast Division, 1111 Louisiana Street, Houston, Texas 77002-5231 and to 

Thomas Brocato, legal counsel to the City, at Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend, P.C., 816 

Congress Avenue, Suite 1900, Austin, Texas 78701. 

 PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 2nd day of May 2019. 

 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS    ATTEST 
 
 
By: _____________________________  By: ____________________________ 
 Paul A. Horn, Mayor     Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Suzanne L. Hanneman, City Attorney 
 



 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   5/2/2019 

Department: Finance Contact: Michael Higgins, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Agenda Item:   Receive and acknowledge receipt of the Financial and Quarterly Investment Reports for 

March 31, 2019. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☒Other 

Summary:   The City Charter requires the Chief Financial Officer to report on the financial condition of the 
City.  In addition, the City’s investment policy requires the Chief Financial Officer to submit an investment 
report to the City Manager, the Mayor, and City Council each quarter. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☒ Required ☐    Date Completed:  
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Financial Reports – March 2019 
 

 
Recommendation:   Move to acknowledge receipt of the March 2019 Financial and Quarterly Investment 

reports. 
 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☒ 
Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



CITY OF ALVIN

MAJOR FUNDS RECAP

For the period ending 3/31/2019

 
 
 



CITY OF ALVIN
BUDGET VS ACTUAL 

For the period ending 3/31/2019
 

  
CURRENT MONTH % YEAR TO DATE % CURRENT BUDGET

LAST YEAR THIS YEAR CHANGE LAST YEAR THIS YEAR CHANGE BUDGET BALANCE

GENERAL FUND
 

REVENUES  

PROPERTY TAXES 200,823        235,602        17% 8,695,646       8,982,680      3% 9,638,408      655,728        

DENBURY (PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES) -                    -                    0% 436,178         467,714         7% 467,734         20                 

SALES TAXES 184,798        192,869        4% 1,220,166       1,300,511      7% 2,552,857      1,252,346     

OTHER TAXES -                    -                    0% 14,751           13,796           -6% 45,000           31,204          

FRANCHISE TAXES 131               -                    0% 712,209          719,703         1% 1,310,000      590,297        

PERMITS AND LICENSES 53,875          68,098          26% 448,100         393,280         -12% 472,600         79,320          

FINES AND FORFEITURES 71,255          64,645          -9% 361,046         326,634         -10% 541,750         215,116        

OTHER INCOME 25,659          19,367          -25% 280,167         327,020         17% 609,004         281,984        

INTRAGOVERNMENTAL 96,994          198,518        105% 581,966         694,813         19% 1,191,107      496,294        

TOTAL REVENUES 633,535        779,099        23% 12,750,229    13,226,150    4% 16,828,460    3,602,310     
 

    
EXPENDITURES  

CITY COUNCIL 2,190            4,041            84% 20,707            24,421           18% 63,141           38,720          

CITY SECRETARY 31,843          19,922          -37% 136,273         124,898         -8% 287,536         162,638        

CITY ATTORNEY 34,936          18,650          -47% 205,436          115,245         -44% 286,633         171,388        

CITY MANAGER 23,778          24,916          5% 138,896         161,714         16% 369,031         207,317        

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 15,131          15,820          5% 101,198         96,796           -4% 217,843         121,046        

FINANCE 40,203          23,655          -41% 220,423         145,235         -34% 471,649         326,414        

COURT 18,647          17,243          -8% 91,467           108,018         18% 217,958         109,940        

HUMAN RESOURCES 14,614          11,984          -18% 80,340            82,526           3% 237,304         154,778        

CITY HALL 16,363          7,779            -52% 42,421           48,835           15% 116,650         67,815          

POLICE 536,512        529,783        -1% 3,153,213      3,331,643      6% 7,113,865      3,782,221     

HUMANE 38,676          35,700          -8% 193,274         212,796         10% 459,123         246,327        

FIRE 67,814          74,491          10% 376,186          380,511         1% 953,456         572,945        

EMERGENCY MMGT 4,326            13,974          223% 25,977           36,442           40% 69,175           32,733          

ENGINEERING 50,018          75,800          52% 282,887         309,452         9% 727,682         418,230        

CODE ENFORCEMENT 5,221            8,779            68% 19,933            51,017           156% 117,141         66,124          

PARKS AND RECREATION 111,422        117,182        5% 691,582         700,932         1% 1,697,348      996,416        

LIBRARY 4,622            3,518            -24% 58,248           55,623           -5% 111,278         55,656          

NON-DEPARTMENTAL 217,126        90,468          -58% 1,484,902      1,487,904      0% 3,654,649      2,166,744     

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,233,441     1,093,704     -11% 7,323,363      7,474,009      2% 17,171,460    9,697,451     

EXCESS ( DEFICIENCY) OF
  REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 5,426,865    5,752,141     

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE    5,630,093    6,454,695     
  

ENDING FUND BALANCE  11,056,958  12,206,836   
 

  



CITY OF ALVIN
BUDGET VS ACTUAL 

For the period ending 3/31/2019

CURRENT MONTH % YEAR TO DATE % CURRENT BUDGET
LAST YEAR THIS YEAR CHANGE LAST YEAR THIS YEAR CHANGE BUDGET BALANCE

HOTEL TAX FUND
 

REVENUES
 

OCCUPANCY TAXES 17,891        14,698         -18% 195,543      155,894       -20% 330,000     174,106    
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 4,193          5,015           20% 15,401        15,236         -1% 36,000       20,764      

TOTAL REVENUES 22,085        19,714         -11% 210,944      171,129       -19% 366,000     194,871    

 
EXPENDITURES

PERSONNEL 4,409          4,915           11% 25,507        29,230         15% 63,950       34,720      
SUPPLIES 2,185          4,445           103% 3,149          5,728           82% 23,000       17,272      
CONTRACT SERVICES 38,004        32,021         -16% 75,034        117,495       57% 264,908     147,413    
DEBT SERVICE -                  -                   0% 5,272          6,000           14% 6,823         823           
INTERFUND TRANSFERS 929             2,018           117% 5,575          9,450           70% 17,837       8,387        

OPERATING EXPENDITURES 45,528        43,399         -5% 114,537      167,903       47% 376,518     208,615    
  

CAPITAL OUTLAY (CIP) 11,000        2,630           -76% 14,225        171,282       1104% 645,905     474,623    

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 56,528        46,029         -19% 128,762      339,185       163% 1,022,423  683,238    

EXCESS ( DEFICIENCY) OF
  REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 82,182        (168,056)      

  
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 859,333      996,508       

  
 

ENDING FUND BALANCE  941,515      828,453         

 

 
 
 



CITY OF ALVIN
BUDGET VS ACTUAL (Cash basis)

For the period ending 3/31/2019

 CURRENT MONTH % YEAR TO DATE % CURRENT BUDGET
LAST YEAR THIS YEAR CHANGE LAST YEAR THIS YEAR CHANGE BUDGET BALANCE

UTILITY FUND  
 

REVENUES   

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 629,031       752,408     20% 3,814,110     4,472,450      17% 9,356,255   4,883,805     
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 33,144         30,701       -7% 274,892        305,180         11% 326,068      20,889          

TOTAL REVENUES 662,175       783,108     18% 4,089,002     4,777,630      17% 9,682,323   4,904,694     

EXPENDITURES

WATER 65,565         65,927       1% 485,377         481,576         -1% 1,102,870   621,294        
SEWER 62,741         62,309       -1% 314,391        360,305         15% 977,785      617,480        
WASTEWATER TREATMENT 56,773         53,971       -5% 314,173         339,411         8% 753,215      413,803        
ADMINISTRATION 24,321         25,193       4% 141,010        155,650         10% 329,270      173,621        
BILLING AND COLLECTIONS 32,286         16,128       -50% 152,950         114,030         -25% 324,588      210,558        
PUBLIC SERVICES FACILTY 5,320           5,399         1% 42,307           30,246           -29% 75,300        45,054          
CODE ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM 10,399         9,434         -9% 60,828          54,968           -10% 129,607      74,639          
CONTRACT SERVICES 41,196         -                 -100% 281,976        251,396         -11% 530,650      279,254        

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES 298,603       238,361     -20% 1,793,013     1,787,583      0% 4,223,286   2,435,703     

DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL & INT. 219,775       399,817     82% 1,318,652     2,398,904      82% 4,797,808   2,398,904     
INTERFUND TRANSFERS 123,110       116,925     -5% 736,033        437,997         -40% 1,031,547   593,550                                    

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 641,488       755,102     57% 3,847,698     4,624,484      41% 10,052,641 5,428,157     

EXCESS ( DEFICIENCY) OF  
  REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES   241,305        153,146         

   
BEGINNING NET OPERATING ASSETS   5,153,866     4,333,962       

   
ENDING NET OPERATING ASSETS    5,395,171     4,487,108       

 
 



CITY OF ALVIN
BUDGET VS ACTUAL 

For the period ending 3/31/2019

CURRENT MONTH % YEAR TO DATE % CURRENT BUDGET 
LAST YEAR THIS YEAR CHANGE LAST YEAR THIS YEAR CHANGE BUDGET BALANCE

SANITATION FUND

REVENUES

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 219,416          221,825       1% 1,319,062        1,329,114        1% 2,636,240         1,307,126        
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 3,257              1,065           -67% 15,455             39,529             156% 12,000              (27,529)            

 
TOTAL REVENUES 222,673          222,890       0% 1,334,518        1,368,644        3% 2,648,240         1,279,596        

EXPENDITURES

CONTRACT SERVICES 387,191          402,021       4% 958,285           1,007,275        5% 2,344,052         1,336,777        
INTERFUND TRANSFERS 13,019            24,775         90% 154,373           163,245           6% 225,889            62,644             
DEBT SERVICE -                      -                   0% 7,757               8,828               14% 10,041              1,213               
 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 400,210          426,795       7% 1,120,416        1,179,349        5% 2,579,982         1,336,777        

EXCESS ( DEFICIENCY) OF  
  REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES  214,102           189,295             

  
BEGINNING NET OPERATING ASSETS   1,818,255        1,842,136         

   
ENDING NET OPERATING ASSETS $ 2,032,357        $ 2,031,431         



CITY OF ALVIN
BUDGET VS ACTUAL 

For the period ending 3/31/2019

CURRENT MONTH % YEAR TO DATE % CURRENT BUDGET
LAST YEAR THIS YEAR CHANGE LAST YEAR THIS YEAR CHANGE BUDGET BALANCE

EMS FUND

REVENUES

Hillcrest EMS/Fire Service -                  -                   0% 3,600          -                   0% 14,400        14,400        
Emergency Service District -                  -                   0% 173,100      179,750       4% 350,000      170,250      
Medicaid 2,626          2,886           10% 18,077        15,292         -15% 35,000        19,708        
Medicare 26,434        22,477         -15% 136,142      172,372       27% 300,000      127,628      
Service Charges - Intermedix 79,130        61,671         -22% 475,868      393,242       -17% 990,000      596,758      
Contributions 16,593        28,189         70% 138,718      166,356       20% 320,000      153,644      
Other Operating Income 1,167          2,815           0% 4,228          11,301         167% 12,500        1,199          

TOTAL REVENUES 125,949      118,038       -6% 949,733      938,313       -1% 2,021,900   1,083,587   

 

    
Personnel 105,776      109,999       4% 653,784      656,366       0% 1,332,401   676,035      
Supplies 18,627        22,909         23% 94,133        97,780         4% 202,128      104,348      
Contract Services 23,114        6,198           -73% 189,781      182,447       -4% 353,756      171,310      
Debt Service -                  -                   0% 6,183          7,387           19% 8,331          944             
Interfund Transfers 28,989        40,333         39% 178,707      177,507       -1% 329,219      151,712      

OPERATING EXPENDITURES 176,506      179,438       2% 1,122,588   1,121,487    0% 2,225,835   1,104,348   

CAPITAL OUTLAY (NON RECURRING) -                  -                   22,395        -                   -                  -                 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 176,506      179,438       2% 1,144,983   1,121,487    -2% 2,225,835   1,104,348   

EXCESS ( DEFICIENCY) OF
  REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (195,249)     (183,174)      

   
BEGINNING WORKING CAPITAL  964,642      744,673       

  
   

ENDING WORKING CAPITAL 769,393      561,499         
 

 
  
 
 



CITY OF ALVIN
BUDGET VS ACTUAL 

For the period ending 3/31/2019

CURRENT MONTH % YEAR TO DATE % CURRENT BUDGET
LAST YEAR THIS YEAR CHANGE LAST YEAR THIS YEAR CHANGE BUDGET BALANCE

SALES TAX FUND

REVENUES

SALES TAX REVENUES 369,485      385,623        4% 2,439,602    2,600,244     7% 5,105,713     2,505,469             
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 8,052          3,980            -51% 35,816         59,049          65% 20,000          (39,049)                 

 
TOTAL REVENUES 377,537      389,603        3% 2,475,418    2,659,293     7% 5,125,713     2,466,420             

EXPENDITURES

PERSONNEL (STREET) 58,023        59,639          3% 380,640       366,180        -4% 987,457        621,277                
PERSONNEL (CODE ENFORCEMENT) 2,146          1,511            -30% 23,605         9,019            -62% 18,203          9,184                    
SUPPLIES 22,219        17,658          -21% 84,091         95,042          13% 252,000        156,958                
CONTRACT SERVICES 119,347      20,672          -83% 354,703       385,082        9% 1,303,502     918,419                
CAPITAL OUTLAY (CIP) 39,529        365,686        0% 710,613       993,335        40% 5,969,587     4,976,252             
INTERFUND TRANSFERS 73,942        50,155          -32% 463,049       375,228        -19% 767,505        392,277                

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 315,206      515,321        63% 2,016,700    2,223,885     10% 9,298,254     7,074,368             

EXCESS ( DEFICIENCY) OF
  REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 435,408         

  
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE  5,758,670       

   
  

ENDING FUND BALANCE 6,194,078      

 



CITY OF ALVIN
BUDGET VS ACTUAL 

For the period ending 3/31/2018

CURRENT MONTH % YEAR TO DATE % CURRENT BUDGET
LAST YEAR THIS YEAR CHANGE LAST YEAR THIS YEAR CHANGE BUDGET BALANCE

Fleet Maintenance Fund

REVENUES

INTRA GOVERNMENTAL TRANSFERS 63,383        58,355        -8% 380,299      350,127       -8% 700,255     350,127      
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 147             2,468          1574% 1,041          13,940         1239% -                 (13,940)      
TOTAL REVENUES 63,531        60,822        4% 381,340      364,067       -5% 700,255     336,188      

EXPENDITURES

PERSONNEL 12,390        8,537          -31% 74,070        51,296         -31% 165,534     114,238      
SUPPLIES 12,896        5,234          -59% 57,896        43,508         -25% 163,777     120,269      
CONTRACT SERVICES 22,947        12,407        -46% 149,951      166,519       11% 350,908     184,389      
HURRICANE HARVEY (To date) -                  -                    
INTERFUND TRANSFERS 1,744          1,830          5% 10,463        10,980         5% 21,961       11,498        

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 49,977        28,008        -44% 292,380      272,303       -7% 702,179     430,394      

EXCESS ( DEFICIENCY) OF
  REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 91,765         

BEGINNING OPERATING ASSETS   524,687       
 

ENDING OPERATING ASSETS 616,452        
    

 
 
 

 
 
 



CITY OF ALVIN

Financial Summary
March, 2019



General Fund Summary
Revenue, Expense & Fund Balance Comparison 

$0

$2

$4

$6

$8

$10

$12

$14

Revenues Expenses Fund Balance

M
ill

io
ns

FY 2018
FY 2019

4%

2%

10%



General Fund 
Major Revenue Comparison
as of March, 2019

$0
$1,000,000
$2,000,000
$3,000,000
$4,000,000
$5,000,000
$6,000,000
$7,000,000
$8,000,000
$9,000,000

FY 2018
FY 2019

3%

-11%1%7%



Sales Tax Revenues
Budget vs. Actual
FY 2018-19

$0
$100,000
$200,000
$300,000
$400,000
$500,000
$600,000
$700,000
$800,000

Budget
Actual



UTILITY FUND
Revenue & Expense Comparison (YTD)

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

2018
Revenues

2019
Revenues

2018
Expenses

2019
Expenses

2018
Working
Capital

2019
Working
Capital

Interfund Transfers
Bond Payment
Operating

0%

17% -17%



% of FY19 W&S Revenue Budget Billed per Month   

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep
FY19 Budget Billed 7.0% 8.5% 8.6% 7.6% 7.8% 8.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
5yr - Average 9.2% 7.4% 9.5% 7.2% 8.1% 7.6% 8.9% 7.7% 8.7% 9.1% 7.7% 8.8%

0.0%
1.0%
2.0%
3.0%
4.0%
5.0%
6.0%
7.0%
8.0%
9.0%

10.0%

%
 o

f  
B

ud
ge

te
d 

R
ev

en
ue

Line - 5 year history of the % of total annual billings per month.
Bar - % of the Fiscal Year 2018-19 budgeted revenues billed per month.

FY19 Billing (YTD) – 47.5%
5-Year Historical Average Billing – 49.02%



Sanitation Fund
Revenue & Expense Comparison (YTD)

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

Revenues Expenses Working
Capital

FY 2018
FY 2019

3%

0%

5%



EMS Fund
Revenue & Expense Comparison (YTD)

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

2018
Revenues

2019
Revenues

2018
Expenses

2019
Expenses

2018
Working
Capital

2019
Working
Capital

Interfund Transfers
Operating

-2%

-1%

-27%



Operating Revenues 
Budget vs. Actual
as of  March, 2019 (50% of FY)

$0
$2,000,000
$4,000,000
$6,000,000
$8,000,000

$10,000,000
$12,000,000
$14,000,000
$16,000,000
$18,000,000

General
Fund

Utility
Fund

Sanitation
Fund

EMS
Fund

Budget
Actual

79%

49%

52% 46%



Operating Expenditures
Budget vs. Actual
as of  March, 2019 (50% of FY) 

$0
$2,000,000
$4,000,000
$6,000,000
$8,000,000

$10,000,000
$12,000,000
$14,000,000
$16,000,000
$18,000,000

General
Fund

Utility
Fund

Sanitation
Fund

EMS Fund

Budget
Actual

44%

46%

46% 50%



Cash and Investments
as of March, 2019

FUNDS BALANCE

GENERAL FUND $ 13,604,233
UTILITY FUND 9,092,097
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS * 2,158,746
TIRZ 848,981
CEMETERY FUND 596,410
SANITATION FUND 2,328,599
EMS FUND 628,271
CAPITAL PROJECTS (GOVERNMENTAL) ** 6,027,352
CAPITAL PROJECTS (UTILITY) *** 6,751,433
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS **** 3,967,843
DEBT SERVICE 333,517

Total $ 46,337,482

• *      Fire Capital, Hotel, Municipal Court, Special Investigation, Senior, Public Education Governmental, and Donation Funds
• **     Sales Tax Fund and Governmental Bond Funds
• ***   Utility Bond Funds
• ****  Central Shop, Vehicle Replacement, Computer Replacement / Maintenance Funds



Quarterly Investment Report 
as of March 31, 2019



Beginning Balance Ending Balance
December 31, 2018 March 31, 2019

Cash and Investment Pools
     Cash in Wells Fargo Bank * $ 22,391,802              $ 25,745,687              
      Texpool
              Book Value 8,677,032                8,728,505                
              Market Value 8,677,032                8,728,505                

      TexStar
             Book Value $ 17,234,646              $ 17,336,909              
             Market Value 17,234,646              17,336,909              

Texas Class
Book Value $ 1,810,648                1,821,482                
Market Value 1,810,648                1,821,482                

Brokered Certificate of Deposits
            Book Value $ 1,245,529                $ 1,247,802                
            Market Value 1,245,529                1,247,802                
            Par Value 998,000                   998,000                   

Total Portfolio
          Book Value $ 51,359,657              $ 53,058,903              
          Market Value 51,359,657              54,880,385              
          Par Value 51,112,128              52,809,101              

Weighted Average Maturity (in Days)** 5                              
Weighted Average Yield-to-Maturity ** 1.37%
Current YTD Interest Earnings
Accrued Interest $ 22,469                     

Comparative Yields
     3 month Treasury Bill 2.45%

6 month Treasury Bill 2.51%
2 Year Treasury Note 2.41%

* Bank Statement Balance (Consolidated & Payroll Accounts)
** Calculation excludes Cash in Bank Balances

City of Alvin
Investment Report

For the Period Ending March, 2019



For the Period Ending March 31, 2019

$8,728,505

$17,336,909

$1,247,802
$1,821,482

City of Alvin Investment Allocation
March 31, 2019

TexPool TexStar CD's Texas Class



City of Alvin
Summary Investment Report
For the Period Ending March 31, 2019

Current Date: 03/31/2019

Fund Description Type CUSIP Coupon
Settlement 

Date
Maturity 

Date
Call 
Date  Par Value 

Purchase 
Price  Purchase Cost  Book Value 

Mkt 
Price  Mkt Value 

Days to 
Maturity YTM

General Fund TexSTAR LGIP 0.0241 103,996.15            100.000 103,996.15        103,996.15        100.000 103,996.15        1 0.0241
General Fund TexPool LGIP 0.0241 4,500,891.96         100.000 4,500,891.96     4,500,891.96     100.000 4,500,891.96     1 0.0241
General Fund Texas Class LGIP 0.0243 1,821,482.48         100.000 1,821,482.48     1,821,482.48     100.000 1,821,482.48     1 0.0243
Utility Fund TexSTAR LGIP 0.0241 10,489.35              100.000 10,489.35          10,489.35          100.000 10,489.35          1 0.0241
Utility Fund TexPool LGIP 0.0241 502,817.58            100.000 502,817.58        502,817.58        100.000 502,817.58        1 0.0241
Utility Fund TexPool LGIP 0.0241 929,203.00            100.000 929,203.00        929,203.00        100.000 929,203.00        1 0.0241
Utility Fund CD CD 740367GK7 2.6500 09/28/2018 03/27/2020 248,000.00            100.000 248,000.00        248,408.39        100.052 248,408.39        362 0.0265
Utility Fund CD CD 14042RFT3 1.6500 05/24/2017 05/24/2019 250,000.00            100.000 250,000.00        249,743.82        100.193 249,743.82        54 0.0165
Impact Fees TexSTAR LGIP 0.0241 104,256.98            100.000 104,256.98        104,256.98        100.000 104,256.98        1 0.0241
Impact Fees TexPool LGIP 0.0241 168,505.59            100.000 168,505.59        168,505.59        100.000 168,505.59        1 0.0241
2006 Bonds Utility TexPool LGIP 0.0241 86,885.45              100.000 86,885.45          86,885.45          100.000 86,885.45          1 0.0241
2008 Bonds Utility TexPool LGIP 0.0241 2,526.84                100.000 2,526.84            2,526.84            100.000 2,526.84            1 0.0241
Sanitation Fund TexPool LGIP 0.0241 70,005.03              100.000 70,005.03          70,005.03          100.000 70,005.03          1 0.0241
Sanitation Fund TexSTAR LGIP 0.0241 240,333.12            100.000 240,333.12        240,333.12        100.000 240,333.12        1 0.0241
Sales Tax Fund TexSTAR LGIP 0.0241 24,895.02              100.000 24,895.02          24,895.02          100.000 24,895.02          1 0.0241
Sales Tax Fund TexPool LGIP 0.0241 1,687,099.71         100.000 1,687,099.71     1,687,099.71     100.000 1,687,099.71     1 0.0241
Sales Tax Fund CD CD 61760AME6 2.3000 06/21/2018 06/21/2019 250,000.00            100.000 250,000.00        249,951.36        100.000 249,951.36        82 0.0230
Sales Tax Fund CD CD 61747ME23 1.9000 12/21/2017 06/21/2019 250,000.00            100.000 250,000.00        249,736.66        100.000 249,736.66        82 0.0190
Sales Tax Fund CD CD 07370XWR1 1.9000 01/30/2019 01/29/2020 250,000.00            100.000 250,000.00        249,961.53        100.000 249,961.53        304 0.0190
2018 Utility Bond Fund TexSTAR LGIP 0.0241 8,737,120.73         100.000 8,737,120.73     8,737,120.73     100.000 8,737,120.73     1 0.0241
Debt Service TexPool LGIP 0.0241 21,030.64              100.000 21,030.64          21,030.64          100.000 21,030.64          1 0.0241
Cemetery Fund TexPool LGIP 0.0241 153,799.23            100.000 153,799.23        153,799.23        100.000 153,799.23        1 0.0241
Cemetery Fund TexSTAR LGIP 0.0241 293,444.04            100.000 293,444.04        293,444.04        100.000 293,444.04        1 0.0241
Cemetery Fund TexPool LGIP 0.0241 50,000.00              100.000 50,000.00          50,000.00          100.000 50,000.00          1 0.0241
Hotel Motel Fund TexPool LGIP 0.0241 76,619.47              100.000 76,619.47          76,619.47          100.000 76,619.47          1 0.0241
Special Investigation TexSTAR LGIP 0.0241 63,401.63              100.000 63,401.63          63,401.63          100.000 63,401.63          1 0.0241
Building Security TexSTAR LGIP 0.0241 68,079.14              100.000 68,079.14          68,079.14          100.000 68,079.14          1 0.0241
Court Technology TexSTAR LGIP 0.0241 0.50                       100.000 0.50                    0.50                    100.000 0.50                    1 0.0241
Donation Fund TexSTAR LGIP 0.0241 28,170.66              100.000 28,170.66          28,170.66          100.000 28,170.66          1 0.0241
2015 W&S CO TexSTAR LGIP 0.0241 7,187,926.88         100.000 7,187,926.88     7,187,926.88     100.000 7,187,926.88     1 0.0241
2006 A&C CO TexSTAR LGIP 0.0200 18,540.07              100.000 18,540.07          18,540.07          100.000 18,540.07          1 0.0200
EMS TexPool LGIP 0.0241 94,551.72              100.000 94,551.72          94,551.72          100.000 94,551.72          1 0.0241
EMS TexSTAR LGIP 0.0241 19,814.25              100.000 19,814.25          19,814.25          100.000 19,814.25          1 0.0241
Shop TexSTAR LGIP 0.0241 118,351.26            100.000 118,351.26        118,351.26        100.000 118,351.26        1 0.0241
Veh.Replacement TexPool LGIP 0.0241 384,569.24            100.000 384,569.24        384,569.24        100.000 384,569.24        1 0.0241
Veh.Replacement TexSTAR LGIP 0.0241 306,355.83            100.000 306,355.83        306,355.83        100.000 306,355.83        1 0.0241
Seniors Fund TexSTAR LGIP 0.0241 11,733.08              100.000 11,733.08          11,733.08          100.000 11,733.08          1 0.0241

29,134,896.63       29,134,896.63   29,134,698.39   29,134,698.39   9 0.0240

GL
TexPoo 9,401,866.06         
TexSTA 1,504,811.85         

Florence Chapa  MMF 765.40                   
 MuniBo 1,344,246.40         

Florence Chapa DWS 1,774,176.18         
Interim Finance Director Cemet  50,000.00              

This report is presented in accordance with the Texas Government Code Title 10 Section 2256.023.  The below 
signed hereby certifies that, to the best of his knowledge on the date this report was created, the City of Alvin is  in 
compliance with the provisions of Government Code 2256 and the stated policies and strategies of the City of Alvin.



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   5/2/2019 

Department:  Economic Development Contact:  Larry Buehler, Economic Development Dir.  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Resolution 19-R-21, approving the Strategic Partnership Agreement between the 

City of Alvin and Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 48 for the Walton 
Development; and authorize the Mayor to sign, subject to legal review. 

 
Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☒Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   Walton Texas, LP, has proposed a new master planned development located on FM 1462 next to 
the current Savannah Plantation development. The majority of the approximate 817 acres is inside Municipal 
Utility Districts (MUDs) Number 48 and Number 49.  On October 18, 2018 the City of Alvin approved 
Resolution Number 18-R-36, adopting the Development Agreement with Walton Texas, LP for the Walton Texas 
Master Planned Development. On October 18, 2018, the City of Alvin approved Ordinance 18-R, granting 
consent to the creation of Municipal Utility District Number 48. This Strategic Partnership Agreement will spell 
out how fire, police, garbage collections, water, wastewater, and drainage will be provided. The Strategic 
Partnership Agreement was considered and approved by Municipal Utility District No. 48 on March 26, 2019. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 19-R-21. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 4/25/2019 SLH 
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Resolution 19-R-21 
• Strategic Partnership Agreement for Municipal Utility District No. 48 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve Resolution 19-R-21, approving the Strategic Partnership Agreement 

between the City of Alvin and Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 48 for 
the Walton Development; and authorize the Mayor to sign, subject to legal review. 

 
Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 
Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 19-R-21 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, ADOPTING 
THE STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT WITH 
BRAZORIA COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 48, 
FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE WALTON TEXAS MASTER 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT; AND SETTING FORTH RELATED 
MATTERS THERETO. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Alvin is a home rule municipal corporation that provides 
a full-range of governmental services to its citizens; and 

WHEREAS, Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 48 (The District) is a 
conservation and reclamation district and a political subdivision of the State of Texas, 
created by order of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (the “Commission”); 
and 

WHEREAS, Walton Texas, L.P. (the “Owner”), a Texas limited partnership, is the 
owner of property located within Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 48, and 
the Property (as defined in the Development Agreement), is developable land within the 
District, and the Owner anticipates development activities occurring thereon; and 

WHEREAS, the Owner and the District plan to construct, finance, own, and 
operate a water supply and distribution system, a wastewater collection system, and any 
necessary roadways and storm water drainage improvements to serve the Property within 
the District; and 

WHEREAS, the City agrees that to induce the Owner to construct the 
improvements within the Districts, it will take all lawful and appropriate administrative 
actions (collectively the “Actions”), to permit and authorize the construction and operation 
of the Property’s infrastructure as set forth in the Strategic Partnership Agreement and 
corresponding exhibits, attached hereto and incorporated by reference; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that the Development can best proceed 
within the District and the developer of land within the Development (the “Owner”) and a 
Strategic Partnership Agreement with the District pursuant to the provisions of Texas Local 
Government Code, Section 43.0751 (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the Strategic Partnership Agreement is found by the City Council of 
the City to be suitable for the stimulation and development of business operations at the 
Property, the increase of taxable property within the Districts, the development and 
improvement to existing property, and a better quality of place/life for the community, the 
creation of construction jobs and the economic benefit for the City in general, and for the 
property values of property immediately adjacent to the Property; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action; 



 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and 
are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings 
of fact. 
 
Section 2.  That the City Council of Alvin, Texas, hereby adopts the Strategic Partnership 
Agreement with Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 48, including the Exhibits, 
attached and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
Section 3.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting 
at which this resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice 
of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 2nd day of May 2019. 
 
 
THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS  ATTEST 
 
 
______________________________  ________________________________ 
Paul A. Horn, Mayor    Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 

























































 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   5/2/2019 

Department:  Economic Development Contact:  Larry Buehler, Economic Development Dir.  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Resolution 19-R-22, approving the Strategic Partnership Agreement between the 

City of Alvin and Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 49 for the Walton 
Development; and authorize the Mayor to sign, subject to legal review. 

 
Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☒Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   Walton Texas, LP, has proposed a new master planned development located on FM 1462 next to 
the current Savannah Plantation development. The majority of the approximate 817 acres is inside Municipal 
Utility Districts (MUDs) Number 48 and Number 49.  On October 18, 2018 the City of Alvin approved 
Resolution Number 18-R-36, adopting the Development Agreement with Walton Texas, LP for the Walton Texas 
Master Planned Development. On October 18, 2018, the City of Alvin approved Ordinance 18-R, granting 
consent to the creation of Municipal Utility District Number 49. This Strategic Partnership Agreement will spell 
out how fire, police, garbage collections, water, wastewater, and drainage will be provided. The Strategic 
Partnership Agreement was considered and approved by Municipal Utility District No. 48 on March 26, 2019.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 19-R-22. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 4/25/2019 SLH 
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Resolution 19-R-22 
• Strategic Partnership Agreement for Municipal Utility District No. 49 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve Resolution 19-R-22, approving the Strategic Partnership Agreement 

between the City of Alvin and Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 49 for 
the Walton Development; and authorize the Mayor to sign, subject to legal review. 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 
Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 19-R-22 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, ADOPTING 
THE STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT WITH 
BRAZORIA COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 49, 
FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE WALTON TEXAS MASTER 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT; AND SETTING FORTH RELATED 
MATTERS THERETO. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Alvin is a home rule municipal corporation that provides 
a full-range of governmental services to its citizens; and 

WHEREAS, Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 49 (The District) is a 
conservation and reclamation district and a political subdivision of the State of Texas, 
created by order of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (the “Commission”); 
and 

WHEREAS, Walton Texas, L.P. (the “Owner”), a Texas limited partnership, is the 
owner of property located within Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 49, and 
the Property (as defined in the Development Agreement), is developable land within the 
District, and the Owner anticipates development activities occurring thereon; and 

WHEREAS, the Owner and the District plan to construct, finance, own, and 
operate a water supply and distribution system, a wastewater collection system, and any 
necessary roadways and storm water drainage improvements to serve the Property within 
the District; and 

WHEREAS, the City agrees that to induce the Owner to construct the 
improvements within the Districts, it will take all lawful and appropriate administrative 
actions (collectively the “Actions”), to permit and authorize the construction and operation 
of the Property’s infrastructure as set forth in the Strategic Partnership Agreement and 
corresponding exhibits, attached hereto and incorporated by reference; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that the Development can best proceed 
within the District and the developer of land within the Development (the “Owner”) and a 
Strategic Partnership Agreement with the District pursuant to the provisions of Texas Local 
Government Code, Section 43.0751 (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the Strategic Partnership Agreement is found by the City Council of 
the City to be suitable for the stimulation and development of business operations at the 
Property, the increase of taxable property within the Districts, the development and 
improvement to existing property, and a better quality of place/life for the community, the 
creation of construction jobs and the economic benefit for the City in general, and for the 
property values of property immediately adjacent to the Property; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action; 



 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and 
are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings 
of fact. 
 
Section 2.  That the City Council of Alvin, Texas, hereby adopts the Strategic Partnership 
Agreement with Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 49, including the Exhibits, 
attached and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
Section 3.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting 
at which this resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice 
of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 2nd day of May 2019. 
 
 
THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS  ATTEST 
 
 
______________________________  ________________________________ 
Paul A. Horn, Mayor    Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 













































 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   5/2/2019 

Department:  Economic Development Contact:  Larry Buehler, Director  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Ordinance 19-J, terminating a contiguous geographic area within City of Alvin as 

Reinvestment Zone Number Three, City of Alvin, Texas, for tax increment financing 
purposes pursuant to Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code; containing findings and 
provisions related to the foregoing subject; providing a severability clause. 
 

Type of Item: ☒Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   The City passed and approved Ordinance 04-VV, on September 16, 2004, designating and creating 
Reinvestment Zone Number Three over the approximately 792-acre area described in Exhibit A, and depicted in 
the map attached hereto as Exhibit B, which includes a portion of Savannah Plantation, to promote the 
redevelopment of the area.  The Zone has not issued tax increment bonds or notes for the Zone, has not 
undertaken any obligations pursuant to agreements entered into to implement the project plan or reinvestment 
zone financing plan, and has not established a Board of Directors, and therefore, the Zone is no longer needed. 
This Ordinance terminates Reinvestment Zone Number Three, City of Alvin, Texas. A public hearing was held 
on November 15, 2018. Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 19-J. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 4/25/2019 SLH 
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 
• Ordinance 19-J with Exhibits A & B 
 

Recommendation:   Move to approve Ordinance 19-J, terminating a contiguous geographic area within 
City of Alvin as Reinvestment Zone Number Three, City of Alvin, Texas, for tax 
increment financing purposes pursuant to Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code; 
containing findings and provisions related to the foregoing subject; providing a 
severability clause. 

 
Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 
 



Ord. 19-J                     Page 1 of 18 
 
 

ORDINANCE 19-J 
 

AN ORDINANCE TERMINATING A CONTIGUOUS GEOGRAPHIC 
AREA WITHIN CITY OF ALVIN AS REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER 
THREE, CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, FOR TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 
PURPOSES PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 311 OF THE TEXAS TAX CODE; 
CONTAINING FINDINGS AND PROVISIONS RELATED TO THE 
FOREGOING SUBJECT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. 

 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code, the City may designate a 
contiguous geographic area within the City as a reinvestment zone if the area satisfies the 
requirements of certain sections of Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City, acting under the provisions of Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax 
Code, including Section 311.005(a), passed and approved Ordinance No. 04-VV, on September 
16, 2004, designating as a reinvestment zone, and creating and designating a reinvestment zone 
over, the approximately 793 acres, excluding property that is publicly owned, as described in 
Exhibit A and depicted in the map attached hereto as Exhibit B, to promote the redevelopment of 
the area. The reinvestment zone is named for identification as Reinvestment Zone Number 
Three, City of Alvin, Texas (the “Zone”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Zone has neither issued tax increment bonds or notes for the Zone, nor 
undertaken any obligations pursuant to agreements entered into to implement the project plan 
and reinvestment zone financing plan and achieve their purpose pursuant to Section 311.010(b) 
of the Texas Tax Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City now desires to terminate the Zone;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1.      Findings 
 

(a) That the facts and recitations contained in the preamble of this Ordinance are 
hereby found and declared to be true and correct and are adopted as part of this Ordinance for all 
purposes. 
 

(b) That the City Council further finds and declares that termination of the Zone will 
not adversely impact the value of all the taxable real property in the Zone and will be of general 
benefit to the City. 
 
Section 2. Termination of the Zone 
 

That the City, acting under the provisions of Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code, and 
Ordinance 04-VV, does hereby terminate as a reinvestment zone the Zone in the area described 



Ord. 19-J                     Page 2 of 18 
 
 

in Exhibit A and depicted in the map attached hereto as Exhibit B, known as Reinvestment Zone 
Number Three, City of Alvin, Texas (the “Zone”). 
 
Section 3. Board of Directors 
 

That the previously created Board of Directors for the Zone is hereby dissolved and all 
designated powers necessary to prepare and implement the project plan and reinvestment zone 
financing plan are hereby terminated. 
 
Section 4. Tax Increment Fund 
 

That the Tax Increment Fund for the Zone is hereby dissolved, and the City 
acknowledges that no funds are required to be disbursed to pay project costs, to satisfy the claims 
of holders of tax increments bonds or notes issued for the Zone, or to pay obligations incurred 
pursuant to agreements entered into to implement the project plan and reinvestment zone 
financing plan and achieve their purpose, pursuant to Section 311.010(b) of the Texas Tax Code. 
 
Section 5. Severability 
 

If any provision, section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance, or the 
application of same to any person to set circumstances, is for any reason held to be 
unconstitutional, void or invalid, the validity of the remaining provisions of this Ordinance or 
their application to other persons or set of circumstances shall not be affected thereby, it being 
the intent of the City Council in adopting this Ordinance that no portion hereof or regulations 
connected herein shall become inoperative or fail by reason of any unconstitutionality, voidness 
or invalidity of any portion hereof, and all provisions of this Ordinance are declared severable for 
that purpose. 
 
Section 6. Open Meetings 
 

It is hereby found, determined and declared that a sufficient written notice of the date, 
hour, place and subject of the meeting of the City Council at which this Ordinance was adopted 
was posted at a place convenient and readily accessible at all times to the general public at the 
City Hall of the City for the Time required by law preceding its meeting, as required by the Open 
Meetings Law, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, and that this meeting has been open 
to the public as required by law at all times during which this Ordinance and the subject matter 
hereof has been discussed, considered and formally acted upon. The City Council further ratifies, 
approves and confirms such written notice and the contents and posting thereof. 
 
Section 7. Notices 
 

The contents of the notice of the public hearing, which hearing was held before the City 
Council on November 15, 2018, and the publication of said notice, are hereby ratified, and 
confirmed. 
 
  



Ord. 19-J                     Page 3 of 18 
 
 

PASSED and APPROVED on the 2nd day of May 2019. 
 

 
THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS   ATTEST 
 
 
By:_____________________________  By:_________________________________ 
 Paul A. Horn, Mayor     Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ord. 19-J  
  
  
  
             Page 4 of 18 
 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

creation ordinance Alvin TIRZ No. 3 Savannah Plantation2 



Ord. 19-J  
  
  
  
             Page 5 of 18 
 
 

 

  

 
 
 
 

ADA.MS SURVEYJNG CO. 
Steve l>. Adams, RPLS 3666 
Phone (281) 331-3523 

 
P.O. Box 114 
Alvin, TX 77512 
Fax (281) 331-2182 

 
 

 
FIELD NOTES 

 

492.84 ACRES OF LAND, BEING A PART OF THE FRANCIS MOORE 

LEAGUE, ABSTRACT 100, BRAZORIA COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING A 

PART OF THAT CERTAIN 2075.08 ACRE TRACT DESCRIBED IN TWO 

DEEDS TO SUNTEX FULLER, INC. RECORDED IN CLERK'S FILE 99- 

003294 AND CLERK'S FILE 99-003295, SAID 492.84 ACRES BEING 

MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

BEGINNING at a 1/2 inch iron rod found at the Northwest 

corner of Savannah Plantation, Section IV, as recorded in 

Volume 21, Pages 153-154, Plat Records in the East line of 

Savannah Plantation Drive and the East line of Savannah 

Plantation, Section III, as recorded in Volume 21, Pages 1-4, 

Plat Records; 

THENCE North 27 deg. 01 min. 02 sec. West, along the East 

line of Savannah Plantation Drive and the East line of 

Section III, at 695.13 feet pass a 1/2 inch iron rod found at 

the Southeast corner of Savannah Plantation, Section II, as 

recorded in Volume 20, Pages 333-334, Plat Records, and 

continue for a total distance of 1173.56 feet to a 1/2 inch 

iron rod found at the Southwest corner of Lot 1, Block 2, 

Section I as recorded in Clerk' s File 99-007507; 
 

THENCE North 62 deg. 58 min. 58 sec. East, along the South 

line of Block 2, a distance of 1515.0 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 

rod found at the Southeast corner of Lot 5, Block 2, Section 

I; 
 

THENCE North 27 deg. 01 min. 02 sec. West, along the East 

line of Lot 5, Block 2, a distance of 474.0 feet to a 1/2 

inch iron rod found at the Southwest corner of Lot 6, Block 

2; 

THENCE North 62 deg. 58 min. 58 sec. East, along the South 

line of Block 2, a distance of 1800.0 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 

rod found at the Southeast corner of Lot 11, Block 2 as 

described in Clerk's File 99-027284; 

THENCE North 27 deg. 01 min. 02 sec. West, along the East 

line of Lot 11, Block 2, at 726.0 feet pass a 1/2 inch iron 

rod found in the South line of F. M. 1462, and continue for a 

total distance of 786.0 feet to a point for corner in the 

North line of the aforementioned 2075.08 acre tract and the 

North line of the Francis Moore League, Abstract 100; 
 

THENCE North 62 deg. 58 min. 58 sec. East, along the North 

line of said 2075.08 acre tract and the North line of the 

Francis Moore League, Abstract 100, said line being in the 

centerline of F. M. 1462 as described in Volume 303, Page 

215, Deed Records, a distance of 2586.76 feet to a point for 

corner at the intersection of the North line of the Moore 

League with the West or right descending bank of the flowing 

channel of Chocolate Bayou, said point being the Northeast 

corner of said 2075.08 acre tract; 



Ord. 19-J   
   
   
            Page 6 of 18 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 2 of Field Notes on 492.84 acres of land 

 

 

THENCE down the Westerly or right descending bank of 

Chocolate Bayou, being the East line of said 2075.08 acre 

tract, the following courses and distances: 

South 29 deg. 37 min. 12 sec. East - 286.76 feet, 
South 37 deg. 37 min. 45 sec. East -  98.60 feet, 
South 58 deg. 12 min. 19 sec. East -  74.12 feet, 
South 65 deg. 18 min. 15 sec. East -  39.36 feet, 
South 72 deg. 50 min. 52 sec. East - 84.71 feet, 
South 62 deg. 07 min. 23 sec. East - 50.26 feet, 
South 63 deg. 42 min. 25 sec. East - 61.61 feet, 
South 83 deg. 58 min. 31 sec. East -  62.15 feet, 
South 89 deg. 46 min. 42 sec. East - 156.44 feet, 
North 78 deg. 40 min. 17 sec. East - 114.42 feet, 
South 83 deg. 48 min. 49 sec. East - 75.14 feet, 
South 44 deg. 41 min. 36 sec. East -  53.64 feet, 
South 35 deg. 59 min. 27 sec. East - 41.91 feet, 
South 54 deg. 37 min. 18 sec. East - 72.75 feet, 
South 60 deg. 13 min. 15 sec. East - 82.99 feet, 
South 84 deg. 59 min. 15 sec. East - 41.40 feet, 
North 65 deg. 07 min. 37 sec. East - 49.36 feet, 
North 49 deg. 04 min. 05 se.c. East - 45.02 feet, 
North 27 deg. 07 min. 24 sec. East - 42.50 feet, 
North 05 deg. 24 min. 53 sec. East - 150.68 feet, 
North 17 deg. 46 min. 16 sec. East - 205.58 feet, 
North 29 deg. 54 min. 00 sec. East - 69.19 feet, 
North 53 deg. 46 min. 00 sec. East - 41.16 feet, 
North 73 deg. 56 min. 12 sec. East - 44.86 feet, 
South 74 deg. 06 min. 34 sec. East - 48.0 feet, 
South 57 deg. 22 min. 21 sec. East - 52.53 feet, 
South 46 deg. 11 min. 23 sec. East - 60.40 feet, 
South 23 deg. 42 min. 34 sec. East - 110.24 feet, 

South 37 deg. 15 min. 55 sec. East - 67.68 feet, 
South 13 deg. 20 min. 22 sec. East - 50.54 feet, 
South 13 deg. 56 min. 17 sec. West - 30.35 feet, 
South 43 deg. 44 min. 18 sec. West - 45.77 feet, 
South 28 deg. 21 min. 38 sec. West - 43.10 feet, 
South 02 deg. 44 min. 06 sec. West - 78.01 feet, 
South 12 deg. 50 min. 40 sec. West - 81.68 feet, 
South 30 deg. 17 min. 22 sec. West - 34.87 feet, 
South 55 deg. 21 min. 34 sec. West - 172.54 feet, 
South 24 deg. 06 min. 16 sec. West - 50.46 feet, 
South 02 deg. 02 min. 05 sec. West - 40.80 feet, 
South 06 deg. 26 min. 16 sec. East - 53.32 feet, 



Ord. 19-J  
  
  
  
             Page 7 of 18 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 

 

3 of Field Notes on 492.84 acres of land 

 

 

South 36 deg. 15 min. 31 sec. East - 78.14 feet, 

South 70 deg. 27 min. 18 sec. East - 63.39 feet, 

South 82 deg. 03 min. 36 sec. East - 171.66 feet, 

North 83 deg. 34 min. 28 sec. East - 126.11 feet, 

South 87 deg. 49 min. 03 sec. East - 54.71 feet, 

South 80 deg. 56 min. 32 sec. East - 64.45 feet, 

North 84 deg. 13 min. 38 sec. East - 108.16 feet, 

South 49 deg. 12 min. 27 sec. East - 91.66 feet, 

South 29 deg. 23 min. 53 sec. East - 36.26 feet, 

South 08 deg. 12 min. 55 sec. East - 50.07 feet, 

South 14 deg. 12 min. 56 sec. West - 32.94 feet, 

South 41 deg. 22 min. 38 sec. West - 30.22 feet, 

South 62 deg. 38 min. 50 sec. West - 27.71 feet, 

South 46 deg. 50 min. 24 sec. West - 40.68 feet, 

South 19 deg. 42 min. 22 sec. West - 78.54 feet, 

South 29 deg. 41 min. 54 sec. West - 57.57 feet, 

South 54 deg. 43 min. 10 sec. West - 59.98 feet, 

North 75 deg. 12 min. 03 sec. West - 28.25 feet, 

North 58 deg. 05 min. 53 sec. West - 80.22 feet, 

North 68 deg. 16 min. 26 sec. West - 80.89 feet, 

North 84 deg. 24 min. 48 sec. West - 113.51 feet, 

South 85 deg. 36 min. 43 sec. West - 57.64 feet, 

South 59 deg. 07 min. 07 sec. West - 35.52 feet, 

South 43 deg. 10 min. 00 sec. West - 173.07 feet, 

South 58 deg. 18 min. 23 sec. West - 59.61 feet, 

South 65 deg. 27 min. 02 sec. West - 95.46 feet, 

South 75 deg. 33 min. 32 sec. West - 38.58 feet, 

South 41 deg. 03 min. 58 sec. West - 116.50 feet, 

South 22 deg. 37 min. 47 sec. West - 141.61 feet, 

South 50 deg. 15 min. 58 sec. West - 35.62 feet, 

South 56 deg. 20 min. 46 sec. West - 45.50 feet, 

South 76 deg. 05 min. 17 sec. West - 34.12 feet, 

North 84 deg. 28 min. 59 sec. West - 68.63 feet, 

North 73 deg. 17 min. 07 sec. West - 48.33 feet, 

North 82 deg. 37 min. 09 sec. West - 97.81 feet, 

North 70 deg. 03 min. 45 sec. West - 68.68 feet, 

North 31 deg. 08 min. 18 sec. West - 94.47 feet, 

North 53 deg. 10 min. 57 sec. West - 46.64 feet, 

South 88 deg. 04 min. 18 sec. West - 51.20 feet, 

South 48 deg. 48 min. 10 sec. West - 34.38 feet, 

South 24 deg. 58 min. 40 sec. West - 28.83 feet, 

South 14 deg. 30 min. 57 sec. West - 62.55 feet, 

South 11 deg. 22 min. 46 sec. West - 47.19 feet, 

South 06 deg. 21 min. 31 sec. West - 71.09 feet, 

South 01 deg. 53 min. 08 sec. East - 54.84 feet, 

South 22 deg. 47 min. 28 sec. East - 73.62 feet, 

1  



Ord. 19-J   
   
   
            Page 8 of 18 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 4 of Field Notes on 492.84 acres of land 

 

 
South 40 deg. 22 min. 45 sec. East - 88.74 feet, 

South 49 deg. 22 min. 08 sec. East - 65.26 feet, 

South 43 deg. 59 min. 08 sec. East - 38.80 feet, 

South 23 

South 13 

South 04 

deg. 

deg. 

deg. 

37 min. 58 sec. East - 41.60 feet, 

27 min. 43 sec. East - 72.46 feet, 

01 min. 07 sec. West - 42.58 feet, 

South 06 deg. 34 min. 31 sec. East - 63.66 feet, 

South 27 deg. 26 min. 58 sec. East - 82.58 feet, 

South 43 deg. 05 min. 31 sec. East - 75.71 feet, 

South 56 deg. 19 min. 30 sec. East - 49.62 feet, 

South 67 deg. 40 min. 45 sec. East - 29.88 feet, 

North 79 deg. 

North 76 deg. 

North 65 deg. 

19 min. 18 sec. East - 74.56 feet, 

45 min. 00 sec. East - 53.43 feet, 

44 min. 53 sec. East - 63.34 feet, 

North 56 

North 49 

deg. 

deg. 

48 min. 14 sec. East - 127.0 feet, 

25 min. 33 sec. East 78.20 feet, 

North 67 deg. 53 min. 48 sec. East - 26.43 feet, 

South 88 

South 74 

deg. 

deg. 

06 min. 40 sec. East - 37.72 feet, 

00 min. 35 sec. East 71.50 feet, 

South 65 deg. 57 min. 46 sec. East - 38.27 feet, 

South 89 deg. 42 min. 38 sec. East - 87.64 feet, 

North 85 deg. 26 min. 05 sec. East - 90.72 feet, 

North 80 deg. 10 min. 34 sec. East - 82.71 feet, 

North 87 deg. 00 min. 20 sec. East 124.97 feet, 

North 89 deg. 26 min. 04 sec. East 57.86 feet, 

North 77 

North 58 

deg. 

deg. 

34 min. 48 sec. East - 49.14 feet, 

17 min. 24 sec. East - 108.39 feet, 

North 75 deg. 

South 88 deg. 

24 min. 28 sec. East - 30.99 feet, 

57 min. 13 sec. East 34.60 feet, 

South 56 

South 22 

deg. 

deg. 

09 min. 02 sec. East - 32.08 feet, 

58 min. 47 sec. East 33.43 feet, 

South 05 deg. 22 min. 46 sec. East 44.50 feet, 

South 05 deg. 06 min. 14 sec. East - 36.88 feet, 

South 01 deg. 13 min. 08 sec. West 27.95 feet, 

South 15 deg. 10 min. 17 sec. West 107.22 feet, 

South 23 deg. 55 min. 06 sec. West - 72.71 feet, 

South 30 deg. 

South 15 deg. 

49 min. 01 sec. West 145.30 feet, 

47 min. 42 sec. West 100.0 feet, 

South 04 deg. 46 min. 36 sec. West - 54.14 feet, 

South 02 deg. 57 min. 21 sec. East - 60.40 feet, 

South 10 deg. 08 min. 35 sec. East - 49.22 feet, 

South 09 deg. 42 min. 06 sec. East - 58.74 feet, 

South 07 deg. 38 min. 22 sec. East - 36.41 feet, 

South 31 

South 51 

deg. 36 min. 

deg. 26 min. 

51 sec. East - 65.72 feet, 

07 sec. East 61.58 feet, 

South 67 deg. 13 min. 50 sec. East 144.59 feet, 



Ord. 19-J   
   
   
            Page 9 of 18 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 5 of Field Notes on 492.84 acres of land 

 

 
South 77 deg. 25 min. 44 sec. East - 191.64 feet, 

North 78 deg. 29 min. 03 sec. East - 44.38 feet, 

South 78 deg. 19 min. 52 sec. East - 41.39 feet, 

South 66 deg. 14 min. 34 sec. East - 44.08 feet, 

South 61 deg. 53 min. 03 sec. East - 46.63 feet, 

South 49 deg. 56 min. 58 sec. East - 51.47 feet, 

South 02 deg. 17 min. 31 sec. East - 112.25 feet, 

South 43 deg. 16 min. 43 sec. West - 98.84 feet, 

South 57 deg. 11 min. 33 sec. West - 98.06 feet, 

South 40 deg. 07 min. 08 sec. West - 236.64 feet, 

North 70 deg. 59 min. 30 sec. West - 57.49 feet, 

North 48 deg. 00 min. 50 sec. West - 118.49 feet, 

North 76 deg. 05 min. 32 sec. West - 63.06 feet, 

South 69 deg. 35 min. 35 sec. West - 58.51 feet, 

South 13 deg. 44 min. 39 sec. West - 184.14 feet, 

South 12 deg. 29 min. 32 sec. East - 146.42 feet, 

South 41 deg. 49 min. 23 sec. East - 87.14 feet, 

South 80 deg. 55 min. 57 sec. East - 86.52 feet, 

North 75 deg. 00 min. 30 sec. East - 121.65 feet, 

South 87 deg. 45 min. 43 sec. East - 74.00 feet, 

South 52 deg. 58 min. 03 sec. East - 81.42 feet, 

South 38 deg. 54 min. 56 sec. East - 96.24 feet, 

South 50 deg. 58 min. 05 sec. East - 142.39 feet, 

South 27 deg. 12 min. 41 sec. East - 168.84 feet, 

South 66 deg. 04 min. 26 sec. East - 86.14 feet, 

North 47 deg. 10 min. 06 sec. East - 94.51 feet, 

North 62 deg. 41 min. 11 sec. East - 70.59 feet, 

North 29 deg. 32 min. 19 sec. East - 146.55 feet, 

North 64 deg. 55 min. 24 sec. East - 71.38 feet, 

South 45 deg. 02 min. 00 sec. East - 69.41 feet, 

South 20 deg. 13 min. 41 sec. East - 153.12 feet, 

South 39 deg. 23 min. 59 sec. East 99.67 feet, 

South 07 deg. 54 min. 52 sec. West 76.85 feet, 

South 38 deg. 29 min. 47 sec. West - 183.92 feet, 

South 33 deg. 25 min. 33 sec. West 89.62 feet, 

South 12 deg. 25 min. 45 sec. East - 37.02 feet, 

South 47 deg. 14 min. 01 sec. East - 94.42 feet, 

South 36 deg. 03 min. 09 sec. East 77.48 feet 

 

to a point for corner in the North line of the Extra 

Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) line of the City of Liverpool, 

being 2650.0 feet Northwest of and perpendicular from the 

South line of said 2075.08 acre tract; 

 

THENCE South 62 deg. 54 min. 39 sec. West, along the North 

line of the Liverpool ETJ, being 2650.0 feet at right angles 

from and parallel to the South line of the Francis Moore 

League and the South line of said 2075.08 acre tract, a 

distance of 3610.89 feet to a point for corner in the East 

line of Lot 51, Block 2, Savannah Plantation, Section 3, 

according to the Plat recorded in Volume 21, Pages 1-4, Plat 

Records; 



Ord. 19-J   
   
   
            Page 10 of 18 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 6 of Field Notes on 492.84 acres of land 

 

 

THENCE along the East line of Section 3, following a curve to 

the right having a Radius of 2230.0 .feet, for an arc distance 

of 792.31 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod at the P.C. of a curve 

to the left; 

 

THENCE along the East line of Section 3, following said curve 

to the left, having a Radius of 200.0 feet, Central Angle of 

72 deg. 08 min., and Chord Bearing and Distance of North 05 

deg. 50 min. 56 sec. West - 235.49 feet, for an arc distance 

of 251.79 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found at the P.T. of 

sai.d curve; 

THENCE North 41 deg. 54 min. 56 sec. West, along the East 

line of Section 3, a distance of 411.19 feet to a 1/2 inch 

iron rod found at the P.C. of a curve to the right; 
 

THENCE continuing along the East line of Section 3, following 

said curve to the right, having a Radius of 900.0 feet, 

Central Angle of 22 deg. 35 min. 45 sec., and Chord Bearing 

and Distance of North 30 deg. 37 min. 04 sec West - 352.64 

feet, for an arc distance of 354.93 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 

rod found at the P.T. of said curve; 

THENCE North 19 deg. 19 min. 11 sec. West, along the East 

line of Section III, a distance of 470.76 feet to a 1/2 inch 

iron rod found for the lower Northeast corner of Section 3 in 

the South line of Savannah Plantation, Section 4, as recorded 

in Volume 21, Pages 153-154, Plat Records; 
 

THENCE North 70 deg. 40 min. 49 sec. East, along the South 

line of Savannah Plantation, Section 4, a distance of 665.48 

feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found at the P.C. of a curve to 

the left; 

THENCE along the South line of Section 4, following said 

curve to the left, having a Radius of 1900.0 feet, Central 

Angle of 29 deg. 32 min. 48 sec., and Chord Bearing and 

Distance of North 55 deg. 54 min. 25 sec. East - 968.98 feet, 

for an arc distance of 979.81 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod 

found at the P.C. of a curve to the right; 

 

THENCE continuing along the South line of Section 4, 

following said curve to the right having a Radius of 1700.0 

feet, Central Angle of 13 deg. 44 min. 02 sec., and Chord 

Bearing and Distance of North 48 deg. 00 min. 02 sec. East - 

406.52 feet, for an arc distance of 407.49 feet to a 1/2 inch 

iron rod found at the Southeast corner of Section IV; 

 

THENCE North 45 deg. 17 min. 17 sec. West, along the East 

line of Section 4, a distance of 398.34 feet to a 1/2 inch 

iron rod found for the Northeast corner of Section IV; 

 

THENCE along a line of Section 4, following a curve to the 

left, having a Radius of 640.0 feet, Central Angle of 21 deg. 

16 min. 34 sec., and Chord Bearing and Distance of South 51 

deg 47 min. 20 sec. West - 236.29 feet, for an arc distance 

of 37.66 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found at the P.T. of 

said curve 



Ord. 19-J  
  
  
  
             Page 11 of 18 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 7 of Field Notes on 492.84 acres of land 

 

 

THENCE South 41 deg. 09 min. 03 sec. West, along a line of 

Section 4, a distance of 202.91 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod 

found for corner; 

THENCE North 48 deg. 50 min. 57 sec. West, along a line of 

Section 4, a distance of 15.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod 

found for the P.C. of a curve to the left; 
 

THENCE along a line of Section 4, following said curve to the 

left having a Radius of 740.0 feet, Central Angle of 27 deg. 

12 min. 01 sec., and Chord Bearing and Distance of North 62 

deg. 26 min. 57 sec. West - 348.01 feet, for an arc distance 

of 351.30 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for corner; 

THENCE South 13 deg. 57 min. 02 sec. West, along the North 

line of Section 4, a distance of 80.0 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 

rod found at the Northeast corner of Lot 32, Block 2, Section 

IV: 

THENCE South 70 deg. 37 min. 31 sec. West, along the North 

line of Section 4, a distance of 1280.48 feet to a 1/2 inch 

iron rod found for angle point; 

 
 

THENCE South 70 deg. 43 min. 06 sec. West, continuing along 

the North line of Section IV, a distance of 3357.14 feet to 

the PLACE OF BEGINNING and containing 492.84 acres of land. 

 

Bearing Base - Parent Deed of 2075.08 acre tract. 

 

This document was prepared under 22 TAC 663.21 
and does not reflect the results of an on the 
ground survey and is not to be used to convey 
or establish interests in real property except 
those rights and interests implied or 
established by the creation or configuration 
of the boundary of the political subdivision 
for which it was prepared. 

 

 

 

 

 

ST 
Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 3666 

 

 
SavP-East 



Ord. 19-J    
    
             Page 12 of 18 
 
 

------------------------------------ ---- - 

 
 
 

ADAMS SURVEYING CO. 
Steve D. Adams, RPLS 3666 
Phone (281) 331-3523 

P.O. Box 114   - _ _ 
Alvin, TX  77512 
Fax (281) 331-2182 

 
 

 
 

FIELD NOTES 
 

 

 

299.60 ACRES OF LAND, BEING A PART OF THE FRANCIS MOORE 
LEAGUE, ABSTRACT 100, BRAZORIA COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING A 

PART OF THAT CERTAIN 2075.08 ACRE TRACT DESCRIBED IN TWO 
DEEDS TO SUNTEX FULLER, INC. RECORDED IN CLERK'S FILE 99- 

003294 AND CLERK'S FILE 99-003295, SAID 299.60 ACRES BEING 
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

BEGINNING at a 1/2 inch iron rod found at the Southwest 
corner of Savannah Plantation, Section II, as recorded in 
Volume 20, Pages 333-334, Plat Records; 

THENCE North 60 deg. 26 min. 18 sec. East, along the South 

line of Savannah Plantation, Section II, a distance of 

2866.75 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found at the Southeast 
corner of Lot 40, Savannah Plantation, Section II, and the 
Northwest corner of Savannah Plantation, Section III, as 
recorded in Volume 21, Pages 1-4, Plat Records, in the West 
line of Savannah Plantation Drive; 

THENCE South 27 deg. 01 min. 02 sec. East, along the West 

line of Savannah Plantation, Section III, and the West line 
of Savannah Plantation Drive, a distance of 1448.27 feet to a 
1/2 inch iron rod found at the P.C. of a curve to the right; 

 

THENCE continuing along the West line of Savannah Plantation 
Drive and the West line of Section III, following said curve 
to the right having a Radius of 625.0 feet, Central Angle of 
33 deg. 02 min. 27 sec., and Chord Bearing and Distance of 
South 10 deg. 29 min. 48 sec. East - 355.45 feet, for an arc 
distance of 360.42 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found at the 

P.T. of said curve; 

THENCE South 06 deg. 01 min. 25 sec. West, along the West 

line of Savannah Plantation Drive and the West line of 

Savannah Plantation, Section III, a distance of 492.47 feet 

to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for corner; 
 

THENCE North 83 deg. 58 min. 35 sec. West, along a line of 

Savannah Plantation, Section III, a distance of 50.0 feet to 

a /2 inch iron rod found for corner; 

THENCE South 06 deg. 01 min. 25 sec. West, along the West 

line of Savannah Plantation, Section III, a distance of 80.0 

feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for corner; 

THENCE South 83 deg. 58 min. 35 sec. East, along a line of 

Savannah Plantation, Section III, a distance of 147.19 feet 

to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for corner at the Northwest 

corner of Lot l, Block l, Section III; 

THENCE South 06 deg. 01 min. 25 sec- West, along the West 

line of Lot l, Block l, Section III, a distance of 390.0 feet 
to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the Southwest corner of 
Section III; 

THENCE South 83 deg. 58 min. 35 sec. East, along the South 

line of Section III, a distance of 2543.74 feet to the 

intersection of the South line of Section III with the Extra 

Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) line of the City of Liverpool; 



Ord. 19-J  
  
  
  
             Page 13 of 18 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
Page 2 of Field Notes on 299.60 acres of land 

 

 

THENCE South 62 deg. 54 min. 39 sec. West, along the North 

line of the Liverpool ETJ, being 2650.0 feet at right angles 

from and parallel to the South line of the Francis Moore 

League and the South line of said 2075.08 acre tract, a 

distance of 498.22 feet to an angle point; 
 

THENCE South 63 deg. 00 min. 17 sec. West, along the North 

line of the Liverpool ETJ, being 2650.0 feet at right angles 

from and parallel to the South line of the Francis Moore 

League and the South line of said 2075.08 acre tract, a 

distance of 3955.81 feet to a point for corner in the East 

line of Lot 3, Block 4, Savannah Plantation, Section One 

(unrecorded) said Lot being described in Clerk' s File 99- 

006357; 

THENCE North 27 deg. 03 min. West, along the East line of 

Block 4, a distance of 828.19 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod 

found for corner at the Northeast corner of Lot 1, Block 4 as 

described in Clerk' s File 99-006361; 

THENCE South 62 deg. 57 min. West, along the North line of 

Lot l, Block 4, a distance of 1200.0 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 

rod £ound for corner in the West line of said 2075.08 acre 

tract and the East line of County Road 511; 

 

THENCE North 27 deg. 03 min. West, along said line, a 

distance 80.0 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found at the 

Southwest corner of Lot 8, Block 3 as described in Clerk's 

File 99-006368; 

THENCE North 62 deg. 57 min. East, along the South line of 

Lot 8, Block 3, a distance of 1200.0 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 

rod found for corner; 

THENCE North 27 deg. 03 min. West, along the East line of 

Block 3, a distance of 280.0 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod 

fouDd for corner; 

THENCE South 62 deg. 57 min. West, along a line of Block 3, a 

distance of 474.0 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for 

corner; 

THENCE North 27 deg. 03 min. West, along the East line of 

Block 3, a distance of 1515.0 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod 

found for corner; 

THENCE South 62 deg. 57 min. West, along a line of Block 3, a 

distance of 126.0 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for 

corner; 

THENCE North 27 deg. 03 min. West, along the East line of Lot 

1, Block 3 as described in Clerk' s File 99-006371, a distance 

of 619.43 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for corner in the 

North line of Lot 1, Block 3; 

THENCE North 84 deg. 05 min. West, along the North line of 
Lot 1, Block 3, a distance of 715.15 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 
rod found for corner in the West line of said 2075.08 acre 
tract and the East line of County Road 511 



Ord. 19-J  
  
  
  
             Page 14 of 18 
 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 3 of Field Notes on 299.60 acres of land 

 

 

THENCE North 27 deg. 03 min. West, along said line, a 
distance of 95.35 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found at the 

Southwest corner of Lot 1,  Block 1 as described in Clerk' s 
File 99-045921; 

 

THENCE South 84 deg. 05 min. East, along the South line of 
Lot 1, Block 1, a distance of 862.55 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 
rod found for angle point; 

 
THENCE North 62 deg. 57 min. East, along the South line of 
Lot 1, Block 1, a distance of 476.33 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 
rod found for corner; 

 

 

THENCE North 27 deg. 03 min. West, along the East line of 
Block 1, a distance of 569.87 feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING 

and containing 299.60 acres of land. 
 

Bearing Base - Parent Deed of 2075.08 acre tract. 

 

This document was prepared under 22 TAC 663.21 

and does not reflect the results of an on the 

ground survey and is not to be used to convey 

or establish interests in real property except 

those rights and interests implied or 

established by the creation or configuration 

of the boundary of the political subdivision 

for which it was prepared. 

 

 

 

 

 
ST 
Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 3666 

 

 

SavP-West 



Ord. 19-J   
   
   
            Page 15 of 18 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Exhibit "A" 
 

(Lot and Block - identification of specific lots to inclusion) 
 
 
 
 
 

Section Four 
 

 
 

Lots  22,23,24,25,26,27,28,29,30,31,32 
 
 

Block Two 
 

Lots  23,24,25,26,27,28,29,30,31,32 
 
 

Block Three 
 

Lots 1, 2 
 
 

ROWs 
 

Subject to a release of ownership from the Savannah Plantation Property Owner's 
Association, and dedication of the ROWs and improvements to the City of Alvin, 
the annexation will include the ditches, the ROW and roadway improvements for 
Savannah Plantation Drive, Stratford Hall Drive and Pebble Hill Lane, both from 
their intersection with Savannah Plantation Drive, easterly to the end of the 
subdivision as currently platted. 

 
Lake Area 

 
The annexation will also take in the lake east of Section 3, Block 2. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ord. 19-J   
   
   
            Page 16 of 18 
 
 

Exhibit A- Lot and Block Inclusion 



Ord. 19-J                     Page 17 of 18 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

creation ordinance Alvin TIRZ No. 3 Savannah Plantation2 



Ord. 19-J   
   
   
            Page 18 of 18 
 
 

- 
- 

> 

"' 

..J 

0 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

a.. 
<( 
:!:: 
>- 
0:: <( c 
z 
:::::> 
0 
m 
N 
0:: 
I- 
z 
0 
I- 
<( 

Iz- 
<( 

a.. 
J: 
<( 
z z 
<( 

<( 

.. 
<( 
a.. 
<( 
:!:: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I'Ii 
11 

••! 
'" 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   5/2/2019 

Department:  Engineering Contact:  Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Ordinance 19-F(a), amending Chapter 5, Buildings, of the Code of Ordinances, 

City of Alvin, Texas, to adopt the 2018 International Building, Swimming Pool and Spa, 
Residential, Plumbing, Mechanical, Fuel Gas, Energy Conservation, Existing Building, 
and Property Maintenance Codes each as published, by the International Code Council, 
Inc.; providing certain amendments and deletions to said standard codes; providing a 
penalty of an amount not to exceed $2,000 for each violation of any provision hereof; and 
providing a repealer clause, a severability clause, a savings clause, and an effective date. 
 

Type of Item: ☒Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   Ordinance 19-F(a) amends Chapter 5 Buildings of the City of Alvin Code of Ordinances by 
adopting the 2018 International Codes with related City Staff recommended amendments and deletions to the 
codes as appropriate. Other than the adoption of the 2015 International Property Maintenance Code in 
February 2017, the most recent building code adoption occurred in August 2010 with the adoption of the 2009 
International Building, Residential, Plumbing, Mechanical, Fuel Gas, and Energy Codes.  
 
Periodic adoption of a more current code addition helps to maintain the usefulness of the code by keeping up 
with current technology and terminology.  Adoption of newer codes also keeps the City compliant with the 
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule (BCEGS) which is a factor used by the Insurance Services 
Office (ISO) to determine the City’s ISO rating. The City’s current BCEGS rating is 4 out of 10 (with 1 being 
superior) for both residential and commercial properties. This adoption will also provide the most current life 
safety applications with respect to construction, occupancy, use and maintenance of buildings and structures in 
the City of Alvin. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 19-F(a). 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 4/25/2019 SLH 
 
Supporting documents attached: 
• Ord. 19-F redline 
• Exhibit A to Ordinance 19-F(a) redline 
 
Recommendation:   Move to approve Ordinance 19-F(a), amending Chapter 5, Buildings, of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, to adopt the 2018 International Building, 
Swimming Pool and Spa, Residential, Plumbing, Mechanical, Fuel Gas, Energy 



 

Conservation, Existing Building, and Property Maintenance Codes each as 
published, by the International Code Council, Inc.; providing certain amendments 
and deletions to said standard codes; providing a penalty of an amount not to exceed 
$2,000 for each violation of any provision hereof; and providing a repealer clause, a 
severability clause, a savings clause, and an effective date. 

 
Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 19-F(a) 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 5, BUILDINGS, OF THE CODE 
OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, TO ADOPT THE 
2018 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE, THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL 
SWIMMING POOL AND SPA CODE, THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL 
RESIDENTIAL CODE, THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE, 
THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE, THE 2018 
INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS CODE, THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL 
ENERGY CONSERVATION CODE, THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL 
EXISTING BUILDING CODE, AND THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL 
PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE, EACH OF AS PUBLISHED BY THE 
INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL, INC.; PROVIDING CERTAIN 
AMENDMENTS AND DELETIONS TO SAID STANDARD CODES; 
PROVIDING A PENALTY OF AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,000 
FOR EACH VIOLATION OF ANY PROVISION HEREOF; AND 
PROVIDING A REPEALER CLAUSE, A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, A 
SAVINGS CLAUSE AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Alvin, Texas (the “City”), is a Home Rule City possessing the full 

power of local self-government pursuant to Article 11, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution, 

Section 51.072 of the Texas Local Government Code, and the City of Alvin’s Home Rule Charter; 

and 

WHEREAS, on October 20, 2005, by Ordinance 05-WW, the City Council of the City of 

Alvin, Texas, adopted the 2003 International Building Code, the 2003 International Residential 

Code, the 2003 International Plumbing Code, the 2003 International Mechanical Code, the 2003 

International Fuel Gas Code, and the 2003 International Energy Conservation Code, as published 

by the International Code Council, Inc., along with various local amendments thereto, as the 

various building codes applicable to building and development within the City of Alvin, and such 

adoption of the various building codes and local amendments were codified in Chapter 5, 

Buildings, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Alvin; and 

WHEREAS, on August 19, 2010, by Ordinance 10-S, the City Council of the City of 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 2 of 26 

Alvin, Texas, adopted the 2009 International Building Code, the 2009 International Residential 

Code, the 2009 International Plumbing Code, the 2009 International Mechanical Code, the 2009 

International Fuel Gas Code, and the 2009 International Energy Conservation Code, as published 

by the International Code Council, Inc., along with various local amendments thereto, as the 

various building codes applicable to building and development within the City of Alvin, and such 

adoption of the various building codes and local amendments were codified in Chapter 5, 

Buildings, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Alvin; and 

WHEREAS, on February 16, 2017, by Ordinance 17-E, the City Council of the City of 

Alvin, adopted the 2015 International Property Maintenance Code, along with various local 

amendments thereto, as the various property maintenance codes applicable to building and 

development within the City of Alvin, and such adoption of the various property maintenance 

codes and local amendments were codified in Chapter 5, Buildings, of the Code of Ordinances of 

the City of Alvin; and  

WHEREAS, the adoption of the 2018 editions of the International Codes, including the 

local amendments, will provide the most current life safety applications with respect to 

construction, occupancy, use and maintenance of buildings and structures in the City of Alvin; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it is in the best interest of the City and its citizens to 

update the building and development codes and local amendments thereto that are applicable 

within the City of Alvin, and that Chapter 5, Buildings, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Alvin should be revised to adopt the 2018 International Building Code, the 2018 International 

Swimming Pool and Spa Code, the 2018 International Residential Code, the 2018 International 

Plumbing Code, the 2018 International Mechanical Code, the 2018 International Fuel Gas Code, 

the 2018 International Energy Code, the 2018 International Existing Building Code, and the 2018 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 3 of 26 

International Property Maintenance Code, as published by the International Code Council, Inc., as 

the building codes applicable to building and development within the City of Alvin. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
Section 1. The above and foregoing premises are true and correct and are incorporated herein 
and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Section 2. That Chapter 5, Buildings, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Alvin, Texas, is 
hereby amended and revised to read as follows: 
 
. . . 
 
“Sec. 5-4. 2018 International Building Code – Adopted, with amendments. 
 

(a) Except as provided in this section, the International Building Code (IBC), 2018 Edition, 
including only Appendices C, G, I and J, as published by the International Code Council, Inc., as 
such may be hereafter amended or recodified is hereby adopted in its entirety as if set out in length 
herein and is incorporated herein by reference. One copy of the International Building Code shall 
be on file in the city secretary’s office and one copy of such code shall be on file in the office of the 
building official. 

 
(1) Section 101.1 of the IBC is hereby amended, replacing “[NAME OF 

JURISDICTION]” with the “City of Alvin, Texas”. 
 
(2) The IBC is amended by deleting Section 103. 
 
(3) Section 105.2 of the IBC is hereby amended by deleting paragraph 1 under “Building” 

which reads “One story detached accessory structures, used as tool and storage shed, 
playhouses and similar uses, provided the floor area does not exceed 120 square feet 
(11.15 m2)” and paragraph 6 under “Building” which reads “Sidewalks and driveways 
not more than 30 inches (762 mm) above grade and not over any basement or story 
below and which are not part of an accessible route.” 

 
(4) Section 113, Board of Appeals, of the IBC is hereby amended to read: 

113.1 General. In order to hear and decide appeals of orders, decisions or 
determinations made by the building official relative to the application and 
interpretation of this code, there shall be and is hereby created a Building Board of 
Adjustment and Appeals. 

 
113.2 Limitations on authority. An application for appeal shall be based on a claim 
that the true intent of this code or referenced code or the rules legally adopted 
thereunder have been incorrectly interpreted, the provisions of this code do not fully 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 4 of 26 

apply or an equally good or better form of construction is proposed. The Board shall 
have only the authority granted by Section 5.5-1 of this code. 

 
(5) Section 114.4 of the IBC is hereby deleted and replaced with the following: 

114.4 Violation penalties. “Any person, firm, corporation or agent who shall violate a 
provision of this Code, or fail to comply therewith, or with any of the requirements 
thereof, or who shall erect, construct, alter, install, demolish or move any structure, 
electrical, gas, mechanical or plumbing system, or has erected, constructed, altered, 
repaired, moved or demolished a building, structure, electrical, gas, mechanical or 
plumbing system, in violation of a detailed statement or drawing submitted and 
permitted thereunder, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor.  

 
Each such person shall be considered guilty of a separate offense for each and every 
day or portion thereof during which any violation of any of the provisions of this Code 
is committed or continued, and upon conviction of any such violation such person shall 
be punished within the limits and as provided by law. 

 
(6) Section 1507.8 of the IBC, Wood Shingles and 1507.9 of the IBC, Wood Shakes are 

hereby amended to include: 
 

The use of wood shingles and shakes in the construction or reroofing of any structure is 
prohibited unless specifically authorized by this subsection. 

 
Existing structures which have wood shingles or shakes shall be repaired with fire 
retardant pressure treated wood shingles or shakes of a comparable grade; however, 
owners shall have the option of installing class A, class B, or class C roofing material, 
as otherwise authorized herein, provided the existing roof structural system is adequate 
for modification. A ‘repair’ is defined as twenty-five (25) percent or less of the area of 
the roof. If the repair is more than twenty-five (25) percent of the area of the roof, the 
roof shall be replaced. 

 
Fire retardant pressure treated wood shingles and shakes authorized for use on 
single-family residences shall be grade labeled No. 1 and No. 2 wood shingles and No. 
1 shakes, with a minimum butt thickness of one-half inch (1/2), and shall be securely 
fastened with rust resistant nails. 

 
(7) Table 1507.8.5, Table 1507.8.7, Table 1507.9.6 and Table 1507.9.8 of the IBC are 

hereby amended to exclude all references to No. 3 wood shingles and No.2 wood 
shakes. 

 
 

 
(b) The fees set forth in Chapter 28 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas shall apply 

to the International Building Code. 
 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 5 of 26 

(c) If a conflict arises between any provisions of the International Building Code and any other 
applicable provisions of a city ordinance or code adopted thereby, the more restrictive provision(s) 
shall control. 

 
. . . 
 

That Section 5-20, of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, is hereby amended 
with the language as follows: 
 
. . . 
 
“Sec. 5-20. International Swimming Pool and Spa Code, 2018 Edition, adopted.  

(a) The International Swimming Pool and Spa Code (ISPSC), 2018 Edition and all 
appendices, are hereby adopted as the Swimming Pool and Spa Code of the City.  An authentic 
copy of each which has been filed with the City Secretary, are hereby adopted and made a part of 
this section, except as follows: 
 

(1) Section 101.1 of the ISPSC is hereby amended, replacing “[NAME OF 
JURISDICTION]” with the “City of Alvin, Texas.” 

 
(2) Section 103, Department of Building Safety, is hereby deleted in its entirety. 
 
(3) Section 105.6.2, Fee Schedule, is hereby deleted. 

 
(4) Section 107.4, Violation Penalties, is hereby deleted. 

 
(5) Section 108, Means of Appeal, is hereby deleted in its entirety. 

 
(b)   The fees set forth in Chapter 28 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, shall 

apply to the International Swimming Pool and Spa Code. 
 
(c)   If a conflict arises between any provisions of the International Swimming Pool and Spa 

Code and any other applicable provisions of a City Ordinance or Code adopted thereby, the more 
restrictive provision(s) shall control. 

 
. . . 
 

That Section 5-22, of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, is hereby deleted in its 
entirety. 
 
Sec. 5-22. Reserved. 
 

That Section 5-23, of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, is hereby amended 
with the language as follows: 
 
“Sec. 5-23. International Residential Code, 2018 Edition, adopted. 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 6 of 26 

 
(a) Except as provided in this section, the International Residential Code (IRC), 2018 Edition, 

including only Appendices A, B, C, E, , H, J, M, and P, as published by the International Code 
Council, Inc., as such may be hereafter amended or recodified is hereby adopted in its entirety as if 
set out in length herein and is incorporated herein by reference. One copy of the International 
Residential Code shall be on file in the city secretary’s office and one copy of such code shall be on 
file in the office of the building official. 

 
(1) Section R101.1 of the IRC is hereby amended, replacing “[NAME OF    

JURISDICTION]” with the “City of Alvin, Texas”. 
 

(2) The IRC is amended by deleting Section R103. 
 
(3) Section R113.4 of the IRC is hereby deleted and replaced with the following: 

 
R113.4 Violation penalties. Any person, firm, corporation or agent who shall violate 
a provision of this Code, or fail to comply therewith, or with any of the requirements 
thereof, or who shall erect, construct, alter, install, demolish or move any structure, 
electrical, gas, mechanical or plumbing system, or has erected, constructed, altered, 
repaired, moved or demolished a building, structure, electrical, gas, mechanical or 
plumbing system, in violation of a detailed statement or drawing submitted and 
permitted thereunder, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. Each such person shall be 
considered guilty of a separate offense for each and every day or portion thereof 
during which any violation of any of the provisions of this Code is committed or 
continued, and upon conviction of any such violation such person shall be punished 
within the limits and as provided by law. 
 

(4) Section R112, Board of Appeals, of the IRC is hereby amended to read: 
R112.1 General. In order to hear and decide appeals of orders, decisions or 
determinations made by the building official relative to the application and 
interpretation of this code, there shall be and is hereby created a Building Board of 
Adjustments and Appeals. 
 
R112.2 Limitations on authority. An application for appeal shall be based on a claim 
that the true intent of this code or referenced code or the rules legally adopted 
thereunder have been incorrectly interpreted, the provisions of this code do not fully 
apply or an equally good or better form of construction is proposed. The Board shall 
have only the authority granted by Section 5.5-1 of this code. 
 

(5) Table R302.6, Dwelling/Garage Fire Separation, of the IRC is hereby amended by 
replacing . . . “1/2-inch” with “5/8-inch type X.” 

(6) Section E3601.6.2, Service disconnect location, of the IRC is hereby deleted and 
replaced with the following: 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 7 of 26 

E3601.6.2 Service disconnect location. The service disconnecting means shall be 
installed at a readily accessible location outside of a building nearest the point of 
entrance of the service conductors. Each occupant shall have access to the 
disconnect serving the dwelling unit in which they reside. 

 
(7) Table R301.2(1) of said Residential Code is amended to include the following 

values: 
 

Ground Snow Load: 0 
Wind Speed (mph): 140 
Seismic Design Category: A 
Weathering: Negligible 
Frost line depth: 0 
Termite: Very Heavy 
Decay: Slight to Moderate 
Winter Design Temp: 32 
Ice shield underlayment required: No 
Flood Hazards: Refer to applicable FIRM Map 
Air freezing index: - 
Mean Annual Temp: 70 

 
(8) Delete Section R311.2, Egress Door, of the International Residential Code and 

replace as follows: 
 

Exit Door Required. Not less than two (2) doors conforming to this section shall be 
provided for each dwelling unit. The required doors shall provide for direct access 
from the habitable portions of the dwelling to the exterior without travel through a 
garage. Access to habitable levels not having an exit in accordance with this section 
shall be by a ramp in accordance with Section R311.8, or a stairway in accordance 
with Section R311.7. 

 
(9) Table R402.2 of the IRC is amended to require a minimum compression strength  

of 3,000 pounds per square inch for all types or locations of concrete construction. 
 
(10) Section G2420.2. Meter Valve is hereby amended to read: Every meter shall be 

equipped with a shut-off valve located on the supply side of the meter, outside of 
any structure or dwelling, and shall be between the meter and point of entry into 
any structure or dwelling. 

 
    (b) The fees set forth in Chapter 28 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, shall 

apply to the International Residential Code. 
 

(c) If a conflict arises between any provisions of the International Residential Code and any 
other applicable provisions of a City Ordinance or Code adopted thereby, the more restrictive 
provision(s) shall control. 

 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 8 of 26 

. . . 
 

That Section 5-24, of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, is hereby amended 
with the language as follows: 
 
. . . 
 
“Sec. 5-24. International Plumbing Code, 2018 Edition, adopted. 
 

(a) The International Plumbing Code (IPC), 2018 Edition, as published by the International 
Code Council, Inc., as such may be hereafter amended or recodified is hereby adopted in its 
entirety as if set out in length herein and is incorporated herein by reference. One copy of the 
International Plumbing Code shall be on file in the city secretary’s office and one copy of such 
code shall be on file in the office of the building official, and are hereby adopted and made a part of 
this division, except as follows: 

 
(1) Section 101.1 of the IPC is hereby amended, replacing “[NAME OF 

JURISDICTION]” with the “City of Alvin, Texas.” 
 

(2) The IPC is amended by deleting Section 103 – Department of Plumbing Inspection. 
 

(3) Section 106.6.2 Fee Schedule and Appendix A are  not adopted. 
 

(4) Section 108.4 Violations penalties   is not adopted.  
 

Section 109, Means of Appeal, is hereby deleted.  
  

(b)  The fees set forth in Chapter 28 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas shall 
apply to the International Plumbing Code. 

 
(c)   If a conflict arises between any provisions of the International Plumbing Code and any 

other applicable provisions of a city ordinance or code adopted thereby, the more restrictive 
provision(s) shall control. 

 
(6) Section 608.17.5 Connection to lawn irrigation systems is hereby amended as follows: 

 
Section 608.17.5. Connection to lawn irrigation systems. The potable water supply to lawn 
irrigation systems shall be protected against backflow by an atmospheric-type vacuum breaker, 
a pressure-type vacuum breaker or a reduced pressure principle backflow preventer. A valve 
shall not be installed downstream from an atmospheric vacuum breaker. Where chemicals are 
introduced into the system, the potable water supply shall be protected against backflow by a 
reduced pressure principle backflow preventer. 
 

Section 608.17.5.1 Landscape Irrigation.  



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 9 of 26 

Definitions. The following words and terms, when used in this chapter, have the following 
meanings, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.  

Air gap. A complete physical separation between the free flowing discharge end of a potable water 
supply pipeline and an open or non-pressure receiving vessel. 
 
Atmospheric Vacuum Breaker. An assembly containing an air inlet valve, a check seat, and an air 
inlet port. The flow of water into the body causes the air inlet valve to close the air inlet port. When 
the flow of water stops the air inlet valve falls and forms a check against back-siphonage. At the 
same time it opens the air inlet port allowing air to enter and satisfy the vacuum. Also known as an 
Atmospheric Vacuum Breaker Back-Siphonage Prevention Assembly. 
 
Backflow prevention. The mechanical prevention of reverse flow, or back siphonage, of 
non-potable water from an irrigation system into the potable water source. 
 
Backflow prevention assembly. Any assembly used to prevent backflow into a potable water 
system. The type of assembly used is based on the existing or potential degree of health hazard and 
backflow condition. 
 
Completion of irrigation system installation. When the landscape irrigation system has been 
installed, all minimum standards met, all tests performed, and the irrigator is satisfied that the 
system is operating correctly. 
 
Consulting. The act of providing advice, guidance, review or recommendations related to 
landscape irrigation systems. 
 
Cross-connection. An actual or potential connection between a potable water source and an 
irrigation system that may contain contaminates or pollutants or any source of water that has been 
treated to a lesser degree in the treatment process. 
 
Design. The act of determining the various elements of a landscape irrigation system that will 
include, but not be limited to, elements such as collecting site specific information, defining the 
scope of the project, defining plant watering needs, selecting and laying out emission devices, 
locating system components, conducting hydraulics calculations, identifying any local regulatory 
requirements, or scheduling irrigation work at a site. Completion of the various components will 
result in an irrigation plan. 
 
Design pressure. The pressure that is required for an emission device to operate properly. Design 
pressure is calculated by adding the operating pressure necessary at an emission device to the total 
of all pressure losses accumulated from an emission device to the water source. 
 
Double Check Valve. An assembly that is composed of two independently acting, approved check 
valves, including tightly closed resilient seated shutoff valves attached at each end of the assembly 
and fitted with properly located resilient seated test cocks. Also known as a Double Check Valve 
Backflow Prevention Assembly. 
 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 10 of 26 

Emission device. Any device that is contained within an irrigation system and that is used to apply 
water. Common emission devices in an irrigation system include, but are not limited to, spray and 
rotary sprinkler heads, and drip irrigation emitters. 
 
Employed. Engaged or hired to provide consulting services or perform any activity relating to the 
sale, design, installation, maintenance, alteration, repair, or service to irrigation systems. A person 
is employed if that person is in an employer-employee relationship as defined by Internal Revenue 
Code, 26 United States Code Service, §3212(d) based on the behavioral control, financial control, 
and the type of relationship involved in performing employment related tasks. 
 
Head-to-head spacing. The spacing of spray or rotary heads equal to the manufacturer's published 
radius of the head. 
   
Health hazard. A cross-connection or potential cross-connection with an irrigation system that 
involves any substance that may, if introduced into the potable water supply, cause death or illness, 
spread disease, or have a high probability of causing such effects. 
 
Hydraulics. The science of dynamic and static water; the mathematical computation of 
determining pressure losses and pressure requirements of an irrigation system. 
 
Inspector. A licensed plumbing inspector, water district operator, other governmental entity, or 
irrigation inspector who inspects irrigation systems and performs other enforcement duties for a 
municipality or water district as an employee or as a contractor. 
 
Installer. A person who actually connects an irrigation system to a private or public raw or potable 
water supply system or any water supply, who is licensed according to Title 30, Texas 
Administrative Code, Chapter 30 (relating to Occupational Licenses and Registrations). 
 
Irrigation inspector. A person who inspects irrigation systems and performs other enforcement 
duties for a municipality or water district as an employee or as a contractor and is required to be 
licensed under Title 30, Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 30 (relating to Occupational 
Licenses and Registrations). 
 
Irrigation plan. A scaled drawing of a landscape irrigation system which lists required 
information, the scope of the project, and represents the changes made in the installation of the 
irrigation system. 
 
Irrigation services. Selling, designing, installing, maintaining, altering, repairing, servicing, 
permitting, providing consulting services regarding, or connecting an irrigation system to a water 
supply. 
 
Irrigation system. An assembly of component parts that is permanently installed for the controlled 
distribution and conservation of water to irrigate any type of landscape vegetation in any location, 
and/or to reduce dust or control erosion. This term does not include a system that is used on or by 
an agricultural operation as defined by Texas Agricultural Code, §251.002. 
 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 11 of 26 

Irrigation technician. A person who works under the supervision of a licensed irrigator to install, 
maintain, alter, repair, service or supervise installation of an irrigation system, including the 
connection of such system in or to a private or public, raw or potable water supply system or any 
water supply, and who is required to be licensed under Title 30, Texas Administrative Code, 
Chapter 30 (relating to Occupational Licenses and Registrations). 
 
Irrigation zone. A subdivision of an irrigation system with a matched precipitation rate based on 
plant material type (such as turf, shrubs, or trees), microclimate factors (such as sun/shade ratio), 
topographic features (such as slope) and soil conditions (such as sand, loam, clay, or combination) 
or for hydrological control. 
 
Irrigator. A person who sells, designs, offers consultations regarding, installs, maintains, alters, 
repairs, services or supervises the installation of an irrigation system, including the connection of 
such system to a private or public, raw or potable water supply system or any water supply, and 
who is required to be licensed under Title 30, Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 30. 
 
Irrigator-in-Charge. The irrigator responsible for all irrigation work performed by an exempt 
business owner, including, but not limited to obtaining permits, developing design plans, 
supervising the work of other irrigators or irrigation technicians, and installing, selling, 
maintaining, altering, repairing, or servicing a landscape irrigation system. 
 
Landscape irrigation. The science of applying the necessary amount of water  to promote or 
sustain healthy growth of plant material or turf. 
 
License. An occupational license that is issued by the Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality under Title 30, Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 30 to an individual that authorizes the 
individual to engage in an activity that is covered by Title 30, Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 
30. 
 
Mainline. A pipe within an irrigation system that delivers water from the water source to the 
individual zone valves. 
 
Maintenance checklist. A document made available to the irrigation system's owner or owner's 
representative that contains information regarding the operation and maintenance of the irrigation 
system, including, but not limited to: checking and repairing the irrigation system, setting the 
automatic controller, checking the rain or moisture sensor, cleaning filters, pruning grass and 
plants away from irrigation emitters, using and operating the irrigation system, the precipitation 
rates of each irrigation zone within the system, any water conservation measures currently in effect 
from the water purveyor, the name of the water purveyor, a suggested seasonal or monthly 
watering schedule based on current evapotranspiration data for the geographic region, and the 
minimum water requirements for the plant material in each zone based on the soil type and plant 
material where the system is installed. 
 
Major maintenance, alteration, repair, or service. Any activity that involves opening to the 
atmosphere the irrigation main line at any point prior to the discharge side of any irrigation zone 
control valve. This includes, but is not limited to, repairing or connecting into a main supply pipe, 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 12 of 26 

replacing a zone control valve, or repairing a zone control valve in a manner that opens the system 
to the atmosphere. 
 
Master valve. A remote control valve located after the backflow prevention device that controls 
the flow of water to the irrigation system mainline. 
 
Matched precipitation rate. The condition in which all sprinkler heads within an irrigation zone 
apply water at the same rate. 

 
New installation. An irrigation system installed at a location where one did not previously exist. 
 
Pass-through contract. A written contract between a contractor or builder and a licensed irrigator 
or exempt business owner to perform part or all of the irrigation services relating to an irrigation 
system. 
 
Potable water. Water that is suitable for human consumption. 
 
Pressure Vacuum Breaker. An assembly containing an independently operating internally loaded 
check valve and an independently operating loaded air inlet valve located on the discharge side of 
the check valve. Also known as a Pressure Vacuum Breaker Back-siphonage Prevention 
Assembly. 
 
Reclaimed water. Domestic or municipal wastewater which has been treated to a quality suitable 
for beneficial use, such as landscape irrigation. 
 
Records of landscape irrigation activities. The irrigation plans, contracts, warranty information, 
invoices, copies of permits, and other documents that relate to the installation, maintenance, 
alteration, repair, or service of a landscape irrigation system. 
 
Reduced Pressure Principle Backflow Prevention Assembly. An assembly containing two 
independently acting approved check valves together with a hydraulically operating mechanically 
independent pressure differential relief valve located between the two check valves and below the 
first check valve. 
 
Static water pressure. The pressure of water when it is not moving. 
 
Supervision. The on-the-job oversight and direction by a licensed irrigator who is fulfilling his or 
her professional responsibility to the client and/or employer in compliance with local or state 
requirements. Also a licensed installer working under the direction of a licensed irrigator or 
beginning January 1, 2009, an irrigation technician who is working under the direction of a 
licensed irrigator to install, maintain, alter, repair or service an irrigation system. 
 
Water conservation. The design, installation, service, and operation of an irrigation system in a 
manner that prevents the waste of water, promotes the most efficient use of water, and applies the 
least amount of water that is required to maintain healthy individual plant material or turf, reduce 
dust, and control erosion. 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 13 of 26 

 
Zone flow. A measurement, in gallons per minute or gallons per hour, of the actual flow of water 
through a zone valve, calculated by individually opening each zone valve and obtaining a valid 
reading after the pressure has stabilized. For design purposes, the zone flow is the total flow of all 
nozzles in the zone at a specific pressure. 
 
Zone valve. An automatic valve that controls a single zone of a landscape irrigation system. 

 
Section 608.17.5.2 Valid License Required 

 
Any person who connects an irrigation system to the water supply within the city or the city’s 
extraterritorial jurisdiction, commonly referred to as the ETJ, must hold a valid license, as defined 
by Title 30, Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 30 and required by Chapter 1903 of the Texas 
Occupations Code, or as defined by Chapter 365, Title 22 of the Texas Administrative Code and 
required by Chapter 1301 of the Texas Occupations Code. 
 

Exemptions: 
 
A property owner is not required to be licensed in accordance with Texas Occupations 

Code, Title 12, §1903.002(c)(1) if he or she is performing irrigation work in a building or on a 
premises owned or occupied by the person as the person’s home.  A home or property owner who 
installs an irrigation system must meet the standards contained in Title 30, Texas Administrative 
Code, Chapter 344 regarding spacing, water pressure, spraying water over impervious materials, 
rain or moisture shut-off devices or other technology, backflow prevention and isolation valves.  
The city may, at any point, adopt more stringent requirements for a home or property owner who 
installs an irrigation system.  See Texas Occupations Code §1903.002 for other exemptions to the 
licensing requirement. 
 

Section 608.17.5.3 Permit Required 
 

Any person installing an irrigation system within the territorial limits or extraterritorial 
jurisdiction of the city is required to obtain a permit from the city.  Any plan approved for a permit 
must be in compliance with the requirements of this chapter.   
 

The following types of systems are exempt from the permit requirement of this section: 
 

(a) An irrigation system that is that an on-site sewage disposal system, as defined by Section 
355.002, Health and Safety Code; or 

(b) An irrigation system used on or by an agricultural operation as defined by Section 251.002, 
Agriculture Code; or 

(c) An irrigation system connected to a groundwater well used by the property owner for 
domestic use. 
 
Section 608.17.5.4 Backflow Prevention Methods and Devices 

 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 14 of 26 

(a) Any irrigation system that is connected to the potable water supply must be connected 
through a backflow prevention method approved by the Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality (TCEQ). The backflow prevention device must be approved by the American Society of 
Sanitary Engineers; or the Foundation for Cross-Connection Control and Hydraulic Research, 
University of Southern California; or the Uniform Plumbing Code; or any other laboratory that has 
equivalent capabilities for both the laboratory and field evaluation of backflow prevention 
assemblies. The backflow prevention device must be installed in accordance with the laboratory 
approval standards or if the approval does not include specific installation information, the 
manufacturer's current published recommendations.  

 
(b) If conditions that present a health hazard exist, one of the following methods must be used 

to prevent backflow;  
 

(1) An air gap may be used if:  
(A) there is an unobstructed physical separation; and  
(B) the distance from the lowest point of the water supply outlet to the flood rim of the 
fixture or assembly into which the outlet discharges is at least one inch or twice the 
diameter of the water supply outlet, whichever is greater.  
 

(2) Reduced pressure principle backflow prevention assemblies may be used if:  
(A) the device is installed at a minimum of 12 inches above ground in a location that 
will ensure that the assembly will not be submerged; and  
(B) drainage is provided for any water that may be discharged through the assembly 
relief valve.  
 

(3) Pressure vacuum breakers may be used if:  
(A) no back-pressure condition will occur; and  
(B) the device is installed at a minimum of 12 inches above any downstream piping and 
the highest downstream opening. Pop-up sprinklers are measured from the retracted 
position from the top of the sprinkler.  
 
 

(4) Atmospheric vacuum breakers may be used if:  
(A) no back-pressure will be present;  
(B) there are no shutoff valves downstream from the atmospheric vacuum breaker;  
(C) the device is installed at a minimum of six inches above any downstream piping 
and the highest downstream opening. Pop-up sprinklers are measured from the 
retracted position from the top of the sprinkler;  
(D) there is no continuous pressure on the supply side of the atmospheric vacuum 
breaker for more than 12 hours in any 24-hour period; and  
(E) a separate atmospheric vacuum breaker is installed on the discharge side of each 
irrigation control valve, between the valve and all the emission devices that the valve 
controls.  
 

(c) Backflow prevention devices used in applications designated as health hazards must be 
tested upon installation and annually thereafter.  



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 15 of 26 

 
(d) If there are no conditions that present a health hazard, double check valve backflow 

prevention assemblies may be used to prevent backflow if the device is tested upon installation and 
test cocks are used for testing only. 
 

(e) If a double check valve is installed below ground:  
(1) test cocks must be plugged, except when the double check valve is being tested;  
(2) test cock plugs must be threaded, water-tight, and made of non-ferrous material;  
(3) a y-type strainer is installed on the inlet side of the double check valve;  
(4) there must be a clearance between any fill material and the bottom of the double check 
valve to allow space for testing and repair; and  
(5) there must be space on the side of the double check valve to test and repair the double 
check valve.  

 
(f)  If an existing irrigation system without a backflow-prevention assembly requires major 

maintenance, alteration, repair, or service, the system must be connected an approved, properly 
installed backflow prevention method before any major maintenance, alteration, repair, or service 
is performed.   
 

(g) If an irrigation system is connected to a potable water supply through a double check valve, 
pressure vacuum breaker, or reduced pressure principle backflow assembly and includes an 
automatic master valve on the system, the automatic master valve must be installed on the 
discharge side of the backflow prevention assembly. 

 
(h) The irrigator shall ensure the backflow prevention device is tested by a licensed Backflow 

Prevention Assembly Tester prior to being placed in service and the test results provided to the 
local water purveyor and the irrigation system's owner or owner's representative within ten 
business days of testing of the backflow prevention device 

 
 
 
 

 Section 608.17.5.5 Specific Conditions and Cross-Connection Control 
 

(a) Before any chemical is added to an irrigation system connected to the potable water 
supply, the irrigation system must be connected through a reduced pressure principle backflow 
prevention assembly or air gap.  

 
(b) Connection of any additional water source to an irrigation system that is connected to the 

potable water supply can only be done if the irrigation system is connected to the potable water 
supply through a reduced-pressure principle backflow prevention assembly or an air gap.  

 
(c) Irrigation system components with chemical additives induced by aspiration, injection, or 

emission system connected to any potable water supply must be connected through a reduced 
pressure principle backflow device.  

 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 16 of 26 

(d) If an irrigation system is designed or installed on a property that is served by an on-site 
sewage facility, as defined in Title 30, Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 285, then:  

 
(1) all irrigation piping and valves must meet the separation distances from the On-Site 

Sewage Facilities system as required for a private water line in Title 30, Texas 
Administrative Code, Section 285.91(10);  

(2) any connections using a private or public potable water source that is not the city’s 
potable water system must be connected to the water source through a reduced pressure 
principle backflow prevention assembly as defined in Title 30, Texas Administrative 
Code, Section 344.50; and  

(3) any water from the irrigation system that is applied to the surface of the area utilized by 
the On-Site Sewage Facility system must be controlled on a separate irrigation zone or 
zones so as to allow complete control of any irrigation to that area so that there will not 
be excess water that would prevent the On-Site Sewage Facilities system from 
operating effectively.  

 
Section 608.17.5.6 Water Conservation 

 
All irrigation systems shall be designed, installed, maintained, altered, repaired, serviced, and 

operated in a manner that will promote water conservation as defined in the Definitions section of 
this ordinance. 

 
Section 608.17.5.7 Irrigation Plan Design:  Minimum Standards 

 
(a) An irrigator shall prepare an irrigation plan for each site where a new irrigation system will 

be installed. A paper or electronic copy of the irrigation plan must be on the job site at all times 
during the installation of the irrigation system. A drawing showing the actual installation of the 
system is due to each irrigation system owner after all new irrigation system installations. During 
the installation of the irrigation system, variances from the original plan may be authorized by the 
licensed irrigator if the variance from the plan does not: 

 
(1) diminish the operational integrity of the irrigation system; 
(2) violate any requirements of this ordinance; and 
(3) go unnoted in red on the irrigation plan. 

 
(b) The irrigation plan must include complete coverage of the area to be irrigated. If a system 

does not provide complete coverage of the area to be irrigated, it must be noted on the irrigation 
plan.  
 

(c) All irrigation plans used for construction must be drawn to scale. The plan must include, at 
a minimum, the following information: 

 
(1) the irrigator’s seal, signature, and date of signing; 
(2) all major physical features and the boundaries of the areas to be watered; 
(3) a North arrow; 
(4) a legend; 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 17 of 26 

(5) the zone flow measurement for each zone; 
(6) location and type of each: 
   

(A) controller; and 
(B) sensor (for example, but not limited to, rain, moisture, wind, flow, or freeze); 

 
(7) location, type, and size of each: 
 

(A) water source, such as, but not limited to a water meter and point(s) of 
connection; 

(B) backflow prevention device; 
(C) water emission device, including, but not limited to, spray heads, rotary 

sprinkler heads, quick-couplers, bubblers, drip, or micro-sprays; 
(D) valve, including but not limited to, zone valves, master valves, and isolation    

valves; 
(E) pressure regulation component; and 
(F) main line and lateral piping.  

 
(8) the scale used; and  
(9) the design pressure. 
 
Section 608.17.5.8 Design and Installation:  Minimum Requirements 

 
(a) No irrigation design or installation shall require the use of any component, including the 

water meter, in a way which exceeds the manufacturer's published performance limitations for the 
component. 

(b) Spacing. 
 

(1) The maximum spacing between emission devices must not exceed the manufacturer's 
published radius or spacing of the device(s). The radius or spacing is determined by 
referring to the manufacturer's published specifications for a specific emission device 
at a specific operating pressure. 

(2) New irrigation systems shall not utilize above-ground spray emission devices in 
landscapes that are less than 48 inches not including the impervious surfaces in either 
length or width and which contain impervious pedestrian or vehicular traffic surfaces 
along two or more perimeters. If pop-up sprays or rotary sprinkler heads are used in a 
new irrigation system, the sprinkler heads must direct flow away from any adjacent 
surface and shall not be installed closer than four inches from a hardscape, such as, but 
not limited to, a building foundation, fence, concrete, asphalt, pavers, or stones set with 
mortar. 

(3) Narrow paved walkways, jogging paths, golf cart paths or other small areas located in 
cemeteries, parks, golf courses or other public areas may be exempted from this 
requirement if the runoff drains into a landscaped area. 

 
(c) Water pressure. Emission devices must be installed to operate at the minimum and not 

above the maximum sprinkler head pressure as published by the manufacturer for the nozzle and 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 18 of 26 

head spacing that is used. Methods to achieve the water pressure requirements include, but are not 
limited to, flow control valves, a pressure regulator, or pressure compensating spray heads. 

 
(d) Piping. Piping in irrigation systems must be designed and installed so that the flow of water 

in the pipe will not exceed a velocity of five feet per second for polyvinyl chloride (PVC) pipe. 
 
(e) Irrigation Zones. Irrigation systems shall have separate zones based on plant material type, 

microclimate factors, topographic features, soil conditions, and hydrological requirements. 
 
(f) Matched precipitation rate. Zones must be designed and installed so that all of the emission 

devices in that zone irrigate at the same precipitation rate. 
 
(g) Irrigation systems shall not spray water over surfaces made of concrete, asphalt, brick, 

wood, stones set with mortar, or any other impervious material, such as, but not limited to, walls, 
fences, sidewalks, streets, etc. 

 
(h) Master valve. When provided, a master valve shall be installed on the discharge side of the 

backflow prevention device on all new installations. 
 
(i) PVC pipe primer solvent. All new irrigation systems that are installed using PVC pipe and 

fittings shall be primed with a colored primer prior to applying the PVC cement in accordance with 
the Uniform Plumbing Code (Section 316) or the International Plumbing Code (Section 605). 

 
(j) Rain or moisture shut-off devices or other technology. All new automatically controlled 

irrigation systems must include sensors or other technology designed to inhibit or interrupt 
operation of the irrigation system during periods of moisture or rainfall. Rain or moisture shut-off 
technology must be installed according to the manufacturer's published recommendations. Repairs 
to existing automatic irrigation systems that require replacement of an existing controller must 
include a sensor or other technology designed to inhibit or interrupt operation of the irrigation 
system during periods of moisture or rainfall.  
 

(k) Isolation valve. All new irrigation systems must include an isolation valve between the 
water meter and the backflow prevention device. 

 
(l) Depth coverage of piping. Piping in all irrigation systems must be installed according to the 

manufacturer's published specifications for depth coverage of piping. 
     
(1) If the manufacturer has not published specifications for depth coverage of piping, the 

piping must be installed to provide minimum depth coverage of six inches of select 
backfill, between the top of the pipe and the natural grade of the topsoil. All portions of 
the irrigation system that fail to meet this standard must be noted on the irrigation plan. 
If the area being irrigated has rock at a depth of six inches or less, select backfill may be 
mounded over the pipe. Mounding must be noted on the irrigation plan and discussed 
with the irrigation system owner or owner's representative to address any safety issues. 

(2) If a utility, man-made structure, or roots create an unavoidable obstacle, which makes 
the six-inch depth coverage requirement impractical, the piping shall be installed to 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 19 of 26 

provide a minimum of two inches of select backfill between the top of the pipe and the 
natural grade of the topsoil. 

(3) All trenches and holes created during installation of an irrigation system must be 
backfilled and compacted to the original grade. 

 
(m) Wiring irrigation systems. 
 

(1) Underground electrical wiring used to connect an automatic controller to any electrical 
component of the irrigation system must be listed by Underwriters Laboratories as 
acceptable for burial underground. 

(2) Electrical wiring that connects any electrical components of an irrigation system must 
be sized according to the manufacturer's recommendation. 

(3) Electrical wire splices which may be exposed to moisture must be waterproof as 
certified by the wire splice manufacturer. 

(4) Underground electrical wiring that connects an automatic controller to any electrical 
component of the irrigation system must be buried with a minimum of six inches of 
select backfill. 

 
(n) Water contained within the piping of an irrigation system is deemed to be non-potable. No 

drinking or domestic water usage, such as, but not limited to, filling swimming pools or decorative 
fountains, shall be connected to an irrigation system. If a hose bib (an outdoor water faucet that has 
hose threads on the spout) is connected to an irrigation system for the purpose of providing 
supplemental water to an area, the hose bib must be installed using a quick coupler key on a quick 
coupler installed in a covered purple valve box and the hose bib and any hoses connected to the bib 
must be labeled “non potable, not safe for drinking.” An isolation valve must be installed upstream 
of a quick coupler connecting a hose bib to an irrigation system. 
 

(o) Beginning January 1, 2010, either a licensed irrigator or a licensed irrigation technician 
shall be on-site at all times while the landscape irrigation system is being installed. When an 
irrigator is not onsite, the irrigator shall be responsible for ensuring that a licensed irrigation 
technician is on-site to supervise the installation of the irrigation system. 
 
Section 608.17.5.9 Completion of Irrigation System Installation 
 

Upon completion of the irrigation system, the irrigator or irrigation technician who provided 
supervision for the on-site installation shall be required to complete four items: 
 

(a) a final “walk through” with the irrigation system’s owner or the owner’s representative to 
explain the operation of the system; 
 

(b) The maintenance checklist on which the irrigator or irrigation technician shall obtain the 
signature of the irrigation system's owner or owner's representative and shall sign, date, and seal 
the checklist. If the irrigation system's owner or owner's representative is unwilling or unable to 
sign the maintenance checklist, the irrigator shall note the time and date of the refusal on the 
irrigation system's owner or owner's representative's signature line. The irrigation system owner or 
owner's representative will be given the original maintenance checklist and a duplicate copy of the 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 20 of 26 

maintenance checklist shall be maintained by the irrigator. The items on the maintenance checklist 
shall include but are not limited to: 

 
(1) the manufacturer’s manual for the automatic controller, if the system is automatic; 
(2) a seasonal (spring, summer, fall, winter) watering schedule based on either current/real 

time evapotranspiration or monthly historical reference evapotranspiration (historical 
ET) data, monthly effective rainfall estimates, plant landscape coefficient factors, and 
site factors; 

(3) a list of components, such as the nozzle, or pump filters, and other such components; 
that require maintenance and the recommended frequency for the service; and 

(4) the statement, “This irrigation system has been installed in accordance with all 
applicable state and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders. I have tested 
the system and determined that it has been installed according to the Irrigation Plan and 
is properly adjusted for the most efficient application of water at this time.” 

 
(c) A permanent sticker which contains the irrigator’s name, license number, company name, 

telephone number and the dates of the warranty period shall be affixed to each automatic controller 
installed by the irrigator or irrigation technician. If the irrigation system is manual, the sticker shall 
be affixed to the original maintenance checklist. The information contained on the sticker must be 
printed with waterproof ink. 

 
(d) The irrigation plan indicating the actual installation of the system must be provided to the 

irrigation system's owner or owner representative. 
 
Section 608.17.5.10  Maintenance, Alteration, Repair, or Service of Irrigation Systems 
 

(a) The licensed irrigator is responsible for all work that the irrigator performed during the 
maintenance, alteration, repair, or service of an irrigation system during the warranty period. The 
irrigator or business owner is not responsible for the professional negligence of any other irrigator 
who subsequently conducts any irrigation service on the same irrigation system. 

 
(b) All trenches and holes created during the maintenance, alteration, repair, or service of an 

irrigation system must be returned to the original grade with compacted select backfill.  
 
(c) Colored PVC pipe primer solvent must be used on all pipes and fittings used in the 

maintenance, alteration, repair, or service of an irrigation system in accordance with the Uniform 
Plumbing Code (Section 316) or the International Plumbing Code (Section 605). 

 
(d) When maintenance, alteration, repair or service of an irrigation system involves excavation 

work at the water meter or backflow prevention device, an isolation valve shall be installed, if an 
isolation valve is not present. 

 
Section 608.17.5.11  Advertisement Requirements 
 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 21 of 26 

(a) All vehicles used in the performance of irrigation installation, maintenance, alteration, 
repair, or service must display the irrigator's license number in the form of “LI________” in a 
contrasting color of block letters at least two inches high, on both sides of the vehicle.  

 
(b) All forms of written and electronic advertisements for irrigation services must display the 

irrigator’s license number in the form of “LI___________.” Any form of advertisement, including 
business cards, and estimates which displays an entity’s or individual’s name other than that of the 
licensed irrigator must also display the name of the licensed irrigator and the licensed irrigator’s 
license number. Trailers that advertise irrigation services must display the irrigator’s license 
number.  

 
(c) The name, mailing address, and telephone number of the commission must be prominently 

displayed on a legible sign and displayed in plain view for the purpose of addressing complaints at 
the permanent structure where irrigation business is primarily conducted and irrigation records are 
kept.  

 
Section 608.17.5.12  Contracts 

 
(a) All contracts to install an irrigation system must be in writing and signed by each party and 

must specify the irrigator's name, license number, business address, current business telephone 
numbers, the date that each party signed the agreement, the total agreed price, and must contain the 
statement, “Irrigation in Texas is regulated by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
(TCEQ), MC-178, P.O. Box 13087, Austin, Texas 78711-3087. TCEQ’s website is: www. 
tceq.state.tx.us.” All contracts must include the irrigator’s seal, signature, and date.  

 
(b) All written estimates, proposals, bids, and invoices relating to the installation or repair of an 

irrigation system(s) must include the irrigator’s name, license number, business address, current 
business telephone number(s), and the statement: “Irrigation in Texas is regulated by the Texas 
Commission On Environmental Quality (TCEQ) (MC-178), P.O. Box 13087, Austin, Texas 
78711-3087. TCEQ’s web site is: www.tceq.state.tx.us.”  

 
(c) An individual who agrees by contract to provide irrigation services as defined in Title 30, 

Texas Administrative Code, Section 344.30 (relating to License Required) shall hold an irrigator 
license issued under Title 30, Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 30 (relating to Occupational 
Licenses and Registrations) unless the contract is a pass-through contract as defined in Title 30, 
Texas Administrative Code, Section 344.1(36) (relating to Definitions). If a pass-through contract 
includes irrigation services, then the irrigation portion of the contract can only be performed by a 
licensed irrigator. If an irrigator installs a system pursuant to a pass-through contract, the irrigator 
shall still be responsible for providing the irrigation system's owner or through contract, the 
irrigator shall still be responsible for providing the irrigation system’s owner or owner’s 
representative a copy of the warranty and all other documents required under this chapter. A 
pass-through contract must identify by name and license number the irrigator that will perform the 
work and must provide a mechanism for contacting the irrigator for irrigation system warranty 
work.  
 

(d) The contract must include the dates that the warranty is valid.  



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 22 of 26 

 
Section 608.17.5.13  Warranties for Systems 
 
(a) On all installations of new irrigation systems, an irrigator shall present the irrigation 

system's owner or owner's representative with a written warranty covering materials and labor 
furnished in the new installation of the irrigation system. The irrigator shall be responsible for 
adhering to terms of the warranty. If the irrigator's warranty is less than the manufacturer's 
warranty for the system components, then the irrigator shall provide the irrigation system's owner 
or the owner’s representative with applicable information regarding the manufacturer’s warranty 
period. The warranty must include the irrigator's seal, signature, and date. If the warranty is part of 
an irrigator's contract, a separate warranty document is not required.  

 
(b) An irrigator’s written warranty on new irrigation systems must specify the irrigator’s name, 

business address, and business telephone number(s), must contain the signature of the irrigation 
system's owner or owner's representative confirming receipt of the warranty and must include the 
statement: “Irrigation in Texas is regulated by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
(TCEQ), MC-178, P.O. Box 130897, Austin, Texas 78711-3087. TCEQ’s website is: 
www.tceq.state.tx.us.”  

 
(c) On all maintenance, alterations, repairs, or service to existing irrigation systems, an 

irrigator shall present the irrigation system's owner or owner's representative a written document 
that identifies the materials furnished in the maintenance, alteration, repair, or service. If a 
warranty is provided, the irrigator shall abide by the terms. The warranty document must include 
the irrigator’s name and business contact information.  
 

Section 608.17.5.14  Duties and Responsibilities of City Irrigation Inspectors 
 

A licensed irrigation inspector shall enforce the ordinance of the city, and shall be responsible 
for: 
 

(1) verifying that the appropriate permits have been obtained for an irrigation system and 
that the irrigator and installer or irrigation technician, if applicable, are licensed; 

(2) inspecting the irrigation system; 
(3) determining that the irrigation system complies with the requirements of this chapter; 
(4) determining that the appropriate backflow prevention device was installed, tested, and 

test results provided to the city; 
(5) investigating complaints related to irrigation system installation, maintenance, 

alteration, repairs, or service of an irrigation system and advertisement of irrigation 
services; and 

(6) maintaining records according to this chapter. 
 

. . . 
 

That Section 5-30, of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, is hereby amended 
with the language as follows: 
 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 23 of 26 

. . . 
 
“Sec. 5-30. International Mechanical Code, 2018 Edition, adopted. 
 

(a) The International Mechanical Code (IMC), 2018 Edition, is hereby adopted as the 
Mechanical Code of the City.  An authentic copy of which has been filed with the City Secretary, 
is hereby adopted and made a part of this section, except as follows: 
 

(1) Section 101.1 of the IMC is hereby amended, replacing “[NAME OF 
JURISDICTION]” with the “City of Alvin, Texas.” 
 
(2) Section 103, Department of Mechanical Inspection, is hereby deleted in its entirety. 
 
(3) Section 109, Means of Appeal, is hereby deleted. 
 
(4) Appendix B is hereby deleted. 

 
(b)   The fees set forth in Chapter 28 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, shall 

apply to the International Mechanical Code. 
 

(c)   If a conflict arises between any provisions of the International Mechanical Code and any 
other applicable provisions of a City Ordinance or Code adopted thereby, the more restrictive 
provision(s) shall control. 
 
. . . 

 
That Section 5-36, of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, is hereby amended 

with the language as follows: 
 
. . . 
Sec. 5-36.  International Fuel Gas Code2018, adopted. 
 

(a) The International Fuel Gas Code2018, and all its appendices are hereby adopted as the fuel 
gas code of the city, an authentic copy of each which has been filed with the City Secretary, are 
hereby adopted and made a part of this section, except as follows: 

 
(1) Section 101.1 of the International Fuel Gas Code is hereby amended, replacing 

“[NAME OF JURISDICTION]” with the “City of Alvin, Texas.” 
 
(2) Section 103—Department of Inspection, Section  106.6--Fees, Section 

108.4--Violation Penalties, and Section 109--Means of Appeal, are not adopted. 
 
(3) Section 409.2, Meter Valve is hereby amended to read: 
 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 24 of 26 

Every meter shall be equipped with a shut-off valve located on the supply side of the 
meter, outside of any structure or dwelling, and shall be between the meter and point of 
entry into any structure or dwelling. 

 
(b)   A copy of such code is on file in the office of the City Secretary. In the event of any 

conflict between the provisions of the housing code and the provisions of this Code of Ordinances, 
state law and city ordinances, rules and regulations, the provisions of this Code of Ordinances, 
state law or city ordinances, rules or regulations shall prevail and be controlling. 

 
(c)   The fees set forth in Chapter 28 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas shall 

apply to the International Fuel Gas Code. 
 
(d)   If a conflict arises between any provisions of the International Fuel Gas Code and any 

other applicable provisions of a City Ordinance or Code adopted thereby, the more restrictive 
provision(s) shall control. 
 
. . . 

That Section 5-41, of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, is hereby amended 
with the language as follows: 

“Sec. 5-41. - International Property Maintenance Code, 2018, adopted. 

(a) The International Property Maintenance Code 2018 and all its appendices are hereby 
adopted as the property maintenance code of the city, an authentic copy of each which has been 
filed with the city clerk, are hereby adopted and made a part of this section, except as follows:  

(1) Chapter 1 is amended to read as shown in Exhibit A to this ordinance, which is 
adopted by reference as if fully set out herein. 

(2) In Section 304.14, Insect Screens, “from [date] to [date]” is deleted and replaced with 
“at all times.”  

(3) In Section 602.3, Heat Supply, “from [date] to [date]” is deleted and replaced with “at 
all times.”  

(4) In Section 602.4, Occupiable Work Spaces, “from [date] to [date]” is deleted and 
replaced with “at all times.”  

(b) A copy of such code is on file in the office of the City Secretary . In the event of any 
conflict between the provisions of the housing code and the provisions of this Code of 
Ordinances, state law and city ordinances, rules and regulations, the provisions of this Code of 
Ordinances, state law or city ordinances, rules or regulations shall prevail and be controlling.  

(c) If a conflict arises between any provisions of the International Property Maintenance 
Code and any other applicable provisions of a City Ordinance or Code adopted thereby, the more 
restrictive provision(s) shall control.”  



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 25 of 26 

. . . 
 
That Section 5-47, of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, is hereby amended 

with the language as follows: 
 
Sec. 5-47.  International Existing Building Code, 2018 , adopted. 

 
(a) The International Existing Building Code 2018 and all its appendices are hereby adopted as 

the existing building code of the city, an authentic copy of each which has been filed with the City 
Secretary are hereby adopted and made a part of this section, except as follows: 
 

(1) Section 101.1 of the International Existing Building Code is hereby amended, 
replacing “[NAME OF JURISDICTION]” with the “City of Alvin, Texas.” 

 
(b)   A copy of such code is on file in the office of the City Secretary. In the event of any 

conflict between the provisions of the housing code and the provisions of this Code of Ordinances, 
state law and city ordinances, rules and regulations, the provisions of this Code of Ordinances, 
state law or city ordinances, rules or regulations shall prevail and be controlling. 

 
(c)   The fees set forth in Chapter 28 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, shall 

apply to the International Existing Building Code. 
 
(d)   If a conflict arises between any provisions of the International Existing Building Code and 

any other applicable provisions of a City Ordinance or Code adopted thereby, the more restrictive 
provision(s) shall control. 

 
. . . 

 
That Section 5-51, of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, is hereby amended 

with the language as follows: 
 
Sec. 5-51.  International Energy Conservation Code, 2018, adopted. 

 
(a) The International Energy Conservation Code2018, and all its appendices are hereby 

adopted as the energy conservation code of the city, an authentic copy of each which has been filed 
with the City Secretary, are hereby adopted and made a part of this section, except as follows: 
 

(1) Section 101.1 of the International Energy Conservation Code is hereby amended, 
replacing “[NAME OF JURISDICTION]” with the “City of Alvin, Texas.” 

 
(b)   A copy of such code is on file in the office of the City Secretary. In the event of any 

conflict between the provisions of the housing code and the provisions of this Code of Ordinances, 
state law and city ordinances, rules and regulations, the provisions of this Code of Ordinances, 
state law or city ordinances, rules or regulations shall prevail and be controlling. 

 



 

Ord. 19-F(a) Page 26 of 26 

(c)   If a conflict arises between any provisions of the International Energy Conservation Code 
and any other applicable provisions of a city ordinance or code adopted thereby, the more 
restrictive provision(s) shall control. 

 
. . . 

 
Section 3. Severability. Should any section or part of this Ordinance be held  
unconstitutional, illegal, invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons 
thereof ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or 
ineffectiveness of such section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining 
portion or portions thereof; but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and 
remain in full force and effect and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be 
severable.  
 

Section 4. Penalty Provision.  Any person, firm, corporation or business entity violating this 
Ordinance, if deemed guilty and upon conviction thereof, shall be fined as set forth herein. Each 
unlawful act or continuing day’s violation under this Ordinance shall constitute a separate 
offense.  The penal provision imposed under this Ordinance shall not preclude the City of Alvin 
from filing suit to enjoin the violation.  The City of Alvin retains all legal rights and remedies 
available to it pursuant to local, state and federal law. 
 
Section 5. Publication.  The City Secretary of the City of Alvin is hereby directed to publish 
this Ordinance, or its caption and penalty clause, in one issue of the official City newspaper as 
required by the City of Alvin Charter. 
 
Section 6.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 52 of the Texas Local 
Government Code, and the City of Alvin Charter. 
 
 
Section 7. Open Meetings Act.   It is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public 
notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this 2nd day of May, 2019. 

 
THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS   ATTEST 
 
 
By:_____________________________  By:_________________________________ 
 Paul A. Horn, Mayor     Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 
 



2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE 
CHAPTER 1 

SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION 
 

Exhibit A 

PART 1 — SCOPE AND APPLICATION 

SECTION 101 
GENERAL 

[A] 101.1 Title. These regulations shall be known as the 
International Property Maintenance Code of the City of 
Alvin, Texas (the “City”), which has adopted it, including 
any additions, deletions, amendments, or other 
requirement of the Code of Ordinances of the City when 
related to health and safety, hereinafter referred to as “this 
code.”  

[A] 101.2 Scope. The provisions of this code shall apply to 
all existing residential and nonresidential structures and all 
existing premises and constitute minimum requirements 
and standards for premises, structures, equipment and 
facilities for light, ventilation, space, heating, sanitation, 
protection from the elements, a reasonable level of safety 
from fire and other hazards, and for a reasonable level of 
sanitary maintenance; the responsibility of owners, 
owner’s authorized agent, operators and occupants; the 
occupancy of existing structures and premises, and for 
administration, enforcement and penalties. 

[A] 101.3 Intent. This code shall be construed to secure 
its expressed intent, which is to ensure public health, 
safety and welfare insofar as they are affected by the 
continued occupancy and maintenance of structures and 
premises. Existing structures and premises that do not 
comply with these provisions shall be altered or repaired to 
provide a minimum level of health and safety as required 
herein. 

[A] 101.4 Severability. If a section, subsection, sentence, 
clause or phrase of this code is, for any reason, held to be 
unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this code. 

SECTION 102 
APPLICABILITY 

[A] 102.1 General. Where there is a conflict between a 
general requirement and a specific requirement, the 
specific requirement shall govern. Where differences occur 
between provisions of this code and the referenced 
standards, the provisions of this code shall apply. Where, 
in a specific case, different sections of this code or a 
section of this code and another requirement of the City 
specify different requirements, the most restrictive shall 
govern, except in cases where this code references a 
more recent edition of the International Fire Code, 
International Building Code, International Plumbing Code, 
International Fuel Gas Code, National Electric Code, 
International Mechanical Code, or International Swimming 
Pool and Spa Code than the edition currently adopted by 
the City, in which case the standard of the currently 
adopted edition shall prevail. 

[A] 102.1.1 Treatment of Apartment Complexes For 
the purposes of this code, an apartment complex shall 
be treated as a single structure when common areas 
fail to be maintained in compliance with this code. 
Common stairwells and walkways of each building 
may be treated as common areas for purposes of this 
code. 

[A] 102.2 Maintenance. Equipment, systems, devices and 
safeguards required by this code or a previous regulation 
or code under which the structure or premises was 
constructed, altered or repaired shall be maintained in 
good working order. An owner, owner’s authorized agent, 
operator or occupant shall cause any service, facility, 
equipment or utility that is required under this section to be 
removed from, shut off from or discontinued for any 
occupied dwelling, except for such temporary interruption 
as necessary while repairs or alterations are in progress. 
The requirements of this code are not intended to provide 
the basis for removal or abrogation of fire protection and 
safety systems and devices in existing structures. Except 
as otherwise specified herein, the owner or the owner’s 
authorized agent shall be responsible for the maintenance 
of buildings, structures and premises. 

[A] 102.3 Application of other codes. Repairs, additions 
or alterations to a structure, or changes of occupancy, 
shall be done in accordance with the procedures and 
provisions of the International Building Code, International 
Existing Building Code, International Energy Conservation 
Code, International Fire Code, International Fuel Gas 
Code, International Mechanical Code, International 
Residential Code, International Plumbing Code and NFPA 
70. Nothing in this code shall be construed to cancel, 
modify or set aside any provision of the International 
Zoning Code or any other requirement of the City. 

[A] 102.4 Existing remedies. The provisions in this code 
shall not be construed to abolish or impair existing 
remedies of the jurisdiction or its officers or agencies 
relating to the removal or demolition of any structure that is 
dangerous, unsafe and insanitary. 

[A] 102.5 Workmanship. Repairs, maintenance work, 
alterations or installations that are caused directly or 
indirectly by the enforcement of this code shall be 
executed and installed in a workmanlike manner and 
installed in accordance with the manufacturer’s 
instructions. 

[A] 102.6 Historic buildings. The provisions of this code 
shall not be mandatory for existing buildings or structures 
designated as historic buildings where such buildings or 
structures are judged by the code official to be safe and in 
the public interest of health, safety and welfare. 

[A] 102.7 Referenced codes and standards. The codes 
and standards referenced in this code shall be those that 



2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE 
CHAPTER 1 

SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION 
 

Exhibit A 

are listed in Chapter 8 and considered part of the 
requirements of this code to the prescribed extent of each 
such reference and as further regulated in Sections 
102.7.1 and 102.7.2, subject to the limitation in Section 
102.1 for cases where the City has adopted a less recent 
edition of a referenced standard. Where the City has not 
adopted a standard, the standard referenced shall prevail. 

Exception: Where enforcement of a code provision 
would violate the conditions of the listing of the 
equipment or appliance, the conditions of the listing 
shall apply. 

[A] 102.7.1 Conflicts. Where conflicts occur between 
provisions of this code and the referenced standards, 
the provisions of this code shall apply. 

[A] 102.7.2 Provisions in referenced codes and 
standards. Where the extent of the reference to a 
referenced code or standard includes subject matter 
that is within the scope of this code, the provisions of 
this code, as applicable, shall take precedence over 
the provisions in the referenced code or standard. 

[A] 102.8 Requirements not covered by code. 
Requirements necessary for the strength, stability or 
proper operation of an existing fixture, structure or 
equipment, or for the public safety, health and general 
welfare, not specifically covered by this code, shall be 
determined by the code official. 

[A] 102.9 Application of references. References to 
chapter or section numbers, or to provisions not 
specifically identified by number, shall be construed to 
refer to such chapter, section or provision of this code. 

[A] 102.10 Other laws. The provisions of this code shall 
not be deemed to nullify any provisions of local, state or 
federal law. 

PART 2 — ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT 

SECTION 103 
DEPARTMENT OF PROPERTY MAINTENANCE 

INSPECTION CODE OFFICIAL, DEPUTIES, LIABILITY, 
AND FEES 

[A] 103.1 Board of Appeals. General. The department of 
property maintenance inspection is hereby created and the 
executive official in charge thereof shall be known as the 
code official. The Building Board of Adjustments and 
Appeals of the City is hereby designated to hear appeals 
and hold public hearings in accordance with this code, 
hereinafter referred to as “board of appeals” or the “board”. 

[A] 103.2 Appointment. The code official shall be the 
Building Official, appointed by the chief appointing 
authority City Manager of the jurisdiction City. 

[A] 103.3 Deputies. In accordance with the prescribed 
procedures of this jurisdiction the City and with the 
concurrence of the appointing authority, the code official 
shall have the authority to may appoint a deputy(s). Such 
employees shall have powers as delegated by the code 
official. 

[A] 103.4 Liability. The code official, member of the board 
of appeals or employee charged with the enforcement of 
this code, while acting for the jurisdiction, in good faith and 
without malice in the discharge of the duties required by 
this code or other pertinent law or ordinance, shall not 
thereby be rendered civilly or criminally liable personally, 
and is hereby relieved from all personal liability for any 
damage accruing to persons or property as a result of an 
act or by reason of an act or omission in the discharge of 
official duties.  

[A] 103.4.1 Legal defense. Any suit or criminal 
complaint instituted against any officer or employee 
because of an act performed by that officer or 
employee in the lawful discharge of duties and under 
the provisions of this code shall be defended by the 
legal representative of the jurisdiction until the final 
termination of the proceedings. The code official or 
any subordinate shall not be liable for costs in an 
action, suit or proceeding that is instituted in 
pursuance of the provisions of this code. 

[A] 103.5 Fees. The fees for activities and services 
performed by the department in carrying out its 
responsibilities under this code shall be as indicated in the 
following schedule. [JURISDICTION TO INSERT 
APPROPRI ATE SCHEDULE.] under this code shall be as 
provided by the adopted fee schedule of the City. 

SECTION 104 
DUTIES AND POWERS OF THE CODE OFFICIAL 

[A] 104.1 General. The code official is hereby authorized 
and directed to enforce the provisions of this code. The 
code official shall have the authority to render 
interpretations of this code and to adopt policies and 
procedures in order to clarify the application of its 
provisions. Such interpretations, policies and procedures 
shall be in compliance with the intent and purpose of this 
code. Such policies and procedures shall not have the 
effect of waiving requirements specifically provided for in 
this code. 

[A] 104.2 Inspections. The code official shall make all of 
the required inspections or shall accept reports of 
inspection by approved agencies or individuals. Reports of 
such inspections shall be in writing and be certified by a 
responsible officer of such approved agency or by the 
responsible individual. The code official is authorized to 
engage such expert opinion as deemed necessary to 



2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE 
CHAPTER 1 

SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION 
 

Exhibit A 

report on unusual technical issues that arise, subject to the 
approval of the appointing authority. 

[A] 104.3 Right of entry. Where it is necessary to make 
an inspection to enforce the provisions of this code, or 
whenever the code official has reasonable cause to 
believe that there exists in a structure or upon a premises 
a condition in violation of this code, the code official is 
authorized to enter the structure or premises at reasonable 
times to inspect or perform the duties imposed by this 
code, provided that if such structure or premises is 
occupied the code official shall present credentials to the 
occupant and request entry. If such structure or premises 
is unoccupied, the code official shall first make a 
reasonable effort to locate the owner, owner’s authorized 
agent, or other person having charge or control of the 
structure or premises and request entry. If entry is refused, 
the code official shall have recourse to the remedies 
provided by law to secure entry. 

[A] 104.4 Identification. The code official shall carry 
proper identification when inspecting structures or 
premises in the performance of duties under this code. 

[A] 104.5 Notices and orders. The code official shall 
issue all necessary notices or orders to ensure compliance 
with this code. 

[A] 104.6 Department records. The code official shall 
keep official records of all business and activities of the 
department specified in the provisions of this code. Such 
records shall be retained in the official records for the 
period required for retention of public records. 

SECTION 105 
APPROVAL 

[A] 105.1 Modifications. Whenever there are practical 
difficulties involved in carrying out the provisions of this 
code, the code official shall have the authority to grant 
modifications for individual cases upon application of the 
owner or owner’s authorized agent, provided the code 
official shall first find that special individual reason makes 
the strict letter of this code impractical, the modification is 
in compliance with the intent and purpose of this code and 
that such modification does not lessen health, life and fire 
safety requirements. The details of action granting 
modifications shall be recorded and entered in the 
department files. 

[A] 105.2 Alternative materials, design and methods of 
construction and equipment. The provisions of this code 
are not intended to prevent the installation of any material 
or to prohibit any method of construction not specifically 
prescribed by this code, provided that any such alternative 
has been approved. An alternative material or method of 
construction shall be approved where the code official 
finds that the proposed design is satisfactory and complies 

with the intent of the provisions of this code, and that the 
material, method or work offered is, for the purpose 
intended, not less than the equivalent of that prescribed in 
this code in quality, strength, effectiveness, fire resistance, 
durability and safety. Where the alternative material, 
design or method of construction in not approved, the code 
official shall respond in writing, stating the reasons the 
alternative was not approved. 

[A] 105.3 Required testing. Whenever there is insufficient 
evidence of compliance with the provisions of this code or 
evidence that a material or method does not conform to 
the requirements of this code, or in order to substantiate 
claims for alternative materials or methods, the code 
official shall have the authority to require tests to be made 
as evidence of compliance without expense to the 
jurisdiction. 

[A] 105.3.1 Test methods. Test methods shall be as 
specified in this code or by other recognized test 
standards. In the absence of recognized and accepted 
test methods, the code official shall be permitted to 
approve appropriate testing procedures performed by 
an approved agency. 

[A] 105.3.2 Test reports. Reports of tests shall be 
retained by the code official for the period required for 
retention of public records. 

[A] 105.4 Used material and equipment. Material that 
are reused shall comply with the requirements of this code 
for new materials.  Materials, equipment and devices shall 
not be reused unless such elements are in good repair or 
have been reconditioned and tested where necessary, 
placed in good and proper working condition and approved 
by the code official. 

[A] 105.5 Approved materials and equipment. Materials, 
equipment and devices approved by the code official shall 
be constructed and installed in accordance with such 
approval. 

[A] 105.6 Research reports. Supporting data, where 
necessary to assist in the approval of materials or 
assemblies not specifically provided for in this code, shall 
consist of valid research reports from approved sources. 

SECTION 106 
VIOLATIONS 

[A] 106.1 Unlawful acts. It shall be unlawful for a person, 
firm or corporation to be in conflict with or in violation of 
any of the provisions of this code. 

[A] 106.2 Notice of violation. The code official shall serve 
a notice of violation or order in accordance with Section 
107; except, citations shall be issued and notice of citation 
provided in accordance with state law. 



2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE 
CHAPTER 1 

SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION 
 

Exhibit A 

[A] 106.3 Prosecution of violation. Any person failing to 
comply with a notice of violation or order served in 
accordance with Section 107 or issued citation shall be 
deemed guilty of a misdemeanor or civil infraction as 
determined by the local municipality, and the violation shall 
be deemed a strict liability offense. If the notice of violation 
is not complied with, the code official shall institute the 
appropriate proceeding at law or in equity to restrain, 
correct or abate such violation, or to require the removal or 
termination of the unlawful occupancy of the structure in 
violation of the provisions of this code or of the order or 
direction made pursuant thereto. Any action taken by the 
authority having jurisdiction on such premises shall be 
charged against the real estate upon which the structure is 
located and shall be a lien upon such real estate. 

 [A] 106.4 Violation penalties. Any person who shall 
violate a provision of this code, or fail to comply therewith, 
or with any of the requirements thereof, shall be 
prosecuted within the limits provided by state or local laws. 
Each day that a violation continues after due notice has 
been served shall be deemed a separate offense. 

[A] 106.5 Abatement of violation. The imposition of the 
penalties herein prescribed shall not preclude the legal 
officer of the jurisdiction city attorney or other counsel 
retained by the City from instituting appropriate action to 
restrain, correct or abate a violation, or to prevent illegal 
occupancy of a building, structure or premises, or to stop 
an illegal act, conduct, business or utilization of the 
building, structure or premises. 

SECTION 107 
NOTICES AND ORDERS 

[A] 107.1 Notice to person responsible. Whenever the 
code official determines that there has been a violation of 
this code or has grounds to believe that a violation has 
occurred, notice shall be given in the manner prescribed in 
Sections 107.2 and 107.3 to the person responsible for the 
violation owner as specified in this code and identified in 
accordance with section 107.1.1. Notices for 
condemnation procedures shall also comply with Section 
108.3. 

[A] 107.1.1 Owner for purposes of this section. All 
notices shall be sent to the owner of the affected 
premises or structure, who shall be identified by a 
diligent search of the following records: 

1. county real property records of the county in 
which the building is located; 

2. appraisal district records of the appraisal 
district in which the building is located; 

3. records of the secretary of state; 

4. assumed name records of the county in which 
the building is located; 

5. tax records of the municipality; and 

6. utility records of the municipality. 

|A] 107.2 Form. Such notice prescribed in Section 107.1 
shall be in accordance with all of the following: 

1. Be in writing. 

2. Include a description of the real estate sufficient for 
identification. 

3. Include a statement of the violation or violations and 
why the notice is being issued. 

4. Include a correction order allowing a reasonable 
time to make the repairs and improvements required 
to bring the dwelling unit or structure into compliance 
with the provisions of this code. 

5. Inform the property owner or owner’s authorized 
agent of the right to appeal. 

6. Include a statement of the right to file a lien in 
accordance with Section 106.3. 

|A] 107.2.1 Additional requirements for notice of 
unsafe structure. In addition to the form prescribed in 
Section 107.2, notice of an unsafe structure shall 
include: 

1. the date of the scheduled public hearing; or a 
copy of the board of appeals determination 
and order; 

2. a statement that the owner will be required to 
submit at the hearing proof of the scope of any 
work that may be required to comply with this 
code and city ordinances and the time it will 
take to reasonably perform the work; and 

3. a statement that the city may take the actions 
ordered if the owner does not complete those 
actions prior to the deadline imposed at the 
public hearing, which may be 30 days from the 
date of the public hearing. 

[A] 107.3 Method of service. Such notice shall be 
deemed to be properly served if a copy thereof is: 

1. Delivered personally; 

2. Sent by certified or first-class mail, return receipt 
requested, addressed to the last known address; 
or 

3. If the notice is returned showing that the letter was 
not delivered, a copy thereof shall be posted in a 



2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE 
CHAPTER 1 

SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION 
 

Exhibit A 

conspicuous place in or about the structure 
affected by such notice. 

[A] 107.4 Unauthorized tampering. Signs, tags or 
seals posted or affixed by the code official shall not be 
mutilated, destroyed or tampered with, or removed 
without authorization from the code official. 

[A] 107.5 Penalties. Penalties for noncompliance with 
orders and notices shall be as set forth in Section 106.4. 

[A] 107.6 Transfer of ownership. It shall be unlawful for 
the owner of any dwelling unit or structure who has 
received a compliance order or upon whom a notice of 
violation has been served to sell, transfer, mortgage, 
lease or otherwise dispose of such dwelling unit or 
structure to another until the provisions of the 
compliance order or notice of violation have been 
complied with, or until such owner or the owner’s 
authorized agent shall first furnish the grantee, 
transferee, mortgagee or lessee a true copy of any 
compliance order or notice of violation issued by the 
code official and shall furnish to the code official a 
signed and notarized statement from the grantee, 
transferee, mortgagee or lessee, acknowledging the 
receipt of such compliance order or notice of violation 
and fully accepting the responsibility without condition for 
making the corrections or repairs required by such 
compliance order or notice of violation. 

SECTION 108 
UNSAFE STRUCTURES AND EQUIPMENT 

[A] 108.1 General. When a structure or equipment is 
found by the code official to be unsafe, the code official 
may recommend require the vacation, relocation of 
occupants, securing, repair, removal, or demolition of an 
unsafe structure or premises pursuant to the provisions 
of this code. 

[A] 108.1.1 Unsafe structures. An unsafe structure  is 
one that is dangerous to the life, health, property or 
safety of the public or the occupants of the structure by 
not providing minimum safeguards to protect or warn 
occupants in the event of fire, or because such 
structure contains unsafe equipment or is so 
damaged, decayed, dilapidated, structurally unsafe or 
of such faulty construction or unstable foundation, that 
partial or complete collapse is possible.  

[A] 108.1.2 Unsafe equipment. Unsafe equipment 
includes any boiler, heating equipment, elevator, 
moving stairway, electrical wiring or device, flammable 
liquid containers or other equipment on the premises 
or within the structure which is in such disrepair or 
condition that such equipment is a hazard to life, 
health, property or safety of the public or occupants of 
the premises or structure. 

[A] 108.1.3 Structure unfit for human occupancy. A 
structure is unfit for human occupancy whenever the 
code official finds that such structure is unsafe, 
unlawful or, because of the degree to which the 
structure is in disrepair or lacks maintenance, is 
insanitary, vermin or rat infested, contains filth and 
contamination, or lacks ventilation, illumination, 
sanitary or heating facilities or other essential 
equipment required by this code, or because the 
location of the structure constitutes a hazard to the 
occupants of the structure or to the public.  

[A] 108.1.4 Unlawful Substandard structure. An 
unlawful A substandard structure is one found in whole 
or in part to be occupied by more persons than 
permitted under this code, or was erected, altered or 
occupied contrary to law. 

[A] 108.1.5 Dangerous structure or premises. For 
the purpose of this code, any structure or premises 
that has any or all of the conditions or defects 
described below shall be considered dangerous: 

1. Any door, aisle, passageway, stairway, exit or 
other means of egress that does not conform 
to the approved building or fire code of the 
jurisdiction as related to the requirements for 
existing buildings. 

2. The walking surface of any aisle, passageway, 
stairway, exit or other means of egress is so 
warped, worn loose, torn or otherwise unsafe 
as to not provide safe and adequate means of 
egress. 

3. Any portion of a building, structure or 
appurtenance that has been damaged by fire, 
earthquake, wind, flood, deterioration, neglect, 
abandonment, vandalism or by any other 
cause to such an extent that it is likely to 
partially or completely collapse, or to become 
detached or dislodged. 

4. Any portion of a building, or any member, 
appurtenance or ornamentation on the exterior 
thereof that is not of sufficient strength or 
stability, or is not so anchored, attached or 
fastened in place so as to be capable of 
resisting natural or artificial loads of one and 
one-half the original designed value. 

5. The building or structure, or part of the 
building or structure, because of dilapidation, 
deterioration, decay, faulty construction, the 
removal or movement of some portion of the 
ground necessary for the support, or for any 
other reason, is likely to partially or completely 
collapse, or some portion of the foundation or 



2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE 
CHAPTER 1 

SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION 
 

Exhibit A 

underpinning of the building or structure is 
likely to fail or give way. 

6. The building or structure, or any portion 
thereof, is clearly unsafe for its use and 
occupancy. 

7. The building or structure is neglected, 
damaged, dilapidated, unsecured or 
abandoned so as to become an attractive 
nuisance to children who might play in the 
building or structure to their danger, becomes 
a harbor for vagrants, criminals or immoral 
persons, or enables persons to resort to the 
building or structure for committing a nuisance 
or an unlawful act. 

8. Any building or structure has been 
constructed, exists or is maintained in violation 
of any specific requirement or prohibition 
applicable to such building or structure 
provided by the approved building or fire code 
of the jurisdiction, or of any law or ordinance to 
such an extent as to present either a 
substantial risk of fire, building collapse or any 
other threat to life and safety. 

9. A building or structure, used or intended to be 
used for dwelling purposes, because of 
inadequate maintenance, dilapidation, decay, 
damage, faulty construction or arrangement, 
inadequate light, ventilation, mechanical or 
plumbing system, or otherwise, is determined 
by the code official to be unsanitary, unfit for 
human habitation or in such a condition that is 
likely to cause sickness or disease. 

10. Any building or structure, because of a lack of 
sufficient or proper fire-resistance-rated 
construction, fire protection systems, electrical 
system, fuel connections, mechanical system, 
plumbing system or other cause, is 
determined by the code official to be a threat 
to life or health. 

11. Any portion of a building remains on a site 
after the demolition or destruction of the 
building or structure or whenever any building 
or structure is abandoned so as to constitute 
such building or portion thereof as an 
attractive nuisance or hazard to the public. 

[A] 108.1.6 Procedure for Abatement of Unsafe 
Structures. If a structure has been identified as 
unsafe, the code official shall: 

1. schedule a public hearing with the board of 
appeals to determine whether the structure is 
unsafe and to order the structure vacated, 

secured, repaired, removed, or demolished by 
the owner and the occupants relocated within 
a reasonable time if such a determination is 
made;  

2. send notice in accordance with section 107 
that the code official has identified an unsafe 
structure on the premises, including the 
specific conditions that render the structure 
unsafe and the date of the scheduled public 
hearing; 

3. file or cause to be filed a copy of the notice in 
the real property records of the county in 
which the unsafe structure is located; 

4. verify and document the condition of the 
unsafe structure within 48 hours of the 
scheduled public hearing; 

5. report the condition of the unsafe structure to 
the board of appeals at the public hearing and 
recommend the vacation, relocation of 
occupants, securing, repair, removal, or 
demolition of the unsafe structure within 30 
days; provided, the board of appeals may 
allow the owner up to 90 days to repair, 
remove, or demolish the unsafe structure, or 
to submit at the hearing a detailed plan and 
time schedule for the work if the owner 
establishes at the hearing that the work cannot 
reasonably be completed within 90 days 
because of the scope and complexity of the 
work;  

6. send notice in accordance with section 107 of 
the board’s determination and order within 10 
days after the order is issued;  

7. publish or cause to be published in a 
newspaper of general circulation in the city in 
which the unsafe structure is located a notice 
containing: the street address or legal 
description of the property; the date the public 
hearing was held; a brief statement indicating 
the results of the order; and instructions 
stating where a complete copy of the order 
may be obtained; 

8. verify and document the condition of the 
unsafe structure following the date specified 
by the order; 

9. take no action nor cause any action to be 
taken until 20 days has elapsed from the date 
of the order with no appeal filed in accordance 
with section 111.1; 30 days has elapsed from 
the date of the order with no appeal for court 
review filed in accordance with section 111.7; 



2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE 
CHAPTER 1 

SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION 
 

Exhibit A 

and the condition of the unsafe structure 
remains unsafe; provided, if an appeal has 
been filed in accordance with sections 111.1 
or 111.7, the appeal shall stay all 
enforcement, other than emergency measures 
taken under section 109, until the appeal is 
heard; and 

10. provided no appeal has been filed and the 
deadline for such appeal has elapsed, timely 
commence the vacation, relocation of 
occupants, securing, repair, removal, or 
demolition of the unsafe structure pursuant to 
the order of the board of appeals and 
document all actions taken. 

 [A] 108.2 Closing Securing of vacant structures. If the 
unsafe structure is vacant and unfit for human habitation 
and occupancy, and is not in danger of structural collapse, 
the code official is authorized to post a placard of 
condemnation on the premises and order the structure 
closed up and secured so as not to be an attractive 
nuisance. Upon failure of the owner or owner’s authorized 
agent to close up the premises within the time specified in 
the order, the code official shall cause the premises to be 
closed and secured through any available public agency or 
by contract or arrangement by private persons and the 
cost thereof shall be charged against the real estate upon 
which the structure is located and shall be a lien upon 
such real estate and shall be collected by any other legal 
resource**process for securing 

[A] 108.2.1 Authority to disconnect service utilities. 
The code official shall have the authority to authorize 
disconnection or prevent connection of utility service to 
the building, structure or system regulated by this code 
and the referenced codes and standards set forth in 
Section 102.7 in case of emergency or where 
necessary to enforce this code to eliminate an 
immediate hazard to life or property or where such 
utility connection has been made without approval. 
The code official shall notify the serving utility and, 
whenever possible, the owner or owner’s authorized 
agent and occupant of the building, structure or 
service system of the decision to disconnect prior to 
taking such action. If not notified prior to disconnection 
the owner, owner’s authorized agent or occupant of 
the building structure or service system shall be 
notified in writing as soon as practical thereafter. 

[A] 108.3 Notice and Placarding. Whenever the code 
official has condemned identified as unsafe a structure or 
equipment under the provisions of this section, notice shall 
be posted in a conspicuous place in or about the structure 
affected by such notice and served on the owner, owner’s 
authorized agent or the person or persons responsible for 
the structure or equipment in accordance with Section 

107.3. If the notice pertains to equipment, it shall also be 
placed on the condemned unsafe equipment. The notice 
shall be in the form prescribed in Section 107.2 

[A] 108.4 Placarding. Upon failure of the owner, owner’s 
authorized agent or person responsible to comply with the 
notice provisions within the time given, The code official 
shall post on the premises or on defective equipment a 
placard bearing the word “condemned” “Unsafe”, it shall be 
unlawful to occupy this building” and a statement of the 
penalties provided for occupying the premises, operating 
the equipment or removing the placard. 

[A] 108.4.1 Placard removal. The code official shall 
remove the condemnation placard whenever the defect 
or defects upon which the condemnation and placarding 
action were based have been eliminated. Any person 
who defaces or removes a condemnation placard 
without the approval of the code official shall be subject 
to the penalties provided by this code. 

[A] 108.5 Prohibited occupancy Vacating of Structure. 
Any occupied structure condemned found to be unsafe 
and placarded by the code official shall be vacated as 
ordered by the code official. Any person who shall occupy 
a placarded premise or shall operate placarded 
equipment, and any owner, owner’s authorized agent or 
any person responsible for the premises who shall let 
anyone occupy a placarded premises or operate placarded 
equipment shall be liable for the penalties provided by this 
code. 

[A] 108.6 Abatement methods. The owner, owner’s 
authorized agent operator or occupant of a building, 
premises or equipment deemed unsafe by the code official 
shall abate or cause to be abated or corrected such unsafe 
conditions either by repair, rehabilitation, demolition or 
other approved corrective action. 

[A] 108.7 Record. The code official shall cause a report to 
be filed on an unsafe condition. The report shall state the 
occupancy of the structure and the nature of the unsafe 
condition. 

SECTION 109 
EMERGENCY MEASURES 

[A] 109.1 Imminent danger. When, in the opinion of the 
code official, there is imminent danger of failure or collapse 
of a building or structure that endangers life, or when any 
structure or part of a structure has fallen and life is 
endangered by the occupation of the structure, or when 
there is actual or potential danger to the building 
occupants or those in the proximity of any structure 
because of explosives, explosive fumes or vapors or the 
presence of toxic fumes, gases or materials, or operation 
of defective or dangerous equipment, the code official, 
after approval of the governing body of the City,  is hereby 



2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE 
CHAPTER 1 

SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION 
 

Exhibit A 

authorized and empowered to order and require the 
occupants to vacate the premises forthwith. The code 
official shall cause to be posted at each entrance to such 
structure a notice reading as follows: “This Structure Is 
Unsafe and Its Occupancy Has Been Prohibited by the 
Code Official.” It shall be unlawful for any person to enter 
such structure except for the purpose of securing the 
structure, making the required repairs, removing the 
hazardous condition or of demolishing the same. 

[A] 109.2 Temporary safeguards. Notwithstanding other 
provisions of this code, whenever, in the opinion of the 
code official, there is imminent danger due to an unsafe 
condition, the code official shall may order the necessary 
work to be done to temporarily secure the structure, 
including the boarding up of openings, to render such 
structure temporarily safe whether or not the legal 
procedure herein described has been instituted; and shall 
cause such other action to be taken as the code official 
deems necessary to meet such emergency; provided the 
structure is unoccupied or is occupied only by persons 
who do not have a right of possession to the building. 
Before the 11th day after the date the structure is secured, 
notice shall be provided in accordance with section 107 

[A] 109.3 Closing streets. When necessary for public 
safety, the code official shall temporarily close structures 
and close, or order the authority having jurisdiction to 
close, sidewalks, streets, public ways and places adjacent 
to unsafe structures, and prohibit the same from being 
utilized. 

 [A] 109.4 Emergency repairs. For the purposes of this 
section, the code official shall employ the necessary labor 
and materials to perform the required work as 
expeditiously as possible. 

[A] 109.5 Costs of emergency repairs. Costs incurred in 
the performance of emergency work shall be paid by the 
jurisdiction. The legal counsel of the jurisdiction shall 
institute appropriate action against the owner or owner’s 
authorized agent of the premises where the unsafe 
structure is or was located for the recovery of such costs. 

[A] 109.6 Hearing. Any person ordered to take emergency 
measures shall comply with such order forthwith. Any 
affected person shall thereafter, upon written request 
petition directed to the appeals board within 30 days after 
the date the City secures the building, be afforded a 
hearing as described in this code within 20 days after the 
date the request is filed.  

 

SECTION 110 
DEMOLITION 

[A] 110.1 General. The code official shall order the owner 
or owner’s authorized agent of any premises upon which is 

located any structure, which in the code official’s or 
owner’s authorized agent judgment after review is so 
deteriorated or dilapidated or has become so out of repair 
as to be dangerous, unsafe, insanitary or otherwise unfit 
for human habitation or occupancy, and such that it is 
unreasonable to repair the structure, to demolish and 
remove such structure; or if such structure is capable of 
being made safe by repairs, to repair and make safe and 
sanitary, or to board up and hold for future repair or to 
demolish and remove at the owner’s option; or where there 
has been a cessation of normal construction of any 
structure for a period of more than two years, the code 
official shall order the owner or owner’s authorized agent 
to demolish and remove such structure, or board up until 
future repair. Boarding the building up for future repair 
shall not extend beyond one year, unless approved by the 
building official. 

[A] 110.2 Notices and orders. Notices and orders shall 
comply with Section 107. 

[A] 110.3 Failure to comply. If the owner of a premises or 
owner’s authorized agent fails to comply with a demolition 
order within the time prescribed, the code official, after 
approval of the governing body of the City, shall cause the 
structure to be demolished and removed, either through an 
available public agency or by contract or arrangement with 
private persons, and the cost of such demolition and 
removal shall be charged against the real estate upon 
which the structure is located and shall be a lien upon 
such real estate. 

[A] 110.4 Salvage materials. When any structure has 
been ordered demolished and removed, the governing 
body or other designated officer under said contract or 
arrangement aforesaid shall have the right to sell the 
salvage and valuable materials. The net proceeds of such 
sale, after deducting the expenses of such demolition and 
removal, shall be promptly remitted with a report of such 
sale or transaction, including the items of expense and the 
amounts deducted, for the person who is entitled thereto, 
subject to any order of a court. If such a surplus does not 
remain to be turned over, the report shall so state. 

SECTION 111 
MEANS OF APPEAL AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

[A] 111.1 Application for appeal. Any person directly 
affected by a decision of the code official or a notice or 
order issued under this code shall have the right to appeal 
to the board of appeals, provided that a written application 
for appeal is filed within 20 days after the day the decision, 
notice or order was served, except as otherwise provided 
by section 109 for appeals of Emergency Repairs or other 
action taken under section 109. An application for appeal 
shall be based on a claim that the true intent of this code 
or the rules legally adopted thereunder have been 



2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE 
CHAPTER 1 

SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION 
 

Exhibit A 

incorrectly interpreted, the provisions of this code do not 
fully apply, or the requirements of this code are adequately 
satisfied by other means. An application for appeal under 
section 111.1 is an administrative remedy and shall not 
preclude an appeal for court review of an order by the 
board of appeals in accordance with section 111.7. 

[A] 111.2 Membership of board. The board of appeals 
shall consist of not less than three members who are 
qualified by experience and training to pass on matters 
pertaining to property maintenance and who are not 
employees of the jurisdiction. The code official shall be an 
ex-officio member but shall have no vote on any matter 
before the board. The board shall be appointed by the 
chief appointing authority, and shall serve staggered and 
overlapping terms. 

 [A] 111.2.1 Alternate members. The chief appointing 
authority shall appoint not less than two alternate 
members who shall be called by the board chairman to 
hear appeals during the absence or disqualification of a 
member. Alternate members shall possess the 
qualifications required for board membership. 

[A] 111.2.2 Chairman. The board shall annually select 
one of its members to serve as chairman. 

[A] 111.2.3 Disqualification of member. A member shall 
not hear an appeal in which that member has a personal, 
professional or financial interest. 

[A] 111.2.4 Secretary. The chief administrative officer 
shall designate a qualified person to serve as secretary to 
the board. The secretary shall file a detailed record of all 
proceedings in the office of the chief administrative officer. 

[A] 111.2.5 Compensation of members. Compensation 
of members shall be determined by law. 

[A] 111.3 Notice of meeting. The jurisdiction City may, 
but is not required to, hold additional public hearings as 
part of the procedure for the abatement of unsafe 
structures prescribed in section 108.1.6. Notice of such 
additional public hearings shall be sent to the owner in 
accordance with section 107.  

[A] 111.4 Open hearing. Hearings before the board shall 
be subject to the Open Meetings Act. open to the public. 
The appellant, the appellant’s representative, the code 
official and any person whose interests are affected shall 
be given an opportunity to be heard. A quorum shall 
consist of a minimum of two-thirds of the board 
membership. 

[A] 111.4.1 Procedure. The board shall adopt and make 
available to the public through the secretary procedures, if 
any, under which a hearing will be conducted. The 
procedures shall not require compliance with strict rules of 

evidence, but shall mandate that only relevant information 
be received. 

 [A] 111.5 Postponed hearing. When the full board is not 
present to hear an appeal, either the appellant or the 
appellant’s representative shall have the right to request a 
postponement of the hearing. 

[A] 111.6 Board decision. The board shall modify or 
reverse the decision of the code official only by a 
concurring vote of a majority of the total number of 
appointed board members. 

[A] 111.6.1 Records and copies. The decision of the 
board shall be recorded. Copies shall be furnished to the 
appellant and to the code official. 

[A] 111.6.2 Administration. The code official shall take 
immediate action in accordance with the decision of the 
board. 

[A] 111.7 Court review. Any person, whether or not a 
previous party of the appeal, shall have the right to apply 
to the appropriate court for a writ of certiorari to correct 
errors of law. Application for review shall be made in the 
manner and time required by law. following the filing of the 
decision in the office of the chief administrative officer. 
Appeals under this section must be filed in the district court 
within the county where the unsafe structure is located 
within 30 days of the date the order is issued by the board 
of appeals. 

[A] 111.8 Stays of enforcement. Appeals of notice and 
orders (other than Imminent Danger notices) shall stay the 
enforcement of the notice and order until the appeal is 
heard by the appeals board. 

SECTION 112 
STOP WORK ORDER 

[A] 112.1 Authority. Whenever the code official finds any 
work regulated by this code being performed in a manner 
contrary to the provisions of this code or in a dangerous or 
unsafe manner, the code official is authorized to issue a 
stop work order. 

[A] 112.2 Issuance. A stop work order shall be in writing 
and shall be given to the owner of the property, to the 
owner’s authorized agent, or to the person doing the work. 
Upon issuance of a stop work order, the cited work shall 
immediately cease. The stop work order shall state the 
reason for the order and the conditions under which the 
cited work is authorized to resume. 

[A] 112.3 Emergencies. Where an emergency exists, the 
code official shall not be required to give a written notice 
prior to stopping the work. 

[A] 112.4 Failure to comply. Any person who shall 
continue any work after having been served with a stop 



2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE 
CHAPTER 1 

SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION 
 

Exhibit A 

work order, except such work as that person is directed to 
perform to remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be 

liable to a fine of not less than [AMOUNT] dollars or more 
than $2,000.00 dollars per violation. 

 
 

 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   5/2/2019 

Department:  Engineering Contact:  Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Ordinance 19-G, amending Chapter 8, Electricity, of the Code of Ordinances, 

City of Alvin, Texas, providing the adoption of the 2017 National Electrical Code as 
published by the National Fire Protection Association; deleting section regarding permits 
for part jobs; providing for a severability clause; providing for a penalty; providing for 
publication; providing for a savings clause; providing an effective date, and setting forth 
other provisions related thereto. 
 

Type of Item: ☒Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary: Ordinance 19-G amends Chapter 8 Electricity of the City of Alvin Code of Ordinances by 
adopting the 2017 National Electrical Code with related city staff recommended amendments and deletions to 
the code as appropriate. The most recent electrical code adoption occurred in November 2013 with the 
adoption of the 2011 National Electrical Code.  
 
Periodic adoption of a more current code addition helps to maintain the usefulness of the code by keeping up 
with current technology and terminology.  Adoption of newer codes also keeps the City compliant with the 
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule (BCEGS) which is a factor used by the Insurance Services 
Office (ISO) to determine the City’s ISO rating. The City’s current BCEGS rating is 4 out of 10 (with 1 being 
superior) for both residential and commercial properties. This adoption will also provide the most current life 
safety applications with regards to the installation of electricity to buildings and structures in the City of Alvin. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 19-G. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 4/25/2019 SLH 
 
 

Supporting documents attached: 
• Ord. 19-G redline 
 
Recommendation:   Move to approve Ordinance 19-G, amending Chapter 8, Electricity, of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, providing the adoption of the 2017 National 
Electrical Code as published by the National Fire Protection Association; deleting 
section regarding permits for part jobs; providing for a severability clause; providing 
for a penalty; providing for publication; providing for a savings clause; providing an 
effective date, and setting forth other provisions related thereto. 

 
Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 19-G 
 

  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 8, ELECTRICITY, OF THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, PROVIDING THE 
ADOPTION OF THE 2017 NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE AS 
PUBLISHED BY THE NATIONAL FIRE PROTECTION ASSOCIATION;  
DELETING SECTION REGARDING PERMITS FOR PART JOBS; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION; PROVIDING FOR A 
SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE, AND 
SETTING FORTH OTHER PROVISIONS RELATED THERETO. 

  
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF ALVIN, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
Section 1.       That Article I, Chapter 8; of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, is 
hereby amended, to read as follows: 
 

 
ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL 

 
. . .  
 
Sec. 8-6. National Electrical Code, 2011 2017 Edition, adopted, with Amendments. 
 

(a) The National Electrical Code,  2011 2017 Edition, as adopted by the National Fire 
Protection Association, Inc. with all Annex provisions, and as amended herein, is hereby adopted 
and made a part of this chapter. A copy of such code is incorporated herein by reference and 
made a part hereof for all purposes. An authentic copy of the National Electrical Code,  2011 
2017 Edition, shall be on file with the city clerkCity Secretary. 
 

(1) Article Chapter 100, Part I1, Definitions is hereby amended to read, allowing for a 
termination point for other bonding conductors in addition to communication systems 
that are required by the various model codes. 

 
Intersystem Bonding Termination. A device that provides a means for 
connecting bonding conductors for communication systems and other systems 
such as metallic gas piping systems to the grounding electrode system. 

 
(2) Article 110, Requirements for Electrical Installations, subsection 110.2 Approval, is 

hereby amended to read, to add clarity and provide more positive options for enforcement 
and approval of unlisted equipment. 

 
110.2 Approval. The conductors and equipment required or permitted by this Code shall be 
acceptable only if approved. Approval of equipment may be evident by listing and labeling of 
equipment by a Nationally Recognized Testing Lab (NRTL) with a certification mark of that 
laboratory or a qualified third party inspection agency approved by the AHJ. 
 



Ord. 19-G               Page 2 of 5  

Exception: Unlisted equipment that is relocated to another location within a jurisdiction or is 
field modified is subject to the approval by the AHJ. This approval may be by a field evaluation 
by a NRTL or qualified third party inspection agency approved by the AHJ. 
 
Manufacturer’s self-certification of any equipment shall not be used as a basis for approval by 
the AHJ. 
 

Informational Note:  See 90.7, Examination of Equipment for Safety, and 110.3, 
Examination, Identification, Installation, and Use of Equipment. See definitions of 
Approved, Identified, Labeled, and Listed. 

 
(3) Chapter 500, Special Occupancies, subsection 500.8(A)(3), Equipment, is hereby 

amended to read, to better define the qualifications for an engineering judgment.  
 

500.8 Equipment. Articles 500 through 504 require equipment construction and installation 
standards that ensure safe performance under conditions of proper use and maintenance. 

 
Informational Note No. 1: It is important that inspection authorities and users exercise 
more than ordinary care with regard to installation and maintenance. 
 
Informational Note No. 2: Since there is no consistent relationship between explosion 
properties and ignition temperature, the two are independent requirements. 
 
Informational Note No. 3: Low ambient conditions require special consideration. 
Explosion proof or dust-ignition proof equipment may not be suitable for use at 
temperatures lower than -25°C (-13°F) unless they are identified for low-temperature 
service. However, at low ambient temperatures, flammable concentrations of vapors may 
not exist in a location classified as Class I, Division 1 at normal ambient temperature. 
 

(A) Suitability. Suitability of identified equipment shall be determined by one of the following:     
 
(1)  Equipment listing or labeling  
 
(2)  Evidence of equipment evaluation from a qualified testing laboratory or inspection agency 

concerned with product evaluation   
 
(3)  Evidence acceptable to the authority having jurisdiction such as a manufacturer's self-

evaluation or an engineering judgment signed and sealed by a qualified Licensed 
Professional Engineer.  

 
Informational Note: Additional documentation for equipment may include certificates 
demonstrating compliance with applicable equipment standards, indicating special 
conditions of use, and other pertinent information. Guidelines for certificates may be 
found in ANSI/UL120002:2014 ISA 12.00.02, Certificate Standard for AEx Equipment 
for Hazardous (Classified) Locations. 
 

(4) Subsection 505.7(A), Special Precaution, is hereby amended to read, to better identify 
who is qualified to implement Zone Classification Systems.  

 



Ord. 19-G               Page 3 of 5  

505.7 Special Precaution. Article 505 requires equipment construction and installation that 
ensures safe performance under conditions of proper use and maintenance. 
 
Informational Note No. 1: It is important that inspection authorities and users exercise more than 
ordinary care with regard to the installation and maintenance of electrical equipment in 
hazardous (classified) locations. 
 
Informational Note No. 2: Low ambient conditions require special consideration. Electrical 
equipment depending on the protection techniques described by 505.8(A) may not be suitable for 
use at temperatures lower than -20°C (-4°F) unless they are identified for use at lower 
temperatures. However, at low ambient temperatures, flammable concentrations of vapors may 
not exist in a location classified Class I, Zones 0, 1, or 2 at normal ambient temperature. 
 
(A) Implementation of Zone Classification System. Classification of areas, engineering and 
design, selection of equipment and wiring methods, installation, and inspection shall be 
performed by a qualified Licensed Professional Engineer. 
 
 
Secs. 8-7 - 8-16. Reserved. 

 
Section 2.       That Article V, Chapter 8; of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, is 
hereby amended, to read as follows: 
 

ARTICLE V. WORK PERMITS, INSPECTIONS AND FEES 

 
DIVISION I. PERMITS 

. . . 
Sec. 8-93. Permits for part jobs. 
 
When one electrician completes the rough work, in whole or in part, on any electrical wiring or 
installation of fixtures or equipment and a second electrician is called upon to complete the work 
in whole or in part, then, in that event, a separate permit is required, for which regular fees shall 
be paid for the work to be done. Each electrician shall be held responsible only for the work 
installed by him. Before the second electrician is issued a permit for the completion of electrical 
work on the job, the electrical inspector shall first give three (3) days' notice to the electrician 
holding the original or first permit, if he can be found to show good cause within three (3) days 
why the second permit shall not be issued.  
 
. . .  
 
Sec. 8-94Sec. 8-93. Separate permit required. 

 
A separate permit shall be required for each separate building, store space or apartment, whether 
such unit is metered separately or conjunctively, and a service permit shall be taken on all such 
units, whether supplied from a central metering station or directly from the electrical supply 
agency; except that in trailer courts, the individual trailer disconnect switches shall not be 
deemed services. And, if the permittee does not complete electrical work for which the permit 



Ord. 19-G               Page 4 of 5  

has been issued, then the contractor who finishes such work shall apply for a new permit on such 
work, provided, however, that there shall be only one permit issued or outstanding at the same 
time for any one installation of electrical equipment. 
 
Sec. 8-95Sec. 8-94. Permit to be displayed. 

 
On all new installations, the permit for electrical work shall be displayed in a readily accessible 
location, as directed by the electrical inspector, throughout the time that such installation, as is 
covered by the permit, is being installed. 
 
Sec. 8-96Sec. 8-95. Permit not transferable. 

 
Each permit issued under the terms of this chapter shall be personal to the permittee and shall not 
be assigned or transferred to any other person; and, except as otherwise specifically provided in 
this chapter, it shall be unlawful: 

 
(a) For one person to obtain a permit in the name of another person; or 
 
(b) For one person to suffer, allow or permit another person to obtain a permit in such other 

person’s name; or 
 
(c) For one person to do or perform any electrical work under the permit issued to another 

person; or 
 
(d) For one person to suffer, allow or permit another person to do or perform any electrical 

work under the permit under such other person’s name. 
 
Secs. 8-97Secs.8- 96 – 8-103. Reserved. 
 
. . . 

 
 
Section 3. Savings Clause.  That, except as amended herein, all other provisions of Chapter 
8 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas shall remain in full force and effect.  To the 
extent of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this Ordinance and any other 
ordinance, the provisions of this Ordinance shall control. 
 
Section 4. Severability.  Should any section or part of this Ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 5. Penalty provision.  Any person who shall intentionally, knowingly, recklessly or 
with criminal negligence violate any provision of this Ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a 
misdemeanor and, upon conviction shall be fined an amount not to exceed $2,000.00 for 
violation of any provisions governing fire safety or public health and sanitation and not to exceed 
$500.00 for violation of any other provision.  Each unlawful act or continuing day’s violation 
under this Ordinance shall constitute a separate offense.  The penal provision imposed under this 



Ord. 19-G               Page 5 of 5  

Ordinance shall not preclude the City of Alvin from filing suit to enjoin the violation.  The City 
of Alvin retains all legal rights and remedies available to it pursuant to local, state and federal 
law. 
 
Section 6. Publication.  The City Secretary of the City of Alvin is hereby directed to publish 
this ordinance, or its caption and penalty clause, in one issue of the official City newspaper as 
required by the Charter of the City of Alvin, Texas. 
 
Section 7. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 52 of the Texas Local 
Government Code, and the City of Alvin Charter. 
 
Section 8. Open Meetings Act.   It is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public 
notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this _____ day of ____________________, 2019. 
 
 
THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS   ATTEST 
 
 
By:_____________________________  By:_________________________________ 
 Paul A. Horn, Mayor     Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   5/2/2019 

Department:  Fire Department Contact:  Matt Cornell, Fire Marshal  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Ordinance 19-H, amending Chapter 9, Fire Prevention and Protection, of the 

Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, for the purpose of adopting the 2018 
International Fire Code as published with certain amendments and deletions; by repealing 
sections 9-40 through 9-158 regarding flammable or combustible liquids, as they are 
outdated; adding a new section 9.202 – Fire Alarm Activation; amending Section 9.204 
Fire Department Access; providing for a penalty and publication; and setting forth other 
provisions related thereto. 
 

Type of Item: ☒Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   Periodic adoption of a more current code addition helps to maintain the usefulness of the code by 
keeping up with current technology and terminology.  Current code additions also help to maintain the ISO 
rating for the city.  This adoption helps to clean up chapter 9 of Code of Ordinances by removing outdated 
requirements. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 4/25/2019 SLH 
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 
• Ord. 19-H redline 

 
 
Recommendation:   Move to approve Ordinance 19-H, amending Chapter 9, Fire Prevention and 

Protection, of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, for the purpose of 
adopting the 2018 International Fire Code as published with certain amendments 
and deletions; by repealing sections 9-40 through 9-158 regarding flammable or 
combustible liquids, as they are outdated; adding a new section 9.202 – Fire Alarm 
Activation; amending Section 9.204 Fire Department Access; providing for a 
penalty and publication; and setting forth other provisions related thereto 

 
 
Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 19-H 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 9, FIRE PREVENTION AND 
PROTECTION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF ALVIN, 
TEXAS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF ADOPTING THE 2018 
INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE AS PUBLISHED WITH CERTAIN 
AMENDMENTS AND DELETIONS; BY REPEALING SECTIONS 9-40 
THROUGH 9-158 REGARDING FLAMMABLE OR COMBUSTIBLE 
LIQUIDS, AS THEY ARE OUTDATED; ADDING A NEW SECTION 9.202 
– FIRE ALARM ACTIVATION; AMENDING SECTION 9.204 FIRE 
DEPARTMENT ACCESS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY AND 
PUBLICATION; AND SETTING FORTH OTHER PROVISIONS 
RELATED THERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Alvin, Texas (the “City”) is a Home Rule City possessing the full 

power of local self-government pursuant to Article 11, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution, Section 

51.072 of the Texas Local Government Code, and the City’s Home Rule Charter; and 

WHEREAS, the adoption of the 2018 Edition of the International Fire Code (“IFC”), 

including the local amendments, will provide the most current life safety applications with respect 

to construction, occupancy, use and maintenance of buildings and structures in the City of Alvin; 

and 

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it to be in the best interest of the citizens of the City 

of Alvin to update its fire code standards and adopt the 2018 Edition of the IFC, as amended, as 

the minimum standard for the continued construction, occupancy, use and maintenance of 

buildings and structures within the City’s jurisdictional authority; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to protect the public health, comfort, convenience, 

safety and welfare of the citizens of Alvin;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1. That the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, hereby adopts the findings and 

recitals set forth in the preamble hereof. 



Ord. 19-H  Page 2 of 56 
 

Section 2. That Chapter 9, Fire Prevention and Protection, of the Code of Ordinances, City of 

Alvin, Texas, is hereby amended, to read as follows:  

 
FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION 

 
ARTICLE I.  IN GENERAL 

 



. . . 

Sec. 9-5. - Discharge or sale of fireworks.  

(a) Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this section, shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them in this subsection, except where the context clearly indicates a 
different meaning:  

Distributor means those who sell fireworks to retailers or to jobbers, for resale to others.  
Fireworks means any composition or device designed to produce a visible or audible 

effect by combustion, explosion, deflagration, or detonation, such as firecrackers, cannon 
crackers, skyrockets, torpedoes, Roman candles, sparklers, squibs, fire balloons, sky lanterns, 
star shells, gerbs, or any other substance in whatever combination by any designated name 
intended for use in obtaining visible or audible pyrotechnic display, and such term shall 
include all articles or substances within the commonly accepted meaning of fireworks, 
whether specifically designated and defined in this subsection or not.  

Illegal fireworks means a fireworks device manufactured, distributed, used, sold, offered 
for sale, possessed, kept, discharged, ignited, detonated, or fired in violation of this section.  

Importer means those who import fireworks from a foreign country for sale to 
distributors, jobbers, or retailers within the state.  

Jobber means those who purchase fireworks for resale to consumers only.  
Manufacturer means persons that are engaged in the making of fireworks.  
Person means and includes any natural person, association of persons, partnership, 

corporation, agent, or officer of a corporation, or any other entity howsoever formed and shall 
also include all warehousemen, common and private carriers, bailees, trustees, receivers, 
executors, and administrators.  

Public display means the igniting and shooting of fireworks for public amusements.  
Retailer means those persons who purchase fireworks for resale to consumers only.  

(b) General prohibition. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this section, it shall be 
unlawful for any person to sell, offer to sell, or have in his possession with the intent to sell, 
keep, use, possess, discharge, ignite, detonate, fire, or otherwise set in action any fireworks of 
any description.  

(c) Exceptions. The general prohibitions set forth in subsection (b) shall not apply to the 
following:  
(i) Subsection (b) shall not apply to toy pistols, toy canes, toy guns, or similar devices in 

which paper caps obtaining 0.0025 grains or less of explosive compounds are used, 
provided they are so constructed that the hand cannot come in contact with the cap when 
in place for exploding, and toy paper pistol caps which contain less than 0.0025 grains of 
explosive compounds, the sale and use of which shall be permitted at all times.  

(ii) It shall not be unlawful, upon a permit issued by the fire marshal, for any person engaged 
in any organized play, legitimate theatrical performance, circus, or other show designed 
for the amusement and edification of the general public to use, discharge, or cause to be 
discharged and ignited fireworks as a part of an act, performance, play, or circus, so long 
as such person does not also engage in the retailing, wholesaling, selling, or distribution 
of any of such fireworks. The fire marshal shall cause to be made an investigation of each 



Ord. 19-H             Page 4 of 56 
 

application made under this subsection to determine whether the use of such fireworks as 
proposed shall be of such a character that it may be hazardous to property or dangerous 
to any person; and he shall, in the exercise of reasonable discretion, grant or deny the 
application for such permit.  

(iii) Subsection (b) shall not apply to signal flares and torpedoes of the type and kind 
commonly used by any railroads, which signal flares and torpedoes are received by and 
stored or transported by any railroad operation; nor shall subsection (b) apply to any 
marine signal flare or rocket which is transported or received or stored for use only as 
ship's stores; nor shall subsection (b) apply to signal flares or rockets for military or police 
use; nor shall subsection (b) apply to signal flares for use by motorists in distress.  

(d) Public display exempted. The provisions of subsection (b) shall not apply to a public display 
of fireworks made under the terms and conditions of this subsection, and such display shall 
be permitted upon compliance with the provisions of the city's adopted Fire Prevention Code 
and of this subsection, as follows:  
(i) Any adult person or any firm, co-partnership, corporation or association planning to make 

a public display of fireworks shall first make written application for a permit to the fire 
marshal at least forty-eight (48) hours thirty (30) days in advance of the date of the 
proposed display.  

(ii) It shall be the duty of the fire marshal to make an investigation as to whether the display 
as proposed by the applicant for a permit under this section shall be of such a character 
that it may be hazardous to property or dangerous to any person; and he shall, in the 
exercise of reasonable discretion, grant or deny the application, subject to the conditions 
prescribed in this subsection and the adopted Fire Prevention Code. If the application is 
approved, a permit shall be issued for the public display by the fire marshal. Such permit 
shall be for a period of time designated on the permit, but shall not exceed fourteen (14) 
days, and the permit shall not be transferable. If the application is denied by the fire 
marshal, he shall notify the applicant of the denial in writing.  

(iii) The applicant for a display permit under this subsection shall, at the time of making 
application, furnish proof that he carries compensation insurance for his employees as 
provided by the laws of the state; and he shall file with the fire marshal a certificate of 
insurance evidencing the carrying of public liability insurance in an amount not less than 
three hundred thousand dollars ($300,000.00), issued by an insurance carrier authorized 
to transact business in the state, for the benefit of the person named therein as insured, as 
evidence of ability to respond in damages in at least the amount of three hundred thousand 
dollars ($300,000.00), such policy to be approved by the city manager. In lieu of 
insurance, the applicant may file with the fire marshal a bond in the amount of three 
hundred thousand dollars ($300,000.00), issued by an authorized surety company 
approved by the city manager, conditioned upon the applicant's payment of all damages 
to persons or property which shall or may result from or be caused by such public display 
of fireworks or any negligence on the part of the applicant or his agents, servants, 
employees, or subcontractors in the presentation of the public display.  

(iv) The range of aerial displays shall not be more than two hundred feet (200'), and the 
fireworks shall be discharged vertically from tubes approved by the fire marshal.  

(v) The limit of a display authorized by this subsection shall be not more than forty-five (45) 
minutes per performance, and there shall not be more than two (2) performances in each 
twenty-four (24) hours.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 5 of 56 
 

(vi) No public display of fireworks shall be of such a character and so located, discharged, or 
fired as to be hazardous or dangerous to persons or property, and this determination shall 
be within the sound discretion of the fire marshal.  

(vii) The persons handling the display of fireworks under this subsection shall be competent, 
adult persons, and experienced licensed pyrotechnic operators approved by the fire 
marshal. No person not approved by the fire marshal shall handle fireworks at the public 
display. The names of the experienced pyrotechnic operators shall be designated on the 
permit issued.  

(viii) For each public display of fireworks under this subsection, the fire marshal may 
require that not less than two (2) firefighters of the Alvin Volunteer Fire Department be 
in attendance during the display. The expense of such firefighters at the display shall be 
borne by the applicant for the permit and shall be paid in advance at the time of the 
application for the permit.  

(e) Illegal fireworks declared nuisance.  
(i) Except as otherwise provided in this section, the presence of any fireworks in violation 

of this section located within the city and within the area immediately adjacent and 
contiguous to the city limits extending for a distance outside of the city limits for a total 
of five thousand (5000) feet, is hereby declared to be a common and public nuisance. The 
fire marshal is directed to and shall seize any fireworks found in violation of this section, 
and any authorized deputy of the fire marshal, or any police officer of the city, or any 
other duly-constituted state peace officer is empowered to stop the transportation of 
illegal fireworks and to detain any persons with illegal fireworks or to close any building 
where any fireworks are found stored illegally until the fire marshal can be notified, in 
order that such fireworks may be seized in accordance with the terms of this section.  

(ii) Notwithstanding any penal provision of this section, the city attorney is authorized to file 
suit on behalf of the city, the fire marshal, or both, for such injunctive relief as may be 
necessary to prevent unlawful storage, transportation, keeping, or use of fireworks within 
the city or within the five thousand (5000) foot area described in this section. It shall not 
be necessary to obtain injunctive relief as a prerequisite to seizure of fireworks.  

(iii) If any fireworks or combustibles are deemed by the fire marshal to be in such a state or 
condition as to constitute a hazard to life or property, the fire marshal may dispose of 
such fireworks or combustibles without further process of law. The fire marshal is 
authorized to dispose of any abandoned fireworks or combustibles that he deems to be 
hazardous to life or property.  

(iv) If a person charged is found guilty of violating the provisions of this section or any rule 
or regulation adopted pursuant thereto with regard to fireworks, the fire marshal is 
authorized to dispose of the confiscated material in such a way as he shall deem equitable.  

(f) Penalty for violation of section. Any person who shall violate this section shall be guilty of a 
misdemeanor which shall be punishable by a fine in an amount not to exceed two thousand 
dollars ($2000.00) for each day of violation of this section.  

Sec. 9-7. - False fire alarms.  

No person shall knowingly give or make a false alarm of a fire within the corporate limits of 
the city.  

Sec. 9-8. - Interference with firemen and other officials proceeding to fire.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 6 of 56 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person to interfere with or in any manner obstruct any fireman or 
other city official proceeding to the scene or reported scene of any fire or to make it difficult or 
dangerous for any fireman or other city official to proceed to the scene of a fire.  
Sec. 9-9. - Interference with fire apparatus and equipment generally.  

It shall be unlawful for any person to deface, destroy, injure or molest any fire hose, hose reel, 
ladder, fire or chemical engine or other fire apparatus or equipment belonging to the city or to 
injure or deface any building or structure used to house or protect such apparatus and equipment 
or to interfere or meddle with any fire plug or hydrant within the city.  
Sec. 9-10. - Standing, driving, etc., on or over fire hose or other apparatus.  

It shall be unlawful for any person to stand or step upon or to drive or move any vehicle upon 
or across any fire hose, conductor or apparatus of the fire department of the city, except at the 
direction of a police officer or fireman.  

Sec. 9-11. - Parking or driving vehicle near fire.  

It shall be unlawful for any person to park any vehicle within five hundred (500) feet of any 
fire plug or reservoir where water is being obtained for fire fighting purposes or to park any vehicle 
within such distance of any place or location where a fire is in progress or to drive or operate any 
vehicle within such distance of a fire while it is in progress.  

Sec. 9-12. - Duty of railroads to clear crossings for fire apparatusReserved.  

Whenever a fire alarm is sounded, the conductor or, in his absence, the engineer of any railway 
train which may be standing or moving across any railroad grade crossing of any street, road, 
highway or alley, which is the route selected as the most practical route to any fire for fire 
apparatus, shall immediately remove or cause to be removed or stop such train, if moving, and 
"cut" or disconnect the cars to open a passageway to such fire apparatus, and keep such passageway 
open to vehicular traffic for a period of at least five (5) minutes after the fire alarm has begun to 
sound. If such engineer or conductor has not heard the sound of such fire alarm, he shall 
immediately proceed to open such passageway upon being advised by any volunteer fireman, city 
official or other person apprizing him of the same.  

Sec. 9-13. - Reward for arrest and conviction of arsonist.  

The City of Alvin, Texas, hereby offers a reward of two hundred and fifty dollars ($250.00) 
for the arrest and conviction of any person or persons found guilty of committing the crime of 
arson within the corporate limits of said City of Alvin, Texas.  

This reward is a standing offer and shall be paid out of the general fund of the City of Alvin, 
Texas.  
Sec. 9-14. - International Fire Code, 2009 2018 Edition, adopted; amendments.  

(a) Except as provided in this section, the International Fire Code, 2009 2018 Edition, published 
by the International Code Council, Inc., an authentic copy of which has been filed with the 
city clerkCity Secretary, is hereby adopted and made a part of this division, except as follows:  

(b) The reference to “fire code official” in the International Fire Code shall mean the “fire 
marshal,” or a duly authorized representative charged with the duties of administration and 
enforcement of the code.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 7 of 56 
 

[(1) Reserved. ]  
(2) Section 101.1 is hereby amended to read as follows:  

101.1 Title. These regulations shall be known as the Fire Code of the City of Alvin, Texas, 
hereinafter sometimes referred to as “this code.”  

(3) Section 101.2.1 is hereby amended to read as follows:  
101.2.1 Appendices. All provisions in the appendices are hereby adopted.  

(4) Section 102.7 is hereby amended to read as follows:  
102.7. Referenced codes and standards. The codes and standards referenced in this code 
shall be those that are listed in Chapter 4780 hereof, and such codes and standards shall 
be considered part of the requirements of this code to the prescribed extent of each such 
reference. Where differences occur between the provisions of this code and the referenced 
standards, the provisions of the most restrictive shall apply. Whenever amendments have 
been adopted to the referenced codes and standards, each reference to said code and 
standard shall be considered to reference the amendments as well. This determination 
shall be made by the fire code official.  

(5) Section 103.2 is deleted.  

(6) Section 105.6.32 is amended by deleting the exception.  
(7) Section 108.5 is amended to read as follows:  

108.5 Rendering equipment inoperable.  

(a) Portable or fixed fire-extinguishing systems or devices and fire-warning systems 
shall not be rendered inoperative or inaccessible except as necessary during 
emergencies, maintenance, repairs, alterations, drills or prescribed testing.  

(b) No fire protection system may be taken out of service or allowed to remain out of 
service beyond normal working four (4) hours without the prior approval of the Fire 
Marshal. The Fire Marshal shall be notified prior to any fire sprinkler or standpipe 
system being temporarily or permanently removed from service. No operation 
protected by a fire suppression system may be used or operated while the fire 
suppression system is out of service.  

(8) Section 110.4 is amended to read as follows:  
110.4 Violation penalties. Persons who violate this code or who fail to comply with any 
of the requirements in this code, or who erect, install, alter, repair or do work in violation 
of the approved construction documents or contrary to the directives of the code official 
or in violation of a permit or certificate issued under provisions of this code, shall be 
assessed a fine up to $2,000. Each day that a violation continues after due notice has been 
served shall be deemed a separate offense.  

(9) Section 112.4 is amended to read as follows:  
112.4 Failure to comply. Any person who continues work after having been served with 
a stop work order, except such work the code official has directed to be performed to 
remedy a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subjected to a fine not to exceed $2,000.  

(10) Section 202. The following definitions in Section 202 are amended to read as follows:  



Ord. 19-H             Page 8 of 56 
 

Facility. A building or use in a fixed location, including exterior storage areas, piers, 
wharves, tank farms, and similar uses. This term includes recreational vehicles, mobile 
home parks, manufactured housing parks, sales lots, and storage lots.  

Fire Code Official. The fire marshal or a duly authorized representative charged with the 
duties of administration and enforcement of the code.  

(11) Section 304.1.3.1 is amended to read as follows: 
 Section 304.1.3.1 Spaces under grandstands and bleachers shall not be utilized for 

purposes other than means of egress except where equipped with an automatic fire 
sprinkler system. 

(12) Section 315 is amended by creating the following subsection:  
315.1.1 High-piled combustible storage. High-piled combustible storage shall comply 
with section 3201.  

(13) Section 315.3.1 is amended by deleting the exception. 
(14) Section 401.1 is amended by deleting the exception.  

(15) Section 403 is amended by adding the following:  
403.1.1 Fees. Fire watch fees shall be paid upon completion of fire watch as specified in 
Chapter 28 of the City of Alvin Code of Ordinances.  

403.1.2 Enforceability. The Emergency Preparedness Requirements as described in 403.1 
and approved by the fire code official, shall be complied with and is enforceable under 
provisions of this code. Any person, firm or corporation violating a provision of this 
section shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction shall be subject to a fine 
in accordance with the general penalty section 1-5 of the City of Alvin Code of 
Ordinances.  

(16) Section 503.1.1 is amended to read as follows:  
503.1.1. Buildings and Facilities. Approved fire apparatus access roads shall be provided 
for every facility, building, or portion of a building. The fire apparatus access road shall 
comply with the requirements of this section and shall extend to within 150 feet (45,720 
mm) of all portions of the facility or any portion of the exterior wall of the first story of 
the building as measured by an approved route around the exterior of the building or 
facility.  

Exception: The fire code official is authorized to increase the dimension of 150 feet 
(45,720 mm) where:  

1. The building is equipped throughout with an approved automatic sprinkler system 
installed in accordance with section 903.1.1.1, 903.3.1.2 or 903.3.1.3;  

2. Fire apparatus access roads cannot be installed due to location on property, 
topography, waterways, non-negotiable grades or other similar conditions, and an 
approved alternative means of fire protection is provided; or  

3. There are not more than two Group R-3 or Group U occupancies.  
(17) Section 504 is amended to add a new subsection 504.4 to read as follows:  



Ord. 19-H             Page 9 of 56 
 

504.4 Rear exterior building access. A building that is 40 feet or greater in depth shall 
have an exterior rear access door.  

(18) Section 505.1 is amended to read as follows:  
505.1. Address identification. All new and existing buildings, whether commercial or 
residential, fronting on any street or alley in the city shall be numbered by the owner 
thereof, according to the address assigned to said building by the city engineering 
department.  
 

(a) For residential homes, contrasting numbers will be laced on the residence that is 
facing the street.  If curbs are present, the numbers will be painted on the curbs in 
block lettering with a white box background with black numbering.  If a curb is not 
present, the numbers shall be posted on both sides of a free-standing mailbox in a 
clear and legible manner.  If neither a curb nor free standing mailbox is present, or if 
the residence sits too far off of the roadway and is not visible from the street, numbers 
to the residence will be placed in the yard to show the address so it is visible from the 
street. 
 

(b) The owner(s) of apartments, condominiums, townhomes, patio homes, business and 
industrial complexes having a single or common street address shall have a 
numbering system to identify each individual unit in said complex. Numbers shall be 
affixed by the owner(s) to the entry door of each unit. Separate complex buildings 
containing two (2) or more individual units shall be identified by affixing a building 
number or letter on two (2) sides of said building facing the nearest drivable approach. 
Numbers shall be affixed below said building identification number(s)/letter(s) 
representing the lowest through the highest numbered individual units contained in 
said building. 

 
(c) The owner(s) of hotels, motels, hospitals, nursing/retirement homes, private and 

public schools, or office buildings containing multi-offices shall affix numbers on 
each separate office, room, suite, etc., in said building(s). *Private/executive 
entrances to offices may be exempted by the fire code official.  

 
(d) The owner(s) of a mobile home park having a single or common street address shall 

identify each separate mobile home in said park by affixing numbers to the end or 
side of said mobile home that is most visible when approached by a vehicle. If the 
trailer park has multiple entrances and/or drives, the sign stating the numbers will be 
placed at the beginning of the row or drive to show what numbers are on the 
corresponding sides. 

 
(e) Number sizes, color, and maintenance:  

(1) Commercial and residential street address numbers shall be no less than 
six (6) inches in height and one (1) inch in width.  

(2) Residential street address numbers shall be no less than four (4) inches in 
height and 0.5 inches in width. 

(3) Individual unit identification numbers on apartment/townhome/patio 
home/office doors shall be no less than four (4) inches in height and 0.5 
inches in width.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 10 of 56 
 

(4) Complex building identification numbers/letters shall be no less than 
twelve (12) inches in height. Lowest and highest numbers affixed under 
the building identification shall be no less than four (4) inches in height. 
These numbers need to be in reflective numbering/lettering or be 
illuminated at night. 

(5) Numbers identifying individual units of a multi-unit business/industrial 
complex having outside entrances shall be no less than four (4) inches in 
height.  

(6) All numbers/letters shall be of contrasting color from the surface to which 
they are mounted and need be reflective if so required.  

(7) Numbers/letters shall be properly maintained so that they are clearly 
visible at all times.  
 

(f) Owners shall be provided sixty (60) days notice to become in compliance.   
 

(g) If not in compliance after sixty (60) days, a person will be considered to be in violation 
of this section and shall be guilty of a misdemeanor which shall be punishable by a fine 
of not less than two hundred dollars ($200.00) nor more than two thousand dollars 
($2,000.00). 

(19) Section 507.5.1 is amended to read as follows:  
507.5.1 Where Required. Where a portion of the facility or building hereafter is 
constructed or moved into or within the jurisdiction is more than three hundred (300) feet 
from a hydrant on a fire apparatus road, as measured by an approved route around the 
exterior of the facility or building, on-site fire hydrants and mains shall be provided where 
required by the code official.  

(20) Section 507.5.1 is amended by deleting the exceptions.  

(21) Section 507.5.1.1 is amended to read as follows: 
 507.5.1.1 Hydrant for stand pipe systems.  Buildings equipped with a standpipe system 

installed in accordance with Section 905 shall have a fire hydrant within fifty (50) feet. 
(22) Section 507.5.1.1 is amended by deleting the exception. 

(23) Section 507.5.2 is amended to read as follows:  
507.5.2.1. Cost—The cost of maintaining fire hydrants on private property will be the 
burden of the occupant and/or owner of that property.  

(24) Section 507.5.7 is amended by adding the following:  
507.5.7. Marking. All fire hydrants located in the city shall be identified with a blue 
reflector affixed to the pavement so that a hydrant is readily visible to arriving fire 
companies. On unpaved streets, a blue reflector shall be affixed to a post as close as 
practicable to the edge of the roadway so as to be visible. Specifications of type and 
placement of markers shall be obtained from the fire prevention office.  

(25) Section 604.5.1 is amended to read as follows:  



Ord. 19-H             Page 11 of 56 
 

604.5.1. Power supply. Extension cords shall be plugged directly into an approved 
receptacle and, except for approved multi-plug extension cords, shall serve only one 
portable appliance.  

(26) Section 604.10 is amended by to read as follows:  
604.10. Portable, electric space heaters. Portable, electric space heaters are prohibited in 
all occupancies except for one and two family dwellings.  

(27) Section 903.1.2 is amended to read as follows:  
903.1.2. An approved automatic fire sprinkler system meeting the requirements of section 
903 shall be installed in buildings as follows:  

(a) All buildings having a fire area exceeding 12,000 sq. ft.  
Exception: If there is a conflict between this section and other sections of this code, 
the most restrictive requirement shall apply.  

(b) Any building constructed after October 20, 2005 that exceeds 20,000 sq. ft. or any 
attached construction, alteration, or addition to an existing structure of any group that 
causes the structure to exceed 20,000 sq. ft. For purposes of this section, an automatic 
fire sprinkler system shall be installed in the non-conforming or existing structure in 
addition to the new construction area.  

(28) Section 903.2 is amended to read as follows:  
903.2 Where required. Approved automatic sprinkler systems in new buildings and 
structures shall be provided in the locations described in this section or when the gross 
square footage of the building or structure exceeds twelve thousand (12,000) square feet.  

(29) Section 903.2.1.5.1 is amended by adding the following:  
 903.2.1.5.1 Spaces under grandstands and bleachers.  Enclosed spaces under grandstands 

and bleachers shall be, equipped with an automatic sprinkler system in accordance with 
Section 903.1.1. 

(30) Section 903.2.6 is amended by adding the following: 
903.2.6.1 Facilities housing individuals incapable of self-preservation. Any facility, other 

than a foster home that houses individuals that are incapable of self-preservation, as 
defined by the Life Safety Code, N.F.P.A. 72 fire alarm and N.F.P.A. 13 automatic 
sprinkler.  
Exception:  

1. In the case of a personal care facility, child-care, group home or in-home residential 
child care that houses fewer than six clients, including a person who is incapable of 
self-preservation, a 13 R or 13 D automatic sprinkler shall be acceptable.  

2. In the case of a personal care facility, child-care, group home, or in-home residential 
child care that houses fewer than six clients, including a person who is incapable of 
self-preservation, a residential automatic fire alarm system with smoke detection 
shall be acceptable.  

(27) Section 903.2.6 is amended by adding the following:  



Ord. 19-H             Page 12 of 56 
 

903.2.6.2 Inspection by Fire Marshal. The City of Alvin Fire Marshal or their designee 
shall inspect all registered and licensed personal care facilities, foster care facilities, foster 
care, child-care, and group homes within the City of Alvin for compliance with the fire 
code.  

(28) Section 903.2.8 is amended to read as follows:  
903.2.8 Group R. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout all 
buildings with a Group R occupancy fire area, including attached balconies, storage 
closets, patios, porches, breezeways, car ports, and porte chaches, regardless of fire 
separations.  

(29) Section 903.3.7 is amended to read as follows:  
903.3.7 Fire Department connections. The fire department connection (FDC) shall be 
located at a point no further than twenty (20) feet from a fire apparatus access road, 
remotely located at a horizontal distance that is greater than the height of the building on 
the main street side, and easily accessible to the Fire Department. The location of the 
FDC shall be such so as to provide hose connections that shall not block access to the 
building or obstruct other fire apparatus from accessing the building. There shall be an 
approved sign as specified by the Fire Marshal designating the address served by the 
FDC. A fire hydrant shall be located within fifty feet (50) feet of the FDC measured along 
a fire apparatus road.  

(30) Section 905.5 is amended to read as follows:  
905.5.1 Groups A-1 and A-2. In Group A-1 and A-2 occupancies with occupant loads of 
more than 500, Class I or Class III hose connections shall be located on each side of any 
stage, on each side of the rear of auditorium, on each side of the balcony, and on each tier 
of dressing rooms.  

(31) Section 907.1.2 is amended to read as follows:  
907.1.2.1 All new fire alarm systems installed in structures with more than one story, or 
larger than five thousand (5,000) square feet shall be addressable and communication 
devices shall be compatible for emergency force notification. The system shall have 
occupant notification throughout the building in compliance with ADA requirements, and 
manual pull stations with audible tamper covers shall be required by all exits regardless 
of any conflicting provision in the code.  

(32) Section 907.2.1.1 is amended to read as follows:  
907.2.1.1 System initiation in Group A occupancies with an occupant load of 300 or more. 
All new and existing assembly buildings with and occupant load of 300 or greater shall 
install Emergency Voice Evacuation (EVAC) systems in accordance with NFPA 72.  

(33)  Section 907.6.6 is amended to read as follows:  
907.6.6 Monitoring. Where required by this chapter, an approved supervising station in 
accordance with NFPA 72 shall monitor fire alarm systems. All alarm activations 
monitored by an approved supervising station shall not be subject to pre-qualification. 
Instead, the fire department shall immediately be notified of all alarm activations.  

(34) Section 1029.1.1.1 is amended to read as follows: 



Ord. 19-H             Page 13 of 56 
 

 1029.1.1.1 Spaces under grandstands and bleachers.  Enclosed spaces under grandstands 
and bleachers shall be equipped with an automatic sprinkler system in accordance with 
Section 903.3.1.1. 

(35) Section 1029.1.1.1 is amended by deleting the exception. 

(36) Section 2804.1 is amended by adding the following section: 
 2804.1.1 Facilities covered under Chapter 2804 shall have sufficient water supply and 

equipment to self-sustain fire extinguishment within one hour of fire department 
response. 

(37) Section 3107.12.4  is amended to read as follows:  
3107.12.4 Operations such as warming of foods, cooking demonstrations, and similar 
operations that use solid flammables, butane, or other similar devices which do not pose 
an ignition hazard may be approved.  

(38) Section 3405.8 is amended to read as follows:  
3405.8 Off-Loading of Trucks. All incoming tires by truck or trailer shall be off-loaded 
within four (4) hours and worked into stock on non-combustible racks as required for all 
tire storage. Tires are not to be left on the ground at the end of the workday and the truck 
or trailer transporting the incoming tires shall be removed from the site immediately 
following off-loading.  

(39) Section 5704 is amended to add new subsections 5704.2.7.1.1, 5704.2.7.1.2, 5704.2.7.1.3, 
5704.2.7.1.4 and 5704.2.7.1.5 to read as follows:  
5704.2.7.1.1. Vaulted aboveground tanks shall consist of an interior steel tank which is 
U.L. listed in accordance with U.L. Standard 142 “Steel Aboveground Tanks for 
Flammable and Combustible Liquids” and a secondary containment liner located within 
the concrete vault. The entire vaulted tank assembly shall be U.L. listed in accordance 
with U.L. Subject 2085, Protected Type.  

5704.2.7.1.2. All interior steel tanks of vaulted aboveground tanks shall meet the 
requirements of NFPA 30 for aboveground tanks including those for venting.  

5704.2.7.1.3. All steel tank openings within the vaulted aboveground tanks shall be 
threaded except for detector tubes.  

5704.2.7.1.4. All portions of the interior steel tank within the vaulted aboveground tank, 
and secondary containment liner, shall be enclosed in no less than six (6) inches of 
reinforced concrete with all openings located above the normal liquid level.  

5704.2.7.1.5. All vaults for vaulted aboveground tanks shall meet the following 
requirements:  

1. Be placed on a reinforced concrete pad adequate to support the loading of a full vault 
in accordance with manufacturers' recommendations;  

2. Have a five gallon minimum over-fill containment;  

3. Have leak detection devices installed and operational at all times.  
(40) Section 5706.2.4.4 is amended to read as follows:  



Ord. 19-H             Page 14 of 56 
 

5706.2.4.4 Locations where aboveground tanks are prohibited. The storage of Class I and 
II liquids in aboveground tanks is prohibited unless otherwise approved by the fire 
official. The aggregate capacity of any one installation shall not exceed a water capacity 
of 2,000 gallons, unless otherwise approved by the fire official.  

(41) Section 6104.2 is amended to read as follows:  
6104.2 Maximum capacity within established limits. Tanks are prohibited unless 
otherwise approved by the fire official. The aggregate capacity of any one installation 
shall not exceed a water capacity of 2,000 gallons, unless otherwise approved by the fire 
official. 

 (42) Chapter 80 Reference Standards is amended to include the following: 

 Buildings, installations, equipment, processes or procedures not specifically provided for 
in the International Fire Code shall comply with the most recent standards of National 
Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Chapter 1 The National Fire Code or Chapter 101 
The Life Safety Code. 

 

Sec. 9-15. - Storage of liquified petroleum gas and containers in multifamily dwellings, etc.  

(a) Application. This section shall apply to all structures, buildings or premises used or designed 
for multifamily dwellings, apartment houses, condominiums, hotels or motels.  

(b) Prohibition. No person shall store, place or keep liquified petroleum gas, or any container 
designed or used to contain liquified petroleum gas, in any of the following locations:  

(1) Upon any balcony;  
(2) Within any building;  

(3) Within twenty (20) ten (10) feet of any residential building; or  
(4) Within twenty (20) ten (10) feet of any adjoining property line.  

(c) Defense. It shall not be a defense to this section that such balcony or building is actually used 
by only a single family or residential unit; provided, that such balcony or building is part of a 
building or structure described herein.  

Sec. 9-16. - Incinerators and barbecue pits in multifamily dwellings, etc.  

(a) Application. This section shall apply to all structures, buildings or premises used or designed 
for multifamily dwellings, apartment houses, condominiums, hotels or motels.  

(b) General prohibition. No person shall construct, erect, install, maintain or use any incinerator 
or barbecue pit, or burn any combustible material, so as to constitute or cause a fire hazard, or 
so as to endanger the life or property of any person.  

(c) Incinerators or barbecue pits, etc., prohibited. No person shall construct, erect, install, 
maintain or use any incinerator or barbecue pit, or burn any combustible material under any 
of the following conditions, each of which is hereby found to specifically constitute a fire 
hazard:  
(1) Within five (5) ten (10) linear feet of any combustible surface, including, but not limited 

to, a deck, a porch, a balcony, a wall or a veranda; or  



Ord. 19-H             Page 15 of 56 
 

(2) Beneath any balcony, porch, roof overhand, deck or veranda.  
(d) Exception for electric barbecue pits. Electric barbecue pits are excepted from this section, 

provided that they have no open flame and they are equipped with, and there is present, a 
noncombustible metal lid, with a handle, fitting over the entire cooking surface.  

Sec. 9-17. - Fire hazard found and offense fixed.  

(a) The city council finds that any violation of sections 9-15, 9-16 and this section constitutes a 
fire hazard and a danger to property and human life, and a danger to the health, safety and 
welfare of the people of the city.  

(b) Any person violating any of the provisions herein shall be guilty of an offense. A person shall 
be guilty of an offense if such person:  
(1) Owns, operates, occupies, leases, lets or controls any premises described herein, and  

(2) Such person either:  
a. Knowingly permits any violation of any provision herein on such premises; or  
b. Fails to take immediate action to abate any violation of any provision herein on such 

premises when ordered or notified to do so by the fire marshal or his duly authorized 
representative.  

Neither this section nor sections 9-15 or 9-16 shall impair any other ordinances providing offenses 
or penalties.  

Secs. 9-18, 9-19. - Reserved. 

ARTICLE II. – FIRE MARSHALL 

Sec. 9-20. Office created independent of other departmentsunder the Fire 
Administrator/Fire Chief.  

The office of fire marshal is hereby created, .  the The fire marshal shall be appointed by the city 
managerreport to the Fire Administrator/Fire Chief.  

Sec. 9-21. - Reserved.  

Sec. 9-22. - Qualifications; removal.  

The fire marshal shall be properly qualified certified by the Texas Commission on Fire 
Protection and Texas Commission on Law Enforcement for the duties of his/her office and shall 
be removed only for cause.  

. . . 

Sec. 9-29. - Inspection of premises; removal or repair of dangerous conditions.  

The fire marshal, upon complaint of any person having an interest in any building or property 
adjacent, and without any complaint, shall have a right at all reasonable hours, for the purpose of 
examination, to enter into and upon all buildings and premises within the city, and it shall be his 
the Fire Marshal’s duty, monthly annually or more often, to enter upon and make or cause to be 



Ord. 19-H             Page 16 of 56 
 

entered and made, a thorough examination of all mercantile, manufacturing and public buildings, 
together with the premises belonging thereto. Whenever he the fire marshal shall find any building 
or other structure which, for want of repair, or by reason of age or dilapidated condition, or for any 
cause, is especially liable to fire, and which is so situated as to endanger other buildings or 
property, or so occupied that fire would endanger persons or property therein, and whenever he 
the fire marshal shall find an improper or dangerous arrangement of stoves, ranges, furnaces or 
other heating appliances of any kind whatsoever, including chimneys, flues and pipes with which 
the same may be connected, or a dangerous arrangement of lighting devices or systems, or a 
dangerous or unlawful storage of explosives, compounds, petroleum, gasoline, kerosene, 
dangerous chemicals, vegetable products, ashes, combustible, inflammable and refuse materials, 
or other conditions which may be dangerous in character or liable to cause or promote fire or create 
conditions dangerous to the firemen or occupants, he the fire marshal shall order the same to be 
removed or remedied, and such order shall be forthwith complied with by the owner or occupant 
of the building or premises. If such owner or occupant deems himself themselves aggrieved by 
such order, he they may, within five (5) days, appeal to the city councilBuilding Board of 
Adjustments and Appeals, which shall investigate the cause of the complaint and, unless by its 
authority the order is revoked, such order shall remain in force and be forthwith complied with by 
the owner or occupant. Any owner or occupant who fails to comply with such notice shall be guilty 
of a misdemeanor.  
Sec. 9-30. - Right of entry.  

The fire marshal shall have the authority, at all times of day or night, when necessary in the 
performance of the duties imposed upon him by the provisions of this article, to enter upon and 
examine any building or premises where any fire has occurred, and other buildings and premises 
adjoining or near the same, which authority shall be exercised only with reason and good 
discretion.  

Sec. 9-31. - Records to be kept.  

The fire marshal Fire Administrator/Fire Chief or their designee shall be responsible for 
keeping records shall keep in his office a record of all fires, together with all facts, statistics and 
circumstances, including the origin of the fires and the amount of loss, which may be determined 
by the investigation required by this article.  
Sec. 9-32. - Monthly reports to state fire marshal.  

At the end of each month, the fire marshal Annually, the Fire Administrator/Fire Chief or their 
designee shall report to the state fire marshal all existing hazardous conditions, together with a 
separate report on each fire in the city during the month.  

Secs. 9-33—9-38. - Reserved.  

ARTICLE III. - FLAMMABLE OR COMBUSTIBLE LIQUIDS 

DIVISION 1. – GENERALLY 

Sec. 9-39. - Applicability of article; violation. 

Buildings, installations, equipment, processes or procedures involving the storage, handling or 
use of flammable or combustible liquids and not specifically provided for in the International 



Ord. 19-H             Page 17 of 56 
 

Fire Code shall comply with the most recent standards in Chapter 30 of the Flammable & 
Combustible Liquids Code, National Fire Protection Association (NFPA).  

(a) This article shall apply to all persons, firms, corporations, co-partnerships, governmental 
agencies except federal, and voluntary associations storing, handling or using flammable or 
combustible liquids and to the owner or lessee of any building, premises, or equipment in or 
on which flammable or combustible liquids are stored, handled, or used.  

(b) Any person, firm, corporation, co-partnership or other business entity which fails to comply 
with this article shall be guilty of a misdemeanor.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 1, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-40. - Compliance required; applicability to existing service.  

Any plants, store, equipment, building, structure or installation for the storage, handling, or 
use of flammable or combustible liquids which is in service as of January 5, 1967, and which is 
not in strict compliance with the provisions of this article, may be continued in such use unless the 
fire marshal finds that such use constitutes a distinct hazard to life or adjoining property. When 
the fire marshal deems that the continued use will constitute a distinct hazard to life or adjoining 
property, he shall notify the owner or operator of such facility and specify reasons in writing.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 2, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-41. - Modification; granting of exemptions.  

The city council shall have the power to grant exemption from application of the article upon 
request in writing so to do when such request shows that the enforcement of the article will cause 
unnecessary hardship to the petitioner, provided that said request shall not be granted where the 
requested use will constitute a distinct hazard to life or adjoining property. The particulars of such 
exemptions when granted shall be entered upon the approval granted. A copy thereof shall be 
retained by the city manager.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 5, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-42. - Definitions.  

Atmospheric tank shall mean a storage tank which has been designed to operate at pressures 
from atmospheric through 0.5 psig.  

Automotive service station shall mean that portion of a property where flammable or 
combustible liquids used as motor fuels are stored and dispensed from equipment into the fuel 
tanks of motor vehicles.  

Barrel shall mean a volume of forty-two (42) U.S. gallons.  
Boiling point shall mean the boiling point at a pressure of 14.7 psia (760 mm). Where an 

accurate boiling point is unavailable for the material in question, or for mixtures which do not have 
a constant boiling point, for purposes of this article the 10 percent point of a distillation performed 
in accordance with the Standard Method of Test for Distillation of Petroleum Products, ASTM D-
86-62, may be used as the boiling point of the liquid.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 18 of 56 
 

Boil-over shall mean the expulsion of crude oil (or certain other liquids) from a burning tank. 
The light fractions of the crude oil burn off producing a heat wave in the residue, which on reaching 
a water strata may result in the expulsion of a portion of the contents of the tank in the form of 
froth.  

Bulk plant shall mean that portion of a property where flammable liquids are received by tank 
vessel, pipe lines, tank car, or tank vehicle, and are stored or blended in bulk for the purpose of 
distributing such liquids by tank vessel, pipe line, tank car, tank vehicle, or container.  

Chemical plant shall mean a large integrated plant or that portion of such a plant other than a 
refinery or distillery where flammable or combustible liquids are produced by chemical reactions 
or used in chemical reactions.  

Closed container shall mean a container as herein defined, so sealed by means of a lid or other 
device that neither liquid nor vapor will escape from it at ordinary temperatures.  

Combustible liquids (See Liquids).  
Container shall mean any can, barrel or drum.  
Crude petroleum shall mean hydrocarbon mixtures that have a flashpoint below 150° F. and 

which have not been processed in a refinery.  
Distillery shall mean a plant or that portion of a plant where flammable or combustible liquids 

produced by fermentation are concentrated, and where the concentrated products may also be 
mixed, stored, or packaged.  

Flash point of the liquid shall mean the temperature at which it gives off vapor sufficient to 
form an ignitable mixture with the air near the surface of the liquid or within the vessel used as 
determined by appropriate test procedure and apparatus as specified below.  

(a) The flash point of liquids having a flash point at or below 175°F. (79°C.), except for fuel 
oils and certain viscous materials, shall be determined in accordance with the Standard 
Method of Test for Flash Point by the Tag Closed Tester, ASTM D-56-61.  

(b) The flash point of liquids having a flash point above 175°F., except for fuel oils, shall be 
determined in accordance with the Standard Method of Test for Flash Point by the 
Cleveland Open Cup Tester, ASTM D-92-57.  

(c) The flash point of fuel oil, and certain viscous materials having a flash point at or below 
175°F., shall be determined in accordance with the Standard Method of Test for Flash 
Point by the Pensky-Martens Closed Tester, ASTM D-93-62.  

Liquid shall mean, when not otherwise identified, to include both flammable and combustible 
liquids.  

Combustible liquid shall mean any liquid having a flash point at or above 140°F. (60°C.) and 
shall be known as Class III Liquids. Class IIIA shall include those having flash points at or above 
140°F. (60°C.) and below 200°F. (93.4°C.) Class IIIB shall include those having flash points at or 
above 200°F. (93.4°C.). This article does not cover Class IIIB liquids. Where the term combustible 
liquids or Class III liquids is used in this article, it shall mean only Class IIIA liquids.  

Flammable liquids shall mean any liquid having a flash point below 140°F. and having a vapor 
pressure not exceeding 40 pounds per square inch (absolute) at 100°F. Flammable liquids shall be 
divided into two classes of liquids as follows:  



Ord. 19-H             Page 19 of 56 
 

CLASS I liquids shall include those having flash points below 100°F. and may be 
subdivided as follows:  

CLASS IA shall include those having flash points below 73°F. and having a boiling point 
below 100°F.  

CLASS IB shall include those having flash points below 73°F. and having a boiling point at 
or above 100°F.  

CLASS IC shall include those having flash points at or above 73°F. and below 100°F.  
CLASS II liquids shall include those having flash points at or above 100°F. and below 

140°F. (The volatility of liquids is increased when artificially heated to temperatures 
equal to or higher than their flash points. When so heated Class II and Class III liquids 
shall be subject to the applicable requirements for Class I or II liquids.  
This article may also be applied to high flash point liquids when so heated even though 
these same liquids when not heated are outside of its scope.)  

Unstable (reactive) liquid shall mean a liquid which in the pure state or as commercially 
produced or transported will vigorously polymerize, decompose, condense or will become self-
reactive under conditions of shock, pressure or temperature.  

Low pressure tank shall mean a storage tank which has been designed to operate at pressures 
above 0.5 psig but not more than fifteen (15) psig.  

Pressure vessel shall mean a storage tank or vessel which has been designed to operate at 
pressures above fifteen (15) psig.  

Protection for exposures shall mean fire protection for structures on property adjacent to 
tanks. Structures located within the city limits or within or adjacent to plants having private fire 
brigades shall be considered as having adequate protection for exposures.  

Refinery shall mean a plant in which flammable or combustible liquids are produced on a 
commercial scale from crude petroleum natural gasoline, or other hydrocarbon sources.  

Safety can shall mean an approved container, of not over five gallons capacity, having a 
spring-closing lid and spout cover and so designed that it will safely relieve internal pressure when 
subjected to fire exposure.  

Vapor pressure shall mean the pressure, measured in pounds per square inch (absolute) 
exerted by a volatile liquid as determined by the "Standard Method of Test for Vapor Pressure of 
Petroleum Products (Reid Method)", ASTM D-323-58.  

Ventilation as specified in this article is for the prevention of fire and explosion. It is 
considered adequate if it is sufficient to prevent accumulation of significant quantities of vapor-air 
mixtures in concentration over one-fourth of the lower flammable limit.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 6, 1-5-67)  

Cross reference— General rules of construction, § 1-2.  

Secs. 9-43—9-48. - Reserved.  

DIVISION 2. - PERMIT  



Ord. 19-H             Page 20 of 56 
 

 

Sec. 9-49. - Required.  

A permit issued pursuant to this article shall be obtained from the city manager for any of the 
following:  

(a) Storage, handling or use of Class I liquids in excess of one gallon in a dwelling or other 
place of human habitation; or in excess of six (6) gallons in any other building or other 
occupancy; or in excess of ten gallons outside of any building; except that no approval 
shall be required for the following:  
(1) For the storage or use of flammable or combustible liquids in the fuel tank or 

supplementary fuel containers of a motor vehicle, aircraft, motorboat, mobile power 
plant, or mobile heating plant.  

(2) For the storage or use of paints, oils, varnishes, or similar flammable mixtures when 
such liquids are stored for maintenance, painting, or similar purposes for a period of 
not more than thirty (30) days.  

(b) Storage, handling, or use of Class II or Class III flammable liquids in excess of twenty-
five (25) gallons in a building; or in excess of sixty (60) gallons outside of a building.  

(c) For the manufacture, processing, blending, or refining of flammable or combustible 
liquids.  

(d) For the storage of flammable or combustible liquids in stationary tanks.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 3, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-50. - Application, inspection and approval prerequisite to issuance.  

Application for approval to construct or erect facilities for the storage, handling, or use of 
flammable or combustible liquids as herein required shall be made in writing to the city secretary. 
The fire marshal shall then cause to be made an inspection of the premises and equipment proposed 
to be used. If they are found to be in compliance with this article, a statement to that effect shall 
be noted on the application and the application signed by the person making the inspection. The 
city manager shall thereupon grant approval as applied for.  

Before operating any equipment or storing any flammable or combustible liquid, or covering 
the underground portions of any such equipment for which an approval is required, notification 
shall be given to the fire marshal and he shall, within two (2) working days thereof, cause such 
premises or equipment to be inspected.  

The fire marshal may at any reasonable time inspect premises, buildings, installations, or 
equipment for the storage, handling, or use of flammable or combustible liquids. If a violation of 
this article is found to exist, he shall file with the owner, occupant, or operator, a notice citing the 
violation and ordering its correction. If such order is not complied with, the city manager may 
suspend the approval granted for such facility.  

Containers, tanks, equipment and apparatus meeting the standards of nationally recognized 
inspection or test laboratories shall be considered as meeting the requirements of this section.  

Buildings, installations, equipment, processes or procedures involving the storage, handling 
or use of flammable or combustible liquids and not specifically provided for in this section shall 



Ord. 19-H             Page 21 of 56 
 

comply with standards therefor as recommended in Pamphlet No. 30, Issue of 1966, National Fire 
Protection Association.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 4, 1-5-67)  

Cross reference— Inspection by fire marshal generally, § 9-29; right of entry, § 9-30.  

Secs. 9-51—9-56. - Reserved.  

DIVISION 3. - DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF TANKS  

 

Sec. 9-57. - Materials.  

(a) Tanks shall be built of steel except as provided in subsections (b), (c) and (d). Tanks may have 
combustible or noncombustible linings. Special engineering consideration shall be required if 
the specific gravity of the liquid to be stored exceeds that of water or if the tanks are designed 
to contain flammable or combustible liquids at a liquid temperature below zero degrees 
Fahrenheit.  

(b) Tanks may be built of materials other than steel for installation underground or if required by 
the properties of the flammable or combustible liquid stored. Tanks located aboveground or 
inside buildings shall be of noncombustible construction.  

(c) Tanks built of materials other than steel shall be designed to specifications embodying 
principles recognized as good engineering design for the material used and shall be approved 
by the fire marshal.  

(d) Unlined concrete tanks may be used for storing flammable or combustible liquids having a 
gravity of forty (40) degrees API or heavier. Concrete tanks with special lining may be used 
for other services provided the design is in accordance with sound engineering practice.  

(e) Tanks may have combustible or noncombustible linings.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 7-1, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-58. - Fabrication.  

(a) Tanks may be of any shape or type consistent with sound engineering design.  
(b) Metal tanks shall be welded, riveted and caulked, brazed, or bolted, or constructed by use of 

a combination of these methods. Filler metal used in brazing shall be nonferrous metal or an 
alloy having a melting point above 1000° F. and below that of the metal joined.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 7-2, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-59. - Atmospheric tanks.  

(a) Atmospheric tanks shall be built in accordance with approved standards of design. 
Atmospheric tanks may be built in accordance with:  



Ord. 19-H             Page 22 of 56 
 

(1) Underwriters' Laboratories, Inc., Subject No. 142, Standard for Aboveground Tanks for 
Flammable Liquids, 2nd Edition, October 1953; No. 58, Standard for Underground 
Storage Tanks, 5th Edition, December 1961; or No. 80, Standard for Inside Tanks for Oil-
Burner Fuel, 4th Edition, February 1958.  

(2) American Petroleum Institute Standards No. 12a, Specifications for Oil Storage Tanks 
with Riveted Shell, 7th Edition, September 1951 or No. 650, Welded Steel Tanks for Oil 
Storage, 1st Edition, December 1961, and Supplement, February 1963. Tanks which 
incorporate an internal metal floating cover with a fixed metal roof with adequate 
ventilation at the eaves of the roof are considered floating roof tanks.  

(3) American Petroleum Institute Standards No. 12B, Specifications for Bolted Production 
Tanks, 11th Edition, May 1958 and Supplement I, March 1962; No. 12D, Specification 
for Large Welded Production Tanks, 7th Edition, August 1957; or No. 12F, Specification 
for Small Welded Production Tanks, 5th Edition, March 1961. Tanks built in accordance 
with these standards shall be used only as production tanks for storage of crude petroleum 
in oil producing areas.  

(b) Tanks designed for underground service not exceeding two thousand five hundred (2,500) 
gallons capacity may be used aboveground.  

(c) Low pressure tanks and pressure vessels may be used as atmospheric tanks.  
(d) Atmospheric tanks shall not be used for the storage of a flammable or combustible liquid at a 

temperature at or above its boiling point.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 7-3, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-60. - Low pressure tanks.  

(a) The normal operating pressure of the tank shall not exceed the design pressure of the tank.  
(b) Low pressure tanks shall be built in accordance with approved standards of design. Low 

pressure tanks may be built in accordance with:  
(1) American Petroleum Institute Standard No. 620, Recommended Rules for the Design and 

Construction of Large, Welded, Low Pressure Storage Tanks, First Edition, February 
1956 and Addenda February 1958.  

(2) The Principles of the Code for Unfired Pressure Vessels, Section VIII of the ASME Boiler 
and Pressure Vessels Code, 1965 Edition.  

Atmospheric tanks built according to Underwriter Laboratories', Inc. requirements 
in paragraph 7-31(a) may be used for operating pressures not exceeding 1 psig and shall 
be limited to 2.5 psig under emergency venting conditions.  

Pressure vessels may be used as low pressure tanks.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 7-4, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-61. - Pressure vessels.  

The normal operating pressure of the vessel shall not exceed the design pressure of the vessel.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 23 of 56 
 

Pressure vessels shall be built in accordance with the Code for Unfired Pressure Vessels, 
Section VIII of the ASME Boiler and Pressure Vessels Code, 1965 Edition.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 7-5, 1-5-67)  

Secs. 9-62—9-67. - Reserved.  

DIVISION 4. - INSTALLATION OF OUTSIDE ABOVEGROUND TANKS  

 

Sec. 9-68. - Location with respect to property lines and public ways.  

(a) Every aboveground tank for the storage of flammable or combustible liquids, except those 
liquids with boil-over characteristics and unstable liquids, operating at pressures not in excess 
of 2.5 psig and equipped with emergency venting which will not permit pressures to exceed 
2.5 psig shall be located in accordance with Table 1.  

Table I  

Type of  
 Tank  Protection  

Minimum Distance in 
Feet  

from Property Line  
Which May be Built 

Upon,  
Including the 

Opposite  
Side of a Public Way  

Minimum Distance in 
Feet  

from Nearest Side of  
Any Public Way or  

from Nearest 
Important  
Building  

Floating Roof  

Protection for 
exposures  

½ times diameter of 
tank but need not 

exceed 90 feet  

1/6 times diameter of 
tank but need not 

exceed 30 feet  

None  
Diameter of tank but 
need not exceed 175 

feet  

1/6 times diameter of 
tank but need not 

exceed 30 feet  

Vertical with Weak 
Roof to Shell Seam  

Approved foam or 
inerting system on the 

tank  

½ times diameter of 
tank but need not 

exceed 90 feet and 
shall not be less than 5 

feet  

1/6 times diameter of 
tank but need not 

exceed 30 feet and 
shall not be less than 5 

feet  



Ord. 19-H             Page 24 of 56 
 

Protection for 
Exposures  

Diameter of tank but 
need not exceed 175 

feet  

1/3 times diameter of 
tank but need not 

exceed 60 feet  

None  
2 times diameter of 
tank but need not 
exceed 350 feet  

1/3 times diameter of 
tank but need not 

exceed 60 feet  

Horizontal and 
Vertical, with 

Emergency Relief 
Venting to Limit 

Pressures to 2.5 psig  

Approved inerting 
system on the tank or 

approved foam 
system on vertical 

tanks  

½ times Table V but 
shall not be less than 5 

feet  

½ times Table V but 
shall not be less than 5 

feet  

Protection for 
Exposures  Table V  Table V  

None  2 times Table V  Table V  

  

(b) Every aboveground tank for the storage of flammable or combustible liquids, except those 
liquids with boil-over characteristics and unstable liquids, operating at pressures exceeding 
2.5 psig or equipped with emergency venting which will permit pressures to exceed 2.5 psig, 
shall be located in accordance with Table II.  

Table II  

Type of  
 Tank  Protection  

Minimum Distance in Feet  
from Property Line  

Which May be Built Upon,  
Including the Opposite  
Side of a Public Way  

Minimum Distance in Feet  
from Nearest Side of  
Any Public Way or  

from Nearest Important  
Building  

Any 
Type  

Protection for 
Exposures  

1½ times Table V but shall not 
be less than 25 feet  

1½ times Table V but shall not 
be less than 25 feet  

None  3 times Table V but shall not be 
less than 50 feet  

1½ times Table V but shall not 
be less than 25 feet  

  

*Special consideration may be given to tanks equipped with automatic depressuring systems.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 25 of 56 
 

(c) Every aboveground tank for the storage of flammable or combustible liquids with boil-over 
characteristics shall be located in accordance with Table III.  

Table III  

Type of  
 Tank  Protection  

Minimum Distance in Feet  
from Property Line  

Which May be Built Upon,  
Including the Opposite  
Side of a Public Way  

Minimum Distance in Feet  
from Nearest Side of  
Any Public Way or  

from Nearest Important  
Building  

Floating 
Roof  

Protection for 
Exposures  

Diameter of tank but need 
not exceed 175 feet  

1/3 times diameter of tank but 
need not exceed 60 feet  

None  2 times diameter of tank but 
need not exceed 350 feet  

1/3 times diameter of tank but 
need not exceed 60 feet  

Fixed 
Roof  

Approved foam or 
inerting system  

Diameter of tank but need 
not exceed 175 feet  

1/3 times diameter of tank but 
need not exceed 60 feet  

Protection for 
Exposures  

2 times diameter of tank but 
need not exceed 350 feet  

2/3 times diameter of tank but 
need not exceed 120 feet  

None  4 times diameter of tank but 
need not exceed 350 feet  

2/3 times diameter of tank but 
need not exceed 120 feet  

  

(d) Every aboveground tank for the storage of unstable liquids shall be located in accordance with 
Table IV.  

Table IV  

Type of  
 Tank  Protection  

Minimum 
Distance in 

Feet  
from Property 

Line  
Which May be 

Built Upon,  
Including the 

Opposite  
Side of a 

Public Way  

Minimum 
Distance in 

Feet  
from 

Nearest Side 
of  

Any Public 
Way or  

from 
Nearest 



Ord. 19-H             Page 26 of 56 
 

Important  
Building  

Horizontal and Vertical 
Tanks with Emergency 

Relief Venting to Permit 
Pressure Not in Excess of 

2.5 psig  

Tank protected with any one of the 
following: Approved water spray, 

Approved inerting, Approved 
insulation and refrigeration, 

Approved barricade  

Table V but 
not less than 

25 feet  

Not less 
than 25 feet  

Protection for Exposures  
2½ times Table 
V but not less 
than 50 feet  

Not less 
than 50 feet  

None  
5 times Table 
V but not less 
than 100 feet  

Not less 
than 100 

feet  

Horizontal and Vertical 
Tanks with Emergency 

Relief Venting to Permit 
Pressure Over 2.5 psig  

Tank protected with any one of the 
following: Approved water spray, 

Approved inerting, Approved 
insulation and refrigeration, 

Approved barricade  

2 times Table 
V but not less 
than 50 feet  

Not less 
than 50 feet  

Protection for Exposures  
4 times Table 
V but not less 
than 100 feet  

Not less 
than 100 

feet  

None  
8 times Table 
V but not less 
than 150 feet  

Not less 
than 150 

feet  

  

Table V  

Capacity Tank  
 Gallons  

Minimum Distance in Feet  
from Property Line  

Which May be Built Upon,  
Including the Opposite  
Side of a Public Way  

Minimum Distance in Feet  
from Nearest Side of  
Any Public Way or  

from Nearest Important  
Building  



Ord. 19-H             Page 27 of 56 
 

      275 or less    5   5  

      276 to 750   10   5  

      751 to 12,000   15   5  

   12,001 to 30,000   20   5  

   30,001 to 50,000   30  10  

   50,001 to 100,000   50  15  

  100,001 to 500,000   80  25  

  500,001 to 1,000,000  100  35  

1,000,001 to 2,000,000  135  45  

2,000,001 to 3,000,000  165  55  

3,000,001 or more  175  60  

  

(e) Where two tank properties of diverse ownership have a common boundary, the city council 
may, with the written consent of the owners of the two properties, substitute the distances 
provided in subsections 9-69(a) through 9-69(f) for the minimum distances set forth in 
subsections 9-68(a) through 9-68(d).  

(f) Where end failure of horizontal pressure tanks and vessels may expose property, the tank shall 
be placed with the longitudinal axis parallel to the nearest important exposure.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 8-1, 1-5-67)  

Cross reference— Location of underground tanks, § 9-81.  

Sec. 9-69. - Spacing (shell to shell) between aboveground tanks.  

(a) The distance between any two flammable or combustible liquids storage tanks shall not be 
less than three (3) feet.  

(b) Except as provided in subsection (c), the distance between adjacent tanks shall not be less than 
one-sixth the sum of their diameters, except when the diameter of one tank is less than one-
half the diameter of the adjacent tank, the distance between the two (2) tanks shall not be less 
than one-half the diameter of the smaller tank.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 28 of 56 
 

(c) Crude petroleum in conjunction with production facilities located in noncongested areas and 
having capacities not exceeding one hundred twenty-six thousand (126,000) gallons (three 
thousand (3,000) barrels), the distance between such tanks shall not be less than three (3) feet.  

(d) Unstable or combustible liquids, the distance between such tanks shall be not less than one-
half the sum of their diameters.  

(e) When tanks are compacted in three or more rows or in an irregular pattern, greater spacing or 
other means shall be provided at the discretion of the city manager so that inside tanks are 
accessible for fire fighting purposes.  

(f) The minimum separation between a liquefied petroleum gas container and a flammable or 
combustible liquid storage tank shall be twenty (20) feet, except in the case of flammable or 
combustible liquid tanks operating at pressures exceeding 2.5 psig or equipped with 
emergency venting which will permit pressures to exceed 2.5 psig in which case the provisions 
of subsections (a) and (b) shall apply. Suitable means shall be taken to prevent the 
accumulation of flammable or combustible liquids under adjacent liquefied petroleum gas 
containers such as by diversion curbs or grading. When flammable or combustible liquid 
storage tanks are within a diked area, the liquefied petroleum gas containers shall be outside 
the diked area and at least ten (10) feet away from the centerline of the wall of the diked area. 
The foregoing provisions shall not apply when liquefied petroleum gas containers of one 
hundred twenty-five (125) gallons or less capacity are installed adjacent to fuel oil supply 
tanks of five hundred fifty (550) gallons or less capacity.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 8.2, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-70. - Normal venting for aboveground tanks.  

(a) Atmospheric storage tanks shall be adequately vented to prevent the development of vacuum 
or pressure sufficient to distort the roof of a cone roof tank or exceeding the design pressure 
in the case of other atmospheric tanks, as a result of filling or emptying, and atmospheric 
temperature changes.  

(b) Normal vents shall be sized either in accordance with:  
(1) The American Petroleum Institute Guide for Tank Venting, RP-2000; or  

(2) Other accepted standard; or  
(3) Shall be at least as large as the filling or withdrawal connection, whichever is larger but 

in no case less than 1¼-inch nominal inside diameter.  
(c) Low-pressure tanks and pressure vessels shall be adequately vented to prevent development 

of pressure or vacuum, as a result of filling or emptying and atmospheric temperature changes 
from exceeding the design pressure of the tank or vessel. Protection shall also be provided to 
prevent over-pressure from any pump discharging into the tank or vessel when the pump 
discharge pressure can exceed the design pressure of the tank or vessel.  

(d) If any tank or pressure vessel has more than one fill or withdrawal connection and 
simultaneous filling or withdrawal can be made, the vent size shall be based on the maximum 
anticipated simultaneous flow.  

(e) Unless the vent is designed to limit the internal pressure 2.5 psi or less, the outlet of vents and 
vent drains shall be arranged to discharge in such a manner as to prevent localized overheating 
of any part of the tank in the event vapors from such vents are ignited.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 29 of 56 
 

(f) Tanks and pressure vessels storing Class IA liquids shall be equipped with venting devices 
which shall be normally closed except when venting to pressure or vacuum conditions. Tanks 
and pressure vessels storing Class IB and IC liquids shall be equipped with venting devices 
which shall be normally closed except when venting under pressure or vacuum conditions, or 
with approved flame arresters.  
Exception. Tanks of 3,000 bbls. capacity or less containing crude petroleum in crude-

producing areas; and, outside aboveground atmospheric tanks under 1,000 gallons capacity 
containing other than Class IA flammable liquids may have open vents.  
(g) Flame arresters or venting devices required in Paragraph (f) may be omitted for IB and IC 

liquids where conditions are such that their use may, in case of obstruction, result in tank 
damage.  
Note. Liquid properties justifying the omission of such devices include, but are not limited to, 

condensation, corrosiveness, crystallization, polymerization, freezing or plugging. When any of 
these conditions exist, consideration may be given to heating, use of devices employing special 
materials of construction, the use of liquid seals, or inerting (see Standard for Inerting for Fire and 
Explosion Prevention, NFPA No. 69).  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 8.3, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-71. - Emergency relief venting for fire exposure for aboveground tanks.  

(a) Every aboveground storage tank shall have some form of construction or device that will 
relieve excessive internal pressure caused by exposure fires.  

(b) In a vertical tank this construction referred to in subsection (a) may take the form of a floating 
roof, lifter roof, a weak roof-to-shell seam, or other approved pressure relieving construction. 
The weak roof-to-shell seam shall be constructed to fail preferential to any other seam.  

(c) Where emergency venting is by relief device instead of construction, the total capacity of both 
normal and emergency venting devices shall not be less than required by the edition of 
Standard No. 30 of the National Fire Protection Association, issue of 1966.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 8.4, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-72. - Vent piping for aboveground tanks.  

(a) Vent piping shall be constructed in accordance with section 9-119 through 9-127.  
(b) Where vent pipe outlets for tanks storing Class I liquids are adjacent to buildings or public 

ways, they shall be located so that the vapors are released at a safe point outside of buildings 
and not less than twelve (12) feet above the adjacent ground level. In order to aid their 
dispersion, vapors shall be discharged upward or horizontally away from closely adjacent 
walls. Vent outlets shall be located so that flammable vapors will not be trapped by eaves or 
other obstructions and shall be at least five feet from building openings.  

(c) When tank vent piping is manifolded, pipe sizes shall be such as to discharge, within the 
pressure limitations of the system, the vapors they may be required to handle when manifolded 
tanks are subject to the same fire exposure.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 8.5, 1-5-67)  



Ord. 19-H             Page 30 of 56 
 

Sec. 9-73. - Drainage, dikes and walls for aboveground tanks.  

(a) Generally. The area surrounding a tank or a group of tanks shall be provided with drainage as 
specified in subsection (b) or shall be diked as in subsection (c) to prevent accidental discharge 
of liquid from endangering adjoining property or reaching waterways, except that in particular 
installations these provisions may be waived or altered at the discretion of the fire marshal 
when the tanks under consideration do not constitute a hazard to adjoining property.  

(b) Drainage. Where protection of adjoining property or waterways is by means of a natural or 
man-made drainage system, such system shall comply with the following:  
(1) A slope of not less than one (1) percent away from the tank toward the drainage system 

shall be provided.  
(2) The drainage system shall terminate in vacant land or other area or in an impounding 

basin having a capacity not smaller than that of the largest tank served. This termination 
area and the route of the drainage system shall be so located that, if the flammable or 
combustible liquids in the drainage system are ignited, the fire will not seriously expose 
tanks or adjoining property.  

(3) The drainage system, including automatic drainage pumps, shall not discharge to 
adjoining property, natural watercourses, public sewers, or public drains unless the 
discharge of flammable or combustible liquids would not constitute a hazard, or the 
system is so designed that it will not permit flammable or combustible liquids to be 
released.  

(c) Dikes and walls. Where protection of adjoining property or waterway is accomplished by 
means of a diked area, such diked area shall comply with the following requirements:  
(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2), the volumetric capacity of the diked area shall 

not be less than the greatest amount of liquid that can be released from the largest tank 
within the diked area, assuming a full tank. The capacity of the diked area enclosing more 
than one tank shall be calculated by deducting the volume of the tanks other than the 
largest tank below the height of the dike.  

(2) For a tank or group of tanks with fixed roofs containing crude petroleum with boil-over 
characteristics, the volumetric capacity of the diked area shall not be less than the tank or 
tanks served by the enclosure assuming full tanks. The capacity of the diked area 
enclosing more than one tank shall be calculated by deducting the volume of tanks below 
the height of the dike.  

(3) Walls of the diked area shall be of earth, steel, concrete or solid masonry designed to be 
liquid-tight and to withstand a full hydrostatic head. Earthen walls three (3) feet or more 
in height shall have a flat section at the top not less than two (2) feet wide. The slope of 
an earthen wall shall be consistent with the angle of repose of the material of which the 
wall is constructed.  

(4) The walls of the diked area shall be restricted to an average height of six (6) feet above 
interior grade.  

(5) Where provision is made for draining water from diked areas, drainage shall be provided 
at a uniform slope of not less than one percent away from tanks toward a sump, drainbox 
or other safe means of disposal located at the greatest practical distance from the tank. 
Such drains shall normally be controlled in a manner so as to prevent flammable or 
combustible liquids from entering natural watercourses, public sewers or public drains if 



Ord. 19-H             Page 31 of 56 
 

their presence would constitute a hazard. Control of drainage shall be accessible under 
fire conditions.  

(6) No loose combustible material, empty or full drum or barrel, shall be permitted within 
the diked area.  

(7) Each diked area containing two or more tanks shall be subdivided preferably by drainage 
channels or at least by intermediate curbs in order to prevent spills from endangering 
adjacent tanks within the diked area as follows:  
(i) When storing normally stable liquids in vertical cone roof tanks constructed with 

weak roof-to-shell seam or approved floating roof tanks or when storing crude 
petroleum in producing areas in any type of tank, one subdivision for each tank in 
excess of 10,000 bbls. and one subdivision for each group of tanks (no tank 
exceeding 10,000 bbls. capacity) having an aggregate capacity not exceeding 15,000 
bbls.  

(ii) When storing normally stable flammable or combustible liquids in tanks not covered 
in subparagraph (1), one subdivision for each tank in excess of 100,000 gallons 
(2,500 bbls.) and one subdivision for each group of tanks (no tank exceeding 100,000 
gallons capacity) having an aggregate capacity not exceeding 150,000 gallons (3,570 
bbls.).  

(iii) When storing unstable liquids in any type of tank, one subdivision for each tank 
except that tanks installed in accordance with the drainage requirements of NFPA 
No. 15, Standard for Water Spray Systems for Fire Protection, shall require no 
additional subdivision.  

(iv) The drainage channels or intermediate curbs shall be located between tanks so as to 
take full advantage of the available space with due regard for the individual tank 
capacities. Intermediate curbs, where used, shall be not less than eighteen (18) inches 
in height.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 8.6, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-74. - Tank openings other than vents for aboveground tanks.  

(a) Connections for all tank openings other than vents shall be vapor and liquid tight.  
(b) Each connection to an aboveground tank through which liquid can normally flow shall be 

provided with an internal or an external valve located as close as practical to the shell of the 
tank. Such valves, when external, and their connections to the tank shall be of steel except 
when the chemical characteristics of the liquid stored are incompatible with steel. When 
materials other than steel are necessary, they shall be suitable for the pressures, structural 
stresses and temperatures involved, including fire exposures.  

(c) Each connection below the liquid level through which liquid does not normally flow shall be 
provided with a liquid-tight closure. This may be a valve, plug or blind, or a combination of 
these.  

(d) Openings for gauging shall be provided with a vapor-tight cap or cover.  
(e) For Class IB and Class IC liquids other than crude oils, gasolines and asphalts, the fill pipe 

shall be so designed and installed as to minimize the possibility of generating static electricity. 



Ord. 19-H             Page 32 of 56 
 

A fill pipe entering the top of a tank shall terminate within six (6) inches of the bottom of the 
tank and shall be installed to avoid excessive vibration.  

(f) Filling and emptying connections which are made and broken shall be located outside of 
buildings at a location free from any source of ignition and not less than five (5) feet away 
from any building opening. Such connection shall be closed and liquid tight when not in use. 
The connection shall be properly identified.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 8.7, 1-5-67)  

Secs. 9-75—9-80. - Reserved.  

DIVISION 5. - INSTALLATION OF UNDERGROUND TANKS  

 

Sec. 9-81. - Location.  

Excavation for underground storage tanks shall be made with due care to avoid undermining 
of foundations of existing structures. Underground tanks or tanks under buildings shall be so 
located with respect to existing building foundations and supports that the loads carried by the 
latter cannot be transmitted to the tank. The distance from any part of a tank storing Class I liquids 
to the nearest wall of any basement or pit shall be not less than one foot, and to any property line 
that may be built upon, not less than three feet. The distance from any part of a tank storing Class 
II or Class III liquids to the nearest wall of any basement, pit or property line shall be not less than 
one foot.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 9.1, 1-5-67)  

Cross reference— Location of aboveground tanks, § 9-68.  

Sec. 9-82. - Depth and cover.  

Underground tanks shall be set on firm foundation and surrounded with noncorrosive, inert 
material such as clean sand, earth or gravel well tamped in place. Tanks shall be covered with a 
minimum of two (2) feet of earth, or shall be covered with not less than one foot of earth, on top 
of which shall be placed a slab of reinforced concrete not less than four (4) inches thick. When 
underground tanks are, or are likely to be, subjected to traffic, they shall be protected against 
damage from vehicles passing over them by at least three (3) feet of earth cover, or eighteen (18) 
inches of well-tamped earth, plus six (6) inches of reinforced concrete or eight inches of asphaltic 
concrete. When asphaltic or reinforced concrete paving is used as part of the protection, it shall 
extend at least one foot horizontally beyond the outline of the tank in all directions.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 9.2, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-83. - Vents.  

(a) Location and arrangements for Class I liquids. Vent pipes from tanks storing Class I liquids 
shall be so located that the discharge point is outside of buildings, higher than the fill pipe 
opening, and not less than twelve (12) feet above the adjacent ground level. Vent pipes shall 



Ord. 19-H             Page 33 of 56 
 

discharge only upward in order to disperse vapors. Vent pipes two (2) inches or less in nominal 
inside diameter shall not be obstructed by devices that will cause excessive back pressure. 
Vent pipe outlets shall be so located that flammable vapors will not enter buildings openings, 
or be trapped under eaves or other obstructions. If the vent pipe is less than ten (10) feet in 
length or greater than two (2) inches in nominal inside diameter, the outlet shall be provided 
with a vacuum and pressure relief device or there shall be an approved flame arrester located 
in the vent line at the outlet or within the approved distance from the outlet. In no case shall a 
flame arrester be located more than fifteen (15) feet from the outlet end of the vent line.  

(b) Size of vents. Each tank shall be vented through piping adequate in size to prevent blow-back 
of vapor or liquid at the fill opening while the tank is being filled. Vent pipes shall not be less 
than one and one-fourth (1¼) inches nominal inside diameter.  

TABLE VI  

 Vent line diameter—Inches  

Maximum  
flow  
GPM  

50-ft.  100-ft.  200-ft.  

100  1¼-inch  1¼-inch  1¼-inch  

200  1¼-inch  1¼-inch  1¼-inch  

300  1¼-inch  1¼-inch  1½-inch  

400  1¼-inch  1½-inch  2-inch  

500  1¼-inch  1½-inch  2-inch  

  

(c) Location and arrangements for Class II or Class III liquids. Vent pipes from tanks storing 
Class II or Class III flammable liquids shall terminate outside of buildings and higher than the 
fill pipe opening. They may be fitted with return bends, course screens or other devices to 
minimize ingress of foreign material.  

(d) Direction of drainage. Vent piping shall be laid so as to drain toward the tank without sags or 
traps in which liquid can collect. They shall be located so that they will not be subject to any 
physical damage. The tank end of the vent pipe shall enter the tank through the top.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 9.3, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-84. - Tank openings other than vents.  

(a) Connections for all tank openings shall be vapor or liquid tight.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 34 of 56 
 

(b) Openings for manual gauging if independent of the fill pipe, shall be provided with a liquid 
tight cap or cover. If inside a building, each such opening shall be protected against liquid 
overflow and possible vapor release by means of a spring-loaded check valve or other 
approved device.  

(c) Fill and discharge lines shall enter tanks only through the top. Fill lines shall be sloped toward 
the tank.  

(d) For Class IB and Class IC liquids other than crude oils, gasolines and asphalts, the fill pipe 
shall be so designed and installed as to minimize the possibility of generating static electricity 
by terminating within six (6) inches of the bottom of the tank.  

(e) Filling and emptying connections which are made and broken shall be located outside of 
buildings at a location free from any source of ignition and not less than five (5) feet away 
from any building opening. Such connection shall be closed and liquid tight when not in use. 
The connection shall be properly identified.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 9.4, 1-5-67)  

Secs. 9-85—9-90. - Reserved.  

DIVISION 6. - SUPPORTS AND FOUNDATIONS FOR ALL TANK LOCATIONS  

 

Sec. 9-91. - Materials.  

Tank supports shall be installed on firm foundations. Tank supports shall be of concrete, 
masonry or protected steel. Single wood timber supports (not cribbing) laid horizontally may be 
used for outside aboveground tanks if not more than twelve (12) inches high at their lowest point.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 10-1, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-92. - Fire resistance protection.  

Steel supports or exposed piling shall be protected by materials having a fire resistance rating 
of not less than two (2) hours, except that steel saddles need not be protected if less than twelve 
(12) inches high at their lowest point. At the discretion of the fire marshal, approved water spray 
protection or its equivalent may be used in lieu of fire-resistive materials to protect supports.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 10-2, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-93. - Construction generally.  

Every tank shall be so supported as to prevent the excessive concentration of loads on the 
supporting portion of the shell.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 10-3, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-94. - Foundations.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 35 of 56 
 

Tanks shall rest on the ground or on foundations made of concrete, masonry, piling or steel. 
Tank foundations shall be designed to minimize the possibility of uneven settling of the tank and 
to minimize corrosion in any part of the tank resting on the foundation.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 10-4, 1-5-67)  

Secs. 9-95—9-100. - Reserved.  

DIVISION 7. - SOURCES OF IGNITION  

 

Sec. 9-101. - Precautions to be taken.  

In locations where flammable vapors may be present, precautions shall be taken to prevent 
ignition by eliminating or controlling sources of ignition. Sources of ignition may include open 
flames, lighting, smoking, cutting and welding, hot surfaces, frictional heat, sparks (static, 
electrical and mechanical), spontaneous ignition, chemical and physical-chemical reactions and 
radiant heat.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 11-1, 1-5-66)  

Cross reference— Additional restrictions for sources of ignition, § 9-157.  

Secs. 9-102—9-107. - Reserved.  

DIVISION 8. - TESTING OF TANKS AND CONNECTIONS  

 

Sec. 9-108. - Under applicable codes.  

All tanks, whether shop-built or field-erected, shall be strength tested before they are placed 
in service in accordance with the applicable paragraphs of the code under which they were built. 
The ASME Code stamp, API monogram, or the label of the Underwriters' Laboratories, Inc., on a 
tank shall be evidence of compliance with this strength test. Tanks not marked in accordance with 
the above codes shall be strength tested before they are placed in service in accordance with good 
engineering principles and reference shall be made to the sections on testing in the codes listed in 
sections 9-59(c), 9-60(b) or 9-61.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 12.1, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-109. - Hydrostatic testing.  

When the vertical length of the fill and vent pipes is such that when filled with liquid the static 
head imposed upon the bottom of the tank exceeds ten (10) pounds per square inch, the tank and 
related piping shall be tested hydrostatically to a pressure equal to the static head thus imposed. In 
special cases where the height of the vent above the top of the tank is excessive, the hydrostatic 
test pressure shall be specified by the authority having jurisdiction.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 36 of 56 
 

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 12.2, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-110. - Tightness test.  

In addition to the strength test called for in sections 9-108 and 9-109, all tanks and connections 
shall be tested for tightness. Except for underground tanks, this tightness test shall be made at 
operating pressure with air, inert gas or water prior to placing the tank in service. In the case of 
field-erected tanks the strength test may be considered to be the test for tank tightness. 
Underground tanks and piping, before being covered, enclosed, or placed in use, shall be tested 
for tightness hydrostatically, or with air pressure at not less than three (3) pounds per square inch 
and not more than five (5) pounds per square inch.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 12.3, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-111. - Correction of deformations.  

All leaks or deformations shall be corrected in acceptable manner before the tank is placed in 
service. Mechanical caulking is not permitted for correcting leaks in welded tanks except pin hole 
leaks in the roof.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 12.4, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-112. - Tanks to be operated below design pressure.  

Tanks to be operated at pressure below their design pressure may be tested by the applicable 
provisions of sections 9-126 or 9-127 based upon the pressure developed under full emergency 
venting of the tank.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 12-5, 1-5-67)  

Secs. 9-113—9-118. - Reserved.  

DIVISION 9. - PIPING, VALVES AND FITTINGS  

 

Sec. 9-119. - Design of piping systems.  

The design (including selection of materials), fabrication, assembly, test and inspection of 
piping systems containing flammable or combustible liquids shall be suitable for the expected 
working pressures and structural stresses. Conformity with the applicable provisions or ASA B31 
American Standard Code for Pressure Piping, and the provisions of this section, shall be 
considered prima facie evidence of compliance with the foregoing provisions.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 13.1, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-120. - Applicability of division.  

This division does not apply to any of the following:  



Ord. 19-H             Page 37 of 56 
 

(a) Tubing or casing on any oil or gas wells and any piping connected directly thereto.  
(b) Floating craft or aircraft.  

(c) Piping within the scope of any applicable boiler and pressure vessel code.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 13.2, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-121. - Composition of piping system.  

Piping systems consist of pipe, tubing, flanges, bolting, gaskets, valves, fittings, the pressure 
containing parts of other components such as expansion joints and strainers, and devices which 
serve such purposes as mixing, separating, snubbing, distributing, metering or controlling flow.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 13.3, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-122. - Piping materials.  

(a) Piping materials shall be steel except as provided in subsections (b), (c), (d) and (e).  
(b) Piping may be built of materials other than steel if used underground or if required by the 

properties of the flammable or combustible liquid handled.  
Note. In case of doubt, the supplier, producer of the flammable or combustible liquid, or other 

competent authority should be consulted as to suitability of the material of construction to be used.  
(c) Piping built of materials other than steel shall be designed to specifications embodying 

principles recognized as good engineering design for the material used and shall be approved 
by the authority having jurisdiction.  

(d) Piping may have combustible or noncombustible linings.  
(e) When low melting point materials such as aluminum and brass or materials that soften on fire 

exposure such as plastics, or nonductile materials such as cast iron, are necessary, special 
consideration shall be given to their behavior on fire exposure. If such materials are used in 
aboveground piping system or inside buildings, they shall be suitably protected against fire 
exposure or so located that any spill resulting from the failure of these materials could not 
unduly expose persons, important buildings or structures or can be readily controlled by 
remote valves.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 13.4, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-123. - Pipe joints.  

(a) Joints shall be made liquid tight. Welded or screwed joints or approved connectors shall be 
used. Threaded joints and connections shall be made up tight with a suitable lubricant or 
piping compound.  

(b) Pipe joints dependent upon the friction characteristics of combustible materials for mechanical 
continuity of piping shall not be used inside buildings. They may be used outside of buildings 
above or below ground. If used aboveground, the piping shall either be secured to prevent 
disengagement at the fitting or the piping system shall be so designed that any spill resulting 
from such disengagement could not unduly expose persons, important buildings or structures, 
and could be readily controlled by remote valves.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 38 of 56 
 

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 13.5, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-124. - Supports.  

Piping systems shall be substantially supported and protected against physical damage and 
excessive stresses arising from settlement, vibration, expansion or contraction.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 13.61, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-125. - Protection against corrosion.  

All piping for flammable or combustible liquids, both aboveground and underground, where 
subject to external corrosion, shall be painted or otherwise protected.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 13.7, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-126. - Valves.  

Piping systems shall contain a sufficient number of valves to operate the system properly and 
to protect the plant. Piping systems in connection with pumps shall contain a sufficient number of 
valves to control properly the flow of liquid in normal operation and in the event of physical 
damage. Each connection to pipe lines, by which equipment such as tank cars or tank vehicles 
discharge liquids by means of pumps into storage tanks, shall be provided with a check valve for 
automatic protection against backflow if the piping arrangement is such that backflow from the 
system is possible.  

Note. See also section 9-74(b).  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 13.8, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-127. - Testing of piping.  

All piping before being covered, enclosed or placed in use shall be tested hydrostatically or 
with air pressure at not less than one and one-half (1½) times the maximum anticipated pressure 
of the system, but not less than five pounds per square inch gauge at the highest point of the system. 
This test shall be maintained for at least thirty (3) minutes or for sufficient time to complete visual 
inspection of all joints and connections.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 13.9, 1-5-67)  

Secs. 9-128—9-133. - Reserved.  

DIVISION 10. - STORAGE AND HANDLING OF FLAMMABLE LIQUIDS AT BULK 
PLANTS  

 

Sec. 9-134. - Containers.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 39 of 56 
 

(a) Class I Liquids. Class I liquids shall be stored in closed containers, or in storage tanks 
aboveground outside of buildings, or underground in accordance with sections 9-57—9-61.  

(b) Class II and Class III Liquids. Class II and Class III liquids shall be stored in containers, or in 
tanks within buildings or aboveground outside of buildings, or underground in accordance 
with sections 9-57—9-61.  

(c) Separation. Containers of flammable or combustible liquids when piled one upon the other 
shall be separated by dunnage sufficient to provide stability and to prevent excessive stress on 
container walls. The height of pile shall be consistent with stability and strength of containers.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 14.1, 1-5-67)  

Cross reference— Containers for storage at service stations, § 9-143.  

Sec. 9-135. - Buildings.  

(a) Exits. Rooms in which flammable or combustible liquids are stored or handled by pumps, 
shall have exit facilities arranged to prevent occupants being trapped in the event of fire.  

(b) Heating. Rooms in which Class I liquids are stored or handled shall be heated only by means 
not constituting a source of ignition, such as steam or hot water. Rooms containing heating 
appliances involving sources of ignition shall be located and arranged to prevent entry of 
flammable vapors.  

(c) Ventilation:  
(1) Ventilation shall be provided for all rooms, buildings or enclosures in which Class I 

liquids are pumped or dispensed. Design of ventilation systems shall take into account 
the relatively high specific gravity of the vapors. Ventilation may be provided by adequate 
openings in outside walls at floor level unobstructed except by louvers or course screens. 
Where natural ventilation is inadequate, mechanical ventilation shall be provided.  

(2) Class I liquids shall not be stored or handled within a building having a basement or pit 
into which flammable vapors may travel, unless such area is provided with ventilation 
designed to prevent the accumulation of flammable vapors therein.  

(3) Containers of Class I liquids shall not be drawn from or filled within buildings unless 
provision is made to prevent the accumulation of flammable vapors in hazardous 
concentrations. Where mechanical ventilation is required, it shall be kept in operation 
while flammable liquids are being handled.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 14.2, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-136. - Loading and unloading facilities.  

(a) Tank vehicles. Tank vehicle loading or unloading facilities shall be separated from 
aboveground tanks, warehouses, other plant buildings or nearest line of adjoining property 
that may be built upon by a distance of twenty-five (25) feet for Class I liquids and fifteen 
(15) feet for Class II and Class III liquids measured from the nearest position of any fill 
system.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 40 of 56 
 

(b) Use of certain equipment prohibited. Equipment such as piping, pumps, and meters used for 
the transfer of Class I liquids between storage tanks and the fill stem of the loading rack shall 
not be used for the transfer of Class II or Class III liquids.  

(c) Valves. Valves used for the final control for filling tank vehicles shall be of the self-closing 
type and manually held open except where automatic means are provided for shutting off the 
flow when the vehicle is full or after filling of a preset amount.  

(d) Static protection. The following types of tank vehicle loading racks shall be equipped with 
protection against static sparks during truck filling: racks dispensing Class I liquids into open 
domes of tank vehicles, and racks dispensing Class II and Class III liquids into open domes 
of tank vehicles which may contain flammable vapors from previous cargoes of Class I liquid. 
Protection shall consist of a metallic bond-wire permanently electrically connected to fill stem 
or some part of the rack structure in electrical contract with the fill-stem piping. The free end 
of such wire shall be provided with a clamp or equivalent device for convenient attachment 
to some metallic part in electrical contact with the cargo tank of the tank vehicle. The bond-
wire connection shall be made prior to opening the dome covers. It shall be maintained in 
place during the entire filling operation and the dome covers shall be securely closed before 
the bond wire is disconnected from the cargo tank.  

(e) Tank car racks. Tank car loading facilities where Class I liquids are loaded through open 
domes shall be protected against stray currents by bonding the pipe to at least one rail and to 
the rack structure if metal. Multiple lines entering the rack area shall be electrically bonded 
together. In addition, in areas where excessive stray currents are known to exist, all pipe 
entering the rack area shall be provided with insulating sections to electrically isolate the rack 
piping from the pipe lines. No bonding between the tank car and the rack or piping is required 
during either loading or unloading.  

(f) Container filling facilities. Class I liquids shall not be dispensed into containers unless the 
nozzle and container are electrically interconnected. Where the metallic floor-plate on which 
the container stands while filling is electrically connected to the fill stem or where the fill stem 
is bonded to the container during filling operations by means of a bond-wire the provisions of 
this section shall be deemed to have been complied with.  

(g) Sources of ignition. Class I liquids shall not be handled, drawn, or dispensed where flammable 
vapors may reach a source of ignition. Smoking shall be prohibited except in designated 
localities. "NO SMOKING" signs shall be conspicuously posted where hazard from 
flammable liquid vapors is normally present.  

(h) Drainage and waste disposal. Provision shall be made to prevent flammable or combustible 
liquids which may be spilled at loading or unloading points from entering public sewers and 
drainage systems, or natural waterways. Connection to such sewers, drains, or waterways by 
which flammable or combustible liquids might enter shall be provided with separator boxes 
or other approved means whereby such entry is precluded. Crankcase drainings and 
flammable or combustible liquids shall not be dumped into sewers, but shall be stored in tanks 
or tight drums outside of any building until removed from the premises.  

(i) Fire control. Suitable fire-control devices, such as small hose or portable fire extinguishers, 
shall be available to locations where fires are likely to occur. Additional fire-control 
equipment may be required where a tank of more than fifty thousand (50,000) gallons 
individual capacity contains Class I liquids and where an unusual exposure hazard exists from 
surrounding property. Such additional fire-control equipment shall be sufficient to extinguish 



Ord. 19-H             Page 41 of 56 
 

a fire in the largest tank. The design and amount of such equipment shall be in accordance 
with approved engineering standards.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 14.3, 1-5-67)  

Secs. 9-137—9-142. - Reserved.  

DIVISION 11. - STORAGE AND HANDLING OF FLAMMABLE LIQUIDS AT SERVICE 
STATIONS  

 

Sec. 9-143. - Containers generally.  

(a) Liquids shall be stored in approved closed containers not exceeding sixty (60) gallons 
capacity, in tanks located underground or in tanks in special enclosures as described in section 
9-144.  

(b) Aboveground tanks, located in an adjoining bulk plant, may be connected by piping to service 
stations underground tanks if, in addition to valves at aboveground tanks, a valve is also 
installed within control of service station personnel.  

(c) Apparatus dispensing Class I liquids into the fuel tanks of motor vehicles of the public shall 
not be located at a bulk plant unless separated by a fence or similar barrier from the area in 
which bulk operations are conducted.  

(d) The provisions of subsection (a) shall not prohibit the temporary use of portable or semi-
portable tanks in conjunction with the dispensing of flammable or combustible liquids into 
the fuel tanks of motor vehicles or other motorized equipment on premises not normally 
accessible to the public. Such installations shall only be made under permit from the city 
manager. The permit shall include a definite time limit.  

(e) Class I liquids shall not be stored or handled within a building having a basement or pit into 
which flammable vapors may travel, unless such area is provided with ventilation designed to 
prevent the accumulation of flammable vapors therein.  

(f) Inventory records shall be maintained and reconciled on all Class I liquid storage tanks for 
possible indication of leakage from tanks or piping.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 15.11, 1-5-67)  

Cross reference— Containers for storage at bulk plants, § 9-134.  

Sec. 9-144. - Special enclosures.  

(a) When installation of tanks in accordance with section 9-81 through section 9-84 is impractical 
because of property or building limitations, tanks for flammable or combustible liquids may 
be installed in buildings if enclosed and upon specific approval of the city manager.  

(b) Enclosure shall be substantially liquid and vaportight without backfill. Sides, top and bottom 
of the enclosure shall be of reinforced concrete at least six inches thick, with openings for 
inspection through the top only. Tank connections shall be so piped or closed that neither 
vapors nor liquid can escape into the enclosed space. Means shall be provided whereby 



Ord. 19-H             Page 42 of 56 
 

portable equipment may be employed to discharge to the outside any liquid or vapors which 
might accumulate should leakage occur.  

(c) At automotive service stations provided in connection with tenant or customer parking 
facilities at or below grade level in large buildings of commercial, mercantile or residential 
occupancy, tanks containing Class I liquids, installed of necessity in accordance with (b), shall 
not exceed six thousand (6,000) gallons individual or eighteen thousand (18,000) gallons 
aggregate capacity.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 15.12, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-145. - Inside buildings.  

(a) Except where stored in tanks as provided in section 9-144, no Class I liquids shall be stored 
within any service station building except in closed containers of aggregate capacity not 
exceeding one hundred twenty (120) gallons. One container not exceeding sixty (60) gallons 
capacity equipped with an approved pump is permitted.  

(b) Class I liquids may be transferred from one container to another in lubrication or service rooms 
of a service station building provided the electrical installation complies with National 
Electrical Code for Class I Group D requirements for hazardous locations and heating 
equipment complies with section 9-155.  

(c) Class II and Class III liquids may be stored and dispensed inside service station buildings from 
tanks of not more than one hundred twenty (120) gallons capacity each.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 15.13, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-146. - Labeling of containers.  

No sale or purchase of any Class I, II or III liquids shall be made in containers unless such 
containers are clearly marked with the name of the product contained therein.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 15.14, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-147. - Dispensing into portable containers.  

No delivery of any Class I liquids shall be made into portable containers unless the container 
is constructed of metal or is approved by the fire marshal, has a tight closure with screwed or 
spring cover, and is fitted with a spout or so designed that the contents can be poured without 
spilling.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 15.15, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-148. - Attendance or supervision of dispensing.  

(a) Each service station open to the public shall have an attendant or supervisor on duty whenever 
the station is open for business. The attendant shall supervise individual dispensing devices 
except as provided in section 9-154.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 43 of 56 
 

(b) Service stations not accessible to or open to the public do not require an attendant or 
supervisor. Such stations may be used by commercial, industrial or manufacturing 
establishments.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 15.2, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-149. - Dispensing systems—Location.  

(a) Generally. Dispensing devices at automotive service stations shall be so located that all parts 
of the vehicle being serviced will be on the premises of the service station.  

(b) Inside location. Approved dispensing units may be located inside of buildings upon specific 
approval of the fire marshal. The dispensing area shall be separated from other areas in a 
manner approved by the fire marshal. The dispensing unit and its piping shall be protected 
against physical damage by vehicles either by mounting on a concrete island or equivalent 
means and shall be located in a position where it cannot be struck by a vehicle descending a 
ramp or other slope out of control. The dispensing area shall be provided with an approved 
mechanical or gravity ventilation system. When dispensing units are located below grade, 
only approved mechanical ventilation shall be used and the entire dispensing area shall be 
protected by an approved automatic sprinkler system. Ventilating systems shall be electrically 
interlocked with gasoline dispensing units so that the dispensing units cannot be operated 
unless the ventilating fan motors are energized.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 15.31, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-150. - Same—Emergency power cutoff.  

A clearly identified and easily accessible switch(es) or a circuit breaker(s) shall be provided 
at a location remote from dispensing devices to shut off the power to all dispensing devices in the 
event of an emergency.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 15.32, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-151. - Same—Dispensing units.  

(a) Class I liquids shall be transferred from tanks by means of fixed pumps so designed and 
equipped as to allow control of the flow and to prevent leakage or accidental discharge.  

(b) Dispensing devices for Class I liquids [which] shall be of approved type devices meeting the 
standards of the Underwriters' Laboratories, Inc., may be deemed to be in compliance with 
this section.  

(c) Class I liquids shall not be dispensed by pressure from drums, barrels, and similar containers. 
Approved pumps taking suction through the top of the container or approved self-closing 
faucets shall be used.  

(d) The dispensing units, except those attached to containers, shall be mounted on a concrete 
island or protected by equivalent means.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 15.33, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-152. - Same—Remote pumping systems.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 44 of 56 
 

(a) Applicability. This section shall apply to systems for dispensing Class I liquids where such 
liquids are transferred from storage to individual or multiple dispensing units by pumps 
located elsewhere than at the dispensing units.  

(b) Pumps. Pumps shall be designed or equipped so that no part of the system will be subjected 
to pressures above its allowable working pressure. Pumps installed above grade, outside of 
buildings, shall be located not less than ten (10) feet from lines of adjoining property which 
may be built upon, and not less than five (5) feet from any building opening. When an outside 
pump location is impractical, pumps may be installed inside of buildings as provided for 
dispensers in section 9-149(b), or in pits as provided in section 9-155(a). Pumps shall be 
substantially anchored and protected against physical damage by vehicles.  

(c) Pits. Pits for subsurface pumps or piping manifolds of submersible pumps shall withstand the 
external forces to which they may be subjected without damage to the pump, tank or piping. 
The pit shall be no larger than necessary for inspection and maintenance and shall be provided 
with a fitted cover.  

(d) Pump control. A control shall be provided that will permit the pump to operate only when a 
dispensing nozzle is removed from its bracket on the dispensing unit and the switch on this 
dispensing unit is manually actuated. This control shall also stop the pump when all nozzles 
have been returned to their brackets.  

(e) Impact valve. An approved impact valve, incorporating a fusible link, designed to close 
automatically in event of severe impact or fire exposure shall be located in the dispensing 
supply line at the base of each individual dispensing device.  

(f) Testing. After the completion of the installation, including any paving, that section of the 
pressure piping system between the pump discharge and the connection for the dispensing 
facility shall be tested for at least thirty (30) minutes at the maximum operating pressure of 
the system. Such tests shall be repeated at one-year intervals thereafter.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 15.34, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-153. - Same—Delivery nozzles.  

(a) Hose nozzle valves of either the manual or automatic closing type for dispensing Class I 
liquids into a fuel tank or into a container shall be manually held open during the dispensing 
operation except as provided in subsection (b).  

(b) On any service station dispenser accessible to the public a listed automatic-closing type nozzle 
with latch-open device is permitted only when all dispensing of Class I liquids is to be done 
by the service station attendant.  

(c) If the dispensing of Class I liquids at a service station available and open to the public is to be 
done by a person other than the service station attendant, the nozzle shall be a listed automatic-
closing type without a latch-open device.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 15.35, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-154. - Same—Special type dispensers.  

(a) Approved special dispensing devices such as, but not limited to, coin-operated, card-operated 
and remote preset types are permitted at service stations, provided that dispensing of Class I 



Ord. 19-H             Page 45 of 56 
 

liquids is under observation and control of a competent attendant at all times and provided 
that emergency controls are installed at a location acceptable to the fire marshal. Instructions 
for operation of dispensing devices shall be conspicuously posted.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 15.36, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-155. - Heating equipment.  

(a) Generally. Heating equipment shall be installed as provided in subsections (b) through (e).  
(b) Conventional. Heating equipment may be installed in the conventional manner in an area 

except as provided in subsections (c), (d), or (e).  
(c) Special separated room. Heating equipment may be installed in a special room separated from 

hazardous areas by walls having a fire resistance rating of at least one (1) hour and without 
any openings in the walls within eight (8) feet of the floor into hazardous areas. This room 
shall not be used for combustible storage and all air for combustion purposes shall come from 
outside the building.  

(d) Gas or oil heating equipment. Heating equipment using gas or oil fuel may be installed in the 
lubrication, sales or service room where there is no dispensing or transferring of Class I liquids 
provided the bottom of the combustion chamber is at least eighteen (18) inches above the floor 
and the heating equipment is protected from physical damage by vehicles.  

(e) Gas or oil heating equipment for garages. Heating equipment using gas or oil fuel listed for 
use in garages may be installed in the lubrication or service room where Class I liquids are 
dispensed provided the equipment is installed at least eight (8) feet above the floor.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 15.4, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-156. - Drainage and waste disposal.  

Provision shall be made in the area where Class I liquids are dispensed to prevent spilled 
liquids from flowing into the interior of service station buildings. Such provision may be by 
grading driveways, raising door sills, or other equally effective means. Crankcase drainings and 
flammable or combustible liquids shall not be dumped into sewers but shall be stored in tanks or 
drums outside of any building until removed from the premises.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 15.5, 1-5-67)  

Sec. 9-157. - Sources of ignition.  

In addition to the previous restrictions of this chapter, the following shall apply:  
(1) There shall be no smoking or open flames in the areas used for fueling, servicing fuel 

systems for internal combustion engines, receiving or dispensing of flammable or 
combustible liquids.  

(2) Conspicuous and legible signs prohibiting smoking shall be posted within sight of the 
customer being served.  

(3) The motors of all equipment being fueled shall be shut off during the fueling operation.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 46 of 56 
 

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 15.6, 1-5-67)  

Cross reference— General restrictions for controlling sources of ignition, § 9-101.  

Sec. 9-158. - Fire control generally.  

Each service station shall be provided with at least one fire extinguisher having a minimum 
classification of 6 B, C located so that an extinguisher will be within seventy-five (75) feet of each 
pump, dispenser, underground fill pipe opening and lubrication or service room.  

(Ord. No. 66-V, § 15.7, 1-5-67)  

Secs. 9-15940 —9-168. - Reserved.  

Sec. 9-169. - When required.  

No building or any type of construction for occupancy shall be constructed in such a manner 
that any part of the structure is more than one hundred fifty (150) feet from a public street or 
highway; provided, however, that such structure may be erected at a greater distance if the owner 
designates, constructs and maintains a fire lane or access easement having a minimum width of 
twenty (20) feet measured from the face of the curb to the face of the curb and a minimum height 
clearance of twenty (20) feet terminating within one hundred (100) feet of the farthest point of 
such structure; provided, further, however, that no fire lane shall be required for any single-family 
dwelling.  

Sec. 9-170. - Specifications.  

Any fire lane more than one hundred (100) one hundred fifty feet in length shall either connect 
at each end to a dedicated street or be provided with a turnaround having a minimum radius of 
fifty (50) feet when measured from the centerline of the access roadway to the curb. All fire lanes 
shall be maintained and kept in a state of good repair at all times by the owner, manager or person 
in charge of the premises, and the city shall never be responsible for the maintenance thereof.  

Sec. 9-171. - Markings.  

(a) Signs:  
(1) The owner, manager or person in charge of any building for which fire lanes have been 

approved by the fire marshal or his authorized representative shall post and maintain 
appropriate signs in conspicuous places along such fire lanes stating: “No Parking-Fire 
Lane.” Such signs shall be twelve (12) inches wide and eighteen (18) inches high, with a 
companion sign twelve (12) inches wide and six (6) inches high stating: “Tow-Away 
Zone.”  

(2) Any “No Parking-Fire Lane” or “Tow-Away Zone” sign shall be painted on a white 
background with letters and borders in red. The sign(s) shall be installed such that the 
bottom of the sign is not less than three (3) feet above grade and the top of the sign is not 
greater than five (5) feet above grade.  

(3) Where the placement of such signs is not applicable or when, in the opinion of the fire 
marshal or his authorized representative, such signs would cause a burden on the 
management, curb markings may be used.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 47 of 56 
 

(b) Curb markings. Any “No Parking-Fire Lane” or  - “Tow-Away Zone” curb markings shall be 
painted on a red background with letters in white. Such lettering shall be a minimum of four 
(4) inches in height with a one-half (½) inch stroke. Such lettering shall state: “No Parking-
Fire Lane/Tow-Away Zone.” Curb markings shall be placed at a distance no greater than 
fifteen (15) feet between the end of one notice to the beginning of the next.  

. . . 

Sec. 9-178. - Submission of plats; duties of contractors.  

(a) Prior to the issuance of a building permit, plats with designated fire lanes shall be submitted 
to the planning and development department for review by the fire marshal, who then will 
approve or disapprove the designated fire lanes and indicate the needed signs and pavement 
markings. One of these plats shall be retained by the fire marshalEngineering Department.  

(b) The contractor or person in charge of any construction site for commercial, industrial, 
mercantile, educational, institutional, assembly, hotel, multifamily dwelling, or manufactured 
home park occupancies shall provide and maintain during construction an approved all-
weather fire lane not less than twenty (20) feet in width, as shown on approved plats. Final 
paving of such fire lane shall be completed prior to the issuance of any certificate of 
occupancy.  

Sec. 9-179. - Existing buildings and other types of construction for occupancy.  

Buildings and any other type of construction for occupancy existing on the effective date of 
this ordinance shall be required to comply with the requirements of this article; provided, however, 
that the fire marshal may modify a requirement of this article pursuant to section 9-175 hereof. 
The owner of a building or any other type of construction for occupancy, or his designated agent, 
may appeal a decision of the fire marshal to the building board of adjustment and appeals in 
accordance with the provisions in section 9-176 of this article.  

Sec. 9-180. - Penalties for violation of article.  

Any person who shall violate any provisions of this article or fail to comply therewith, or who 
shall violate or fail to comply with any order made hereunder, or who shall build in violation of 
any detailed statement of specifications or plans submitted and approved hereunder or any 
certificate or permit issued hereunder shall be guilty of a misdemeanor which shall be punishable 
by a fine of not less than twenty-five dollars ($25.00) nor more than two thousand dollars 
($2,000.00).  

ARTICLE V. - OUTDOOR BURNING 

Sec. 9-185. - Definitions.  

The following definitions shall apply in the interpretation and enforcement of this article:  

Brush means cuttings or trimmings from trees, shrubs, gardens or lawns and similar materials.  
Combustible material means magazines, books, brush, pasteboard boxes, rags, paper, straw, 

sawdust, packing material, shavings, boxes and all rubbish and refuse that will ignite through 
contact with flames of ordinary temperatures.  

Combustion unit means any boiler plant, furnace, incinerator, domestic fireplace, flare, engine 
or other device used to oxidize solid, liquid or gaseous fuels.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 48 of 56 
 

Domestic waste means garbage and rubbish resulting from the function of life within a 
residence.  

Garbage means solid waste consisting of putrescible animal and vegetable waste materials 
resulting from the handling, preparation, cooking and consumption of food, including waste 
materials from markets, storage facilities, and handling and sale of produce and other food 
products.  

Landclearing operation means the uprooting, cutting or clearing of vegetation in connection 
with conversion for the construction of buildings, rights-of-way, residential, commercial, or 
industrial development, or the clearing of vegetation to enhance property value, access or 
production. It does not include the maintenance burning of on-site property wastes such as fallen 
limbs, branches, or leaves, or other wastes from routine property clean-up activities, nor does it 
include burning following clearing for ecological restoration.  

Outdoor burning means any fire or smoke producing process which is not conducted in a 
combustion unit.  

Person means any individual, corporation, organization, partnership, business trust, 
association or any other legal entity.  

Practical alternative means an economically, technologically, ecologically and logistically 
viable option. Practical alternatives may include recycling, composting, mechanical chipping or 
mulching, landfilling, logging, or using a state registered forced air trench burner system or air 
curtain destructors.  

Rubbish means nonputrescible solid waste (excluding ashes), consisting of both combustible 
and noncombustible waste materials. Combustible rubbish includes paper, rags, cartons, wood, 
excelsior, furniture, rubber, plastics, yard trimmings, leaves, or similar materials; noncombustible 
rubbish includes glass, crockery, tin cans, aluminum cans, metal furniture, and similar materials 
that will not burn at ordinary incinerator temperatures (one thousand six hundred (1,600) degrees 
Fahrenheit to one thousand eight hundred (1,800) degrees Fahrenheit).  

Solid waste means garbage, rubbish, combustible materials, ashes, street cleanings, dead 
animals, abandoned automobiles and all other solid waste.  

Structure containing sensitive receptor(s) means a man-made structure utilized for human 
residence or business, the containment of livestock, or the housing of sensitive live vegetation. The 
term "man-made structure" does not include such things as range fences, roads, bridges, hunting 
blinds or facilities used solely for the storage of hay or other livestock feeds. The term "sensitive 
live vegetation" is defined as vegetation which has potential to be damaged by smoke and heat, 
examples of which include, but are not limited to, nursery production, mushroom cultivation, 
pharmaceutical plan production, or laboratory experiments involving plants.  

TNRCC means the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission TCEQ means Texas 
Commission on Environmental Quality or its successor agency.  

Uncontrolled outdoor burning means any outdoor burning that is not conducted pursuant to 
an exemption provided in this article.  
Sec. 9-186. - Declaration of nuisance.  

The city council of the City of Alvin hereby declares that uncontrolled outdoor burning of 
rubbish, garbage, brush, combustible materials and all other solid waste within the city limits of 
Alvin and within five thousand (5,000) feet of the city limits of Alvin is a nuisance that creates 



Ord. 19-H             Page 49 of 56 
 

conditions that are detrimental to the lives, health and property of the citizens of Alvin and 
interferes with the enjoyment of property and the public peace and comfort.  

Sec. 9-187. - Uncontrolled outdoor burning prohibited.  

No person may cause, suffer, allow or permit any uncontrolled outdoor burning of rubbish, 
garbage, brush, combustible materials or solid waste within the city limits or within five thousand 
(5,000) feet of the city limits of Alvin.  
Sec. 9-188. - Exceptions.  

Outdoor burning of trash, rubbish, garbage, brush, combustible materials or solid waste shall 
be authorized for:  

(a) Training fire-fighting personnel when requested in writing and when authorized either 
verbally or in writing by the fire marshal. The burning shall be authorized if notice of 
denial from the fire marshal is not received within ten (10) working days after the date of 
the postmark or date of personal delivery of the request.  

(b) Fires used solely in the noncommercial preparation of food.  
(c) Fires used solely for recreational or ceremonial purposes or used exclusively for the 

purpose of supplying warmth during cold weather, subject, however, to requirements of 
sections 9-189 and 9-190 hereof.  

(d) Domestic waste burning at a property designated for and used exclusively as a private 
residence, housing not more than three (3) families, when collection of domestic waste is 
not provided or authorized by the local governmental entity having jurisdiction and when 
the waste is generated only from that property. Provision of waste collection refers to 
collection at the premises where the waste is generated.  

(e) Diseased animal carcass burning when burning is the most effective means of controlling 
the spread of disease.  

(f) On-site burning of trees, brush, and other plant growth for right-of-way maintenance, 
landclearing operations, and maintenance along water canals when no practical 
alternative to burning exists and when the materials are generated only from that property. 
Structures containing sensitive receptors must not be negatively affected by the burn. 
Such burning shall be subject to the requirements of sections 9-189 and 9-190 of this 
article. For a single project entailing multiple days of burning, the person must not 
circumvent the rule for a continual burning situation established by the TNRCCTCEQ.  

(g) Crop residue burning for agricultural management purposes when no practical alternative 
exists. Such burning shall be subject to the requirements of sections 9-189 and 9-190 of 
this article, and structures containing sensitive receptors must not be negatively affected 
by the burn.  

(h) Brush, trees, and other plant growth causing a detrimental public health and safety 
condition burned by the city or county at a site it owns upon receiving site and burn 
approval from the TNRCCTCEQ.  

(i) Removal of fire hazards when there is no practical alternative and the burning will not 
contribute to a nuisance, traffic hazard or a violation of any federal or state ambient air 
standard. Any such burning shall be subject to the requirements of sections 9-189 and 9-
190 of this article.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 50 of 56 
 

(j) Any other outdoor burning authorized under the Texas Clean Air Act (Chapter 382 of the 
Health and Safety Code) and the rules adopted thereunder by the TNRCCTCEQ, as such 
laws may be hereafter amended.  

Sec. 9-189. - Permit requirements.  

(a) Any person desiring to conduct outdoor burning under section 9-188 (c), (f), (g) or (i) shall 
apply for and obtain a permit from the fire marshal. A copy of the permit and all required 
paperwork shall be maintained at the burn site for the duration of the permit period. A permit 
period shall be commensurate with the projected time period necessary for the outdoor 
burning and the expiration date shall be stated on the permit.  

(b) The outdoor burning permit fees set forth in chapter 28 of this Code shall apply to this article.  
(c) In cases where a person commences outdoor burning without a required permit, the fire 

marshal shall issue an order requiring the person to stop burning and shall conduct an 
inspection/special investigation of the burn site prior to issuance of a permit. Additionally, 
charges may be filed in municipal court for violating this article. An inspection/special 
investigation fee in the amount set forth in chapter 28 of this Code shall be applied in addition 
to the permit fee.  

(d) A permit may be denied or revoked by the fire marshal upon occurrence of any one or more 
of the following:  
(1) The permittee provides false information on the permit application;  

(2) The permittee does not comply with the requirements of this article; and/or  
(3) The permittee adds garbage, rubbish, brush, combustible material or any other solid waste 

to the permitted burn site for which the permit has not been issued.  
Sec. 9-190. - General requirements for allowable outdoor burning.  

Outdoor burning which is authorized pursuant to section 9-188 of this article shall be subject 
to the following requirements:  

(a) Burning shall be commenced and conducted only when wind direction and other 
meteorological conditions are such that smoke and other pollutants will not cause adverse 
effects to any public road, landing strip, navigable water, or off-site structure containing 
sensitive receptor(s).  

(b) If at any time the burning causes or may tend to cause smoke to blow onto or across a 
road or highway, it is the responsibility of the person initiating the burn to post flag-
persons on affected roads in accordance with the requirements of the Texas Department 
of Public Safety.  

(c) Burning must be conducted downwind of or at least three hundred (300) feet (ninety (90) 
meters) from any structure containing sensitive receptors located on adjacent properties 
unless prior written approval is obtained from the adjacent occupant with possessory 
control.  

(d) Burning shall be conducted in compliance with the following meteorological and timing 
considerations:  
(1) The initiation of burning shall commence no earlier than one hour after sunrise. 

Burning shall be completed on the same day not later than one hour before sunset, 
and shall be attended by a responsible party at all times during the active burn phase 



Ord. 19-H             Page 51 of 56 
 

when the fire is progressing. In cases where residual fires and/or smoldering objects 
continue to emit smoke after this time, such areas shall be extinguished if the smoke 
from these areas has the potential to create a nuisance or traffic hazard condition. In 
no case shall the extent of the burn area be allowed to increase after this time.  

(2) Burning shall not be commenced when surface wind speed is predicted to be less 
than six (6) miles per hour (mph) (five (5) knots) or greater than twenty-three (23) 
mph (twenty (20) knots) during the burn period.  

(3) Burning shall not be conducted during periods of actual or predicted persistent low-
level atmospheric temperature inversions or in areas covered by a current air 
stagnation advisory.  

(e) Electrical insulation, treated lumber, plastics, non-wood construction/demolition 
materials, heavy oils, asphaltic materials, potentially explosive materials, chemical 
wastes, and items containing natural or synthetic rubber must not be burned.  

Sec. 9-191. - Penalty.  

Any person who violates any provision of this article shall be guilty of a misdemeanor which 
shall be punishable by a fine of not less than two hundred dollars ($200.00) nor more than two 
thousand dollars ($2,000.00).  

Sec. 9-192. - Responsibility for consequences of outdoor burning.  

The authority to conduct outdoor burning under this article does not exempt or excuse any 
person responsible from the consequences, damages, or injuries resulting from the burning and 
does not exempt or excuse anyone from complying with all other applicable laws or ordinances, 
regulations, and orders of governmental entities having jurisdiction, even though the burning is 
otherwise conducted in compliance with this article.  

Sec. 9-193. - Recognition of a state law.  

Nothing contained in this article shall be construed to either (i) permit any burning in violation 
of the Texas Clean Air Act or any rule, regulation or order of the TNRCC TCEQ issued thereunder 
or (ii) make unlawful an act or condition authorized under the Texas Clean Air Act or the rules, 
regulations or orders of the TNRCC TCEQ issued thereunder.  

  



Ord. 19-H             Page 52 of 56 
 

Secs. 9-194—9-200. - Reserved.  

ARTICLE VI. - FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS  

Sec. 9-201. - Smoke detectors.  

The installation of UL- or FM-approved smoke detectors shall be required in any new building 
or structure, either residential or commercial, within the city limits of the City of Alvin. The smoke 
detectors shall be installed with AC power and wired directly together with battery backup so that 
if one smoke detector activates, all smoke detectors within the particular or structure will sound 
an audible alarm. In existing buildings and structures, either residential or commercial, only 
battery-powered are required. All smoke detectors shall be installed every nine hundred (900) 
square feet and approved by the fire marshal. All such smoke detectors installed in this manner 
shall be maintained in working order by the owner, occupant or other person charged with 
responsibility for the management, care and maintenance of such building or structure.  

Exception: If there is an approved, listed and/or required fire protection system (i.e., fire 
sprinkler system, fire alarm system) in place in such commercial building(s) or structure(s) within 
the City of Alvin, the requirement for the AC powered smoke detectors may be waived upon 
approval by the fire marshal.  

Sec. 9-202 – Fire Alarm Activation. 

Upon activation of any automatic fire alarm system, all occupants of the structure shall be 
evacuated and shall remain outside the structure until the fire department has determined that no 
fire or danger exists. To enable fire department personnel to locate the area or zone activated, 
occupants of the structure shall not reset an alarm activation. A trained individual with the 
responsibility to respond to an emergency may only silence alarm activations if such can be 
achieved without resetting the alarm. Only fire department personnel or employees of the fire 
alarm company may reset a fire alarm system.  

Sec. 9-203. - Reserved.  

Sec. 9-204. - Fire department access.  

(a) Subject. Fire department access gates and key boxes.  
(b) Purpose. The purpose of this policy is to clarify existing ordinance requirements adopted by 

the City of Alvin for installation of fire department access gates and key boxes. This policy 
also establishes uniform and consistent guidelines for enforcement for structures within the 
city limits of the City of Alvin.  

(c) Generally.  
(1) Fire department access gates and key boxes will only be used during emergencies by duly 

authorized personnel of the Alvin Volunteer Fire Department and for key box 
maintenance by the City of Alvin Fire Marshal. , and for inspections by the City of Alvin 
fire Marshal.  

(2) It is the sole responsibility of the owner or designated representative of the building or 
structure to purchase a fire department access gate and or key boxes from the approved 
vendor.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 53 of 56 
 

(3) The Knox Company shall be the only vendor to be used for fire department access gates 
and boxes.  

(d) Vehicular access gates. Any person or company who shall install or utilize any type of security 
gate to control vehicular access into a private residential project, commercial project or any 
dedicated private street must receive written approval from the fire marshal in each specific 
case.  
Security gates to control vehicular access into private property must conform to the following 
requirements before they shall be considered as approved gates:  

(1) Gate width options, minimum openings.  
a. Single gate. One twenty-eight-foot gate that opens to provide unobstructed access to 

the full twenty-eight-foot street width at a project entrance.  
b. Two gates. Two (2) fourteen-foot gates that open to provide access to the full twenty-

eight-foot street width at a project entrance.  
c. Width variances. Subject to the written approval of the fire marshal, the width of any 

gate may be varied to accommodate the width or physical make-up of any street or 
private drive, so long as any emergency or other public service vehicles have 
immediate unobstructed access to such parking area or private street without delay. 
An applicant for a variance shall pay a non-refundable fee, in an amount provided 
for in the fee schedule in chapter 28.  

d. Entrance. All openings or access points from public streets to the private streets in 
any development project are to be considered entrances by definition.  

(2) Design and operating specifications.  

a. All automated gates must have a manual override to be approved by the fire marshal.  
b. All manual gates and their locking gates must be approved by the fire marshal.  
c. All gates shall have an emergency 911 access box mounted on a breakaway post no 

higher than five (5) feet, or at the highest point on any hinge post under five (5) feet.  
d. All specifications and contents of an emergency 911 access box shall be available in 

the office of the fire marshal.  
e. All emergency 911 access boxes shall be locked with a standard lock Knox Padlock 

as designated by the fire marshal.  
f. During any emergency or the entry of any public service vehicles, all gates shall 

remain open after entry until closed manually.  
g. The property owner, property manager or gate operator shall provide by December 

20 of each year, a schedule for the upcoming year of all access codes to all access 
gates to the fire marshal, the fire department, the emergency medical services 
department, and the police department.  

(e) Key boxes at building access.  
(1) All buildings, subject to the requirements of this chapter, shall provide and install therein 

a secured key box that is U.L. rated of a type approved by the fire marshal.  
(2) Individual tenants in multitenant buildings may or may not be required to place their key 

in this box based on their ability to meet the exemption requirements listed in this section.  



Ord. 19-H             Page 54 of 56 
 

(3) A key box shall be installed in all of the following locations:  
a. All buildings or parts of buildings having approved fire detection and alarm systems.  

b. All buildings or parts of buildings having approved fire suppression systems.  
c. All buildings or parts of buildings classified as a Group H—Hazardous, storing 

explosives, and Group S—Storage, storing flammable or combustible material.  
da. All buildings or parts of buildings classified as Groups A—Assembly, B—Business, 

E—Educational, F—Factory/Industrial, H-Hazardous, I—Institutional, and M—
Mercantile, and S-Storage.  

(4) Exemptions:  
a. Single-family dwellings, individual family dwellings in multitenant residential 

buildings.  
b. Residential dwellings with four (4) units or less under a common roof.  
c. All buildings that maintain office personnel in constant attendance of the premises 

twenty-four (24) hours a day. and are three (3) stories in height.  
d. Any new or existing commercial buildings that are not required under subsection 

(c)(1) or (c)(2) of this section.  
e.d. Financial buildings that are FDIC insured and stand alone automated teller machine 

automotive transaction machine buildings.  
fe. Government buildings and regulated government buildings where federal law 

prohibits accessBuildings that are owned or leased by the federal government.  

(f) Key box contents.  
(1) A key box as required in this section shall be keyed to allow for one master key to be in 

possession of city emergency personnel. The building owner or manager should have a 
key that would restrict them to their own key box.  

(2) The key box shall contain keys to:  
a. Locked points of ingress, whether on the interior or exterior of such building.  

b. Locked mechanical rooms.  
c. Locked electrical rooms.  

d. Locked breaker panel or alarm panel rooms.  
e. Elevator controls.  

f. Locked roof access doors.  
g. Other areas of the building as directed by the fire marshal.  

(3) If a building contains a reportable amount of hazardous materials, the key box should 
contain a material safety data sheet (MSDS) for each hazardous material.  

(4) The key box should also contain a design layout of the building and any emergency 
contingency plans.  

Secs. 9-205—9-209. - Reserved.  

  



Ord. 19-H             Page 55 of 56 
 

ARTICLE VII. - PRECAUTIONS AGAINST FIRE  

DIVISION 1. - TRASH DISPOSAL RECEPTACLES  

Sec. 9-210. - Definitions.  

The following definitions shall apply to this article:  

Opaque material shall mean impervious to light, so that images cannot be seen through it.  
Trash disposal receptacles shall include, but are not limited to, dumpsters or other receptacles 

used to hold materials for disposal, recycling or donation drop-offs.  
Workmanlike shall mean construction work that is done in a way that is thorough and 

satisfactory.  
Sec. 9-211. - Application of division.  

(1) The location and container of all trash disposal receptacles shall be approved by the fire 
marshal. Adequate lighting shall be provided within an apartment complex, residential 
property or commercial properties. All trash disposal receptacles shall comply with applicable 
local, state and federal regulations pertaining to solid and liquid waste storage, collection and 
disposal.  

(2) All trash disposal receptacles within the city which are visible from a public road or sidewalk 
shall be screened from public view by a fence or wall of construction in conforming with city 
building codes, and shall be constructed in a workmanlike manner. Such fence or wall shall 
be composed of opaque materials and constructed to a height at least equal to the maximum 
height above the ground of any trash disposal receptacles maintained in the trash disposal 
area. Any opening provided to allow access to or removal of trash disposal receptacles from 
the area shall be kept in a closed position except during those times when a person or vehicle 
is accessing the receptacles.  

(3) All trash disposal receptacles shall be placed on private property and on a permanent concrete 
surface, no less than fifteen (15) feet from any (building and five (5) feet from any property 
line). The access from the public roadway to the trash disposal receptacles shall be a 
permanent concrete surface.  

(4) All used cooking oil, used flammable and combustible liquids and liquid recycling collection 
containers shall comply with the same requirements as trash disposal receptacles.  

(5) Donation boxes shall be placed on permanent all-weather type surfaces and approved by the 
fire marshal. All boxes will comply with the distance requirements from building and property 
lines. No material shall be allowed to be placed outside of the donation boxes.  

(6) Any violation of this section will be a five-hundred-dollar-fine.  
(7) This section shall become effective for pre-existing receptacles two (2) years from passing of 

this division, and immediately for new construction.  
Secs. 9-212—9-222. - Reserved.  

Section 3.  Severability. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any provision to 
any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 



Ord. 19-H             Page 56 of 56 
 

applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 4.  Code of Ordinances. It is the intention of the Council that this Ordinance shall become 
a part of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Alvin, Texas, and may be renumbered and codified 
therein accordingly. 
 
Section 5.  Penalty.  Any person, firm or corporation violating a provision of this Ordinance shall 
be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction shall be subject to a fine in accordance with the 
general penalty section 1-5 of the Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 6.  Publication.  The City Secretary of the City of Alvin is hereby directed to publish this 
ordinance, or its caption and penalty clause, in one issue of the official City newspaper as required 
by Chapter 52 of the Texas Local Government Code and the City of Alvin Charter. 
 
Section 7. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 52 of the Texas Local Government Code, 
and the City of Alvin Charter.  
 
Section 8. Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the 
Texas Government Code. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on first and final reading on the ______day of __________, 2019. 
 
 
THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS   ATTEST 
 
 
 
By:_____________________________  By:_________________________________ 
 Paul A. Horn, Mayor     Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 

 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   5/2/2019 

Department:  Engineering Contact:  Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Ordinance 19-I, amending Chapter 17, Plumbing, of the Code of Ordinances, 

City of Alvin, Texas, providing the reference to the adoption of the 2018 International 
Plumbing Code as published with certain amendments and deletions; providing for a 
severability clause; providing for a penalty; providing for publication; providing for a 
savings clause; providing an effective date, and setting forth other provisions related 
thereto. 
 
 

Type of Item: ☒Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   Ordinance 19-I amends Chapter 17 Plumbing, of the City of Alvin Code of Ordinances by 
referencing the adoption of the 2018 International Plumbing Code with related City Staff recommended 
amendments and deletions. This ordinance revises Chapter 17 Plumbing so that it does not conflict with the 
information in Chapter 5 Buildings relating to the adoption of the plumbing code.  
 
Periodic adoption of a more current code addition helps to maintain the usefulness of the code by keeping up 
with current technology and terminology.  Adoption of newer codes also keeps the City compliant with the 
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule (BCEGS) which is a factor used by the Insurance Services 
Office (ISO) to determine the City’s ISO rating. The City’s current BCEGS rating is 4 out of 10 (with 1 being 
superior) for both residential and commercial properties.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 19-I. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 4/25/2019 SLH 
 
Supporting documents attached: 
• Ord. 19-I redline 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve Ordinance 19-I, amending Chapter 17, Plumbing, of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, providing the reference to the adoption of the 2018 
International Plumbing Code as published with certain amendments and deletions; 
providing for a severability clause; providing for a penalty; providing for publication; 
providing for a savings clause; providing an effective date, and setting forth other 
provisions related thereto. 
 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 



ORDINANCE NO. 19-I 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 17, PLUMBING, OF THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, PROVIDING THE 
REFERENCE TO THE ADOPTION OF THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL 
PLUMBING CODE AS PUBLISHED WITH CERTAIN AMENDMENTS 
AND DELETIONS;  PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION; 
PROVIDING FOR A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE, AND SETTING FORTH OTHER PROVISIONS RELATED 
THERETO. 

 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN: 
 

Section 1. That Section 17-1, of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, is hereby 
amended to read as follows:  
 
“Sec. 17-1. Standard Plumbing Code – AdoptedInternational Plumbing Code, 2018 
Edition, with Amendments Adopted. 
 
 Except as provided in this chapterChapter and Chapter 5, Buildings, the Standard Plumbing 

Code, 1994 Edition, published by Southern Building Code Congress International, Inc. 
International Plumbing Code, 2018 Edition, as such may be hereafter amended or recodified 
(“the Standard Plumbing CodeIPC”), is hereby adopted in its entirety as if set out in length 
herein and is incorporated herein by reference. One copy of the Standard Plumbing Code 
IPC shall be on file in the city clerk’s City Secretary’s office and one copy of such code 
shall be on file in the office of the building official.  

(b) Section 102 (inclusive of all subsections thereunder) is deleted in its entirety.  
(c) The term “Standard Unsafe Building Abatement Code” in the last sentence of section 103.5 

of the Standard Plumbing Code is hereby deleted and the following is substituted: “Section 
5-5.1. of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas.”  

(d) All references in the Standard Plumbing Code to the “construction board of adjustment and 
appeals” are amended to read “Plumbing Board of Adjustment and Appeals.”  

(e) Section 108.1 of the Standard Plumbing Code is repealed in its entirety and the following 
shall be substituted: “There is hereby established a board to be called the plumbing board of 
adjustment and appeals which shall consist of five (5) members. The board shall be 
appointed by the city council.”  

(f) Section 108.2.1 of the Standard Plumbing Code is repealed in its entirety and the following 
shall be substituted: “The plumbing board of adjustment and appeals shall consist of five (5) 
members. Such board members should be composed of individuals with knowledge and 
experience in the technical codes. A board member shall not act in a case in which he/she 
has a personal or financial interest.”  



Ord. 19-I Page 2 of 11 

(g) Section 108.2.2 of the Standard Plumbing Code is repealed in its entirety and the following 
shall be substituted: “The terms of office of the board members shall be staggered so no 
more than two (2) members of the board are appointed or replaced in any twelve-month 
period. Vacancies shall be filled for an unexpired term in the manner in which original 
appointments are required to be made. Continued absence of any member from required 
meetings of the board shall, at the discretion of the city council, render any such member 
subject to immediate removal from office.”  

(h) Section 108.2.3 of the Standard Plumbing Code is repealed in its entirety and the following 
shall be substituted: “A simple majority of the board shall constitute a quorum. In varying 
any provision of this code, or modifying a decision of the building official, not less than 
three (3) affirmative votes shall be required.”  

Sec. 17-2. - Same—Amendments, deletions, additions, and other modifications.  

The Standard Plumbing Code IPC adopted in section 17-1 above is hereby additionally 
amended by the following additions and deletions and is otherwise modified in the following 
respects:  
(a) Bonding/insurance provisionsInsurance Requirements. Plumbing contractors performing 

work within the city shall maintain insurance in accordance with Texas law.  Before any 
person shall engage in the plumbing business in the city, he/she/it they shall first obtain the 
proper license and deposit with the city one of the following:  
(1)  A good and sufficient bond in the sum of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) conditioned 

that the person engaged in the plumbing business will faithfully observe all the laws 
pertaining to plumbing and further that the city shall be indemnified and saved harmless 
from all claims arising from accidents and damage of any character whatsoever caused 
by the negligence of such person engaged in the plumbing business, or by any other 
inadequate work done either by the person or his/her/its agents or employees; or  

(2) A certificate of insurance written by a company licensed to transact business in the State 
of Texas that provides for commercial general liability insurance for the person for 
claims for property damage or bodily injury (regardless of whether the claim arises 
from a negligence claim or on a contract claim) in a coverage amount of not less than 
three hundred thousand dollars ($300,000.00) for all claims arising in any one-year 
period.  

(b) Identification of vehicles. Every motor vehicle operated upon the public streets of the City of 
Alvin and used in connection with any plumbing work by any plumber, or by permission of 
any plumber, shall be clearly marked on two (2) sides with the name of such plumber or his 
company, the state master plumber’s license number of such responsible plumber, and said 
plumber's street address and telephone number. Such information shall be affixed 
permanently to such vehicle. Such information appearing only on removable signs shall not 
be considered to be in compliance with this provision.  

(c) Fees. The fees set forth in chapter 28 of this Code shall apply to this chapter.  
(d) Swimming pool recirculating filtration equipment. No person shall install or construct a 

residential swimming pool from and after August 1, 1989, which is not equipped with 
working recirculating filtration equipment.  



Ord. 19-I Page 3 of 11 

(e) Insulation of hot water supply lines. Insulation of all hot water supply lines in any 
construction engaged in from and after August 1, 1989, shall be of a minimum thickness of 
one-half inch.  

(f) Violations. Any and all violations of this chapter, including the provisions of the Standard 
Plumbing CodeIPC, shall constitute a misdemeanor and shall be punishable as provided in 
the Alvin Code of Ordinances as for other misdemeanor violations.  

Sections. 17-3—17-11. - Reserved.  

ARTICLE II. - CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL  

 Sec. 17-12. - Purpose.  

The purpose of this article is:  
(1) To protect the public potable water supply of the City of Alvin from the possibility of 

contamination or pollution by isolating within the consumer’s internal distribution 
system(s) or the consumer’s private water system(s) such contaminants or pollutants 
which could backflow into the public water systems; and,  

(2) To promote the elimination or control of existing cross connections, actual or potential, 
between the consumer’s in-plant potable water system(s) and nonpotable water 
system(s), plumbing fixtures and industrial piping systems; and,  

(3) To provide for the maintenance of a continuing program of cross connection control 
which will systematically and effectively prevent the contamination or pollution of all 
potable water systems.  

Sec. 17-13. - Protection of public potable water distribution system.  

The City of Alvin declares its intent to protect the public potable water distribution system 
from contamination or pollution due to the backflow of contaminants or pollutants through the 
water service connection. If, in the judgment of the director of public works and engineering an 
approved backflow prevention assembly is required (at the consumer’s water service connection 
or within the consumer’s private water system) for the safety of the water system, the department 
of public works and engineering or its designated representative shall give notice in writing to 
the consumer to install an approved backflow prevention assembly(s) at a specific location(s) on 
his/her premises, and the consumer shall immediately install such an approved backflow 
prevention assembly(s) at the consumer's own expense; failure, refusal or inability on the part of 
the consumer to install, have tested and maintained said assembly, shall constitute grounds for 
discontinuing water service to the premises until such requirements have been satisfactorily met.  

Sec. 17-14. - Definitions.  

The following words, terms and phrases, as used in this article, shall have the meanings 
respectively ascribed to them in this section, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:  

Approval or approved means the following:  
(1)  The term approved as herein used in reference to a water supply shall mean a water 

supply that has been approved by the regulatory agency having jurisdiction.  



Ord. 19-I Page 4 of 11 

(2)  The term approved as herein used in reference to an air gap, a double check valve 
assembly, a reduced pressure principle backflow prevention assembly or other backflow 
prevention assemblies or methods shall mean an approval by the administrative 
authority having jurisdiction.  

Auxiliary water supply means any water supply on or available to the premises other than 
the purveyor's approved public water supply will be considered an auxiliary water supply. These 
auxiliary waters may include water from another purveyor's public potable water supply or any 
natural source(s) such as a well, spring, river, stream, harbor, etc., or used waters or industrial 
fluids. These waters may be contaminated or polluted or they may be objectionable and 
constitute an unacceptable water source over which the water purveyor does not have sanitary 
control.  

Backflow means the undesirable reversal of flow of water or mixtures of water and other 
liquids, gases or other substances into the distribution pipes of the potable supply of water from 
any source or sources. See terms “backsiphonage” and “backpressure.”  

Backpressure means any elevation of pressure in the downstream piping system (by pump, 
elevation of piping, or steam and/or air pressure) above the supply pressure at the point of 
consideration which would cause, or tend to cause, a reversal of the normal direction of flow.  

Backsiphonage means a form of backflow due to a reduction in system pressure which 
causes a subatmospheric pressure to exist at a site in the water system.  

Backflow preventer means an assembly or means designed to prevent backflow.  
(1) Air gap means a physical separation between the free flowing discharge end of a 

potable water supply pipeline and an open or nonpressure receiving vessel. An 
“approved air gap” shall be at least double the diameter of the supply pipe measured 
vertically above the overflow rim of the vessel—in no case less than one (1) inch (2.54 
cm).  

(2) Reduced pressure principle backflow prevention assembly means an assembly 
containing two independently acting approved check valves together with a 
hydraulically operating, mechanically independent pressure differential relief valve 
located between the check valves and at the same time below the first check valve. The 
unit shall include properly located resilient seated test cocks and tightly closing resilient 
seated shutoff valves at each end of the assembly. This assembly is designed to protect 
against a nonhealth (i.e., pollutant) or a health hazard (i.e., contaminant). This assembly 
shall not be used for backflow protection of sewage or reclaimed water.  

(3) Double check valve backflow prevention assembly means an assembly composed of two 
(2) independently acting, approved check valves, including tightly closing resilient 
seated shutoff valves attached at each end of the assembly and fitted with properly 
located resilient seated test cocks. (See Section 10 of the most current edition of the 
Manual of Cross-Connection Control for additional details). This assembly shall only be 
used to protect against a non-health hazard (i.e., pollutant).  

Commission means the [State of] Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission Texas 
Commission on Environmental Quality (“TCEQ”) or its successor agency.  



Ord. 19-I Page 5 of 11 

Contamination means an impairment of the quality of the water which creates an actual 
hazard to the public health through poisoning or through the spread of disease by sewage, 
industrial fluids, waste, etc.  

Cross-connection means any unprotected actual or potential connection or structural 
arrangement between a public or a consumer’s potable water system and any other source or, 
system through which it is possible to introduce into any part of the potable system any used 
water, industrial fluid, gas, or substance or other than the intended potable water with which the 
system is supplied. Bypass arrangements, jumper connections, removable sections, swivel or 
change-over devices and other temporary or permanent devices through which or because of 
which backflow can or may occur are considered to be cross-connections.  

(1) The term direct cross-connection shall mean a cross-connection which is subject to both 
backsiphonage and backpressure.  

(2) The term indirect cross-connection shall mean a cross-connection which is subject to 
backsiphonage only.  

Cross-connections—Controlled means a connection between a potable water system and a 
non-potable water system with an approved backflow prevention assembly properly installed and 
maintained so that it will continuously afford the protection commensurate with the degree of 
hazard.  

Cross-connection control by containment means the term “service protection” [which] shall 
mean the appropriate type or method of backflow protection at the service connection, 
commensurate with the degree of hazard of the consumer's potable water system.  

Hazard, degree of means the term "degree of hazard [which] shall mean either a pollutional 
(non-health) or contamination (health) hazard and is derived from the evaluation of conditions 
within a system.  

(1) Hazard—Health. The term “health hazard” shall mean an actual or potential threat of 
contamination of a physical or toxic nature to the public potable water system or the 
consumer's potable water system that would be a danger to health.  

(2) Hazard—Plumbing. The term “plumbing hazard” shall mean an internal or plumbing 
type cross-connection in a consumer’s potable water system that may be either a 
pollutional or a contamination type hazard. This includes but is not limited to cross-
connections to toilets, sinks, lavatories, wash trays and lawn sprinkling systems. 
Plumbing type cross-connections can be located in many types of structures including 
homes, apartment houses, hotels and commercial or industrial establishments. Such a 
connection, if permitted to exist, must be properly protected by an appropriate type of 
backflow prevention assembly.  

(3) Hazard—Pollutional. The term “pollutional hazard” shall mean an actual or potential 
threat to the physical properties of the water system or the potability of the public or the 
consumer's potable water system but which would not constitute a health or system 
hazard, as defined. The maximum degree or intensity of pollution to which the potable 
water system could be degraded under this definition would cause a nuisance or be 
aesthetically objectionable or could cause minor damage to the system or its 
appurtenances.  



Ord. 19-I Page 6 of 11 

(4) Hazard—System. The term “system hazard” shall mean an actual or potential threat of 
severe danger to the physical properties of the public or the consumer’s potable water 
system or of a pollution or contamination which would have a protracted effect on the 
quality of the potable water in the system.  

Industrial fluids means any fluid or solution which may be chemically, biologically or 
otherwise contaminated or polluted in a form or concentration which would constitute a health, 
system, pollutional or plumbing hazard if introduced into an approved water supply. This may 
include, but not be limited to: polluted or contaminated used waters; all types of process waters 
and “used waters” originating from the public potable water system which may deteriorate in 
sanitary quality; chemicals in fluid form; plating acids and alkalis; circulated cooling waters 
connected to an open cooling tower and/or cooling waters that are chemically or biologically 
treated or stabilized with toxic substances; contaminated natural waters such as from wells, 
springs, streams, rivers, bays, harbors, seas, irrigation canals or systems, etc.; oils, gases, 
glycerin, paraffins, caustic and acid solutions and other liquid and gaseous fluids used 
industrially, for other processes, or for fire fighting purposes.  

Pollution means an impairment of the quality of the water to a degree which does not create 
a hazard to the public health but which does adversely and unreasonably affect the aesthetic 
qualities of such waters for domestic use.  

Water—Potable means the term “potable water” [which] shall mean any public potable 
water supply which has been investigated and approved by the regulatory agency. The system 
must be operating under a valid health permit. In determining what constitutes an approved water 
supply, the regulatory agency has final judgment as to its safety and potability.  

Water—Non-potable means the term “non-potable water” [which] shall mean a water supply 
which has not been approved for human consumption by the regulatory agency having 
jurisdiction.  

Water—Service connection means the term “service connection” [which] shall mean the 
terminal end of a service connection from the public potable water system, (i.e., where the water 
purveyor may lose jurisdiction and sanitary control of the water at its point of delivery to the 
consumer's water system). If a water meter is installed at the end of the service connection, then 
the service connection shall mean the downstream end of the water meter.  

Water system means the water system shall be considered as made up of two parts: The 
water purveyor's system and the consumer’s system.  

(1) The water purveyor’s system shall consist of the source facilities and the distribution 
system; and shall include all those facilities of the water system under the complete 
control of the purveyor, up to the point where the consumer’s system begins. The source 
shall include all components of the facilities utilized in the production, treatment, 
storage, and delivery of water to the distribution system. The distribution system shall 
include the network of conduits used for the delivery of water from the source to the 
consumer’s system.  

(2) The consumer’s system shall include those parts of the facilities beyond the termination 
of the water purveyor’s distribution system which are utilized in conveying potable 
water to points of use.  



Ord. 19-I Page 7 of 11 

Water—Used means the term “used water” [which] shall mean any water supplied by a 
water purveyor from a public potable water system to a consumers water system after it has 
passed through the service connection and is no longer under the control of the water purveyor.  
Sec. 17-15. - Enforcement authority.  

The city manager and director of public works and engineering and/or their designated 
representatives are invested with authority to implement an effective cross-connection control 
program and to enforce the provisions of this article.  

Sec. 17-16. - Requirements.  

(a) No water service connection to any premises shall be installed or maintained by the water 
purveyor unless the water supply is protected as required by The City of Alvin laws and 
regulations and this article. Service of water to any premises shall be discontinued by the 
water purveyor if a backflow prevention assembly required by this article is not installed, 
tested and maintained, or if it is found that a backflow prevention assembly has been 
removed, bypassed, or if an unprotected cross-connection exists on the premises. Service 
will not be restored until such conditions or defects are corrected.  

(b) The consumer’s system should be open for inspection at all reasonable times to authorized 
representatives of the department of public works and engineering to determine whether 
unprotected cross-connections or other structural or sanitary hazards, including violations of 
these regulations exist. When such a condition becomes known, the director of public works 
and engineering shall deny or immediately discontinue service to the premises by providing 
for a physical break in the service line until the consumer has corrected the condition(s) in 
conformance with the city laws relating to plumbing and water supplies and the regulations 
adopted pursuant thereto.  

(c) An approved backflow prevention assembly shall also be installed on each service line to a 
consumer's water system at or near the property line or immediately inside the building 
being served; but, in all cases, before the first branch line leading off the service line 
wherever the following conditions exist:  
(1) In the case of premises having an auxiliary water supply which is not or may not be of 

safe bacteriological or chemical quality and which is not acceptable as an additional 
source by the director of public works and engineering, the public water system shall be 
protected against backflow from the premises by installation of an approved backflow 
prevention assembly in the service line commensurate with the degree of hazard.  

(2) In the case of premises on which any industrial fluids or any other objectionable 
substance is handled in such a fashion as to create an actual or potential hazard to the 
public water system, the public system shall be protected against backflow from the 
premises by installation of an approved backflow prevention assembly in the service 
line commensurate with the degree of hazard. This shall include the handling of process 
waters and waters originating from the water purveyor's system which have been 
subject to deterioration in quality.  

(3) In the case of premises having (1) internal cross-connections that cannot be permanently 
corrected or protected against, or (2) intricate plumbing and piping arrangements or 
where entry to all portions of the premises is not readily accessible for inspection 



Ord. 19-I Page 8 of 11 

purposes, making it impracticable or impossible to ascertain whether or not dangerous 
cross-connections exist, the public water system shall be protected against backflow 
from the premises by installation of an approved backflow prevention assembly in the 
service line.  

(d) The type of protective assembly required under subsections (c)(1), (2), and (3), shall depend 
upon the degree of hazard which exists as follows:  
(1) In the case of any premises where there is an auxiliary water supply as stated in 

subsection (c)(1), of this section and it is not subject to any of the following rules, the 
public water system shall be protected by an approved air gap or an approved reduced 
pressure principle backflow prevention assembly.  

(2) In the case of any premises where there is water or a substance that would be 
objectionable but not hazardous to health if introduced into the public water system, the 
public water system shall be protected by an approved double check valve backflow 
prevention assembly.  

(3) In the case of any premises where there is any material dangerous to health which is 
handled in such a fashion as to create an actual or potential hazard to the public water 
system, the public water system shall be protected by an approved air gap or an 
approved reduced pressure principle backflow prevention assembly. Examples of 
premises where these conditions will exist include sewage treatment plants, sewage 
pumping stations, chemical manufacturing plants, hospitals, mortuaries and plating 
plants.  

(4) In the case of any premises where there are unprotected cross-connections, either actual 
or potential, the public water system shall be protected by an approved air gap or an 
approved reduced pressure principle backflow prevention assembly at the service 
connection.  

(5) In the case of any premises where, because of security requirements or other 
prohibitions or restrictions, it is impossible or impractical to make a complete in-plant 
cross-connection survey, the public water system shall be protected against backflow 
from the premises by either an approved air gap or an approved reduced pressure 
principle backflow prevention assembly on each service to the premises.  

(e) Any backflow prevention assembly required herein shall be a make, model and size 
approved by the director of public works and engineering. The term "approved backflow 
prevention assembly" shall mean an assembly that has been manufactured in full 
conformance with the standards established by the American Water Works Association 
entitled: AWWA/ANSI C510-921 Standard for Double Check Valve Backflow Prevention 
Assemblies; AWWA/ANSI C511-921 Standard for Reduced Pressure Principle Backflow 
Prevention Assemblies; and, have met completely the laboratory and field performance 
specifications of the Foundation for Cross-Connection Control and Hydraulic Research of 
the University of Southern California (USC FCCCHR) established in: Specifications of 
Backflow Prevention Assemblies—Section 10 of the most current edition of the Manual of 
Cross-Connection Control. Said AWWA and USC FCCCHR standards and specifications 
have been adopted by the director of public works and engineering. Final approval shall be 
evidenced by a “certificate of compliance” for the said AWWA standards; or “certificate of 



Ord. 19-I Page 9 of 11 

approval” for the said USC FCCCHR specifications issued by an approved testing 
laboratory.  
The following testing laboratory has been qualified by the director of public works and 
engineering to test and approve backflow prevention assemblies: Foundation for Cross-
Connection Control and Hydraulic Research, University of Southern California, KAP-200 
University Park MC-2531, and Los Angeles, California 90089-2531. Testing laboratories 
other than the laboratory listed above will be added to an approved list as they are qualified 
by the director of public works and engineering.  

Backflow preventers which may be subjected to backpressure or backsiphonage that have 
been fully tested and have been granted a certificate of approval by said qualified laboratory 
and are listed on the laboratory's current list of approved backflow prevention assemblies 
may be used without further test or qualification.  

(f) It shall be the duty of the consumer at any premises where backflow prevention assemblies 
are installed to have a field test performed by a certified backflow prevention assembly 
tester upon installation and at least once per year. In those instances where the director of 
public works and engineering deems the hazard to be great enough he may require field tests 
at more frequent intervals. These tests shall be performed at the expense of the water user 
and shall be performed by a certified tester who holds a current endorsement from the [State 
of] Texas Natural Resource Conservation CommitteeTexas Commission on Environmental 
Quality (“TCEQ”). The consumer shall notify the director of public works and engineering 
in advance when the tests are to be undertaken so that an official representative may witness 
the field tests if so desired. These assemblies shall be repaired, overhauled or replaced at the 
expense of the consumer whenever said assemblies are found to be defective. Original 
records of such tests, repairs and overhaul shall be kept and made available to the director of 
public works and engineering within five (5) working days of the test, repair or overhaul of 
the backflow prevention assembly. The consumer must provide a certification from the 
certified backflow prevention assembly tester showing that the backflow prevention 
assembly is operating within specifications. Test reports must be completed by a recognized 
backflow prevention assembly tester for each assembly tested.  

(g) No backflow prevention assembly or device shall be removed from use, relocated or other 
assembly or device substituted without the approval of the City of Alvin. Whenever the 
existing assembly is moved from the present location or cannot be repaired, the backflow 
prevention assembly shall be replaced with a backflow prevention assembly or device that 
complies with this article, The American Water Works Association Manual M14, current 
addition, University of Southern California Manual of Cross Connection Control, current 
addition, or the current Plumbing Code of the City of Alvin, whichever is more stringent.  

(h) Test gauges used for backflow prevention assemblies testing shall be calibrated at least 
annually in accordance with the University of Southern California’s Manual of Cross 
Connection Control or the American Water Works Association's Recommended Practice for 
Backflow Prevention and Cross Connection Control (Manual M14). The original calibration 
form must be submitted to the City of Alvin within five (5) working days after calibration.  

(i) A customer service inspection must be completed prior to the City [of Alvin] providing 
continuous water service to all new construction and on any existing service when the water 



Ord. 19-I Page 10 of 11 

purveyor has reason to believe that cross connections or other contaminant hazards exist, or 
after any material improvement, correction, or addition to the private water distribution 
facilities. Only individuals with the following credentials shall be recognized as capable of 
conducting a customer service inspection:  
(1) Plumbing inspectors and water supply protection specialists that have been licensed by 

the [State of] Texas State Board of Plumbing Examiners.  
(2) Customer service inspectors who have completed a commission approved course, 

passed an examination administered by the commission or its designated agent and hold 
current certification or endorsement as a customer service inspector.  

The customer service inspection must certify that there are no violations of this article.  

Sec. 17-17. - Violations.  

(a) No direct connection between the public drinking water supply and a potential source of 
contamination is permitted.  

(b) No cross-connection between the public drinking water supply and a private water system is 
permitted.  

(c) No connection which allows water to be returned to the public drinking water supply is 
permitted.  

(d) No pipe fitting which contains more than eight (8.0%)  point 25 (0.25%) percent lead may 
be used for the installation or repair of plumbing at any connection which provides water for 
human use.  

(e) No solder or flux which contains more than point two (0.2) percent lead can be used for the 
installation or repair of plumbing at any connection which provides water for human use. A 
minimum of one lead test shall be required for each inspection.  

Sec. 17-18. - Penalty.  

Any person who violates any provision of this article shall be deemed guilty of a 
misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof in municipal court shall be subject to a fine in an 
amount not to exceed two thousand dollars ($2000.00) for each offense. Each day the violation 
exists shall constitute a separate offense.  
. . . 
 
Section 2. Severability. Should any section or part of this ordinance be held 
unconstitutional, illegal, invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons 
thereof ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or 
ineffectiveness of such section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining 
portion or portions thereof; but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and 
remain in full force and effect and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be 
severable.  
 

Section 3. Penalty Provision.  Any person, firm, corporation or business entity violating this 
Ordinance if deemed guilty, and upon conviction thereof shall be fined as set forth herein. Each 



Ord. 19-I Page 11 of 11 

unlawful act or continuing day’s violation under this Ordinance shall constitute a separate 
offense.  The penal provision imposed under this Ordinance shall not preclude the City of Alvin 
from filing suit to enjoin the violation.  The City of Alvin retains all legal rights and remedies 
available to it pursuant to local, state and federal law. 
 
Section 4. Publication.  The City Secretary of the City of Alvin is hereby directed to publish 
this Ordinance, or its caption and penalty clause, in one issue of the official City newspaper as 
required by the City of Alvin Charter. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 52 of the Texas Local 
Government Code, and the City of Alvin Charter. 
 
Section 6. Open Meetings Act.   It is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public 
notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this ____ day of _____________________, 2019. 

 

THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS   ATTEST 
 
 
 
By:_____________________________  By:_________________________________ 
 Paul A. Horn, Mayor     Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 
 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   5/2/2019 

Department:  Engineering Contact:  Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider an Engineering Services Agreement with LJA Engineering in an amount not to 

exceed $80,650 for additional engineering design services for the Lift Station 30 
Expansion and Highway 35 Bypass Gravity Mains Project; and authorize the City 
Manager to sign the agreement upon legal review. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☒Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   This project was identified in the 2015 Utility Master Plan that was approved by City Council on 
March 3, 2016 and consists of the expansion of lift station #30 from a firm capacity of 4.61 Million Gallons 
Daily (MGD) to a firm capacity of 9 MGD. The project also includes the replacement of approximately 4,300 
linear feet of 30-inch gravity sanitary sewer main along Highway 35 Bypass with 36-inch gravity main, and the 
replacement of approximately 1,900 linear feet of 20-inch force (pressurized) main along Highway 35 Bypass 
with 24-inch force main. 
 
On April 19, 2018, the City Council approved an Engineering Services Agreement for $668,865 with LJA 
Engineering for design services for the Lift Station 30 Expansion and Highway 35 Bypass Gravity Mains 
Project. As of February 2019, the project is at the 90% design stage. In February 2019, Freese and Nichols 
finished the Utility Capacity Study for two residential developments that are proposed northwest of the Forest 
Heights Subdivision and would require utility service for approximately 800 lots. The results of the study by 
Freese and Nichols indicates that Lift Station 30 would need to be further expanded beyond what was 
recommended in the 2015 Utility Master Plan, to 11.7 Million Gallons Daily (MGD) in order to serve any 
substantial additional development in the northwest part of the City that was not previously included in the 
2015 Utility Master Plan. Since this project is currently in design, it is Staff’s recommendation that the lift 
station be designed to meet the increased recommended capacity at this time.  
 
The Engineering Services Agreement being considered will provide the additional engineering design, 
geotechnical data, and construction materials testing services to revise the current design to meet the required 
capacity. These additional design services will be funded by the 2019 Utility Bond. 
 
Staff recommends approval of this Agreement. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☒ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☒ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account: 236-6003-00-9076 Amount:  $80,650 1295 Form Required? Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 4/25/2019 SLH 
 
Supporting documents attached: 
• LJA Proposal for Additional Engineering Design Services for Lift Station 30 Expansion and Highway 35 

Bypass Gravity Mains Project Design 



 

 
 
Recommendation:   Move to approve an Engineering Services Agreement with LJA Engineering in an 

amount not to exceed $80,650 for additional engineering design services for the Lift 
Station 30 Expansion and Highway 35 Bypass Gravity Mains Project; and authorize 
the City Manager to sign the agreement upon legal review. 

 
Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 
 



 
 
April 23, 2019  
 
 
 
Ms. Michelle H. Segovia, P.E., CFM 
City Engineer 
City of Alvin Engineering 
1100 W. Highway 6  
Alvin, Texas 77511 
 
 
Re: Additional Engineering Design Services Required for Change in Lift Station Capacity to 

the Lift Station 30 Expansion and HWY 35 Bypass Gravity Main and Force Main Project 
for the City of Alvin  

 LJA Project No. E231-0010 
 LJA Proposal No. 18-01360CO2 
 
 
Dear Ms. Segovia: 
 
LJA Engineering, Inc. (LJA) is pleased to present this proposal for additional engineering design 
services required for the change in capacity of the proposed lift station, increasing from a firm 
capacity of 9.0MGD to a firm capacity of 11.7MGD, to the Lift Station 30 Expansion and HWY 35 
Bypass Gravity and Force Main Project for the City of Alvin.  The engineering services will include 
civil design, additional geotechnical investigation, and additional construction materials testing 
required for the increase in capacity. 
 
We propose the additional fees as shown on the table on the following page as presented with 
our original contract fees and fees from Change Order No. 1.  The Freese and Nichols, Inc. (FNI) 
Utility Master Plan dated February of 2016 lists the construction cost of the Lift Station 30 project 
at $7,479,300.00.  The FNI Memorandum regarding the Northwest Area Water and Wastewater 
System Analysis dated February of 2019 lists the construction cost of the Lift Station 30 project 
at $8,264,500.00 (estimated in 2016 dollars).  The FNI Memorandum states the gravity mains and 
force mains associated with the project are of sufficient size to convey the future Northwest Area 
flows.  However, the capacity of Lift Station 30 will need to increase from 9.0MGD firm capacity 
to a frim capacity of 11.7MGD.  Considering the lift station capacity is the only change in scope, 
we used the $785,200.00 delta between the construction costs listed in the FNI Utility Master Plan 
and the FNI Memorandum regarding the Northwest Area Water and Wastewater System Analysis.  
The calculated basic engineering fee, based on the $785,200.00 delta, is $88,315.00. LJA has 
prorated this basic engineering fee at 80% for an additional Preliminary / Design Phase Services 
Fee of $70,650.00. We feel the fees previously established for Bidding and Construction Phase 
Services are sufficient to handle the capacity increase.  

An estimated time and materials fee of $5,000.00 is requested to cover additional geotechnical 
subconsultant fees. An estimated time and materials fee of $5,000.00 is also requested to cover 
additional construction materials testing fees. We feel the fees previously established for surveys, 
record drawings, and project representation are sufficient to handle the capacity increase. 

The total increase for the additional services to the original contract is $80,650.00.   



 
 
Ms. Michelle H. Segovia, P.E., CFM 
City of Alvin Engineering 
April 23, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 
 

H:\Engineering\Clients\Proposals\City of Alvin\Assignment Letter - Change Order2 to Lift Station 30 2019 04 23.docx 

FEE ADJUSTMENT 
 
Based on the addition of the facilities listed above, the fees are compared to the original contract 
fees in the table below: 
 

Design Services Original Contract 
Fees 

Change Order No. 1 
Fees 

Increase in Scope 
Change Order No. 2 

Task A – Preliminary / 
Design Phase Services $ 385,652.00 $ 0.00 $ 70,650.00 

Task B – Bidding Phase 
Services  $ 24,103.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 

Task C – Construction 
Phase Services $ 72,310.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 

Task D – Extra Services – 
Survey, Geotech., CMT, 
Record Drawings, Project 
Rep. 

$ 181,800.00 $ 11,000.00 $ 10,000.00* 

Reimbursable Expenses $ 5,000.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 
Total Design Services $ 668,865.00 $ 11,000.00 $ 80,650.00 

*$5,000.00 T&M Estimated Fee requested to cover additional geotechnical subconsultant fees and 
$5,000.00 T&M Estimated Fee requested to cover additional construction materials testing fees. 

 
If this proposal for additional engineering services meets with your approval, please execute both 
copies (below), returning one original signed copy to our office and keeping the other for your 
records. Your signature will be sufficient authorization to immediately commence the stated work. 
 
Thank you again for the opportunity to perform these services for you.  If you have any questions, 
please call me at 713.657.6013. 
 
 
 
Sincerely,       Proposal Accepted By: 

CITY OF ALVIN 
Junru Roland, City Manager 

        
 
Jimmy C. Flowers, P.E.    By:                                          
Project Manager     

Name:                     
       

Date:                                
 
 


	05/02/19 City Council Agenda
	PRESENTATIONS
	A. Proclamation; Police Week
	B. EMS/Emergency Mgmt Dept. Update

	CONSENT AGENDA
	A. City Council Minutes 04/04/19 WS
	B. City Council Minutes 04/04/19
	C. CIP Quarterly Report
	Comp Plan Implementation Report

	D. Janitorial Services; Addendum #1; American Janitorial
	Addendum #1; Janitorial
	Original Agreement; Janitorial
	Renewal Letter
	Bid Submittal

	E. Manicured Mowing; Addendum #1; LTS Lawncare
	Addendum #1; Manicured Mowing
	Original Agreement; Manicured Mowing
	Renewal Letter
	Bid Submittal

	F. Manicured Mowing; Addenum #2; LTS Lawncare
	Addendum #2; Manicured Mowing
	Original Agreement
	Addendum #1
	Renewal Letter
	Bid Submittal

	G. Res 19-R-19; CenterPoint Energy Electric Rate Case
	Resolution 19-R-19

	H. Res 19-R-20; CenterPoint Energy Gas; Rate Case
	Resolution 19-R-20


	OTHER BUSINESS
	A. Financial/Quarterly Investment Reports ending 3/31/19
	GENERAL FUND 111
	HOT FUND121
	UTILITY FUND 211
	SANITATION FUND 212
	EMS FUND 213
	SALES TAX 312
	Fleet 611
	March 2019 Financial Presentation
	General Fund Summary�Revenue, Expense & Fund Balance Comparison 
	General Fund �Major Revenue Comparison�as of March, 2019
	Sales Tax Revenues�Budget vs. Actual�FY 2018-19
	UTILITY FUND�Revenue & Expense Comparison (YTD)�
	% of FY19 W&S Revenue Budget Billed per Month   
	Sanitation Fund�Revenue & Expense Comparison (YTD)
	EMS Fund�Revenue & Expense Comparison (YTD)
	Operating Revenues �Budget vs. Actual�as of  March, 2019 (50% of FY)
	Operating Expenditures�Budget vs. Actual�as of  March, 2019 (50% of FY) 
	Cash and Investments�as of March, 2019

	Investment Report
	Lead sheet
	Chart
	Detail Portfolio


	B. Res 19-R-21; SPA MUD 48; Walton Development
	Resolution 19-R-21
	SPA MUD 48

	C. Res 19-R-22; SPA MUD 49; Walton Development
	Resolution 19-R-22
	SPA MUD 49

	D. Ord 19-J; TIRZ 3 Dissolution
	Ordinance 19-J

	E. Ord 19-F(a); Chapter 5 Buildings; Adopting International Building Code
	Ordinance 19-F(a)
	Exhibit A

	F. Ord 19-G; Chapter 8 Electricity; Adopting National Electrical Code
	Ordinance 19-G

	G. Ord 19-H; Chapter 9 Fire Prevention & Protection; Adopting International Fire Code
	Ordinance 19-H

	H. Ord 19-I; Chapter 17 Plumbing; Adopting International Plumbing Code
	Ordinance 19-I

	I. Engineering Services Agreement; Lift Station 30 Expansion & Hwy 35 Bypass Gravity Mains Project; LJA Engineering
	Proposal





